

# **Prospectus**

## Natixis AM Funds Société d'Investissement à Capital Variable organized under the laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

NATIXIS AM Funds (the "SICAV") is a Luxembourg *Société d'Investissement à Capital Variable* composed of several separate sub-funds (each, a "Sub-Fund").

The SICAV's objective is to provide investors access to a diversified management expertise through a range of several separate sub-funds, each having its own investment objective and policy.

The SICAV qualifies as a UCITS under Part I of the Luxembourg law of 17 December 2010 on undertakings for collective investments, as may be amended from time to time (the "Law").

1<sup>st</sup> January 2025

VISA 2024/178474-7888-0-PC L'apposition du visa ne peut en aucun cas se d'argument de publicité Luxembourg, le 2024-12-31 Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
IMPORTANT INFORMATION	4
EQUITIES SUB-FUNDS	8
OSTRUM SRI EURO HIGH DIVIDEND EQUITY	9
FIXED INCOME SUB-FUNDS	13
OSTRUM SRI TOTAL RETURN SOVEREIGN	14
OSTRUM SRI CREDIT SHORT DURATION	20
OSTRUM EURO INFLATION	24
OSTRUM SRI EURO AGGREGATE	
OSTRUM TOTAL RETURN CREDIT	
OSTRUM SRI GLOBAL SUBORDINATED DEBT	
OSTRUM FIXED INCOME MULTI STRATEGIES	43
SOLUTIONS SUB-FUNDS	48
NATIXIS CONSERVATIVE RISK PARITY	49
NATIXIS BOND ALTERNATIVE RISK PREMIA	52
NATIXIS GLOBAL MULTI STRATEGIES	58
QUANTITATIVE SUB-FUNDS	64
OSTRUM SRI TOTAL RETURN CONSERVATIVE	65
OSTRUM SRI TOTAL RETURN DYNAMIC	70
OSTRUM SRI EUROPE MINVOL EQUITY	76
OSTRUM SRI GLOBAL MINVOL EQUITY	80
OSTRUM TOTAL RETURN VOLATILITY	84
GLOBAL EMERGING SUB-FUNDS	89
OSTRUM GLOBAL EMERGING BONDS	90

# NATIXIS AM Funds

INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS	93
USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES	99
PRINCIPAL RISKS	107
CHARGES AND EXPENSES	124
SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES	129
DETERMINATION OF THE NET ASSET VALUE	140
TAXATION	
FUND SERVICE PROVIDERS	145
GENERAL INFORMATION	149
DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE	152
FUND SERVICE PROVIDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS	153
SFDR ANNEXES	155
OSTRUM SRI EURO HIGH DIVIDEND EQUITY	156
OSTRUM SRI TOTAL RETURN SOVEREIGN	163
OSTRUM SRI CREDIT SHORT DURATION	175
OSTRUM EURO INFLATION	188
OSTRUM SRI EURO AGGREGATE	199
OSTRUM TOTAL RETURN CREDIT	214
OSTRUM SRI GLOBAL SUBORDINATED DEBT	227
OSTRUM FIXED INCOME MULTI STRATEGIES	239
OSTRUM SRI TOTAL RETURN CONSERVATIVE	248
OSTRUM SRI TOTAL RETURN DYNAMIC	260
OSTRUM SRI EUROPE MINVOL EQUITY	271
OSTRUM SRI GLOBAL MINVOL EQUITY	281

#### **IMPORTANT INFORMATION**

#### SHARES OF EACH SUB-FUND ARE ONLY OFFERED FOR SALE IN LUXEMBOURG AND WHERE OTHERWISE PERMITTED BY LAW. SHARES ARE NOT BEING OFFERED OR SOLD IN ANY JURISDICTION WHERE THE OFFER OR SALE IS PROHIBITED BY LAW.

#### Investor Qualifications

Individuals may invest only in class R Shares and class R2 Shares, class RE Shares, class CW Shares, class N1 Shares and class N Shares. Only investors that meet certain qualifications may purchase class I Shares, class M Shares, class Q Shares, class SI Shares, class S1 Shares and class G Shares. Please read this Prospectus to determine whether you satisfy those qualifications.

#### What to Know Before You Invest in a Sub-Fund

Your investment in a Sub-Fund may increase or decrease and you could lose some or all of your investment in a Sub-Fund. There is no assurance that a Sub-Fund will meet its investment objective. Please read this Prospectus before making any investment in a Sub-Fund. In addition, there may be laws and regulations, exchange controls and tax rules that apply to you because of your investment in a Sub-Fund. If you have any question about the information in this Prospectus or investing in any Sub-Fund, please consult your financial, tax and legal advisers.

No person is authorized to make any representation about the SICAV, any Sub-Fund or the Shares other than those representations contained in this Prospectus. You should not rely on any representation about the SICAV, a Sub-Fund or the Shares other than those representations contained in this Prospectus.

The Shares have not been, and will not be, registered under the 1933 Act or qualified under any applicable U.S. state statutes, and the Shares may not be transferred, offered or sold in the United States of America (including its territories and possessions) or to or for the benefit of, directly or indirectly, any U.S. Person (as defined in the US regulations).

The SICAV is not, and will not be, registered under the 1940 Act, and investors will not be entitled to the benefit of registration under the 1940 Act. Any resales or transfers of the Shares in the U.S. or to U.S. Persons constitute a violation of U.S. law and is prohibited.

The board of directors of the SICAV (the "Board of Directors") has the power to impose restrictions on the shareholdings by (and consequently to redeem Shares held by), or the transfer of Shares to any person who appears to be in breach of the laws or requirements of any country or government authority, or by any person or persons in circumstances (whether directly or indirectly affecting such person or persons, and whether taken alone or in conjunction with any other persons, connected or not, or any other circumstances appearing to the Directors to be relevant) which, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, might result in the SICAV suffering any disadvantage which the SICAV might not otherwise have incurred or suffered.

The Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the SEC, any state securities commission or other U.S. regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of this offering or the accuracy or adequacy of these offering materials. Any representation to the contrary is unlawful.

Shareholders are required to notify the Registrar and Transfer Agent (as defined below) or the Management Company (as defined below) immediately in the event that they become U.S. Persons or hold units for the account of benefit of U.S. Persons or otherwise hold units in breach of any law or regulation or otherwise in circumstances having, or which may have, adverse regulatory, tax or fiscal consequences for the SICAV or the Shareholders or otherwise be detrimental to the interests of the SICAV. Shareholders who become U.S. Persons. The Board of Directors reserves the right to repurchase any Shares which are or become owned, directly or indirectly, by a U.S. Person or if the holding of the Shares by any person is unlawful or detrimental to the interests of the SICAV.

NATIXIS AM Funds

#### DEFINITION OF U.S. PERSON U.S. Regulation S currently provides that:

(1) "U.S. Person" means: (a) any natural person resident in the U.S.; (b) any partnership or corporation organized or incorporated under the laws of the U.S.; (c) any estate of which any executor or administrator is a U.S. Person; (d) any trust of which any trustee is a U.S. Person; (e) any agency or branch of a non-U.S. entity located in the U.S.; (f) any non-discretionary or similar account (other than an estate or trust) held by a dealer or other fiduciary for the benefit or account of a U.S. Person; (g) any discretionary account or similar account (other than an estate or trust) held by a dealer or other fiduciary for the benefit or account of a U.S. Person; (g) any discretionary account or similar account (other than an estate or trust) held by a dealer or other fiduciary organized, incorporated or (if an individual) resident in the U.S.; and (h) any partnership or corporation if (i) organized or incorporated under the laws of any non-U.S. jurisdiction and (ii) formed by a U.S. Person principally for the purpose of investing in securities not registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended, unless it is organized or incorporated, and owned, by accredited investors (as defined under Rule 501(a) under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended) who are not natural persons, estates or trusts.

(2) "U.S. Person" does not include: (a) any discretionary account or similar account (other than an estate or trust) held for the benefit or account of a non-U.S. Person by a dealer or other professional fiduciary organized, incorporated, or, if an individual, resident in the U.S.; (b) any estate of which any professional fiduciary acting as executor or administrator is a U.S. Person if (i) an executor or administrator of the estate who is not a U.S. Person has sole or shared investment discretion with respect to the assets of the estate and (ii) the estate is governed by non-U.S. law; (c) any trust of which any professional fiduciary acting as trustee is a U.S. Person if a trustee who is not a U.S. Person has sole or shared investment discretion with respect to the trust assets, and no beneficiary of the trust (and no settlor if the trust is revocable) is a U.S. Person; (d) an employee benefit plan established and administered in accordance with the law of a country other than the U.S. and customary practices and documentation of such country; (e) any agency or branch of a U.S. Person located outside the U.S. if (i) the agency or branch operates for valid business reasons and (ii) the agency or branch is engaged in the business of insurance or banking and is subject to substantive insurance or banking regulation; respectively, in the jurisdiction where located; (f) the International Monetary Fund, the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the Inter-American Development Bank, the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank, the United Nations and their agencies, affiliates and pension plans and any other similar international organizations, their agencies, affiliates and pension plans and (g) any entity excluded or exempted from the definition of "U.S. Person" in reliance on or with reference to interpretations or positions of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff.

The distribution of this Prospectus in other jurisdictions may also be restricted. Persons in possession of this Prospectus are required to inform themselves about such restrictions and must observe these restrictions. This Prospectus does not constitute an offer toward anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer.

For additional copies of this Prospectus, or copies of the most recent annual and semi-annual reports of the SICAV or the SICAV's articles of incorporation, please call Brown Brothers Harriman (Luxembourg) S.C.A., tel. + 352 474 066 425 or write to: Brown Brothers Harriman(Luxembourg) S.C.A..

The Prospectus is available on the website of the Management Company: <u>www.im.natixis.com</u> The Management Company draws the investors' attention to the fact that any investor will only be able to fully exercise his/her/its investor rights directly against the SICAV, notably the right to participate in general shareholders' meetings, if the investor is registered himself/herself/itself and in his/her/its own name in the shareholders' register of the SICAV. In cases where an investor invests in the SICAV through an intermediary investing into the SICAV in his/her/its own name but on behalf of such investor, it may not always be possible for the investor to (i) exercise certain shareholder rights directly against the SICAV or (ii) be indemnified in case of Net Asset Value calculation errors and/or non-compliance with investment rules and/or other errors at the level of the SICAV (including any Sub-Funds). Investors are advised to take advice on their rights.

#### Considerations for certain non-Luxembourg investors:

Certain of the Sub-Funds of the SICAV may be authorized for distribution to the public in countries other than Luxembourg.

Please contact the Promoter to verify which Sub-Funds are authorized for distribution to the public in your country.

The base language of this Prospectus is English. Translations may be provided in other languages however only the English version will prevail in case of conflict.

#### Data Protection:

In accordance with the EU Regulation 2016/679 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 April 2016 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data and on the free movement of such data and repealing Directive 95/46/EC accompanied with any implementing legislation applicable to them (together, the "Data Protection Regulation"), personal data of investors (including prospective investors) and of other individuals (including, but not limited to, directors, managers, agents and other representatives or employees of the investors) ("Data Subject") whose personal information collected and provided to the SICAV in the context of the investor's investments in the SICAV may be stored on computer systems by electronic means or other means and processed by the SICAV and the Management Company as data controller, and may be processed in certain circumstances by third party service providers acting as their delegates such as the central administration, as a data processor of the SICAV and the Management Company.

In certain circumstances, delegates of the SICAV acting as data processor may however also act as data controller if and when processing personal data for the purposes of complying with their own legal and regulatory obligations (in particular in the context of their own AML and KYC related processes).

The SICAV and the Management Company are committed to protecting the personal data of the Data Subjects, and have taken all necessary steps, to ensure compliance with the Data Protection Regulation in respect of personal data processed by them in connection with investments made into the SICAV.

This includes (non-exclusively) actions required in relation to: information about processing of your personal data and, as the case may be, consent mechanisms; procedures for responding to requests to exercise individual rights; contractual arrangements with suppliers and other third parties; security measures; arrangements for overseas data transfers and record keeping and reporting policies and procedures.

Personal data shall have the meaning given in the Data Protection Regulation and includes (nonexclusively) any information relating to an identified or identifiable individual, such as the investor's name, address, invested amount, the investor's individual representatives' names as well as the name of the ultimate beneficial owner, where applicable, and such investor's bank account details.

Personal data will be processed to facilitate the investments in the SICAV and its ongoing management and administration such processing of subscriptions, redemptions and conversions, and will also be processed in compliance with the legal obligations under Luxembourg law (such as applicable fund law and commercial company law, prevention of terrorism financing and anti-money laundering legislation, prevention and detection of crime, tax law) and all other laws and regulations as may be issued by the European competent authorities, where necessary for the purposes of the SICAV's or their delegates' legitimate interests.

Personal data provided directly by Data Subjects in the course of their relationship with the SICAV, in particular their correspondence and conversation with the SICAV, or their delegates may be recorded, and processed in compliance with Data Protection Regulation.

The SICAV or their delegates may share the personal data to their affiliates and to other entities which may be located outside the EEA. In such case they will ensure that the personal data are protected by appropriate safeguards.

#### NATIXIS AM Funds

In compliance with the Data Protection Regulation, Data Subjects have certain rights including the right to access their personal data, the right to have incomplete or inaccurate personal data corrected, the right to object to and to restrict the use of the personal data, the right to require the deletion of their personal data, the right to receive their personal data in a structured, commonly used and machine-readable formatted and to transmit those data to another controller. Data Subjects may address any request to the registered office of the Company, 80, route d'Esch, L-1470 Luxembourg or to the Data Protection Officer ("DPO") dpo-natixisim@natixis.com.

Data Subjects have the right to raise any question or lodge a complaint about the processing of their personal data with the relevant data protection authority.

The personal data are not kept for longer than is necessary for the purposes for which they are processed.

When subscribing to the Shares, each investor will be informed of the processing of his/her personal data (or, when the investor is a legal person, of the processing of such investor's individual representatives and/or ultimate beneficial owners' personal data) via a data protection notice which will be made available in the application form issued by the SICAV to the investors or on the website of the Management Company. This data protection notice will inform the investors about the processing activities undertaken by the SICAV the Management Company and their delegates in more details.

#### Prevention of money laundering:

The SICAV must comply with applicable international and Luxembourg laws and regulations regarding the prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing including but not limited to, the law of 12 November 2004 on the fight against money laundering and terrorist financing, as may be amended from time to time (the "2004 Law"), the Grand-Ducal Regulation of 10 February 2010 providing detail on certain provisions of the 2004 Law, CSSF Regulation No 12-02 of 14 December 2012 on the fight against money laundering and terrorist financing and relevant CSSF circulars in the field of the prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing. In particular, anti-money laundering and counter terrorist financing measures in force in Luxembourg require the SICAV, on a risk sensitive basis, to establish and verify the identity of Shareholders (as well as the identity of any intended beneficial owners of the Shares if they are not the subscribers and any agents (if applicable)) and the origin of subscription proceeds and to monitor the business relationship on an ongoing basis.

Shareholders will be required to provide to the SICAV or the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the SICAV the information and documentation set out in the application form, depending on their legal form (individual, corporate or other category of subscriber). The SICAV and the Registrar and Transfer Agent may demand additional information and documents as they see fit.

The SICAV is required to establish anti-money laundering controls and may require from Shareholders all documentation deemed necessary to establish and verify this information. The SICAV has the right to request additional information until it is reasonably satisfied that it understands the identity and economic purpose of the Shareholders. Furthermore, any Shareholder is required to notify the SICAV prior to the occurrence of any change in the identity of any beneficial owner of Shares. The SICAV may require from existing Shareholders, at any time, additional information together with all supporting documentation deemed necessary for the SICAV to comply with anti-money laundering measures in force in Luxembourg.

Failure to provide information or documentation deemed necessary for the SICAV to comply with antimoney laundering measures in force in Luxembourg may result in delays in, or rejection of, any subscription or conversion application and/or delays in any redemption application. **EQUITIES SUB-FUNDS** 

# **OSTRUM SRI EURO HIGH DIVIDEND EQUITY<sup>1</sup>**

# **Reference Currency**

Euro (EUR)

**Reference Index** 

MSCI EMU Dividend Net Reinvested

#### Investment Objective

The investment objective of Ostrum SRI Euro High Dividend Equity (the "Sub-Fund") is to outperform the MSCI EMU Dividend Net Reinvested over its recommended minimum investment period of 5 years while aiming to maintain an average volatility lower than the Reference Index.

The Sub-Fund is actively managed. For indicative purposes only, the Sub-Fund's performance may be compared to the Reference Index. However, it does not aim to replicate that Reference Index and may therefore significantly deviate from it.

The Reference Index does not intend to be consistent with the environmental or social characteristics which are promoted by the Sub-Fund.

# **Investment Policy**

#### **Investment Strategy**

The Sub-Fund promotes environmental or social characteristics but does not have as its objective a sustainable investment. In this context, it might invest partially in assets that have a sustainable objective, for instance qualified as sustainable according to the EU classification. For further information regarding the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund, please refer to the SFDR Annex.

The Sub-Fund's investment strategy is mainly based on the identification, analysis and selection of quality companies, offering either a high and sustainable immediate return, or visible prospects for performance growth at reasonable valuations.

The management process is divided into 4 steps.

#### 1. Definition of the eligible investment universe

Equities are selected, from a certain number of Eurozone equities, by applying several quantitative filters, whether financial or extra-financial. The filters are used to define the "Sustainable Income" group of companies by using financial ratios that make it possible to favour certain criteria (- Quality of the economic model, - Balance sheet quality, -Dividend sustainability, - Credit risk).

This first step in applying the various filters ultimately leads to the definition of the Sub-Fund's eligible investment universe. This represents about half of the starting investment universe.

#### 2. Stock selection

The second step, based on eligible investment universe, aims to select the companies likely to enter the Sub-Fund's portfolio. It is based on financial and extra financial fundamental analysis, an estimate of income and dividends and a medium-term fundamental valuation.

These different steps in stock selection process allow the Delegated Investment Manager to estimate the sustainable return of each target company, to determine its fundamental valuation and to formulate its recommendation at twelve months (buy/ strengthen/ keep/ reduce / sell).

<sup>1</sup> This Sub-Fund does not have the French label ISR.

# 3. Portfolio construction

The third step is the portfolio's construction and management. It aims to maximize the risk (financial & extra-financial)return ratio of the Sub-Fund.

It incorporates the management framework and investment objectives previously set for the Sub-Fund, in accordance with the Delegated Investment Manager's investment strategy dedicated to the European equity asset class. It is based on macroeconomic forecasts, the long-term themes of Ostrum AM and conclusions from several proprietary quantitative tools.

Finally, portfolio's calibration incorporates the strategic elements described above and uses a proprietary methodology that utilizes the degree of conviction on each investment case, its liquidity and its financial and extra-financial quality.

#### 4. Portfolio steering and monitoring

Portfolio Steering allows to analyze the Sub-Fund's structure on a certain number of financial and extra-financial axes in instantaneous and projected form and consequently to validate compliance with the constraints and objectives set. It also involves simulating the impacts of buying and selling operations for the Sub-Fund.

Portfolio Monitoring corresponds to the analysis, by the analysts-managers, of the absolute and relative performance (in real time and in ex-post allocation), of the ex-ante risk budget and the decomposition of its systematic and specific components.

This control allows to validate that the Sub-Fund's portfolio carries the right level of relative risk (including volatility) and above all that it is well positioned on the systematic and idiosyncratic convictions of the Delegated Investment Manager.

#### **Investment Guidelines**

The Sub-Fund is mainly invested in equity securities issued in the euro zone and up to a maximum of 10% of the net assets in European countries outside the euro zone.

The Sub-Fund may be invested up to 15% of net assets into small and mid-capitalization (small-capitalization companies being defined as companies with a market capitalization of less than 5 billion euros).

Except for the Sub-Fund's equity exposure to France which is not subject to any limit, the equity exposure by country is limited to 40% of the Sub-Fund's net assets.

The Sub-Fund's exposure to the European equity markets is expected to range between 90% and 100% of its net assets.

The Sub-Fund may be exposed up to 10% of its net assets to currencies other than the euro.

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in money market instruments and cash equivalent.

#### Investment in undertakings for collective investment

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in undertakings for collective investment.

#### Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 5% of its assets in index-linked financial derivatives.

The Sub-Fund does not intend to enter into SFTs.

#### Launch of the Sub-Fund

The precise launch date of this Sub-Fund will be determined by the Board of Directors.

#### **Typical Investors' Profile**

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional and retail investors who:

- are looking for a diversification of their investments with a global exposure to equities;
- can afford to set aside capital for a long period of time (over 5 years); and
- can accept capital losses.

#### **Specific Risks**

The specific risks of investing in the Sub-Fund are linked to:

- Capital loss;
- Equity;
- Exchange Rates;
- Volatility;
- Geographic and portfolio concentration;
- Small and Mid-Capitalization Companies;
- Financial Derivatives Instruments;
- Liquidity;
- Counterparty;
- Sustainability Risks;
- ESG Driven Investments

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund is managed through the use of the "Commitment Approach" method described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" – "Global Risk Exposure".

For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" below. This same chapter also describes the other risks linked to an investment into the Sub-Fund.

# Characteristics

#### Characteristics of the Categories of Share Classes in the Sub-Fund

Category of Share Classes*	Management Fee	Service Fee**	All-In Fee	Maximum Sales Charge	Maximum Redemption Charge	Minimum Initial Investment*	Minimum Holding***
SI	0.50% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.60% p.a.	None	None	€25,000,000	€25,000,000
I.	0.75% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.85% p.a.	None	None	€100,000	1 share
N	0.75% p.a.	0.20%p.a.	0.95% p.a.	3%	None	None	None
R	1.55% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.75% p.a.	3%	None	€1 000	1 share
Q	0.05% p.a.	0.10%p.a.	0.15% p.a.	None	None	None	None

\*The comprehensive list of offered share classes with details relating to distribution policy, hedging policy (if any) and currencies is available by referring to im.natixis.com. Further details regarding the currency hedging methodology are available under section "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of this Prospectus.

\*\*The "All-In Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and "Service Fee".

\*\*\*Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund or the same amount in other available currencies.

The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes will be determined by the Board of Directors.

# Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency Subscription/ Redemption Date		Application Date and Cut-Off Time	Settlement Date	
Each full bank business day in both Luxembourg and	D* (i.e., any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and	D at 1:30 p.m. Luxembourg time	D+2	
France	France)			

\*D = Day on which the subscription, redemption or conversion application is processed by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent. Applications received by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent before the cut-off time on any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France will be processed on such day. Applications received after the cut-off time will be processed on the following full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France.

## **Reference Index**

Performance of each Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index converted in its respective Share Class currency. Nevertheless, performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index in the Share Class hedging currency.

## Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund

The Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund is Ostrum Asset Management.

FIXED INCOME SUB-FUNDS

# **OSTRUM SRI TOTAL RETURN SOVEREIGN<sup>1</sup>**

Reference Curr	rency
EURO (EUR)	
<b>Reference Inde</b>	X
Daily-capitalized	d Euro Short-Term Rate (€STR)
Investment Obj	jective
daily-capitalized	objective of Ostrum SRI Total Return Sovereign (the "Sub-Fund") is to outperform the I€STR over its recommended minimum investment period of 12 months by more than enting a Socially Responsible Investment (SRI) strategy.
relevant Share Chapter "SUBS" Prospectus) and	are Classes, the daily-capitalized €STR is adjusted to the difference between the Class currency interest rate (as described in the section "Hedging Policy" in the CRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of the d the Euro zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month) over its recommended minimum od of 12 months by more than 1%.
Index. In practice but the Investme within the limits Reference Index	s actively managed. The Sub-Fund's performance may be compared to the Reference e, the portfolio of the Sub-Fund is likely to include constituents of the Reference Index, ent Manager has full discretion in the selection of the securities comprising the portfolio s of the Sub-Fund's investment policy. However, it does not aim to replicate that x and may therefore significantly deviate from it. The Reference Index can be used to erformance fee that will possibly be levied.
	Index does not intend to be consistent with the environmental or social characteristics pmoted by the Sub-Fund.
Investment Pol	icy
The Sub-Fund p sustainable inve qualified as sus	promotes environmental or social characteristics but does not have as its objective a estment. It might invest partially in assets that have a sustainable objective, for instance stainable according to the EU classification. For further information regarding the pr social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund, please refer to the SFDR Annex.
income markets	constitutes a bond investment which aims to take profit from all configurations of fixed- s, over a one-year horizon. By investing in bonds or money-market securities, it eral fixed income strategies: carry, modified duration, curve and relative value.
The portfolio of t	the Sub-Fund contains two distinct strategies:
obje hori	ynamic strategy: based on fixed-income instruments and derivatives and has for active to generate a outperformance by capturing opportunities with a short term time izon (from a few days to a few months). They can occur with directional and relative is positions. Several strategies can be implemented in the Sub-Fund:
	<ul> <li>directional rate exposition;</li> <li>a long/short duration strategy to optimize the overall Sub-Fund's performance based on sovereign and inflation rate anticipation;</li> <li>strategies on sovereign rate curve:</li> <li>operate on the distortion of the curve with a directional or a neutral bias to the interest rate risk geared to the management team expectations</li> </ul>
	arry strategy: invests in sovereign issuers, agencies and supranational agencies bugh a "buy & hold" strategy.
	e advantage of the different conditions in the fixed-income market, the investment rtunistic and discretionary and will be based on a double allocation:

 $<sup>^{1}</sup>$  This Sub-Fund does not have the French label ISR.

- within the "dynamic" strategy, an allocation between bonds and money-market securities; and
- between the "dynamic" strategy and the "carry" strategy in order to capture all scenarii associated with movements in interest rates.

The Sub-Fund may invest in green bonds, social bonds, sustainability bonds and sustainability-linked bonds (in line with the environmental, social and governance (ESG) criteria integrated into its principal investment strategy).

#### **Investment Guidelines**

The Sub-Fund is essentially exposed to fixed-income securities denominated in euro and can be exposed to fixed income non-euro denominated securities for up to 20% of its assets.

The Sub-Fund is not exposed to equities.

The Sub-Fund's exposure to securities not denominated in euro represents less than 20% of its net assets.

The portfolio is constructed in order to respect a monthly ex ante maximum Value at Risk ("VaR") of 5,5% corresponding to the statistical estimation, under normal market conditions, of the maximum potential loss of the portfolio within one month (20 business days) with a probability of 99%.

The modified duration of the portfolio may range from -4 to 4.

As regards the geographical area of the issuers, the exposure of the portfolio to the Euro Zone may range from 0% to 200%<sup>2</sup> and it may range from -200% to 200%<sup>3</sup> for the non-Euro zone exposure.

The Delegated Investment Manager relies on the appraisal of credit risk by its team and its own methodology.

In addition to this appraisal, bonds, with the exception of government bonds or those guaranteed by governments, must benefit from ratings<sup>4</sup> falling within the following ranges or an equivalent rating in accordance with the Delegated Investment Manager's analysis:

Maturity of securities	Standard & Poors	Moody's	Fitch Ratings
Less than 1 year	A-1+ or A-1	P-1	F1+ or F1
More than 1 year	AAA to AA-	Aaa to Aa3	AAA to AA-

Moreover, when the rating of a security already present in the portfolio deteriorates and falls below the minimum rating, the Delegated Investment Manager will examine the case for keeping the securities in the portfolio or disposing of them, while maintaining as its principal criterion the interests of the Shareholders.

The hedged Share Classes aim at hedging the net asset value against the fluctuation between the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund and the relevant hedging currency of a Share Class.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> calculated as a percentage of the exposure of the Sub-Fund

 $<sup>^{3}</sup>$  calculated as a percentage of the exposure of the Sub-Fund

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> The applicable rating is the lowest rating according to S&P, Moody's or Fitch Ratings or an equivalent rating in accordance with the Delegated Investment Manager's analysis, at the time of the acquisition of the relevant security. The rating considered will be the issue rating. In case of unavailable issue rating, the issuer rating will be applicable.

#### Investment in undertakings for collective investment

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets into undertakings for collective investment.

#### Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments

The Sub-Fund may use derivatives for hedging and investment purposes, as described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" below.

Under certain circumstances (as further described below), the Sub-Fund may enter into securities lending transactions, repurchase transactions for efficient portfolio management purposes and reverse repurchase transactions for the purpose of replacing the collateral received in cash as described in the following sections "Repurchase Agreements" and "Securities Lending and Borrowing" in the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES"

The Sub-Fund will enter into repurchase transactions, reverse repurchase transactions and securities lending operations opportunistically and depending on market conditions, in circumstances where the Delegated Investment Manager considers that the composition of the portfolio, the type of the strategy and market conditions allow the Sub-Fund to generate additional capital or income.

When entering into repurchase transactions and securities lending, the Sub-Fund will generally seek to reinvest the cash collateral received in eligible financial instruments (including reverse repurchase transactions) or remunerated deposits that provide greater return than the financial costs incurred when entering into these transactions.

The Sub-Fund's exposure to:

- (i) the repurchase transactions is generally expected to represent approximately 20% of its net assets and will not exceed 50% of its net assets;
- (ii) the reverse repurchase transactions is generally expected to represent approximately 10% of its net assets and will not exceed 50% of its net assets; and
- (iii) the securities lending operations is generally expected to represent approximately 20% of its net assets and will not exceed 50% of its net assets.

The principal amount of the Sub-Fund's assets that can be subject to SFTs described above may represent a maximum of 50% of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund.

#### Track record and launch of the Sub-Fund

The performance that may be shown for the Sub-Fund prior to its inception for the period from 1<sup>st</sup> October 2009 to inception date is derived from the historical performance of Natixis Obli Opportunités 12 Mois, a French domiciled *Fonds Commun de* Placement with an identical investment policy, set up in accordance with the Directive 2009/65/EC, registered with the *Autorité des Marchés Financiers* and managed by the same investment team according to the same investment process. Such performance has been adjusted to reflect the different expenses applicable to the Sub-Fund.

#### Investors should note that past performance is not indicative of future results.

This Sub-Fund was launched on 18 December 2013 by way of a cross-border operation (merger) with the above mentioned French fund.

#### **Typical Investors' Profile**

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional and retail investors who:

- are looking for an exposure to the OECD and EEA fixed-income market;
- can afford to set aside capital for at least 12 months; and
- can accept capital losses.

# Specific Risks

The specific risks of investing in the Sub-Fund are linked to :

- Capital loss;
- Debt securities;
- Changing interest rates;
- Credit;

- Financial Derivatives Instruments;
- Leverage;
- Counterparty;
- Below investment grade securities or unrated securities
- ESG Driven Investments
- Sustainability Risks.

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund will be managed through the use of the absolute Value at Risk (VaR) approach (the "VaR approach"). The VaR approach measures the maximum potential loss at a given confidence level (i.e. probability level) over a specific time frame under normal market conditions.

For the Sub-Fund, the VaR limit of 5,5 % in a holding period equivalent to 1 month (20 business days) ex ante time period with a 99% confidence level means that, with 99% certainty, the percentage the Sub-Fund can expect to lose over the next month should be maximum 5,5%.

The expected range gross leverage of the Sub-Fund is expected to be between 1 and 5. However, the Sub-Fund may reach higher leverage levels under the following circumstances:

- i) low market volatility; and/or
- ii) high market liquidity; and/or
- iii) low risk aversion.

Gross leverage is calculated as the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The gross leverage may be volatile and the wide range of expected level of gross leverage (i.e. usually between 1 and 5) is due to the broad range of asset classes and corresponding Financial Derivatives Instruments which will be utilized in line with the investment strategy of the Sub-Fund.

For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" below. This same chapter also describes the other risks linked to an investment into the Sub-Fund.

#### Characteristics

Category of Share Classes*	Management Fee	Service Fee	All-In Fee**	Maximum Sales Charge	Maximum Redemption Charge	Minimum Initial Investment*	Minimum Holding***
SI	0.10% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	None	None	€25,000,000	€25,000,000
SI NPF	0.20% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.30% p.a.	None	None	€25,000,000	€25,000,000
N1	0.25% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.35 %p.a.	None	None	€500,000	None

I.	0.25% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.35% p.a.	None	None	€50,000	1 share
I NPF	0.35% p.a	0.10% p.a.	0.45% p.a.	None	None	€50,000	1 share
Ν	0.25% p.a.	0.20%p.a.	0.45% p.a.	2.50%	None	None	None
N NPF	0.35% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.55% p.a.	2.50%	None	None	None
R	0.40% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.60% p.a.	2.50%	None	None	None
R NPF	0.50% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.70% p.a.	2.50%	None	None	None
RE	0.80% p.a.	0.20%p.a.	1.00% p.a.	None	None	None	None

#### Characteristics of the Categories of Share Classes in the Sub-Fund

\*The comprehensive list of offered share classes with details relating to distribution policy, hedging policy (if any) and currencies is available by referring to im.natixis.com. Further details regarding the currency hedging methodology are available under section "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of this Prospectus.

\*\*The "All-In Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and "Service Fee".

\*\*\*Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund or the same amount in other available currencies.

Performance fee rate	Share Class features		Reference Rate	Observation period
		SI	Reference Index + 1.00%	
		N1	Reference Index + 1.00%	
150/	Non hedged	T	Reference Index + 1.00%	
15%	Share Class	Ν	Reference Index + 1.00%	
		R	Reference Index + 1.00%	<ul> <li>First Observation period: from the first Valuation day of each Share Class to the last Valuation day of June</li> </ul>
		RE	Reference Index + 1.00%	(with a minimum period of twelve mont
	Hedged Share Class*	SI	Reference Index + 1.00%	<ul> <li>Thereafter: from the first Valuation day of July to the last Valuation day of June of the following year.</li> </ul>
		T	Reference Index + 1.00%	
15%		Ν	Reference Index + 1.00%	
		R	Reference Index + 1.00%	
		RE	Reference Index + 1.00%	

Performance Fee (as described in section "Charges and Expenses" below):

\*Denominated in the currency of the relevant Share Class.

\*\*Performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index adjusted to the difference between the Share Class currency interest rate and the Euro Zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month).

The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes will be determined by the Board of Directors.

# Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency	Subscription/ Redemption Date	Application Date and Cut-Off Time	Settlement Date	
Each full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France	D* (i.e., any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France)	D at 1:30 p.m. Luxembourg time	D+2	

\*D = Day on which the subscription, redemption or conversion application is processed by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent. Applications received by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent before the cut-off time on any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France will be processed on such day. Applications received after the cut-off time will be processed on the following full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France.

## **Reference Index**

Performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index adjusted to the difference between the Share Class currency interest rate<sup>5</sup> and the Euro zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month).

#### Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund

The Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund is Ostrum Asset Management.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> The Share Class currency interest rate applicable to the currency of the hedged share class concerned is listed in section "Hedging Policy" in the Chapter "Subscription, Transfer, Conversion and Redemption of Shares".

# **OSTRUM SRI CREDIT SHORT DURATION<sup>1</sup>**

EURO (	
	ince Index
	erg Euro Aggregate Corporate 1-3
	nent Objective
The inv Bloomb period c	estment objective of Ostrum SRI Credit Short Duration (the "Sub-Fund") is to outperform th erg Euro Aggregate Corporate 1-3 years Index over its recommended minimum investmer of 2 years by investing in a wide range of fixed-income instruments and implementing a Social sible Investment (SRI) strategy.
be com constitu securitie	b-Fund is actively managed. For indicative purposes only, the Sub-Fund's performance mapared to the Reference Index. In practice, the portfolio of the Sub-Fund is likely to includ ents of the Benchmark, but the Investment Manager has full discretion in the selection of the se comprising the portfolio within the limits of the Sub-Fund's investment policy. However, of aim to replicate that Reference Index and may therefore significantly deviate from it.
	ference Index does not intend to be consistent with the environmental or social characteristic re promoted by the Sub-Fund.
Investr	nent Policy
objectiv informa refer to	able investment. In this context, it might invest partially in assets that have a sustainable e, for instance qualified as sustainable according to the EU classification. For further tion regarding the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund, pleas the SFDR Annex. b-Fund investment process combines three main performance drivers: Credit directional exposure: over/underweight exposure to credit risk as a whole, as compare
•	to the Reference index; Issuer and issue selection: over/underweight exposure to various issuers and issues a compared to the Reference Index; issuers and issues not part of the Reference Index ma also be included in the Sub-Fund's portfolio. And, to a lesser extent, sector allocation: over/underweight exposure to various economi sectors (financials, industrials, utilities etc.), as compared to the Reference Index based o economic cycle, and potential ratings fluctuations.
technica	estment process is based on fundamental approach, using relative value analysis and othe al factors. The Delegated Investment Manager relies on the appraisal of credit risk by its tear own methodology.
The Su	p-Fund is exposed to debt securities denominated in euros at all times.
bonds (	o-Fund may invest in green bonds, social bonds, sustainability bonds and sustainability-linke in line with the environmental, social and governance (ESG) criteria integrated into its principa ent strategy).
Investr	nent Guidelines
	ion to this appraisal, the Sub-Fund invests at least 80% of its net assets in Investment Grade curities or other instruments (cash, UCITS …) with an equivalent rating in accordance with th

 $<sup>^1</sup>$  This Sub-Fund does not have the French label ISR.  $^2$  Minimum Standard & Poor's BBB- rating or equivalent.

The Sub-Fund may also invest up to 20% of its net assets in High Yield<sup>3</sup> debt securities. The Sub-Fund may also invest up to 15% of its net assets in securitization instruments (excluding collateralized debt obligations). High Yield and securitization instruments are sources of diversification and performance. The Sub-Fund may also invest up to 5% of its net assets in contingent convertible securities.

Moreover, when the rating of a security already present in the portfolio deteriorates and falls below the minimum rating, the Delegated Investment Manager will examine the case for keeping the securities in the portfolio or disposing of them, while maintaining as its principal criterion the interests of the Shareholders.

The modified duration of the portfolio may range from 0 to 4.

As regards the geographical area of the issuers, the exposure of the portfolio to the Euro Zone may range from 0% to 200%<sup>4</sup> and it may range from 0% to 200%<sup>5</sup> for the non-Euro zone exposure.

The Sub-Fund is not exposed to equities.

The Sub-Fund may also invest for up to 10% of its net assets in debt securities not denominated in euros. Foreign exchange risk versus euro shall be hedged for all such debt securities.

The hedged Share Classes aim at hedging the net asset value against the fluctuation between the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund and the relevant hedging currency of a Share Class.

#### Investment in undertakings for collective investment

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets into undertakings for collective investment.

#### Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments

The Sub-Fund may use derivatives for hedging and investment purposes up to 100% of its net assets, as described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" below.

Under certain circumstances (as further described below), the Sub-Fund may enter into securities lending and repurchase transactions for efficient portfolio management as described in the following sections "Repurchase Agreements" and "Securities Lending and Borrowing" in the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES".

The Sub-Fund will enter into repurchase transactions and securities lending opportunistically and depending on market conditions, in circumstances where the Delegated Investment Manager considers that the composition of the portfolio, the type of the strategy and market conditions will allow the Sub-Fund to generate additional capital or income.

When entering into repurchase transactions and securities lending, the Sub-Fund will generally seek to reinvest the cash collateral received in eligible financial instruments or in remunerated deposits that provide greater return than the financial costs incurred when entering into these transactions.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Below Standard & Poor's BBB- rating or equivalent.

<sup>1 &</sup>amp; 2. The applicable rating is the middle rating according to Moody's Standard & Poor's, and Fitch Ratings after dropping the highest and lowest available ratings or an equivalent rating in accordance with the Delegated Investment Manager's analysis. When a rating from only two agencies is available, the lower is used. When a rating from only one agency is available, that one is used as the applicable rating.

The rating considered will be the issue rating. In case of an issue rating being unavailable, the issuer rating will be used instead. In case the issue benefits from an explicit guarantee, the rating of the guarantor will be used. In case of both the issuer rating and the issuer rating being unavailable, an equivalent rating in accordance with the Delegated Investment Manager's own analysis will be used instead.

<sup>4</sup> calculated as a percentage of the exposure of the Sub-Fund 5 calculated as a percentage of the exposure of the Sub-Fund

The Sub-Fund's exposure to:

- (i) the repurchase transactions is generally expected to represent approximately 25% of its net assets and will not exceed 50% of its net assets; and
- (ii) the securities lending operations is generally expected to represent approximately 25% of its net assets and will not exceed 50% of its net assets.

The principal amount of the Sub-Fund's assets that can be subject to SFTs described above may represent a maximum of 50% of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund.

# Track record and launch of the Sub-Fund

The performance that may be shown for the Sub-Fund prior to its inception for the period from 30 September 2011 to the inception date is derived from the historical performance of Natixis Crédit Euro 1-3, a French domiciled *Fonds Commun de Placement* with an identical investment policy, set up in accordance with the Directive 2009/65/EC, registered with the *Autorité des Marchés Financiers* and managed by the same investment team according to the same investment process. Such performance has been adjusted to reflect the different expenses applicable to the Sub-Fund.

#### Investors should note that past performance is not indicative of future results.

This Sub-Fund was launched on 22 October 2013 by way of a cross-border operation (Master/Feeder structure) in which the above mentioned French fund was transformed into a feeder fund of the Sub-Fund.

#### **Typical Investors' Profile**

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional and retail investors who:

- are looking for exposure to the fixed income market;
- can afford to set aside capital for a long period of time (over 2 years); and
- can accept capital losses.

#### **Specific Risks**

The specific risks of investing in the Sub-Fund are linked to:

- Debt securities;
- Credit;
- Liquidity;
- Leverage;
- Securitization;

- Counterparty:
- Financial Derivative Instruments;
- Investment in contingent convertible securities;
- Sustainability Risks;
- ESG Driven Investments.

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund is managed through the use of the "Commitment Approach" method described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" – "Global Risk Exposure".

For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" below. This same chapter also describes the other risks linked to an investment into the Sub-Fund.

#### Characteristics

Category of Share Classes*	Management Fee	Service Fee	All-In Fee**	Maximum Sales Charge	Maximum Redemption Charge	Minimum Initial Investment*	Minimum Holding***
SI	0.15% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.25% p.a.	None	None	€25,000,000	€25,000,000
М	0.30% p.a.	0.10%p.a.	0.40% p.a.	None	None	€5,000,000	€1,000,000
N1	0.25% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.35% p.a.	None	None	€500,000	None
I	0.25% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.35% p.a.	None	None	€50,000	1 share
Ν	0.30% p.a.	0.20%p.a.	0.50% p.a.	2.50%	None	None	None
R	0.60% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.80% p.a.	2.50%	None	None	None
R2	0.35% p.a	0.25% p.a.	0.60% p.a	2.50%	None	€30,000	None
RE	1.20% p.a.	0.20%p.a.	1.40% p.a.	None	None	None	None
G	0.10%p.a.	0.10%p.a.	0.20%p.a.	None	None	None	1 share

Characteristics of the Categories of Share Classes in the Sub-Fund

\* The comprehensive list of offered share classes with details relating to distribution policy, hedging policy (if any) and currencies is available by referring to im.natixis.com. Further details regarding the currency hedging methodology are available under section "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of this Prospectus.

\*\*The "All-In Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and "Service Fee".

\*\*\*Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund or the same amount in other available currencies.

The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes will be determined by the Board of Directors.

#### Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency	Subscription/ Redemption Date	Application Date and Cut-Off Time	Settlement Date
Each full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France	D* (i.e., any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France)	D at 1:30 p.m. Luxembourg time	D+2

\*D = Day on which the subscription, redemption or conversion application is processed by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent. Applications received by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent before the cut-off time on any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France will be processed on such day. Applications received after the cut-off time will be processed on the following full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France.

#### **Reference Index**

Performance of each Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index converted in its respective Share Class currency. Nevertheless, performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index in the Share Class hedging currency.

#### Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund

The Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund is Ostrum Asset Management.

#### **OSTRUM EURO INFLATION**

#### Reference Currency EURO (EUR)

Reference Index

#### Reference index

# Bloomberg Euro Govt Inflation Linked Bond 1 to 10 Year Treasury Index

**Investment Objective** 

The investment objective of Ostrum Euro Inflation (the "Sub-Fund") is to outperform the Bloomberg Euro Govt Inflation Linked Bond 1 to 10 Year Treasury Index over its recommended minimum investment period of 2 years.

The Sub-Fund is actively managed and will integrate environmental, social/societal and governance (ESG) criteria. For indicative purposes only, the Sub-Fund's performance may be compared to the Reference Index. However, it does not aim to replicate that Reference Index and may therefore significantly deviate from it. The Reference Index does not intend to be consistent with the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.

## **Investment Policy**

The Sub-Fund promotes environmental or social characteristics but does not have as its objective a sustainable investment. It might invest partially in assets that have a sustainable objective, for instance qualified as sustainable according to the EU classification. For further information regarding the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund, please refer to the SFDR Annex.

The investment strategy lies on an active management process combining:

- Allocation between fixed income asset classes, modified duration, real rates curve and credit; and
- Selection of fixed income securities for the portfolio.

Quantitative tools are used for information purpose only, in the decision taking, and in the risk management.

After analysing the key factors determining the evolution of real yields and inflation rates, the portfolio is built according to an allocation using five sources of added value:

- Exposure to real rates;
- Positioning on the real yield curves;
- Arbitrage within Euro zone countries and within inflation reference Index (e.g., French inflation vs. Euro zone inflation);
- Exposure to nominal rates (i.e. break-even strategies); and
- Exposure to international (i.e. non Euro zone) inflation-linked bonds systematically currency hedged.

The Sub-Fund may invest in green bonds, social bonds, sustainability bonds and sustainability-linked bonds (in line with the environmental, social and governance (ESG) criteria integrated into its principal investment strategy).

The Sub-Fund is exposed to fixed-income securities denominated in euro at all times. The Sub-Fund invests at least 75% of its net assets in Euro inflation-linked bonds.

The Sub-Fund is not exposed to equities. Depending on market conditions, the Sub-Fund may be exposed to Euro nominal bonds.

The modified duration may range from 0 to 6.

As regards the geographical area of the issuers, the exposure of the portfolio to the Euro Zone may range from 0% to 200%<sup>1</sup> and it may range from 0% to 10%<sup>2</sup> for the non-Euro zone exposure.

The Delegated Investment Manager relies on the appraisal of credit risk by its team and its own methodology.

In addition to this appraisal, at the time of their acquisition, these securities are subject to a minimum rating<sup>3</sup> constraint corresponding to "Investment Grade", e.g. a rating greater than or equal to BBB– (S&P) or Baa3 (Moody's) or BBB- (Fitch ratings) or an equivalent rating in accordance with the Delegated Investment Manager's analysis.

Moreover, when the rating of a security already present in the portfolio deteriorates and falls below the minimum rating, the Delegated Investment Manager will examine the case for keeping the securities in the portfolio or disposing of them, while maintaining as its principal criterion the interests of the Shareholders.

The hedged Share Classes aim at hedging the net asset value against the fluctuation between the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund and the relevant hedging currency of a Share Class.

#### Investment in undertakings for collective investment

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets into undertakings for collective investment.

#### Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments

The Sub-Fund may use derivatives for hedging and investment purposes, as described under "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES" below.

Under certain circumstances (as further described below), the Sub-Fund may also enter into securities lending and borrowing transactions as well as repurchase agreements for efficient portfolio management purposes as described in the following sections "Repurchase Agreements" and "Securities Lending and Borrowing" in the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES".

The Sub-Fund will enter into repurchase agreement transactions, securities lending and borrowing operations opportunistically and depending on market conditions, in circumstances where the Delegated Investment Manager considers that the market rates will allow the Sub-Fund to generate additional capital or income.

When entering into repurchase agreement transactions, securities lending and borrowing, the Sub-Fund will generally seek to reinvest the cash collateral received in eligible financial instruments that provide greater return than the financial costs incurred when entering into these transactions.

The Sub-Fund's exposure to:

- (i) the repurchase agreement transactions is generally expected to represent approximately 5% of its net assets and will not exceed 15% of its net assets
- (ii) the securities lending and borrowing operations is generally expected to represent approximately 5% of its net assets and will not exceed 15% of its net assets

The principal amount of the Sub-Fund's assets that can be subject to SFTs described above may represent a maximum of 15% of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund.

#### Track record and launch of the Sub-Fund

The performance that may be shown for the Sub-Fund prior to its inception for the period from 31 December 2002 to the inception date is derived from the historical performance of Natixis Inflation Euro, a French domiciled *Fonds Commun de Placement* with an identical investment policy, set up in

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> calculated as a percentage of the exposure of the Sub-Fund

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> calculated as a percentage of the exposure of the Sub-Fund

<sup>3</sup> The applicable rating is the lowest rating according to S&P, Moody's or Fitch Ratings or an equivalent rating in accordance with the investment manager's analysis, at the time of the acquisition of the relevant security. The rating considered will be the issue rating. In case of unavailable issue rating, the issuer rating will be applicable.

accordance with the Directive 2009/65/EC, registered with the *Autorité des Marchés Financiers* and managed by the same investment team according to the same investment process. Such performance has been adjusted to reflect the different expenses applicable to the Sub-Fund.

#### Investors should note that past performance is not indicative of future results.

This Sub-Fund was launched on 13 December 2013 by way of a cross-border operation (merger) with the above mentioned French fund.

# **Typical Investors' Profile**

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional and retail investors who:

- are looking for an exposure to the inflation-linked bonds;
- can afford to set aside capital for a long period of time (over 2 years); and
- can accept capital losses.

# **Specific Risks**

The specific risks of investing in the Sub-Fund are linked to:

- Capital loss;
- Debt securities;
- Changing Interest Rate;

- Variation in Inflation Rates;
- Counterparty;
- Credit;
- Sustainability Risks;
- ESG Driven Investments.

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund is managed through the use of the "Commitment Approach" method described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" – "Global Risk Exposure".

For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" below. This same chapter also describes the other risks linked to an investment into the Sub-Fund.

#### Characteristics

#### Characteristics of the Categories of Share Classes in the Sub-Fund

Category of Share Classes*	Management Fee	Service Fee**	All-In Fee	Maximum Sales Charge	Maximum Redemption Charge	Minimum Initial Investment*	Minimum Holding***
SI	0.15% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.25% p.a.	None	None	€25,000,000	€25,000,000
N1	0.35% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.45% p.a.	None	None	€500,000	None
I	0.35% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.45% p.a.	None	None	€50,000	1 share
N	0.35% p.a.	0.20%p.a.	0.55% p.a.	2.50%	None	None	None
R	0.60% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.80% p.a.	2.50%	None	None	None
RE	1.00% p.a.	0.20%p.a.	1.20% p.a.	None	None	None	None
G	0.10% p.a	0.10% p.a	0.20%p.a	None	None	None	1 share

\*The comprehensive list of offered share classes with details relating to distribution policy, hedging policy (if any) and currencies is available by referring to im.natixis.com. Further details regarding the currency hedging methodology are available under section "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of this Prospectus.

\*\*The "All-In Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and "Service Fee".

\*\*\*Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund or the same amount in other available currencies.

The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes will be determined by the Board of Directors.

## Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency	Subscription/ Redemption Date	Application Date and Cut-Off Time	Settlement Date
Each full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France	D* (i.e., any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France)	D at 1:30 p.m. Luxembourg time	D+2

\*D = Day on which the subscription, redemption or conversion application is processed by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent. Applications received by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent before the cut-off time on any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France will be processed on such day. Applications received after the cut-off time will be processed on the following full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France.

#### Reference index

Performance of each Share Class is compared to the performance Reference Index in its respective Share Class currency. Nevertheless, performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index in the Share Class hedging currency.

#### Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund

The Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund is Ostrum Asset Management.

## **OSTRUM SRI EURO AGGREGATE<sup>1</sup>**

Reference Currency
EURO (EUR)
Reference Index
Bloomberg Capital Euro Aggregate 500MM
Investment Objective
The investment objective of Ostrum SRI Euro Aggre reference index, the Bloomberg Capital Euro Aggregation

The investment objective of Ostrum SRI Euro Aggregate (the "Sub-Fund") is to outperform its reference index, the Bloomberg Capital Euro Aggregate 500MM over its recommended minimum investment period of 2 years through investments in a wide range of fixed income instruments meeting extra-financials criteria (Environmental, Social and Governance – "ESG").

The Sub-Fund is actively managed. For indicative purposes only, the Sub-Fund's performance may be compared to the Reference Index. However, it does not aim to replicate that Reference Index and may therefore significantly deviate from it. The Reference Index does not intend to be consistent with the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.

# Investment Policy

# Investment Strategy

The Sub-Fund promotes environmental or social characteristics but does not have as its objective a sustainable investment. It might invest partially in assets that have a sustainable objective, for instance qualified as sustainable according to the EU classification. For further information regarding the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund, please refer to the SFDR Annex.

The Sub-Fund principally invest its net assets in euro-denominated investment-grade credit and government bonds as well as agencies and covered bonds.

The Sub-Fund is actively managed and relies on the expertise of the Delegated Investment Manager on bond and exchanges markets:

- 1. A core allocation between sovereigns, quasi-sovereigns, securitized and credit;
- 2. Off benchmark investments, based on the Delegated Investment Manager fundamental and global risk and return assessment;
- 3. A selection process, integrating financial and ESG factors and criteria, to select specific bond's issues, including sustainable bonds, in each core asset class;
- 4. Diversification investment in rates instruments, FX and credit multi strategies.

The Sub-Fund is exposed to fixed-income securities denominated in euro at all times.

The Sub-Fund invests at least 70% of its net assets in euro-denominated investment-grade credit and government bonds as well as agencies and covered bonds.

For diversification purpose and with a view to optimizing the risk-adjusted return, the Sub-Fund may invest in the following asset classes:

- Money market instruments;
- Inflation-linked bonds;
- Variable-rate bonds;
- Sovereign issuers are limited at 70% (not including green bonds issued by Sovereign issuers);
- Securitizations (such as asset-backed securities, mortgage-backed securities, collateralized debt obligations and collateralized loan obligations); up to 20% of its net assets. These securities shall benefit from Investment Grade ratings;
- Non-Euro OECD-member bonds;
- Non euro-denominated bonds;
- Convertible bonds up to 15% of its net assets;

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This Sub-Fund does not have the French label ISR.

- High yield<sup>1</sup> bonds up to 15% of its net assets; and
- Emerging Market bonds up to 15% of its net assets
- Contingent convertible bonds up to 5% of its net assets.

The Sub-Fund may invest in other currencies than the Reference Currency up to 10% of its net assets.

The global exposure of the Sub-Fund to equities shall not exceed 10% of its net assets.

The global exposure of the Sub-Fund to securities not denominated in euro and to exchange rate risk shall not exceed 10% of its net assets.

The modified duration of the portfolio to interest rate may range from 0 to 10. The modified duration of the portfolio to credit spread may range from 0 to 3,5.

As regards the geographical area of the issuers, the exposure of the portfolio to the Euro Zone may range from 0% to  $100\%^2$  and it may range from 0% to  $100\%^3$  for the non-Euro zone exposure.

The Delegated Investment Manager relies on the appraisal of credit risk by its team and its own methodology.

The hedged Share Classes aim at hedging the net asset value against the fluctuation between the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund and the relevant hedging currency of a Share Class.

## Investment in undertakings for collective investment

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets into undertakings for collective investment, including open-ended ETF.

#### Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments

The Sub-Fund may use derivatives (including Credit Default Swap and iTraxx) for hedging and investment purposes, as described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" below.

Under certain circumstances (as further described below), the Sub-Fund may enter into securities lending transactions, repurchase transactions for efficient portfolio management purposes and reverse repurchase transactions for the purpose of replacing the collateral received in cash as described in the following sections "Repurchase Agreements" and "Securities Lending and Borrowing" in the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES".

The Sub-Fund will enter into repurchase transactions, reverse repurchase transactions and securities lending operations opportunistically and depending on market conditions, in circumstances where the Delegated Investment Manager considers that the market rates will allow the Sub-Fund to generate additional capital or income.

When entering into repurchase transactions and securities lending, the Sub-Fund will generally seek to reinvest the cash collateral received in eligible financial instruments (including reverse repurchase transactions) or in remunerated deposits that provide greater return than the financial costs incurred when entering into these transactions.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Below Standard & Poor's BBB- rating or equivalent or an equivalent rating in accordance with the Delegated Investment Manager's analysis.

The applicable rating is the lowest rating according to S&P, Moody's or Fitch Ratings or an equivalent rating in accordance with the Delegated Investment Manager's analysis.

The rating considered will be the issue rating. In case of unavailable issue rating, the issuer rating will be applicable.

 $<sup>^{2}</sup>$  calculated as a percentage of the exposure of the Sub-Fund

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> calculated as a percentage of the exposure of the Sub-Fund

The Sub-Fund's exposure to:

- (i) the repurchase transactions is generally expected to represent approximately 25% of its net assets and will not exceed 50% of its net assets;
- (ii) the reverse repurchase transactions is generally expected to represent approximately 15% of its net assets and will not exceed 50% of its net assets; and
- (iii) the securities lending operations is generally expected to represent approximately 25% of its net assets and will not exceed 50% of its net assets.

The principal amount of the Sub-Fund's assets that can be subject to SFTs described above may represent a maximum of 50% of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund.

#### Track record and launch of the Sub-Fund

The performance that may be shown for the Sub-Fund prior to its inception for the period from 6 October 2008 to the inception date is derived from the historical performance of Natixis Impact Aggregate Euro, a French domiciled *Fonds Commun de Placement* with an identical investment policy, set-up in accordance with the Directive 2009/65/EC, registered with the *Autorité des Marchés Financiers* and managed by the same investment team according to the same investment process. Such performance has been adjusted to reflect the different expenses applicable to the Sub-Fund.

# Investors should note that past performance is not indicative of future results.

This Sub-Fund was launched on 18 November 2013 by way of a cross-border operation (merger) with the above mentioned French fund.

# Typical Investors' Profile

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional and retail investors who:

- are looking for an exposure to certain Euro-denominated bonds;
- can afford to set aside capital for a long period of time (over 2 years); and
- can accept temporary and/or potential capital losses.

#### Specific Risks

The specific risks of investing in the Sub-Fund are linked to:

- Capital loss;
- Emerging markets;
- Debt securities;
- Inflation impact;
- Credit;
- Changing interest rate;

- Counterparty;
- Securitization;
- Investment in contingent convertible securities;
- Sustainability Risks;
- ESG Driven Investments

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund is managed through the use of the "Commitment Approach" method described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" – "Global Risk Exposure".

For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" below. This same chapter also describes the other risks linked to an investment into the Sub-Fund.

#### Characteristics

Category of Share Classes*	Management Fee	Service Fee	All-In Fee**	Maximum Sales Charge	Maximum Redemption Charge	Minimum Initial Investment*	Minimum Holding***
SI	0.20% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.30% p.a.	None	None	€25,000,000	€25,000,000
N1	0.40% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.50% p.a.	None	None	€500,000	None
I.	0.50% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.60% p.a.	None	None	€50,000	1 share
Ν	0.50% p.a.	0.20%p.a.	0.70% p.a.	2.50%	None	None	None
R	0.80% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.00% p.a.	2.50%	None	None	None
RE	1.40% p.a.	0.20%p.a.	1.60% p.a.	1.50%	None	None	None
CW	1.40% p.a.	0.20%p.a.	1.60% p.a.	None	CDSC up to 3%	None	None
G	0.10% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.20% p.a	None	None	None	1 share

Characteristics of the Categories of Share Classes in the Sub-Fund

\*The comprehensive list of offered share classes with details relating to distribution policy, hedging policy (if any) and currencies is available by referring to im.natixis.com. Further details regarding the currency hedging methodology are available under section "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of this Prospectus.

\*\*The "All-In Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and "Service Fee".

\*\*\*Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund or the same amount in other available currencies.

The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes will be determined by the Board of Directors.

#### Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency	Subscription/ Redemption Date	Application Date and Cut-Off Time	Settlement Date
Each full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France	D* (i.e., any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France)	D at 1:30 p.m. Luxembourg time	D+2

\*D = Day on which the subscription, redemption or conversion application is processed by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent. Applications received by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent before the cut-off time on any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France will be processed on such day. Applications received after the cut-off time will be processed on the following full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France.

#### **Reference index**

Performance of each Share Class is compared to the performance Reference Index in its respective Share Class currency. Nevertheless, performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index in the Share Class hedging currency.

#### Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund

The Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund is Ostrum Asset Management.

# **OSTRUM TOTAL RETURN CREDIT**

Reference Currency
EURO (EUR)
Reference Index
Daily-capitalized Euro Short-Term Rate (€STR)
Investment Objective The investment objective of the Sub-Fund is to outperform the daily-capitalized €STR over its recommended minimum investment period of 2 years by more than 2.30% through an investment process that systematically includes Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") considerations.
For hedged Share Classes, the daily-capitalized €STR is adjusted to the difference between the relevant Share Class currency interest rate (as described in the section "Hedging policy" in the Chapter "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" and the Euro zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month) over its recommended minimum investment period of 2 years by more than 2.30%.
The Sub-Fund is actively managed. The Sub-Fund's performance may be compared to the Reference Index. However, it does not aim to replicate that Reference Index and may therefore significantly deviate from it. The Reference Index + $2,30\%^1$ can be used to determine the performance fee that will possibly be levied. The Reference Index does not intend to be consistent with the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.
Investment Policy
The Sub-Fund promotes environmental or social characteristics but does not have as its objective a sustainable investment. It might invest partially in assets that have a sustainable objective, for instance qualified as sustainable according to the EU classification. For further information regarding the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund, please refer to the SFDR Annex.
In order to achieve its investment objective, the Sub-Fund may implement various strategies. These strategies can be of five kinds: Directional strategies, Carry strategies, Relative Value strategies, Special Situations strategies and Global Risk Management.
Directional strategies aim at capturing credit market spread directional movements, either upward or downward. It consists of buying or selling a security and/or buying or selling a financial derivative instrument to capture the performance of securities or instruments. These strategies may focus on credit spreads. Directional strategies may also aim at managing the fund global exposure to credit risk.
<b>Carry strategies</b> aim at capturing yield opportunities offered on the credit market and through an active management of the level of diversification in order to mitigate credit risk.
<b>Relative Value strategies</b> aim at capturing credit market movements, either upward or downward, through Long Short strategies. These relative value strategies consist of buying securities or financial derivative instruments and selling other ones in order to capture the differential in performance between these securities or instruments and/or to hedge partially or entirely the market risk. These strategies may focus on credit spreads, credit curves, relative value and seniority of credit instruments.
<b>Special Situation</b> strategies at capturing yields offered by credit issuers that may experience specific risk or event risk through an active management of this credit risk
<b>Global Risk Management strategies</b> aim at adjusting the global exposure of the portfolio to its main risk factors such as credit risk, interest rates risk, FX risk, spread volatility risk or other ancillary risks such as correlation to Equity markets' volatility. It also aims at managing liquidity risk and therefore, may consist of fixed income securities with low level of credit risk or securities with sovereign risk.

All the above strategies may be expressed mainly using securities and/or derivatives instruments such as Credit Derivatives (mostly "single name Credit Default Swap", "Credit indices", "index tranches CDS", options of Index CDS) futures and options on indices and/or interest rates and indexes.

As a consequence of the opportunistic and flexible nature of the investment process, the allocation of risk and the contribution to performance of the five types of strategies are discretionarily determined by the Delegated Investment Manager depending upon market conditions and opportunities. In this context, there is no pre-determined threshold for strategies allocation, although merely directional and Carry and overlay strategies are expected to be used in normal market conditions.

The Sub-Fund may invest in green bonds, social bonds, sustainability bonds and sustainability-linked bonds (in line with the environmental, social and governance (ESG) criteria integrated into its principal investment strategy).

# **Portfolio Guidelines**

The Sub-Fund is exposed to fixed-income securities mostly denominated in euro at all times. However, the Sub-Fund may be exposed to:

- securities not denominated in euro: up to 30% of its net assets; and
- exchange rate risk: up to 10% of its net assets.

Within the above limits, the securities or the derivatives used by the Sub-Fund may be denominated in EUR, USD, GBP, CHF and JPY.

The Sub-Fund may invest in securities issued by Chinese issuers only denominated in EUR, USD and listed in a Regulated Market<sup>2</sup>.

The Sub-Fund may hold up to 100% of its assets in securities whose issuers have their registered office located in an OECD member country. It may, however, hold up to 40% of its assets in securities of issuers whose registered office is in a non-member country of the OECD.

The Sub-Fund's portfolio may be invested in various instruments such as (without limitations):

- Notes and other securities issued by Sovereign (or assimilated entities), public sector or similar entities, including non OECD member states or authorities, and including emerging markets;
- Notes or other debt securities issued by Private Corporate or financial entities;
- Covered bonds;
- Credit derivatives ("single name Credit Default Swaps", "CDS Indices", CDS "Basket first to default CDS", "index tranches CDS"), securities including derivatives;
- Money Market instruments,
- Contingent convertible bonds up to 20% of its net assets; and
- Convertible bonds up to 10% of its net assets.

In any case, if the Sub-Fund is exposed to financial indices, those financial indices shall be compliant with Article 9 of the Grand-Ducal Regulation of 8 February 2008.

The Sub-Fund invests in fixed income securities belonging to the investment grade category<sup>3</sup> and/or to the speculative category ("high yield")<sup>4</sup> up to 100% of its net assets.

The Sub-Fund invests in non-rated securities up to 20% of its net asset.

<sup>2</sup> Regulated Market means a regulated market within the meaning of Directive 2004/39/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council on markets in financial instruments.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Minimum Standard & Poor's BBB- rating or equivalent or an equivalent rating in accordance with the Delegated Investment Manager's analysis.

The applicable rating is the lowest rating according to S&P, Moody's or Fitch Ratings. The rating considered will be the issue rating. In case of unavailable issue rating, the issuer rating will be applicable. 4 Below Standard & Poor's BBB- rating or equivalent.

The portfolio is constructed in order to respect a monthly ex ante maximum Value at Risk ("VaR") of 5% corresponding to the statistical estimation, under normal market conditions, of the maximum potential loss of the portfolio within one month (20 business days) with a probability of 99%.					
The global exposure of the Sub-Fund to equities shall not exceed 10% of its net assets. The global exposure of the Sub-Fund to exchange rate risk shall not exceed 10% of its net assets.					
The modified duration of the portfolio to credit spread is expected to range from -5 to +10 and the modified duration to interest rate is expected to range from -2 to +4.					
The Delegated Investment Manager relies on the appraisal of credit risk by its team and its own					
methodology. The hedged Share Classes aim at hedging the net asset value against the fluctuation between the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund and the relevant hedging currency of a Share Class.					
<b>Investment in undertakings for collective investment</b> The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets into undertakings for collective investment.					
<b>Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments</b> The Sub-Fund may use derivatives for hedging and investment purposes, as described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" below. The Sub-Fund does not intend to enter into SFTs.					
<ul> <li>In particular, the Sub-Fund may be exposed to Credit and Changing Interest Rates risk through: <ul> <li>single name Credit Default Swap ("CDS") and CDS on indices;</li> <li>First to Default, CDS on index tranches;</li> <li>options on indices and on CDS;</li> <li>swaps (interest rates swaps and/or asset swaps or total return swaps on credit indices);</li> <li>futures on interest rate and other indices.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>					
<ul> <li>Arbitrage strategies on Credit risk may be pursued by the Sub-Fund through the use of: <ul> <li>single name CDS and CDS on indices;</li> <li>options on indices and on CDS indices;</li> <li>swaps on indices;</li> <li>First to Default, CDS on index tranches;</li> <li>futures on interest rate and indices.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>					
<ul> <li>The Sub-Fund may be hedged to Credit, Changing Interest Rates and Exchange Rates risk through:</li> <li>single name CDS and CDS on indices;</li> <li>futures on interest rate and indices;</li> <li>options on CDS, on indices, exchange rates;</li> <li>swaps (interest rates, exchange rates, indices);</li> <li>currency FX forward;</li> <li>First to Default, CDS on index tranches.</li> </ul>					
On an ancillary basis, the Sub-Fund may use derivatives for hedging and exposing the portfolio to Equity risk and/or for arbitrage strategies on Equity risk.					
The use of derivatives involves a level of leverage as described under "Specific Risk" below.					

# \_\_\_\_\_

#### Track record and launch of the Sub-Fund

The performance that may be shown for the Sub-Fund prior to its inception for the period from 15 April 2012 to the inception date is derived from the historical performance of Natixis Performance Credit Opportunities, a French domiciled *Fonds Commun de Placement* with an identical investment policy, set-up in accordance with the Directive 2009/65/EC, registered with the *Autorité des Marchés Financiers* and managed by the same investment team according to the same investment process. Such performance has been adjusted to reflect the different expenses applicable to the Sub-Fund. **Investors should note that past performance is not indicative of future results.** 

This Sub-Fund was launched on 20 November 2013 by way of a cross-border operation (merger) with the above mentioned French fund.

# Typical Investors' Profile

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional and retail investors who:

- are looking for constituting a capital on the average term through fixed-income market and a credit market return over a period of 2 years;
- can afford to set aside capital for a period of 2 years; and
- can accept capital losses.

# Specific Risks

The specific risks of investing in the Sub-Fund are linked to:

- Capital loss;
- Debt securities;
- Credit;
- Arbitrage;
- Structured Instruments;
- Changing Interest Rates;
- Volatility;

- Financial Derivatives Instruments;
- Credit Default Swaps Special Risk Consideration;
- Counterparty;
- Exchange Rates;
- Emerging markets;
- Leverage;
- Investment in contingent convertible securities;
- Sustainability Risks;
- ESG Driven Investments.

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund is managed through the use of the absolute Value at Risk (VaR) approach (the "VaR approach"). The VaR approach measures the maximum potential loss at a given confidence level (i.e. probability level) over a specific time frame under normal market conditions.

For the Sub-Fund, the VaR limit of 5 % in a holding period equivalent to 1 month (20 business days) ex ante time period with a 99% confidence level means that, with 99% certainty, the percentage the Sub-Fund can expect to lose over the next month should be maximum 5%.

The expected range gross leverage of the Sub-Fund is expected to be between 0 and 6. However, the Sub-Fund may reach higher leverage levels under the following circumstances:

- i) low market volatility; and/or
- ii) high market liquidity; and/or
- iii) low risk aversion.

Gross leverage is calculated as the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The gross leverage may be volatile and the wide range of expected level of gross leverage (i.e. usually between 0 and 6) is due to the broad range of asset classes and corresponding Financial Derivatives Instruments which will be utilized in line with the investment strategy of the Sub-Fund.

For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" below. This same chapter also describes the other risks linked to an investment into the Sub-Fund.

Characteristics

Category of Share Classes*	Management Fee	Service Fee	All-In Fee**	Maximum Sales Charge	Maximum Redemption Charge	Minimum Initial Investment*	Minimum Holding***
SI	0.30% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.40% p.a.	None	None	€25,000,000	€25,000,000
SI NPF	0.40% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.50% p.a.	None	None	€25,000,000	€25,000,000
I	0.50% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.60% p.a.	None	None	€50,000	1 share
I NPF	0.60% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.70% p.a.	None	None	€50,000	1 share
N	0.50% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.70% p.a.	3%	None	None	None
N NPF	0.60% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.80% p.a.	3%	None	None	None
R	0.80% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.00% p.a.	3%	None	€5,000	None
R NPF	0.90% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.10% p.a.	3%	None	€5,000	None
RE	1.10% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.30% p.a.	None	None	€5,000	None

#### Characteristics of the Categories of Share Classes in the Sub-Fund

\*The comprehensive list of offered share classes with details relating to distribution policy, hedging policy (if any) and currencies is available by referring to im.natixis.com. Further details regarding the currency hedging methodology are available under section "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of this Prospectus.

\*\*The "All-In Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and "Service Fee".

\*\*\*Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund or the same amount in other available currencies. The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes will be determined by the Board of Directors.

Performance Fee with High Water Mark (as described in section "Charges and Expenses" below):

The Reference Rate for the performance fee calculation will change as follows

Performance fee rate	Share Class features		Reference Rate	Observation period
		SI	Reference Index + 2.30%	
		I	Reference Index + 2.30%	
15%	Non hedged Share Class	N	Reference Index + 2.30%	
		R	Reference Index + 2.30%	First Observation period: from the     first Valuation day of each Chara
		RE	Reference Index + 2.30%	first Valuation day of each Share Class to the last Valuation day of June (with a minimum period of
		SI	Reference Index + 2.30%	twelve months).  Thereafter: from the first Valuation day of July to the last Valuation day
15%	Hedged Share Class*	I	Reference Index + 2.30%	of June of the following year.
		N	Reference Index + 2.30%	
		R	Reference Index + 2.30%	
		RE	Reference Index + 2.30%	
\*Denominated in the currency of the relevant Share Class.

\*\*Performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index adjusted to the difference between the Share Class currency interest rate and the Euro Zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month).

# Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency	Subscription/ Redemption Date	Application Date and Cut-Off Time	Settlement Date
Each full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France	D* (i.e., any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France)	D at 1:30 p.m. Luxembourg time	D+2

\*D = Day on which the subscription, redemption or conversion application is processed by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent. Applications received by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent before the cut-off time on any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France will be processed on such day. Applications received after the cut-off time will be processed on the following full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France.

# **Reference Index**

Performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the Performance of the Reference Index adjusted to the difference between the Share Class currency interest rate<sup>5</sup> and the Euro zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month).

# Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund

The Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund is Ostrum Asset Management.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> The Share Class currency interest rate applicable to the currency of the hedged share class concerned is listed in section "Hedging Policy" in the Chapter "Subscription, Transfer, Conversion and Redemption of Shares".

# **OSTRUM SRI GLOBAL SUBORDINATED DEBT<sup>1</sup>**

Reference Currency EURO (EUR)	
Reference Index	
ICE BofA Euro Subordinated Financial Index	
Investment Objective	
Investment objective	
The investment objective of Ostrum SRI Global Subordinated Debt (the "Sub-Fur over its recommended minimum investment period of 3 years, a performance of 1% of Index by taking advantage of yields offered by subordinated bonds (or similar sec private, public, sovereign or supranational issuers, which may be corporate entitie institutions.	over its Reference urities), issued by
The Sub-Fund is actively managed. Therefore, the Sub-Fund may diverge sig Reference Index in terms of composition and or its level of financial risk. The Refe can be used to determine the performance fee that will possibly be levied.	
The Reference Index does not intend to be consistent with the environmental or soc which will be promoted by the Sub-Fund .	cial characteristics
Investment Policy	
The Sub-Fund's investment strategy consists in selecting mainly subordinated securities), including contingent convertible bonds which may represent up to 100% of the Sub-Fund, issued by companies from around the world. The Sub-Fund ma than 5% of its net assets in contingent convertible bonds issued by companies belor Group.	of the total assets y not invest more
The Sub-Fund's main objective is to benefit from bond yields offered by public and/ thanks to a selection process, a close monitoring of issuers and of the portfolio achieve its investment objective, the selection process is mainly a "bottom-up" particular focus put in assessing the credit quality of the issuers and structural featu In addition, the Sub-Fund's delegated investment manager uses a conviction-base the global risk exposure and to asset allocation. The asset allocation is determined between the main types of subordinations the having an exposure to. These types of subordinations are essentially subordinat subordinated and/or capital securities issued either by financial institutions or by no corporate issuers also known as hybrid corporate bonds.	daily. In order to approach with a ures of the bonds d management to sub fund aim a red and/or deeply
The Sub-Fund may implement the securities selection, the management of the g asset allocation through various strategies. These strategies can be of four kind: Dire Carry strategies, Special Situations and Global Risk Management strategies.	
<b>Directional Strategies</b> aim at capturing credit market spread directional movemer or downward. It consist of buying or selling securities and/or financial derivative instru- the performance of securities or instruments. These strategies may focus or Directional strategies may also aim at managing the fund global exposure to credit	uments to capture n credit spreads
<b>Carry strategies</b> aim at capturing yields offered on the credit market with a low lev the direction of credit spreads and through an active management.	el of sensitivity to
<b>Special Situation</b> strategies aim at capturing yields offered by credit issuers tha specific risk through an active management of this credit risk.	t may experience
<b>Global Risk Management</b> strategies serve for portfolio construction and risk hedgin at adjusting the global exposure of the portfolio to its main risk factors or segments of as credit risk, interest rates risk, Interest rates curve risk, FX risk, credit spread vo spread curve risk or other ancillary risks such as correlation to Equity markets' vola	f risk factors such platility risk, credi

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This Sub-Fund does not have the French label ISR.

at managing liquidity risk and therefore, may consist of non-subordinated fixed income securities with low level of credit risk.

The investment process is flexible by nature as it may diverge significantly from its Reference Index in terms of composition and or its level of financial risk. Consequently, the Delegated Investment Manager, depending upon market conditions and opportunities, discretionarily determines the allocation of risk and the contribution to performance of either the type of subordinations or the four types of strategies. In this context, there is no pre-determined threshold for strategies or asset allocation.

The Delegated Investment Manager relies on the appraisal of credit risk by its teams and its own methodology.

The Sub-Fund may invest in green bonds, social bonds, sustainability bonds and sustainability-linked bonds (in line with the environmental, social and governance (ESG) criteria integrated into its principal investment strategy).

# **Portfolio Guidelines**

The Sub-Fund will be invested in fixed income products denominated at least 90% in euros (EUR), United States dollars (USD), Swiss francs (CHF), Sterling pounds (GBP), Japanese yen (YEN), Australian dollars (AUD) and Canadian dollars (CAD), Norwegian krone (NOK), Swedish krone (SEK) and Danish krone (DKK). Depending on market opportunities, the Sub-Fund may hold up to 10% of its assets in securities denominated in currencies of countries outside the OECD.

The Sub-Fund exposure to subordinated bonds issued by a non-financial private issuer shall not exceed 30% of its assets.

The Sub-Fund may hold exposure in Money Market Securities, Covered Bonds issued either by private or by public issuers and/or Senior Preferred or Senior Non Preferred bonds issued by financial institutions, in order to manage liquidity risks.

The Sub-Fund may hold up to 100% of its assets in securities whose issuers have their registered office located in an OECD member country. It may however hold up to 40% of its assets in securities of issuers whose registered office is in a non-member country of the OECD.

The Sub-Fund may also use derivatives, particularly in order :

- to hedge the portfolio against and/or expose it up to 200% of its assets to interest rate and/or credit risks.
- to hedge the portfolio against currency risk and, if applicable, against equity risk.

The Sub-Fund may hold up to 10% of equity securities that have been delivered following the conversion of subordinated bonds.

The interest rate sensitivity is between -2 and +10.

The modified duration of the portfolio to credit spread is between -2 and +10.

The foreign exchange risk is expected to range from 0% to 10%

These bonds are issued primarily by issuers whose registered office is located in a member country of the OECD. The bonds held in the portfolio may also be issued by issuers whose registered office is located in a non-member country of the OECD.

The Sub-Fund promotes environmental or social characteristics but does not have as its objective a sustainable investment. For further information regarding the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund, please refer to the SFDR Annex.

## Investment in undertakings for collective investment

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets into undertakings for collective investment.

# Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments

The Sub-Fund may use derivatives for investment purposes, as described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" below.

In particular, the Sub-Fund may be exposed to Credit and Changing Interest Rates risk through:

- single name Credit Default Swap ("CDS") and CDS on indices;
- Total Return Swaps on index;
- swaps (interest rates swaps and/or asset swaps or total return swaps on credit indices);
- futures on interest rate and other indices.

Hedging strategies and portfolio construction may be pursued by the Sub-Fund through the use of:

- single name CDS and CDS on indices;
- options on indices and on CDS indices;
- total Return Swaps on index;
- options on equity indices;
- interest rates swaps and/or asset swaps;
- futures on interest rate and other indices;
- foreign exchange derivatives such as swaps, forwards and/or futures

Index total return swaps ("TRS") or and other derivative financial instruments with the same characteristics may be used up to 10% of its net assets to allow the Sub-Fund to replicate the exposure of an index or to swap the performance of one or more instruments in exchange for the payment of a fixed or a floating fee.

TRS are expected to be used by the Sub-Fund on a temporary basis for investment purposes and on a continuous basis for hedging purposes. The maximum proportion of the Sub-Fund's Net Asset Value that can be subject to TRS is 10%. The expected proportion of the Sub-Fund's Net Asset Value that will be subject to TRS is 5%.

Under certain circumstances (as further described below), the Sub-Fund may enter into securities lending transactions, repurchase transactions for efficient portfolio management purposes and reverse repurchase transactions for the purpose of replacing the collateral esuit as described in the following sections "Repurchase Agreements" and "Securities Lending and Borrowing" in the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES".

The Sub-Fund will enter into repurchase transactions, reverse repurchase transactions and securities lending operations opportunistically and depending on market conditions, in circumstances where the Delegated Investment Manager considers that the market rates will allow the Sub-Fund to generate additional capital or income.

When entering into repurchase transactions and securities lending, the Sub-Fund will generally seek to reinvest the cash collateral received in eligible financial instruments (including reverse repurchase transactions) or in remunerated deposits that provide greater return than the financial costs incurred when entering into these transactions.

The Sub-Fund's exposure to:

- (i) the repurchase transactions is generally expected to represent approximately 10% of its net assets and will not exceed 25% of its net assets;
- (ii) the reverse repurchase transactions is generally expected to represent approximately 5% of its net assets and will not exceed 25% of its net assets; and
- (iii) the securities lending operations is generally expected to represent approximately 10% of its net assets and will not exceed 25% of its net assets.

The principal amount of the Sub-Fund's assets that can be subject to SFTs described above may represent a maximum of 10% of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund.

The use of derivatives, securities lending and borrowing transactions as well as repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements involve a level of leverage as described under "Specific Risk" below.:

#### Typical Investors' Profile

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional investors and sophisticated retail investors who have sufficient knowledge to understand the investment policy and the specific risks of the sub-fund and who:

- are looking for take advantage of a bond portfolio managed with a medium-term perspective;
- can afford to set aside capital for a period of 3 years; and
- can accept capital losses.

# Specific Risks

The specific risks of investing in the Sub-Fund are linked to:

- Capital loss;
- Debt securities;
- Credit;
- Emerging markets;
- Counterparty;
- Leverage
- Investment in contingent convertible securities

- Equity securities
- Exchange Rates:
- Liquidity
- Below investment grade securities or unrated securities;
- Sustainability Risks.

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund is managed through the use of the "Commitment Approach" method described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" – "Global Risk Exposure".

For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" below. This same chapter also describes the other risks linked to an investment into the Sub-Fund.

#### Track record and launch of the Sub-Fund

The performance that may be shown for the Sub-Fund prior to its inception for the period from 30 June 2014 to the inception date is derived from the historical performance of Ostrum SRI Global Subordinated Debt, a French domiciled *Fonds Commun de Placement* with an identical investment policy, set-up in accordance with Directive 2009/65/EC, registered with the Autorité des Marchés Financiers and managed by the same investment team according to the same investment process. Such performance has been adjusted to reflect the different expenses applicable to the Sub-Fund. **Investors should note that past performance is not indicative of future results.** 

This Sub-Fund will be launched solely by way of cross-border merger with the above mentioned French fund, upon the approval of any relevant authority. The precise launch date of this Sub-Fund will be determined by the Board of Directors.

#### Characteristics

Category o Share Classes*	Management Fee	Service Fee	All-In Fee**	Maximum Sales Charge	Maximum Redemption Charge	Minimum Initial Investment*	Minimum Holding***
I.	0.50% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.60% p.a.	None	none	50.000€	1 share
Ν	0.50% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.70% p.a.	5%	none	10. 000 €	None

\*The comprehensive list of offered share classes with details relating to distribution policy, hedging policy (if any) and currencies is available by referring to im.natixis.com. Further details regarding the currency hedging methodology are available under section "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of this Prospectus.

\*\*The "All-In Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and "Service Fee".

\*\*\*Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund or the same amount in other available currencies.

The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes will be determined by the Board of Directors.

Performance Fee (as described in section "Charges and Expenses" below):

Performance fee rate	Share Class featur	es	Reference Rate	Observation period
15%	Non hedged Share Class And Hedged Share Class	I* N*	Reference Index +1%	<ul> <li>First Observation period: from the first Valuation day of each Share Class to the last Valuation day of June (with a minimum period of twelve months).</li> <li>Thereafter: from the first Valuation day of July to the last Valuation day of June of the following year.</li> </ul>

\*Denominated in the currency of the relevant Share Class.

#### Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency	Subscription/ Redemption Date	Application Date and Cut-Off Time	Settlement Date
Each full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France	D* (i.e., any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France)	D at 1:30 p.m. Luxembourg time	D+2

\*D = Day on which the subscription, redemption or conversion application is processed by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent. Applications received by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent before the cut-off time on any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France will be processed on such day. Applications received after the cut-off time will be processed on the following full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France.

#### **Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund**

The Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund is Ostrum Asset Management.

# **OSTRUM FIXED INCOME MULTI STRATEGIES**

Reference Currency					
US Dollar (USD)					
Reference Index					
Daily-capitalized 3 Months SOFR					

#### **Investment Objective**

The investment objective of Ostrum Fixed Income Multi Strategies (the "Sub-Fund") is to outperform the daily-capitalized 3 Months SOFR over its recommended minimum investment period of 3 years by 2.9%, through a combination of income, capital appreciation and an investment process that systematically includes Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") considerations.

The Sub-Fund is actively managed. The Sub-Fund's performance may be compared to the Reference Index. However, it does not aim to replicate that Reference Index and may therefore significantly deviate from it. The Reference Index + 2.9% can be used to determine the performance fee that will possibly be levied. The Reference Index does not intend to be consistent with the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.

#### **Investment Policy**

The Sub-Fund promotes environmental or social characteristics but does not have as its objective a sustainable investment. It might invest partially in assets that have a sustainable objective, for instance qualified as sustainable according to the EU classification. For further information regarding the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund, please refer to the SFDR Annex.

The Sub-Fund aims at providing high and consistent returns at all stages of the investment cycle through a flexible asset allocation across the most income-generating fixed income sectors.

In order to achieve its investment objective, the Sub-Fund may implement three kinds of strategies:

- Carry strategies: using and comprising mainly, but not exclusively, fixed income transferable securities with the objective of constructing long-term income generation through flexible allocation, consistent with the asset class views of the management team. The use of carry strategies allows to generate high income and meet collateral needs and aim at capturing yields offered on a broad capital market universe through an active management and a structural exposure over the medium term.
- Overlay strategies: taking advantage of market opportunities and generating additional returns in line with the performance target of the Sub-Fund. This strategy is actively managed through the use of derivatives instruments, as a combination of strategies including but not limited to relative value on rates and credit, emerging, quantitative and qualitative directional rates and Foreign Exchange strategies. The use of overlay strategies allows to achieve additional returns with tactical views and to construct a more efficient portfolio. The final portfolio takes into account all the combined exposures and ensures consistency with the investment objectives;
- Macro-hedge strategies: managing the global exposure of the portfolio on specific risk factors (duration, credit, and volatility) in case of extreme market events. This strategy is mainly structured by investing in Credit Default Swap ("CDS") index, Options, Bonds or Equity index futures.

The underlying assets of the overlay strategy are generally decorrelated, weakly correlated or negatively correlated thereby contributing, in normal market conditions, to the assets invested in the carry strategy and contribute to an overall portfolio risk reduction. In case of market turmoil, underlying assets comprising the carry and overlay strategies are likely to be more correlated, thereby increasing the overall portfolio risk correspondingly.

The combined use of the foregoing three strategies aims at potentiating returns in all market conditions independent of any benchmark, while the Sub-fund will adopt an opportunistic investment approach to take advantage of the conditions in the various asset classes and strategies. As a consequence of the opportunistic nature of the investment process, the allocation of risk and the contribution to performance of the three types of strategies are discretionarily determined by the Delegated Investment Manager depending upon market conditions and opportunities. In this context, there is no pre-determined threshold for strategies allocation, although merely carry and overlay strategies are expected to be used in normal market conditions.

The Sub-Fund may invest in green bonds, social bonds, sustainability bonds and sustainability-linked bonds (in line with the environmental, social and governance (ESG) criteria integrated into its principal investment strategy).

# **Investment Guidelines**

The Sub-Fund may invest in the following asset classes, subject to the following limit and in compliance with applicable investment restrictions:

- Bonds issued by agencies, governments, supranationals and corporate issuers of OECD and Emerging countries: up to 100%;
- High Yield bonds and unrated bonds: up to 100% of its net assets;
- Inflation-linked bonds and floating-rate bonds: up to 100%;
- Mortgage Bonds and securitization instruments (such as asset-backed securities, mortgagebacked securities) benefiting from Investment Grade<sup>1</sup> rating; up to 20%;
- Convertible bonds : up to 20%;
- Contingent convertible bonds: up to 5%.

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its total assets in fixed income securities listed on the China Interbank Bond Market through the mutual bond market access between Mainland China and Hong Kong (the "Bond Connect").

The Delegated Investment Manager relies on the appraisal of credit risk performed by its analyst team and its own proprietary methodology for the selection of fixed income transferable securities.

The Sub-Fund may also invest up to 10% of its assets in equities, other equity-type securities and derivatives.

The Sub-Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets into undertakings for collective investment.

The Sub-Fund may further invest in transferable securities issued by Chinese and Russian issuers (however, not through local markets directly) only denominated in EUR, USD and listed in a Regulated Market<sup>2</sup>.

The modified duration to interest rate may fluctuate from -5 to +10.

# Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments

The Sub-Fund may use financial derivatives instruments for investment, hedging and/ efficient portfolio management purposes, as described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" below. The Sub-Fund does not intend to enter into SFTs.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Investment Grade Bonds are rated BBB- or higher by Standard & Poor's or equivalent by Moody's, Fitch or an equivalent rating in accordance with the Delegated Investment Manager's analysis. If different agencies' ratings are assigned, the lower rating will be considered. The rating considered will be the rating assigned at the date of issue. In case of unavailable rating, the issuer rating will apply.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Regulated Market means a regulated market within the meaning of Directive 2004/39/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council on markets in financial instruments.

In particular, the Sub-Fund may be exposed and/or hedged to Changing Interest Rates and Exchange Rates risk. The Sub-fund may therefore enter into financial derivatives instruments for the purpose of reducing currency and exchange risks of its portfolio.

Overlay strategies may be expressed mainly using derivatives instruments such as:

- Futures on interest rate, Bonds, Foreign exchange and volatility;
- Options on interest rate and Foreign exchange;
- Credit Default Swap ("CDS") and iTraxx (including "CDX Index" and CDX EM Index);
- Swaps (including but not limited to interest rates swaps, currencies swaps, inflation swaps and total return swaps).

Such derivatives instruments may also be used for implementation of Macro-hedge strategies. Total return swaps ("TRS") or and other derivative financial instruments with the same characteristics may be used up to 20% of its net assets to allow the Sub-Fund to replicate the exposure of an index or to swap the performance of one or more instruments in exchange for the payment of a fixed or a floating fee.

Typical Investors' Profile

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional and retail investors who:

- Are looking for a diversification of their investment in fixed income securities
- Can afford to set aside capital for at least 3 years (medium term horizon); and
- Can accept capital losses

# Launch of the Sub-Fund

This Sub-Fund was launched on 19 June 2017.

#### Specific Risks

- Capital loss;
- Leverage risk;
- Debt securities;
- Unrated and below investment grade securities;
- Financial derivatives Instruments;
- Changing interest rates;
- Credit risk;
- Securitization instruments;
- Emerging markets;

- Changes in laws/or tax regimes;
- Exchange rates;
- Counterparty risk;
- Structured instruments;
- Liquidity risk;
- Equity risk;
- Investment in contingent convertible securities;
- Bond Connect;
- Sustainability Risks
- ESG Driven Investments.

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund is measured through the use of the absolute Value at Risk approach (the "VaR approach").

The expected gross level of leverage of the Sub-Fund is 5. However, the Sub-Fund may reach a higher level of leverage under the following circumstances:

- i) high market volatility (in case the macro hedge strategy is implemented to cover risks at the level of the portfolio); and/or
- ii) low risk aversion; and/or
- iii) management team's view on overlay strategies.

Gross leverage is calculated as the sum of the nationals of the derivatives used.

The expected net level of leverage of the Sub-Fund is 4. Net leverage is calculated after netting or hedging arrangements are taken into account.

Given the high level of leverage of this Sub-Fund, please refer to the specific risk section "Leverage Risk" within the chapter entitled "PRINCIPAL RISKS" below.

A complete description of the risks linked to securitization instruments including Mortgage-related securities, asset-backed securities, mortgage-backed securities, collateralized debt obligations and collateralized loan obligations is provided under section "Securitization" within the chapter entitled "PRINCIPAL RISKS".

For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" which describes also other risks linked to subscription into the Sub-Fund.

# Characteristics

Category of Share Classes*	Management Fee	Service Fee	All-In Fee**	Maximum Sales Charge	Maximum Redemption Charge	Minimum Initial Investment*	Minimum Holding***
SI NPF	0.20% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.30% p.a.	None	None	\$25,000,000	\$25,000,000
SI, C	0.15% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.25% p.a.	None	None	\$25,000,000	\$25,000,000
SI, D	0.15% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.25% p.a.	None	None	\$25,000,000	\$25,000,000
I NPF	0.40% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.50% p.a.	None	None	\$50,000	1 share
l I	0.35% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.45% p.a.	None	None	\$50,000	1 share
N NPF	0.40% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.60% p.a.	2.50%	None	None	None
N	0.35% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.55% p.a.	2.50%	None	None	None
R NPF	0.60% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.80% p.a.	2.50%	None	None	None
R	0.55% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.75% p.a.	2.50%	None	None	None

Characteristics of the Categories of Share Classes in the Sub-Fund

\*The comprehensive list of offered share classes with details relating to distribution policy, hedging policy (if any) and currencies is available by referring to im.natixis.com. Further details regarding the currency hedging methodology are available under section "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of this Prospectus.

\*\*The "All-In Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and "Service Fee".

\*\*\* Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund or the same amount in other available currencies.

The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes will be determined by the Board of Directors.

The hedged Share Classes, if any, aim at hedging the net asset value against the fluctuation between the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund, and the relevant Share Class Reference Currency.

Performance Fee with High Water Mark (as described in section "Charges and Expenses" below):

Performance fee rate	Share Class features		Reference Rate	Observation period		
		SI		<ul> <li>First Observation period:</li> </ul>		
15%	Non hedged Share	-	Poforonoo Indov* + 2.00%	from the first Valuation day of each Share Class to the last Valuation day of June (with a minimum period of		
	Class	Ν	Reference Index* + 2.90%			
		R				
	Hedged Share Class*	SI		twelve months).  Thereafter: from the first		
15%		I				
		Ν	Reference Index** + 2.90%	Valuation day of July to the last Valuation day of June of		
		R		the following year.		

\*Denominated in the currency of the relevant Share Class.

\*\*Performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index adjusted to the difference between the Share Class currency interest rate and the Euro Zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month).

# Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency	Subscription / Redemption Date	Application Date and Cut-Off Time	Settlement Date
Each full bank business day in Luxembourg	D* (i.e., any full bank business day in Luxembourg)	D at 1:30 p.m. Luxembourg time	D+3

\*D = Day on which the subscription, redemption or conversion application is processed by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent. Applications received by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent before the cut-off time on any full bank business day in Luxembourg will be processed on such day. Applications received after the cut-off time will be processed on the following full bank business day in Luxembourg.

## **Reference Index**

Performance of each Share Class is compared to the performance Reference Index in its respective Share Class currency. Nevertheless, performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index in the Share Class hedging currency.

## Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund

The Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund is Ostrum Asset Management.

SOLUTIONS SUB-FUNDS

# NATIXIS CONSERVATIVE RISK PARITY

#### **Reference Currency**

# Euro (EUR)

## **Reference Index**

Daily-capitalized Euro Short-Term Rate (€STR)

# **Investment Objective**

Based on a balance of risks among a wide range of asset classes, Natixis Conservative Risk Parity (the "Sub-Fund") seeks a long-term capital growth and positive returns throughout economic and markets cycles over its recommended minimum investment period of 3 years. The Sub-Fund objective is to outperform by 4% (gross of fees) the daily capitalized €STR.

The Sub-Fund is actively managed. For indicative purposes only, the Sub-Fund's performance may be compared to the Reference Index. However, it does not aim to replicate that Reference Index and may therefore significantly deviate from it.

#### **Investment Policy**

# **Investment Strategy**

The investment strategy of the Sub-Fund is the combination of a systematic approach based on a parity of risks complemented by a tactical allocation following a fundamental top-down process. The latter is active, and relies on an in-depth analysis of fundamental macroeconomic criteria, in conjunction with an analysis of market cycles.

The strategy aims to adapt to changing market conditions and to take advantage and/or smooth out the impact of economic cycles. In order to benefit from favorable market trends with a reduced sensitivity to market corrections and to downward market cycles, the Sub-Fund's strategic allocation is based on the following three pillars invested (directly or indirectly) on global markets:

- 1) Equities
- 2) Bonds
- 3) Diversification: this component of the portfolio is invested in liquid instruments such as UCITS, UCI, Open-ended ETF/ETC and derivatives aiming at gaining exposure to commodities, listed real estate, listed private equity, listed infrastructures, emerging debt, high yield debt and Absolute Return UCIs.

The Sub-Fund is invested in a broad universe of assets so as to optimize asset decorrelation, expected market cycles and portfolio liquidity. In unstable market environments, the tactical asset allocation benefits from significant leeway so as to adapt the Sub-Fund portfolio to market fluctuations. The Sub-Fund is managed so as to improve performance using proprietary risk management techniques, in order to build a portfolio equally weighted in risk contribution within the systematic approach.

# **Investment Guidelines**

The Sub-Fund may be exposed directly or indirectly through UCITS, UCI, Open-ended ETF/ETC and derivatives in:

- 1) Equity securities, exposed up to a maximum of 30% of its net assets (including emerging equities);
- 2) Bonds, exposed up to a maximum of 100% of its net assets (money market funds not included) and
- 3) Diversification assets (exposed up to a maximum of 40% of its net assets):
  - Commodities (10% maximum of its net assets), not directly
  - Listed Private Equity (10% maximum of its net assets), through Open-ended ETF only
  - Listed Infrastructure (10% maximum of its net assets), through Open-ended ETF only
  - Listed real estate (10% maximum of its net assets), through Open-ended ETF only

- High yield debt<sup>1</sup> (10% maximum of its net assets)
- Emerging debt (10% maximum of its net assets)
- Absolut return UCI (20% maximum of its net assets).

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 20% of its net assets in money market instruments and cash equivalent.

The Management Company relies on the appraisal of credit risk by its team and its own methodology.

The Sub-Fund is not managed with a target volatility. However, for indicative purposes only, the average annualized volatility is expected to range between 3% and 6% over its recommended minimum investment period of 3 years.

The modified duration to interest rate may range from - 2 to 8.

There is no systematic hedging policy against currency risk; as a result, the portfolio of the Sub-Fund may be exposed to currency risk up to a 100% of its net assets.

The hedged Share Classes aim at hedging the net asset value against the fluctuation between the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund and the relevant hedging currency of a Share Class.

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 100% of its net assets into undertakings for collective investment (including money market funds).

# Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments

The Sub-Fund may use derivatives for hedging and investment purposes up to 100% of its net assets, as described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" below. The Sub-Fund does not intend to enter into SFTs.

# Typical Investors' Profile

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional and retail investors who:

- are looking for a diversification of their investments with a global exposure to equities, bonds and diversification assets;
- can afford to set aside capital for at least 3 years; and
- can accept capital losses.

#### **Specific Risks**

The specific risks of investing in the Sub-Fund are linked to:

- Capital loss;
- Debt securities;
- Changing interest rates;
- Credit;
- Counterparty;
- Equity securities;
- Leverage;

- Exchange rates;
- Geographic concentration;
- Changes in laws and/or tax regimes;
- Financial Derivatives Instruments;
- Emerging markets;
- Investment in undertakings for collective investment
- Sustainability Risks.

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund is managed through the use of the "Commitment Approach" method described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques"–"Global Risk Exposure".

For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" below.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Below Standard & Poor's BBB- rating or an equivalent rating in accordance with the Management Company's analysis. The applicable rating is the lowest rating according to S&P, Moody's or Fitch Ratings or an equivalent rating in accordance with the Management Company's analysis. The rating considered will be the issue rating. In case of unavailable issue rating, the issuer rating will be applicable.

This same chapter also describes the other risks linked to an investment into the Sub-Fund.

# Characteristics

Category of Share Classes*	Maximum Management Fee	Service Fee	All-In Fee**	Maximum indirect management fees	Maximum Sales Charge	Maximum Redemption Charge	Minimum Initial Investment *	Minimum Holding***
I	0.60% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.70% p.a.	0.40% p.a.	None	None	€50,000	1 share
N	0.60% p.a.	0.20%p.a.	0.80% p.a.	0.40% p.a.	3.00%	None	None	None
R	1.20% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.40% p.a.	0.40% p.a.	3.00%	None	None	None
RE	1.80% p.a.	0.20%p.a.	2.00% p.a.	0.40% p.a.	2%	None	None	None
CW	1.80% p.a.	0.20%p.a.	2.00% p.a.	0.40% p.a.	None	CDSC up to 3%	None	None

#### Characteristics of the Categories of Share Classes in the Sub-Fund

\*The comprehensive list of offered share classes with details relating to distribution policy, hedging policy (if any) and currencies is available by referring to im.natixis.com. Further details regarding the currency hedging methodology are available under section "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of this Prospectus.

\*\*The "All-In Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and "Service Fee".

\*\*\* Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund or the same amount in other available currencies.

The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes will be determined by the Board of Directors.

#### Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency	Subscription/Application Date andRedemption DateCut-Off Time		Settlement Date
Each full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France	D (i.e., any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France)	D at 1:30 p.m. Luxembourg time	D+2

#### Reference Index

Performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index adjusted to the difference between the Share Class currency interest rate and the Euro Zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month).

## Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund

The Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund is VEGA Investment Solutions .

#### NATIXIS AM Funds

# NATIXIS BOND ALTERNATIVE RISK PREMIA

#### **Reference Currency**

# EURO (EUR)

# Reference Index

# The Sub-Fund is not using a benchmark index and is not managed in reference to a benchmark index. **Investment Objective**

The investment objective of Natixis Bond Alternative Risk Premia (the "**Sub-Fund**") is to generate stable performance in normal market environment and to generate over performance in highly volatile equity markets by capturing yield from market inefficiencies or dislocation premia over a target term investment period of at least 3 years. It is expected that, under normal market conditions, the ex-post volatility level of the Sub-Fund will typically be around 5% (over a three-year investment horizon). However, this level of volatility may be either higher or lower from time to time.

#### **Investment Policy**

In order to achieve the Investment Objective, the Sub-Fund will (i) invest in a basket of securities in accordance with the Investment Restrictions (hereafter the "**Basket of Securities**") described below, and (ii) enter into unfunded total return swaps ("TRS") in order to exchange the performance of such Basket of Securities against money market type of returns, and (iii) enter into financial derivative transactions (such as but not limited to excess return swap) to get exposure to the performance of the selected sub-strategies (the"**Sub-Strategies**", as further described in the section entitled "Sub-Strategies" below). As a result the Sub-Fund will not be economically exposed to the Basket of Securities nor to any asset therein.

#### **Investment Strategy**

The Sub-Fund will be actively managed on the basis of the Delegated Investment Manager's analysis of the markets and of the premia opportunities identified to adequately achieve the Investment Objective. The Sub-Fund will seek exposure to a strategy comprised of a range of Sub-Strategies (the "**Strategy**") selected by the Delegated Investment Manager to capture a range of alternative risk premia resulting from structural or temporary pricing bias in the following markets or asset classes: interest rates, credit and foreign exchange , on all global markets (including emerging markets) (the "**Eligible Asset Classes**").

For each Eligible Asset Class above, the Delegated Investment Manager will, on an ongoing basis, seek to identify if alternative premia opportunities can be captured, and if it believes so, which type of available sub-strategies based on the underlying instruments (as described below in the section *Sub-Strategies Underlyings Instruments*) (the "**Underlying Instruments**") are, in its opinion, best placed in view of market circumstances to capture such alternative premia opportunities.

Sub-Strategies will be selected on the basis of proprietary quantitative and qualitative discretionnary methods to assess, among others, the following aspects:

- the volatily and beheaviour of each Sub-Strategy,
- the long and short term performance of each Sub-Strategy,
- the liquidity of the Underlying Instruments of each Sub-Strategy.

The selected Sub-Strategies will be classified into groups based on their type of premia profile and their behaviour in various market conditions, each group forming an available investment pillar (each a "**Pillar**").

They will be assessed by the Delegated Investment Manager based on its expected contribution to the Sub-Fund's Investment Objective.

The Delegated Investment Manager will aim at keeping a certain level of diversification among Pillars based on their expected contribution to the Investment Objective, and review periodically Pillars and Sub-Strategies to determine if a given Pillar should be excluded, included or reweighted, and if, within each Pillar, individual Sub-Strategies should be replaced or reweighted. However, the Delegated Investment Manager will not be bound by specific diversification rules amongst the Pillars and Sub-Strategies and the Sub-Fund may gain significant exposure to any of them.

When building the Strategy the Delegated Investment Manager will allocate a risk budget to each Pillar and Sub-Strategy. The Delegated Investment Manager will reassess those allocations on an

ongoing basis. In the event of a material deviation between the risk budget and the effective related contribution, the Delegated Investment Manager may, but will not be bound to, reduce or exit the related Pillar based on its risk/return assessment and the current market conditions and timing opportunity.

#### Sub-Strategies

Sub-Strategies are systematic, rule-based investment strategies, aiming to harvest risk premia. They can be based on factors documented in the literature expected to be resilient in various market configurations and in the different phases of the economic cycle, or able to exploit market anomalies. They are built based on pre-defined rolling combinations of Underlying Instruments.

Sub-Strategies may include, but are not limited to :

- **Carry strategies**. Such strategies aim to capture risk premia in the form of yield from assets expected to produce higher yields than other lower-yielding assets;
- **Momentum strategies**. Such strategies aim to capture risk premia by identifying persistent performance from assets expected to continue to perform similarly (positively or negatively) over a future period of time with long positions in the best performing securities and short positions in the least performing ones. The momentum premium is based on a behavioral bias: demand for securities with the best recent performance tends to be larger than demand for securities with weaker recent performance;
- Value strategies. Such strategies aim to capture risk premia, based on the principle that there
  is a price convergence between undervalued and overvalued assets which explains that
  securities with lower valuations tend to deliver higher long-term returns than those with higher
  valuations : they consist in buying undervalued securities, and selling overvalued securities;
- **Mean reversion strategies**. Such strategies aim to exploit short-term market overreaction, generally measured by the difference between short (daily) realized volatility and longer-term volatility (one or two weeks).
- **Trend following strategies**. Such strategies aim to exploit trends in asset prices, with a long or short directional bias, by long positioning on securities with positive trend and/or short ones with negative trend.
- Structural congestion strategies. Such strategies are based on the fact that securities in general might be affected by increased market activity around specific dates. These calendar anomalies may arise from clustered information due to news announcements, period duration extensions in bond portfolios or hedging practice, amongst other reasons. These strategies monetise the forecasted congestion anomalies by taking long or short position on the affected underlyings markets.
- Intraday patterns strategies. Such strategies are based on the observation that several markets exhibit recurring intraday patterns, driven by segmentation of participants across time zones, market microstructure or structural market participant constraint, amongst other reasons. These strategies exploit the specific patterns by taking long or short positions on the underlying with the relevant timing.
- Short (or sometimes long) volatility strategies. Such strategies are based on the structural demand for protection which implies a structural difference between the levels of implied volatility and realized volatility. These strategies are implemented by selling (or buying) options such as swaptions, call or put options dynamically hedged by keeping a position in the underlying.

The Sub-Fund will get exposed to Sub-Strategies via swaps or other financial derivatives (including excess return swaps).

#### **Sub-Strategies Underlyings Instruments**

The Sub-Strategies selected by the Delegated Investment Manager may be implemented for each of the Eligible Asset Classes being: interest rates, credit and foreign exchange markets.

The Sub-Strategy (depending on the type of sub-strategy and Eligible Asset Class to which they relate) will generally be constructed as a combination of Underlyings Instruments such as, but not limited, to spot rates or references, bonds, FX spot listed or OTC derivatives such as : bond futures, money market futures, interest rate futures, FX forward, options (such as options on interest rates, FX, or indices of intest rates, FX...), swaps (on interest rates, FX,...), credit default swaps (single name CDS, indices) that may, *inter alia*, belong or short, have different maturities or strikes.

# Example of Sub-Strategies:

#### Trend following strategy : money market trend following

Common explanations for trending behaviour are that financial markets do not respond instantaneously to new information and that it takes time for this new information to permeate the markets leading to gradual adjustments; and that investors may wait for market price action to confirm their interpretation of the new data. This is commonly observed with money market instruments (Futures) and the money market trend following strategy aims to harvest this effect.

#### Long volatility strategy : long forward rate volatility USD

The strategy aims to generate a systematic positive carry from the USD swaption volatility by exploiting the differential between the forward volatility (volatility in the future seen as of today) and the spot volatility. These strategies are implemented by selling (or buying) options such as swaptions, call or put options dynamically hedged by keeping a position in the underlying. The strategy is implemented by buying USD swaption of dynamically hedged by keeping a position on the relevant USD swap rate maturity. The strategy is based on various swaption expiries and different USD swap maturity.

On a weekly basis a long forward volatility position is systematically built using a combination of the swaption position that offers the highest expected carry.

#### Structural congestion strategy : bond turn-of-month congestion

Turn-of-month effect in the bond market . In contrast to equity markets, where passive and active investments tend to be more balanced, fixed income managers are more biased towards passive investments, tying them more systematically to benchmark bond indices. For efficiency reasons, benchmark bond indices are constructed to rebalance on the last day of the month. Upon such rebalancing the indices incorporate new bond issuances which occurred during the month, leading to market buying pressure. This behaviour has historically resulted in evidence of a persistent bullish market phenomenon at month-end for the bond market. The turn-of-month congestion strategy aims to monetise the bond market month end congestion effect observed in US, EU and UK bond futures markets.

As part of the Strategy, the Sub-Fund's exposure to high yield securities is expected to be limited to 10% of its net assets.

#### **Basket of Securities**

As part of the Basket of Securities, the Sub-Fund may invest:

- up to 100% of its net assets in money market instruments and cash equivalent,
- up to 100% of its net assets in investment grade bonds,
- up to 100% of its net assets in large capitalization equities. Any such investment in equities will remain unconstrained by industry, currency, index, or geographical considerations,
- up to 20% of its net assets in asset-backed securities,

• up to 20% of its net assets in convertible bonds.

It is not expected that the Sub-Fund will retain exposure to equities or equity market, bonds, convertible bonds, ABS, hence exposure to these securities held by the Sub-Fund (if any) will be exchanged under TRS or similar instruments.

The Sub-Fund may invest in and retain exposure to money market instruments and/or cash equivalent.

#### Investment in undertakings for collective investment

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets into undertakings for collective investment, provided that their liquidity is, in the opinion of the Delegated Investment Manager, sufficient to satisfy the Sub-Fund's liquidity requirement in normal market circumstances.

#### Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments

The Sub-Fund may use financial derivatives instruments (listed and OTC) for investment and hedging purposes, as described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" below.

Under certain circumstances (as further described below), the Sub-Fund will enter into repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending operations for efficient portfolio management purposes as described in the following sections "Repurchase Agreements" and "Securities Lending and Borrowing" in the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES".

Such transactions will comply with the limits laid down in the Section "Securities Financing Transactions and Total Return Swaps of the Chapter "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES".

The Sub-Fund will enter into repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending operations opportunistically and depending on market conditions, in circumstances where the Delegated Investment Manager considers that the market rates will allow the Sub-Fund to generate additional capital or income.

When entering into repurchase agreement transactions and securities lending operations, the Sub-Fund will generally seek to reinvest the cash collateral received in eligible financial instruments that provide greater return than the financial costs incurred when entering into the repurchase agreement transaction, or to enter into reverse repurchase transactions or similar transactions.

The Sub-Fund's exposure to:

- (i) the repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements is generally expected to represent approximately 0% of its net assets;
- (ii) the repurchase agreements, when entered into by the Sub-Fund, is generally expected to represent approximately 10% of its net assets and will not exceed 50% of its net assets;
- (iii) the reverse repurchase agreements, when entered into by the Sub-Fund, is generally expected to represent approximately 10% of its net assets and will not exceed 50% of its net assets;
- (iv) the securities lending operations is generally expected to represent approximately 20% of its net assets and will not exceed 50% of its net assets.

The principal amount of the Sub-Fund's assets that can be subject to SFTs described above may represent a maximum of 50% of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund.

The maximum proportion of the Sub-Fund's Net Asset Value that can be subject to TRS is 100%. The expected proportion of the Sub-Fund's Net Asset Value that will be subject to TRS is 90%.

## NATIXIS AM Funds

The relevant TRS and OTC transactions will be entered into with counterparties with regulated and recognized financial institutions and under market agreements to mitigate counterparty risk. The counterparty will have no discretion over the composition or management of the Sub-Fund's investment portfolio or of the underlying of the financial derivative instruments which remain at the Delegated Investment Manager's discretion.

## Launch of the Sub-Fund

The precise launch date of this Sub-Fund will be determined by the Board of Directors.

# **Typical Investors' Profile**

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional and sophisticated\* retail investors who:

- look for an alternative to their investments in fixed income securities;
- seek low correlations with traditional asset classes as part of a diversified portfolio;
- can afford to set aside capital for a medium period of time (over 3 years); and
- can tolerate temporary loss.

\* A sophisticated retail investor for this purpose means an investor who:

(a) has knowledge of, and investment experience in, financial markets generally and financial products which invest in securities and/or derivatives with complex features; and

(b) understands and can evaluate the strategy, characteristics and risks of the Sub-Fund in order to make an informed investment decision.

#### **Specific Risks**

The specific risks of investing in the Sub-Fund are linked to:

- Capital loss;
- Financial Derivatives Instruments;
- Leverage;
- Volatility;
- Counterparty;
- Changing Interest Rates;
- Arbitrage;
- Credit;
- Securitization;
- Exchange rates;

- Debt securities;
- Below investment grade securities or unrated securities;
- Emerging markets;
- Structured instruments;
- Global investing;
- Operational;
- Liquidity ;
- Equity securities.

For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" below. This same chapter also describes the other risks linked to an investment into the Sub-Fund.

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund is managed through the use of the absolute Value at Risk (VaR) approach (the "VaR approach"). The VaR approach measures the maximum potential loss at a given confidence level (i.e. probability level) over a specific time frame under normal market conditions.

For the Sub-Fund, the VaR limit of 15% in a holding period equivalent to 1 month (20 business days) ex ante time period with a 99% confidence level means that, with 99% certainty, the percentage the Sub-Fund can expect to lose over the next month should be maximum 15%.

The expected range gross leverage of the Sub-Fund is expected to be between 1 and 20., with an average level at 14.

Gross leverage is calculated as the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The risk profile of each Sub-strategy and of the components of each Sub-strategy may be very different from one to the other. For example, the risk profile of the trend following strategy on money market instruments will be very different from the risk profile of the long forward rate volatility strategy. In order to reach the Sub-Fund objectives, the former needs to be significantly more leveraged than the latter.

## NATIXIS AM Funds

Therefore, if the Sub-strategy allocation of the Strategy tends to go towards Sub-strategies with a risk profile similar to the trend following strategy on money market instruments, the leverage will increase and reach the highest level of leverage, without significantly modifying the risk profile of the overall Sub-Fund.

#### Characteristics

Category of Share Classes*	Management Fee	Service Fee	All-In Fee**	Maximum Sales Charge	Maximum Redemption Charge	Minimum Initial Investment*	Minimum Holding***
S1	0.29% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.39% p.a.	None	None	€80,000,000	€80,000,000
G	0.29% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.39% p.a.	None	None	None	1 share
SI	0.45% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.55% p.a.	None	None	€25,000,000	1 share
N1	0.65% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.75% p.a.	None	None	€500,000	None
I.	0.75% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.85% p.a.	None	None	€50,000	1 share
N	0.75% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.95% p.a.	3.00%	None	€5,000	None
R	1.35% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.55% p.a.	3.00%	None	€5,000	None

#### Characteristics of the Categories of Share Classes in the Sub-Fund

\*The comprehensive list of offered share classes with details relating to distribution policy, hedging policy (if any) and currencies is available by referring to im.natixis.com. Further details regarding the currency hedging methodology are available under section "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of this Prospectus.

\*\*The "All-In Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and "Service Fee".

\*\*\* Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund or the same amount in other available currencies.

The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes will be determined by the Board of Directors.

#### Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency	Application Date and Cut-Off Time	Subscription/ Redemption Date (Net Asset Valuation Date)	Settlement Date
Each full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France	D at 13h30 Luxembourg time	D+1* (i.e., any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France)	D+3

\*D = Day on which the subscription, redemption or conversion application is processed by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent. Applications received by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent before the cut-off time on any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France will be processed on such day. Applications received after the cut-off time will be processed on the following full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France.

#### Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund

The Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund is Ostrum Asset Management.

# NATIXIS GLOBAL MULTI STRATEGIES

Reference Currency
Euro (EUR)
Reference Index
Daily-capitalized Euro Short-Term Rate (€STR)
Investment Objective
The investment objective of Natixis Global Multi Strategies (the " <b>Sub-Fund</b> ") is to deliver a stable and moderate return independently from directional equity and fixed income markets evolution over its recommended minimum investment period of 3 years.
The Sub-Fund intends to achieve capital growth through investing in several "pair-trading" arbitrage strategies in the fixed income, equity and currency markets, seeking a long-term capital growth and positive returns throughout economic and markets cycles. The Sub-Fund objective is to outperform by 2.5% the daily-capitalized €STR.
The Sub-Fund is actively managed. The Sub-Fund's performance may be compared to the Reference Index. However, it does not aim to replicate that Reference Index and may therefore significantly deviate from it. The Reference Index + 2,50% can be used to determine the performance fee that will possibly be levied.
Investment Policy
The investment strategy of the Sub-Fund is active and relies on an in-depth analysis of fundamental macroeconomic criteria, in conjunction with an analysis of market cycle and sector evolution, leading to the identification of arbitrage opportunities over the equity, fixed income and currency markets (hereafter the " <b>Strategies</b> ") as described below, without any geographic and sector constraints.
In order to achieve its Investment Objective, the Sub-Fund will (i) invest in a basket of securities in accordance with the investment restrictions (hereafter the " <b>Basket of Securities</b> ") described below, and (ii) enter into unfunded total return swaps (" <b>TRS</b> ") in order to exchange the performance of such Basket of Securities against money market type of returns, and (iii) enter into financial derivative transactions (such as, but not limited to, futures contracts) to get exposure to the performance of the selected Strategies, as further described in the section entitled "Strategies" below).
As a result the Sub-Fund will not be economically exposed to the Basket of Securities nor to any asset therein.
StrategiesThe Strategies will be selected on the basis of proprietary quantitative and qualitative discretionary research to assess, among others, the following aspects:•The fundamental view of each market and sector, • • • the volatility and behavior of each sector, • the long and short term performance of each arbitrage strategy, • 
The Delegated Investment Manager will implement several Strategies on the equity, fixed income and currency markets, aiming at keeping a certain level of diversification among the various Strategies while keeping a residual and limited net exposure to the equity and fixed income markets. As a result of these Strategies, in exceptional market conditions which include but are not limited to crisis situations leading to instability in developed markets, exposure to emerging markets may reach up to 50% and exposure to high yield may reach up to 15 %. The allocation across Strategies consists in 3 phases: Allocation views and ideas generation: • Macroeconomic scenario
<ul> <li>Main orientations and « Risk On / Risk Off » positioning</li> <li>Relative preferences between asset classes and their active intra-class positions</li> <li>Intra asset classes relative views construction on the entire investment universe</li> </ul>

Views selection:

- Overall risk budget determination
- Discretionary selection of arbitrage strategies and their tactical implementation
- Review of the portfolio and monitoring guidelines

Portfolio construction:

- Discretionary portfolio construction (scoring and calibration of strategies) within set risk limits
- Volatility monitoring within a [2 5%] indicative target range and control over risk concentration
- Diversification of arbitrage strategies monitoring
- Stop loss (volatility based) / Profit taking policy

The portfolio construction is risk budgeted:

- First, the risk budget is defined depending on the current view of the financial environment by the Management Company
- Then, the Strategies are selected by the Management Company
- Thirdly, the Management Company sets a score based on their convictions for each strategy
- Finally, a calibration proprietary tool optimizes the weight for each Strategy with a risk contribution based on its conviction level ('score') to reach the overall volatility targeted ('overall risk budged') for the portfolio.

In unstable market environments, the tactical asset allocation benefits from significant leeway allowing to adapt the Sub-Fund's portfolio to market fluctuations.

The Strategies (depending on the type of eligible asset class to which they relate) will generally be constructed as a combination of underlying instruments such as, but not limited to, Equity futures (sectorial, geographical ...), Fixed Income futures and Currency derivatives.

# Examples of Strategies<sup>1</sup>:

#### Long European Banks future contract / Short US Banks future contract

European banks are benefiting from a softer regulatory environment that would lead to optimize capital structure thanks to dividends distribution. Moreover, a higher yield environment would improve margins for banks. Following many years of relative underperformance and still attractive valuation ratios versus history, the sector offers an attractive value. On the contrary, US Banks have a declining momentum (flat yield curve, margin pressure because of inflation wages, tightening financial conditions) and more stressed valuation ratios.

#### Long Euro Bund future contract / Short US Treasury Note future contract

This strategy would be implemented in the following context: (1) the Federal Reserve continues to adopt an "hawkish" policy by raising rates to fight rising inflation, which will reinforce the rising trajectory of US yield and (2) the European Central Bank also takes a hawkish stance, but has less room to raise rates without hurting the economy as Europe is more sensitive to the European geopolitical context. Interest rate differential momentum will eventually prevail.

#### **Basket of Securities**

The Sub-Fund invests in a Basket of Securities whose performance will be exchanged through a TRS delivering money market type of return. These securities are selected to optimize the money market returns received by the Sub-Fund via the TRS.

As part of the Basket of Securities, the Sub-Fund may invest:

up to 100% of its net assets in money market instruments and cash equivalent,

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The list of examples is not exhaustive. Other strategies may be selected by the Investment Manager as part of the investment policy of the Sub-Fund.

up to 100% of its net assets in investment grade bonds,

• up to 100% of its net assets in large capitalization equities (defined as Equity with a market capitalization over € 3 billion). Any such investment in equities will remain unconstrained by industry, currency, or geographical considerations.

The Sub-Fund will only retain residual exposure to equity markets and/or to bond markets as part of the Basket of Securities. Hence exposure to these securities held by the Sub-Fund (if any) will be exchanged under TRS or similar instruments providing money market type of return.

#### **Investment Guidelines**

The Sub-Fund's net exposure to equity will be residual.

The net modified duration of fixed income Strategies will be contained within a range of -0.5 to +0.5

As currency exposure is a constituent of the investment strategy and as there is no systematic hedging policy against currency risk, the portfolio of the Sub-Fund may be exposed to currency risk up to a 100% of its net assets.

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 100% of its net assets in money market instruments in order to achieve its investment goals, for treasury purposes, and/or in case of unfavourable market conditions.

The Sub-Fund may also hold bank deposits at sight for up to 20% of its assets under normal market circumstances.

The Delegated Investment Manager relies on the appraisal of credit risk by its team and its own methodology.

The Sub-Fund is not managed with a target volatility. However, for indicative purposes only, the average annualized volatility is expected to range between 2% and 5% over its recommended minimum investment period of 3 years.

The hedged Share Classes aim at hedging the net asset value against the fluctuation between the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund and the relevant hedging currency of a Share Class.

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets into undertakings for collective investment (including money market funds).

## Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments

The Sub-Fund may use derivatives for hedging and investment purposes, as described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" below.

Under certain circumstances (as further described below), the Sub-Fund will enter into repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending operations for efficient portfolio management purposes as described in the following sections "Repurchase Agreements" and "Securities Lending and Borrowing" in the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES".

Such transactions will comply with the limits laid down in the Section "Securities Financing Transactions and Total Return Swaps of the Chapter "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES".

The Sub-Fund will enter into repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending operations opportunistically and depending on market conditions, in circumstances where the Delegated Investment Manager considers that the market rates will allow the Sub-Fund to generate additional capital or income.

When entering into repurchase agreement transactions and securities lending operations, the Sub-Fund will generally seek to reinvest the cash collateral received in eligible financial instruments that provide greater return than the financial costs incurred when entering into the repurchase agreement transaction, or to enter into reverse repurchase transactions or similar transactions.

The Sub-Fund's exposure to:

- (i) the repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements is generally expected to represent approximately 0% of its net assets;
- (ii) the repurchase agreements, when entered into by the Sub-Fund, is generally expected to represent approximately 10% of its net assets and will not exceed 50% of its net assets;
- (iii) the reverse repurchase agreements, when entered into by the Sub-Fund, is generally expected to represent approximately 10% of its net assets and will not exceed 50% of its net assets;
- (iv) the securities lending operations is generally expected to represent approximately 20% of its net assets and will not exceed 50% of its net assets.

The principal amount of the Sub-Fund's assets that can be subject to SFTs described above may represent a maximum of 50% of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund.

The maximum proportion of the Sub-Fund's Net Asset Value that can be subject to TRS is 100%. The expected proportion of the Sub-Fund's Net Asset Value that will be subject to TRS is 90%.

The relevant TRS and OTC transactions will be entered into with counterparties with regulated and recognized financial institutions and under market agreements to mitigate counterparty risk. The counterparty will have no discretion over the composition or management of the Sub-Fund's investment portfolio or of the underlying of the financial derivative instruments which remain at the Management Company's discretion.

# Typical Investors' Profile

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional and retail investors who:

- are looking for a diversification of their investments with a global exposure to equities, bonds and diversification assets;
- can afford to set aside capital for at least 3 years; and
- can accept capital losses.

#### Specific Risks

The specific risks of investing in the Sub-Fund are linked to:

- Capital loss;
- Debt securities;
- Changing interest rates;
- Credit;
- Counterparty;
- Equity securities;
- Leverage;
- Structured instruments;

- Exchange rates;
- Geographic concentration;
- Changes in laws and/or tax regimes;
- Financial Derivatives Instruments;
- Emerging markets;
- Securitization;
- Investment in undertakings for collective investment
- Sustainability Risks.

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund is managed through the use of the absolute Value at Risk (VaR) approach (the "VaR approach"). The VaR approach measures the maximum potential loss at a given confidence level (i.e. probability level) over a specific time frame under normal market conditions.

For the Sub-Fund, the VaR limit of 6.4 % in a holding period equivalent to 1 month (20 business days) ex ante time period with a 99% confidence level means that, with 99% certainty, the percentage the Sub-Fund can expect to lose over the next month should be maximum 6.4%.

The expected range gross leverage of the Sub-Fund is expected to be between 1 and 5, with an average level at 4.

The high leverage is mainly driven by the use of derivatives used with regard to the implementation of the Strategies, inter alia those including a long/short aspect. In particular, for long/short fixed income Strategies, the exposure to the leg having the higher duration will need to be substantially more important that the exposure to the other leg, so as to neutralize the duration. The implementation of this type of Strategy is hence expected to temporarily inflate the level of leverage of the Sub-Fund, without however that such high notional leverage be representative of economic risk in the Sub-Fund.

Gross leverage is calculated as the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used. For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" below. This same chapter also describes the other risks linked to an investment into the Sub-Fund.

#### **Characteristics**

Category of Share Classes*	Maximum Management Fee (p.a.)	Service Fee (p.a.)	All-In Fee** (p.a.)	Maximum Sales Charge	Maximum Redemption Charge	Minimum Initial Investment*	Minimum Holding***
М	0.10%	0.10%	0.20%	None	None	None	1 share
G	0.20%	0.10%	0.30%	None	None	None	1 share
S1	0.30%	0.10%	0.40%	None	None	€100,000,000	1 share
SI	0.30%.	0.10%	0.40%	None	None	€25,000,000	1 share
I	0.40%.	0.10%	0.50%	None	None	€50,000	1 share
N	0.40%	0.20%	0.60%	3.00%	None	None	None
R	0.80%.	0.20%	1.00%	3.00%	None	None	None
RE	1.00%	0.20%	1. <b>20</b> %	2.00%	None	None	None

Characteristics of the Categories of Share Classes in the Sub-Fund

\*The comprehensive list of offered share classes with details relating to distribution policy, hedging policy (if any) and currencies is available by referring to im.natixis.com. Further details regarding the currency hedging methodology are available under section "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of this Prospectus.

\*\*The "All-In Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and "Service Fee" and is expressed per annum \*\*\* Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund or the same amount in other available currencies.

## Performance Fee (as described in section "Charges and Expenses" below):

Performance fee rate	Share Class features*		Reference Rate	Observation period		
		SI				
		I				
20%	Non hedged Share Class	Ν		<ul> <li>First Observation period:</li> </ul>		
	-	R	Reference Index + 2.50%	from the first Valuation Day of each Share Class to the last Valuation day of June (with a minimum period of twelve months). • Thereafter: from the first		
		RE				
		SI				
		I		Valuation day of July to the last Valuation day of June of		
20%	Hedged N Share Class **		the following year.			
		R				
		RE				

\*Denominated in the currency of the relevant Share Class.

\*\*Performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index adjusted to the difference between the Share Class currency interest rate and the Euro Zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month).

The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes will be determined by the Board of Directors.

#### Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency	Subscription/ Redemption Date	Application Date and Cut-Off Time	Settlement Date
Each full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France	D (i.e., any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France)	D at 1:30 p.m. Luxembourg time	D+2

#### **Reference Index**

The Reference Index of the Sub-Fund reflects the wholesale euro unsecured overnight borrowing costs of euro area banks and is calculated and published by the <u>European Central Bank</u> (ECB) at <u>https://www.ecb.europa.eu</u>

Performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index adjusted to the difference between the Share Class currency interest rate and the Euro Zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month).

#### Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund

The Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund is VEGA Investment Solutions.

Ostrum Asset Management is appointed by VEGA Investment Solutions as Sub-Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund in charge of the management of the Basket of Securities only.

# **QUANTITATIVE SUB-FUNDS**

# **OSTRUM SRI TOTAL RETURN CONSERVATIVE<sup>1</sup>**

OSTRUM SRI TOTAL RETURN CONSERVATIVE <sup>1</sup>
Reference Currency
Euro (EUR)
Reference Index
Daily-capitalized Euro Short-Term Rate (€STR)
Investment Objective Investment objective
The investment objective of Ostrum SRI Total Return Conservative (the "Sub-Fund") is to outperform the daily-capitalized €STR over its recommended minimum investment period of 3 years by more than 3.50% with a target 1-year volatility based on weekly data comprised between 3% and 5%.
For hedged Share Classes, the daily-capitalized €STR is adjusted to the difference between the relevant Share Class currency interest rate (as described in the section "Hedging Policy" in the Chapter "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of the Prospectus) and the Euro zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month) over its recommended minimum investment period of 3 years by more than 3.50% with a target 1-year volatility based on weekly data comprised between 3% and 5%.
The Sub-Fund is actively managed. The Sub-Fund's performance may be compared to the Reference Index. However, it does not aim to replicate that Reference Index and may therefore significantly deviate from it. The Reference Index + 3.50% can be used to determine the performance fee that will possibly be levied.
The Sub-Fund aims to benefit from the evolution of the equity, fixed income and global currency markets through an active, flexible and multi-asset class process.
The Reference Index does not intend to be consistent with the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.
It incorporates an approach that includes environmental, social and governance (ESG) criteria. It promotes these ESG criteria in accordance with Article 8 of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 on sustainability-related disclosures in the financial services sector ("SFDR"). It does not have a sustainability objective but may partially invest in assets with a sustainability objective, such as defined by EU classification.
Investment Policy
Investment Strategy
The Sub-Fund promotes environmental or social characteristics but does not have as its objective a sustainable investment. For further information regarding the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund, please refer to the SFDR Annex.
The investment strategy of the Sub-Fund consists in a dynamic allocation of assets across multiple asset classes (international equities, bonds, money market instruments including emerging markets) with a target annualized weekly volatility ranging from 3% to 5%.
The Portfolio construction combines non-financial criteria through investment choices that are primarily guided by the application of ESG criteria and financial considerations – performance and volatility targets – through dynamic exposure management.
The purpose of the non-financial approach applied in the Sub-Fund is to prioritize financing of the most virtuous operators (corporate, sovereigns) in terms of global ESG issues, with a specific focus on climate impact.
The Sub-Fund invests up to 100% of its net assets in international equities, bonds and money-market instruments, including emerging markets. The allocation process is flexible.
1 This Sub-Fund does not have the French label ISR.

1. Investment Strategy: Building a core allocation framework

The target investment allocation is as follows:

- Global Equities: 40% of net assets in the portfolio
- Global Government Bonds 60% of net assets in the portfolio
- 1.1 Equity Investments

The investment universe for the 'Global Equities• asset class is defined by the MSCI World Index . The target Global Equities allocation is 40%.

1.2 Investments in sovereign bonds

The investment universe is composed of global government bond markets, with no geographic limitation. It is defined by the combination of a strategic universe (ICE Bank of America Global Sovereign Index) and a tactical diversification universe (ICE Bank of America EM Sovereign and EM External Debt Sovereign Indexes). These indexes are composed on the basis of their respective market values.

The target allocation in global sovereign bonds is 20% of the portfolio's net assets

2. Dynamic Management of Exposure

This strategy for managing exposure to the different equity, fixed-income and currency markets is based mainly on the use of derivatives. Its aim is to adapt the exposure of the portfolio created by the investment strategy in terms of overall risk level to each asset class, but also in terms of geographic or sector exposure,

exposure by maturity (for fixed-income markets), and currency risk.

This dynamic exposure management is built on two successive phases:

- Step 1: Dynamic management of a strategic allocation based on a fundamental and technical analysis With a horizon of 6-12 months. This allocation sets the level of exposure to the main equity and bond markets. The fundamental analysis weighs both macroeconomic and microeconomic criteria, and includes an analysis of the valuation of each market. The technical analysis is aimed at determining the risk scheme of the primary markets and is based on different indicators reflecting investors' risk perception and market momentum in the medium term.
- Step 2: Tactical management of the strategic allocation, aimed at increasing value creation by adjusting exposures on what is generally a shorter investment horizon. This step in the investment process for:
  - integrating specific items, whether exceptional or not, into management of the allocation,
  - adopting relative positions for the purpose of profiting from an inter-market variance deemed abnormal or temporary, and
  - exposing the portfolio to special themes that are not hedged by the strategic allocation.

By combining the two strategies described above (extra financial and financial), between 0% and 50% of the Sub-Fund's net assets may be exposed to global equities, including a maximum of 20% of its net assets exposed to Emerging Market Equities.

The Sub-Fund's modified duration is between 0 and 8. Up to 20% of the Sub-Fund's net assets may be exposed to emerging market bonds.

Up to 100% of the Sub-Fund's net assets may be exposed to currencies other than the euro, with a maximum of 50% exposed to emerging market currencies.

Hedged Share Classes aim to hedge the net asset value against fluctuations between the Sub-Fund's Reference Currency and the Share Class's hedging currency.

#### Investment in undertakings for collective investment

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in undertakings for collective investment.

#### Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments

The Sub-Fund may use derivatives up to 100% of its net assets for the purposes of hedging and exposure, as described in the section entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES" below.

Under certain circumstances (as further described below), the Sub-Fund may enter into securities lending operations and repurchase agreements for efficient portfolio management purposes as described in the

following sections "Repurchase Agreements" and "Securities Lending and Borrowing" in the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES".

Such transactions will comply with the limits laid down in the Section "Securities Financing Transactions and Total Return Swaps" of the Chapter "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES".

The Sub-Fund will enter into repurchase agreement transactions, securities lending and borrowing operations opportunistically and depending on market conditions, in circumstances where the Delegated Investment Manager considers that the market rates will allow the Sub-Fund to generate additional capital or income.

When entering into repurchase agreement transactions and securities lending, the Sub-Fund will generally seek to reinvest the cash collateral received in eligible financial instruments that provide greater return than the financial costs incurred when entering into these transactions.

The Sub-Fund's exposure to:

- (i) the repurchase agreement transactions is generally expected to represent approximately 6% of its net assets and will not exceed 15% of its net assets,
- (ii) the securities lending operations is generally expected to represent approximately 6% of its net assets and will not exceed 15% of its net assets.

The principal amount of the Sub-Fund's assets that can be subject to SFTs described above may represent a maximum of 15% of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund.

#### Track record and launch of the Sub-Fund

The performance shown for the Sub-Fund prior to its inception for the period from 16 September 2003 to inception date is derived from the historical performance of Seeyond Flexible MT, a French domiciled *Fonds Commun de Placement* with an identical investment policy, set up in accordance with the Directive 2009/65/EC, registered with the *Autorité des Marchés Financiers* and managed by the same investment team according to the same investment process. Such performance has been adjusted to reflect the different expenses applicable to the Sub-Fund.

#### Investors should note that past performance is not indicative of future results.

This Sub-Fund was launched on 3 October 2013 by way of a cross-border operation (Master/Feeder structure) in which the above mentioned French fund was transformed into a feeder fund of the Sub-Fund.

#### **Typical Investors' Profile**

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional and retail investors who:

- are looking for a diversification of their investments with a global exposure to equities, bonds and currencies;
- can afford to set aside capital for at least 3 years; and
- can accept capital losses.

#### Specific Risks

The specific risks of investing in the Sub-Fund are linked to :

- Capital loss;
- Debt securities;
- Changing interest rates;
- Credit;
- Counterparty;
- Equity securities;

- Leverage;
- Exchange rates;
- Geographic concentration;
- Changes in laws and/or tax regimes;
- Financial Derivatives Instruments;
- Emerging markets;
- Sustainability Risks;
- ESG Driven investments

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund is managed through the use of the "Commitment Approach" method described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" – "Global Risk Exposure".

For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" below. This same chapter also describes the other risks linked to an investment into the Sub-Fund.

#### Characteristics

#### Characteristics of the Categories of Share Classes in the Sub-Fund

Category of Share Classes*	Management Fee	Service Fee	All-In Fee**	Maximum Sales Charge	Maximum Redemption Charge	Minimum Initial Investment*	Minimum Holding***
М	0.15% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.25% p.a.	None	None	€5,000,000	€1,000,000
I.	0.50% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.60% p.a.	None	None	€50,000	1 share
I - NPF	0.60% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.70% p.a.	None	None	€50,000	1 share
Ν	0.50% p.a.	0.20%p.a.	0.70% p.a.	3%	None	None	None
R	1.00% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.20% p.a.	3%	None	None	None
R - NPF	1.10% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.30% p.a.	3%	None	None	None
RE	1.50% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.70% p.a.	2%	None	None	None
CW	1.50% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.70% p.a.	None	CDSC up to 3 %	None	None

\*The comprehensive list of offered share classes with details relating to distribution policy, hedging policy (if any) and currencies is available by referring to im.natixis.com. Further details regarding the currency hedging methodology are available under section "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of this Prospectus.

\*\*The "All-In Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and "Service Fee"

\*\*\* Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund or the same amount in other available currencies.

The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes will be determined by the Board of Directors.

Performance fee rate	Share Class features		Reference Rate	Observation period		
		I	Reference Index + 3.50%			
		N	Reference Index + 3.50%	<ul> <li>First Observation</li> </ul>		
20%	Non hedged Share Class	R	Reference Index + 3.50%	period: from the first Valuation day of each Share Class to the last Valuation day of June		
		RE	Reference Index + 3.50%			
		CW	Reference Index + 3.50%	(with a minimum period of twelve		
		I	Reference Index** + 3.50%	months).		
		Ν	Reference Index** + 3.50%	<ul> <li>Thereafter: from the first Valuation day of</li> </ul>		
20%	Hedged Share Class*	R	Reference Index** + 3.50%	July to the last Valuation day of June		
		RE	Reference Index** + 3.50%	of the following year.		
		CW	Reference Index** + 3.50%			

Performance Fee with High Water Mark (as described in section "Charges and Expenses" below):

\*Denominated in the currency of the relevant Share Class.

\*\*Performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index adjusted by the difference between the Share Class currency interest rate and the Euro Zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month).

# Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency	Subscription/ Redemption Date	Application Date and Cut-Off Time	Settlement Date
Each full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France	D* (i.e., any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France)	D at 1:30 p.m. Luxembourg time	D+2

\*D = Day on which the subscription, redemption or conversion application is processed by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent. Applications received by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent before the cut-off time on any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France will be processed on such day. Applications received after the cut-off time will be processed on the following full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France.

#### **Reference Index**

The Reference Index of the Sub-Fund reflects the wholesale euro unsecured overnight borrowing costs of euro area banks and is calculated and published by the <u>European Central Bank</u> (ECB) at <u>https://www.ecb.europa.eu</u>

Performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the Performance of the Reference Index adjusted to the difference between the Share Class currency interest rate<sup>2</sup> and the Euro zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month).

Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund

Ostrum Asset Management is appointed as Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> The Share Class currency interest rate applicable to the currency of the hedged share class concerned is listed in section "Hedging Policy" in the Chapter "Subscription, Transfer, Conversion and Redemption of Shares".

# **OSTRUM SRI TOTAL RETURN DYNAMIC<sup>1</sup>**

# **Reference Currency**

# Euro (EUR)

#### **Reference Index**

#### Daily- capitalized Euro Short-Term Rate (€STR)

#### Investment Objective

The investment objective of Ostrum SRI Total Return Dynamic (the "Sub-Fund") is to outperform the daily-capitalized €STR over its recommended minimum investment period of 5 years by more than 6.00 % with a target 1-year volatility based on weekly data comprised between 6% and 9%.

For hedged Share Classes, the daily-capitalized €STR is adjusted to the difference between the relevant Share Class currency interest rate (as described in the section "Hedging Policy" in the Chapter "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of the Prospectus) and the Euro zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month) over its recommended minimum investment period of 5 years by more than 6.00 % with a target 1-year volatility based on weekly data comprised between 6% and 9%.

The Sub-Fund is actively managed. The Sub-Fund's performance may be compared to the Reference Index. However, it does not aim to replicate that Reference Index and may therefore significantly deviate from it. The Reference Index + 6% can be used to determine the performance fee that will possibly be levied.

The Reference Index does not intend to be consistent with the environmental or social characteristics which will be promoted by the Sub-Fund.

The Sub-Fund aims to benefit from the evolution of the equity, fixed income and global currency markets through an active, flexible and multi-asset class process.

The Sub-Fund will incorporate an approach that includes environmental, social and governance (ESG) criteria. It promotes these ESG criteria in accordance wih Article 8 of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 on sustainability-related disclosures in the financial services sector ("SFDR"). It will not have a sustainability objective but will be able to partially invest in assets with a sustainability objective, such as defined by EU classification.

# Investment Policy

# Investment strategy

The Sub-Fund promotes environmental or social characteristics but does not have as its objective a sustainable investment. For further information regarding the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund, please refer to the SFDR Annex.

The investment strategy of the Sub-Fund consists in a dynamic allocation of assets across multiple asset classes (international equities, bonds, and money market instruments including emerging markets) with a target annualized weekly volatility ranging from 6% to 9%.

Portfolio construction combines non-financial criteria through investment choices that are primarily guided by the application of ESG criteria and financial considerations — performance and volatility targets — through dynamic exposure management.

The purpose of the non-financial approach applied in the Sub-Fund is to prioritize financing of the most virtuous operators (corporates, sovereigns) in terms of global ESG issues, with a specific focus on climate impact

The Sub-Fund invests up to 100% of its net assets in international equities, bonds and money-market instruments, including emerging markets. The allocation process is flexible

<sup>1</sup> This Sub-Fund does not have the French label ISR.

# 1. Investment Strategy

The target investment allocation is as follows:

- Global Equities: 80% of net assets in the portfolio,
- Global Government Bonds: 20% of net assets in the portfolio.

## 1.1 Equity Investments

The investment universe for the "Global Equities" asset class is defined by the MSCI World Index. The target Global Equities allocation is 80%.

1.2. Investments in sovereign bonds

The investment universe is composed of global government bond markets, with no geographic limitation. It is defined by the combination of a strategic universe (ICE Bank of America Global Sovereign Index) and a tactical diversification universe (ICE Bank of America EM Sovereign and EM External Debt Sovereign Indexes). These indexes are composed on the basis of their respective market values.

The target allocation in global sovereign bonds is 20% of the portfolio's net assets

3. Dynamic Management of Exposure

This strategy for managing exposure to the different equity, fixed-income and currency markets is based mainly on the use of derivatives. Its aim is to adapt the exposure of the portfolio created by the investment strategy in terms of overall risk level to each asset class, but also in terms of geographic or sector exposure,

exposure by maturity (for fixed-income markets), and currency risk.

This dynamic exposure management is built on two successive phases:

- Step 1: Dynamic management of a strategic allocation based on a fundamental and technical analysis with a horizon of 6-12 months. This allocation sets the level of exposure to the main equity and bond markets. The fundamental analysis weighs both macroeconomic and microeconomic criteria, and includes an analysis of the valuation of each market. The technical analysis is aimed at determining the risk scheme of the primary markets and is based on different indicators reflecting investors' risk perception and market momentum in the medium term.
- Step 2: Tactical management of the strategic allocation, aimed at increasing value creation by adjusting exposures on what is generally a shorter investment horizon. This step in the investment process is taken for:
  - integrating specific items, whether exceptional or not, into management of the allocation,
  - adopting relative positions for the purpose of profiting from an inter-market variance deemed abnormal or temporary, and
  - exposing the portfolio to special themes that are not hedged by the strategic allocation.

By combining the two strategies described above (extra financial and financial), between 0% and 100% of the Sub-Fund's net assets may be exposed to global equities, including a maximum of 50% of its net assets exposed to Emerging Market Equities.

The Sub-Fund's modified duration is between 0 and 12. Up to 40% of the Sub-Fund's net assets may be exposed to emerging market bonds.

Up to 100% of the Sub-Fund's net assets may be exposed to currencies other than the euro, with a maximum of 50% exposed to emerging market currencies.

The Sub-Fund may also be exposed to commodities for up to 10% of its net assets, through openended ETF and/or listed derivative instruments linked to commodity indices.

Hedged Share Classes aim to hedge the net asset value against fluctuations between the Sub-Fund's Reference Currency and the Share Class's hedging currency.

#### Investment in undertakings for collective investment

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in undertakings for collective investment.

#### Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments

The Sub-Fund may use derivatives up to 100% of its net assets for the purposes of hedging and exposure, as described in the section entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES" below.

Under certain circumstances (as further described below), the Sub-Fund may enter into securities lending operations and repurchase agreements for efficient portfolio management purposes as described in the

following sections "Repurchase Agreements" and • Securities Lending and Borrowing' in the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES".

Such transactions will comply with the limits laid down in the Section "Securities Financing Transactions and Total Return Swaps" of the Chapter "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES".

The Sub-Fund will enter into repurchase agreement transactions, securities lending and borrowing operations opportunistically and depending on market conditions, in circumstances where the Delegated Investment Manager considers that the market rates will allow the Sub-Fund to generate additional capital

or income.

When entering into repurchase agreement transactions and securities lending, the Sub-Fund will generally seek to reinvest the cash collateral received in eligible financial instruments that provide greater return than the financial costs incurred when entering into these transactions.

The Sub-Fund's exposure to:

- (iii) the repurchase agreement transactions is generally expected to represent approximately 6% of its net assets and will not exceed 15% of its net assets,
- (iv) the securities lending operations is generally expected to represent approximately 6% of its net assets and will not exceed 15% of its net assets.

The principal amount of the Sub-Fund's assets that can be subject to SFTs described above may represent a maximum of 15% of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund.

# Track record and launch of the Sub-Fund

The performance shown for the Sub-Fund prior to its inception for the period from 25 March 2011 to inception date is derived from the historical performance of Seeyond Flexible LT, a French domiciled *Fonds Commun de Placement* with an identical investment policy, set up in accordance with the Directive 2009/65/EC, registered with the *Autorité des Marchés Financiers* and managed by the same investment team according to the same investment process. Such performance has been adjusted to reflect the different expenses applicable to the Sub-Fund.

Investors should note that past performance is not indicative of future results.

#### **Typical Investors' Profile**

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional and retail investors who:

 are looking for a diversification of their investments with a global exposure to equities, bonds and currencies;
- can afford to set aside capital for at least 5 years; and
- can accept capital losses.

# Specific Risks

The specific risks of investing in the Sub-Fund are linked to :

- Capital loss:
- Debt securities;
- Changing interest rates;
- Credit;
- Below investment grade securities or unrated securities;
- Counterparty;
- Equity securities;
- Leverage;

- Exchange rates;
- Geographic concentration;
- Changes in laws and/or tax regimes;
- Financial Derivatives Instruments;
- Capitalization Size of Companies Small and Mid Capitalization Companies;
- Emerging markets;
- Commodities;
- Sustainability Risks.
- ESG Driven investments

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund is managed through the use of the absolute Value at Risk (VaR) approach (the "Absolute VaR approach") described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" – "Global Risk Exposure".

The VaR approach measures the maximum potential loss at a given confidence level (i.e. probability level) over a specific time frame under normal market conditions.

For the Sub-Fund, the absolute VaR cannot be greater than 20% of its net asset value with a confidence interval of 99% in a holding period equivalent to 1 month (20 business days).

The indicative range of leverage of the Sub-Fund is [1.5;4.5]. .

However, the Sub-Fund should have the possibility of higher or lower leverage levels for implementation optimization.

Leverage should be calculated as the sum of notional of the derivatives used.

For information only, the leverage can be analyzed according to the "commitment" method, within its upper limit of 1.

For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" below. This same chapter also describes the other risks linked to an investment into the Sub-Fund.

# Characteristics

# Characteristics of the Categories of Share Classes in the Sub-Fund

Category of Share Classes*	Management Fee	Service Fee	All-In Fee**	Maximum Sales Charge	Maximum Redemption Charge	Minimum Initial Investment*	Minimum Holding***
М	0.15% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.25% p.a.	None	None	€5,000,000	€1,000,000
SI	0,50% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.60% p.a.	None	None	€25,000,000	€25,000,000
SI – NPF	0.60% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.70% p.a.	None	None	€25,000,000	€25,000,000
I	0.70% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.80% p.a.	None	None	€50,000	1 share
I NPF	0.80% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.90% p.a.	None	None	€50,000	1 share
N	0.70% p.a.	0.20%p.a.	0.90% p.a.	3%	None	None	None
R	1.40% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.60% p.a.	3%	None	None	None

R NPF	1.50% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.70% p.a.	3%	None	None	None
RE	2.10% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	2.30% p.a.	2%	None	None	None
CW	2.10% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	2.30% p.a.	None	CDSC up to 3 %	None	None

\* The comprehensive list of offered share classes with details relating to distribution policy, hedging policy (if any) and currencies is available by referring to im.natixis.com. Further details regarding the currency hedging methodology are available under section "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of this Prospectus.

\*\*The "All-In Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and "Service Fee".

\*\*\* Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub Fund or the same amount in the other available currencies.

The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes will be determined by the Board of Directors.

Performance Fee with High Water Mark (as described in section "Charges and Expenses" below):

Performance fee rate	Share Class features		Reference Rate	Observation period		
		SI	Reference Index + 6.00%			
		I	Reference Index + 6.00%			
20%	Non-bodgod Shoro Class	N	Reference Index + 6.00%			
20%	Non hedged Share Class	R	Reference Index + 6.00%	First Observation		
		RE		period: from the first Valuation day of each Share Class to		
		CW	Reference Index + 6.00%	the last Valuation day of June (with a minimum period of		
		SI	Reference Index** + 6.00%	twelve months).  Thereafter: from		
			Reference Index** + 6.00%	the first Valuation day of July to the last Valuation day of		
		I	Deference	June of the following year.		
20%	Hedged Share Class*	N	Reference Index** + 6.00%			
		R	Reference Index** + 6.00%			
		RE	Reference Index** + 6.00%	1		
		CW	Reference Index** + 6.00%	1		

\*Denominated in the currency of the relevant Share Class.

\*\*Performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index adjusted by the difference between the Share Class currency interest rate and the Euro Zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month).

# Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency	luation Frequency Subscription/ Redemption Date		Settlement Date	
Each full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France	D* (i.e., any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France)	D at 1:30 p.m., Luxembourg time	D+2	

\*D = Day on which the subscription, redemption or conversion application is processed by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent. Applications received by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent before the cut-off time on any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France will be processed on such day. Applications received after the cut-off time will be processed on the following full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France.

# **Reference Index**

The Reference Index of the Sub-Fund reflects the wholesale euro unsecured overnight borrowing costs of euro area banks and is calculated and published by the <u>European Central Bank</u> (ECB) at <u>https://www.ecb.europa.eu</u>

Performance of each hedged Share Class may be compared, for indicative purposes only, to the performance of the daily-capitalized €STR adjusted for the difference between the share classes' currency interest rate <sup>2</sup> and the Euro zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month).

# Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund

Ostrum Asset Management is appointed as Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> The Share Class currency interest rate applicable to the currency of the hedged share class concerned is listed in section "Hedging Policy" in the Chapter "Subscription, Transfer, Conversion and Redemption of Shares".

# **OSTRUM SRI EUROPE MINVOL EQUITY<sup>1</sup>**

Reference Currency
Euro (EUR)
Reference Index
MSCI Europe Dividend Net Reinvested
Investment Objective
The investment objective of Ostrum SRI Europe MinVol Equity (the "Sub-Fund") is to outperform the MSCI Europe Dividend Net Reinvested Index over its recommended minimum investment period of 5 years while offering lower volatility.
The Sub-Fund is actively managed. For indicative purposes only, the Sub-Fund's performance may be compared to the Reference Index. However, it does not aim to replicate that Reference Index and may therefore significantly deviate from it.
The Reference Index does not intend to be consistent with the environmental or social characteristics which are promoted by the Sub-Fund.

## **Investment Policy**

# **Investment Strategy**

The Sub-Fund promotes environmental or social characteristics but does not have as its objective a sustainable investment. In this context, it might invest partially in assets that have a sustainable objective, for instance qualified as sustainable according to the EU classification. For further information regarding the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund, please refer to the SFDR Annex.

The Sub-Fund's investment strategy is mainly quantitative and consists in using statistical criteria (mainly volatility and correlation) to select European equities that will enable the Sub-Fund to offer a lower absolute volatility that its benchmark.

The Delegated Investment Manager takes into account the following factors:

- The standard deviation of each individual equity security;
- The correlation of each individual equity security to other equity securities; and
- The weight of each equity securities within the portfolio.

# 1. Definition of the investment universe

Equities are selected, from a certain number of European equities, based on of their liquidity, the availability and relevance of historical data, and correlations.

Equities that are illiquid, have insufficient historical data, are too highly correlated with others or present extreme specific risks are excluded from the investment universe.

# 2. Portfolio construction

1.1. Quantitative financial screening:

The portfolio construction process employs quantitative optimisation methods to obtain a diversified portfolio that minimizes volatility, which is determined from the estimation of the investment universe's various risk parameters, and which also includes ESG criteria as further described in the SFDR Annex.

The weight of each portfolio security is limited to ensure sufficient diversification and liquidity.

There are no investment constraints in terms of sector, geography, market capitalisation or currency exposure. The portfolio may therefore deviate significantly from its benchmark and invest in small-cap

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This Sub-Fund does not have the French label ISR.

and mid-cap equities. The portfolio may also be exposed to currencies other than the Sub-fund's Reference Currency.

# 2. Portfolio management

The portfolio's overall risk is continuously monitored in terms of liquidity, equity and portfolio volatility, and specific risk analysis. This enables the portfolio to be adjusted if it deviates significantly from its optimised profile or if a specific risk on a given equity is detected.

The Sub-Fund invests at least 90% of its net assets into European equity securities.

The Sub-Fund exposure to the European equity market evolves between 90% and 110% of its net assets.

The Sub-Fund must continuously maintain a maximum of 60% exposure to one country.

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in money market and cash instruments.

The hedged Share Classes aim at hedging the net asset value against the fluctuation between the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund and the relevant hedging currency of a Share Class.

#### Investment in undertakings for collective investment

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in undertakings for collective investment.

# Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments

The Sub-Fund may use derivatives for hedging and investment purposes as described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" below.

Under certain circumstances (as further described below), the Sub-Fund may enter into securities lending transactions and repurchase agreements for efficient portfolio management purposes as described in the following sections "Repurchase Agreements" and "Securities Lending and Borrowing" in the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES".

Such transactions will comply with the limits laid down in the Section "Securities Financing Transactions and Total Return Swaps of the Chapter "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES".

The Sub-Fund will enter repurchase agreement transactions, securities lending and borrowing operations opportunistically and depending on market conditions, in circumstances where the Delegated Investment Manager considers that the market rates will allow the Sub-Fund to generate additional capital or income.

When entering repurchase agreement transactions and securities lending, the Sub-Fund will generally seek to reinvest the cash collateral received in eligible financial instruments that provide greater return than the financial costs incurred when entering these transactions.

The Sub-Fund's exposure to:

- (iii) the repurchase agreement transactions is generally expected to represent approximately 3% of its net assets and will not exceed 15% of its net assets
- (iv) the securities lending operations is generally expected to represent approximately 3% of its net assets and will not exceed 15% of its net assets

The principal amount of the Sub-Fund's assets that can be subject to SFTs described above may represent a maximum of 15% of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund.

# Track record and launch of the Sub-Fund

The performance that may be shown for the Sub-Fund prior to its inception for the period from 30 September 2010 to the inception date is derived from the historical performance of Seeyond Europe

Min Variance, a French domiciled *Fonds Commun de Placement* with an identical investment policy, set up in accordance with the Directive 2009/65/EC, registered with the *Autorité des Marchés Financiers* and managed by the same investment team according to the same investment process. Such performance has been adjusted to reflect the different expenses applicable to the Sub-Fund. Investors should note that past performance is not indicative of future results.

This Sub-Fund was launched on 27 November 2013 by way of a cross-border operation (merger) with the above mentioned French fund.

# **Typical Investors' Profile**

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional and retail investors who:

- agree not to benefit from a full increase of the European equity securities markets in order to benefit from lower volatility;
- can afford to set aside capital for a long period of time (over 5 years); and
- can accept capital losses.

#### **Specific Risks**

The specific risks of investing in the Sub-Fund are linked to:

- Capital loss;
- Equity securities;
- Small and Mid Capitalization Companies;
- Exchange rates;

- Geographic and Portfolio concentration;
- Financial Derivatives Instruments;
- Counterparty;
- Changes in laws and/or tax regimes;
- Sustainability Risks;
- ESG driven investments.

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund is managed through the use of the "Commitment Approach" method described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" – "Global Risk Exposure".

For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" below. This same chapter also describes the other risks linked to an investment into the Sub-Fund. **Characteristics** 

Category of Share Classes*	Management Fee	Service Fee	All-In Fee**	Maximum Sales Charge	Maximum Redemption Charge	Minimum Initial Investment*	Minimum Holding***
SI	0.35% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.45% p.a.	None	None	€25,000,000	€25,000,000
N1	0.65% p a	0.10% p.a.	0.75% p.a.	None	None	€500,000	None
I.	0.65% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.75% p.a.	None	None	€50,000	1 share
Ν	0.65% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.85% p.a.	4%	None	None	None
R	1.60% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.80% p.a.	4%	None	None	None
RE	2.30% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	2.50% p.a.	3%	None	None	None
CW	2.30% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	2.50% p.a.	None	CDSC up to 3 %	None	None

## Characteristics of the Categories of Share Classes in the Sub-Fund

\*The comprehensive list of offered share classes with details relating to distribution policy, hedging policy (if any) and currencies is available by referring to im.natixis.com. Further details regarding the currency hedging methodology are available under section "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of this Prospectus.

\*\*The "All-In-Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and "Service Fee". \*\*\*Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund or the same amount in other available currencies.

The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes will be determined by the Board of Directors.

# Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency	Redemption Date		Settlement Date	
Each full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France	D* (i.e., any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France)	D at 1:30 p.m. Luxembourg time	D+2	

\*D = Day on which the subscription, redemption or conversion application is processed by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent. Applications received by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent before the cut-off time on any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France will be processed on such day. Applications received after the cut-off time will be processed on the following full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France.

#### **Reference Index**

The MSCI Europe Dividend Net Reinvested Index which is an index tracking the performance of the European Equity markets.

Information on the MSCI Europe Dividend Net Reinvested Index is available at www.msci.com.

The benchmark administrator of the Reference Index, MSCI Limited and the Reference Index are not listed in the registers maintained by ESMA as MSCI Limited is an entity located in a country outside of the European Union and does not comply with the conditions laid down in article 30(1) of the Benchmarks Regulation nor has it required recognition in accordance with article 32 of the Benchmarks Regulation.

Performance of each Share Class is compared to the performance Reference Index in its respective Share Class currency. Nevertheless, performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index in the Share Class hedging currency.

# Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund

Ostrum Asset Management is appointed as Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund

# **OSTRUM SRI GLOBAL MINVOL EQUITY<sup>1</sup>**

Reference Currency
Euro (EUR)
Reference Index
MSCI World All Countries Dividend Net Reinvested
Investment Objective
The investment objective of Ostrum SRI Global MinVol Equity (the "Sub-Fund") is to outperform the MSCI World All Countries Dividend Net Reinvested Index over its recommended minimum investment period of 5 years while offering lower volatility.
The Sub-Fund is actively managed. For indicative purposes only, the Sub-Fund's performance may be compared to the Reference Index. However, it does not aim to replicate that Reference Index and may therefore significantly deviate from it.

The Reference Index does not intend to be consistent with the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.

# **Investment Policy**

# **Investment Strategy**

The Sub-Fund promotes environmental or social characteristics but does not have as its objective a sustainable investment. In this context, it might invest partially in assets that have a sustainable objective, for instance qualified as sustainable according to the EU classification. For further information regarding the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund, please refer to the SFDR Annex.

The investment strategy of the Sub-Fund consists in selecting global equity securities offering statistical characteristics that enable the Sub-Fund to benefit from low absolute volatility.

The Delegated Investment Manager takes into account the following factors:

- The standard deviation of each individual equity security;
- The correlation of each individual equity security to other equity securities; and
- The weight of each equity securities within the portfolio.

# 1. Definition of the investment universe

Equities are selected, from a certain number of global equities, based on of their liquidity, the availability and relevance of historical data, and correlations.

Equities that are illiquid, have insufficient historical data, are too highly correlated with others or present extreme specific risks are excluded from the investment universe.

# 2. Portfolio construction - Quantitative financial screening:

The portfolio construction process employs quantitative optimisation methods to obtain a diversified portfolio that minimizes volatility, which is determined from the estimation of the investment universe's various risk parameters, and which also includes ESG criteria.

The weight of each portfolio security is limited to ensure sufficient diversification and liquidity.

There are no investment constraints in terms of sector, geography, market capitalisation or currency exposure. The portfolio may therefore deviate significantly from its benchmark and invest in small-cap and mid-cap equities. The portfolio may also be exposed to currencies other than the Sub-fund's Reference Currency.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This Sub-Fund does not have the French label ISR.

## 3. Portfolio management - Overall portfolio risk monitoring

The portfolio's overall risk is continuously monitored in terms of liquidity, equity and portfolio volatility, and specific risk analysis. This enables the portfolio to be adjusted if it deviates significantly from its optimised profile or if a specific risk on a given equity is detected.

The Sub-Fund invests at least 90% of its net assets into Global equity securities including emerging markets. The Sub-Fund may invest directly in the Indian equity markets.

The Sub Fund exposure to the global equity market evolves between 90% and 110% of its net assets. The Sub-Fund must continuously maintain a maximum of 60% exposure to one country.

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in money market and cash instruments.

Investments of the Sub-Fund in Chinese equity securities, if any, are done through investment in "B-shares".

Investments of the Sub-Fund in Chinese equity securities may include certain eligible A-Shares via the Shanghaï-Hong Kong Stock Connect program and/or Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect program.

The hedged Share Classes aim at hedging the net asset value against the fluctuation between the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund and the relevant hedging currency of a Share Class.

#### Investment in undertakings for collective investment

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in undertakings for collective investment.

## Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments

The Sub-Fund may use derivatives for hedging and investment purposes as described under "use of derivatives, special investment and hedging techniques" below.

Under certain circumstances, the Sub-Fund may enter into securities lending operations and repurchase agreements for efficient portfolio management purposes as described in the following sections "Repurchase Agreements" and "Securities Lending and Borrowing" in the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES"

Such transactions will comply with the limits laid down in the Section "Securities Financing Transactions and Total Return Swaps of the Chapter "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES".

The Sub-Fund will enter repurchase agreement transactions, securities lending and borrowing operations opportunistically and depending on market conditions, in circumstances where the Delegated Investment Manager considers that the market rates will allow the Sub-Fund to generate additional capital or income.

When entering repurchase agreement transactions and securities lending, the Sub-Fund will generally seek to reinvest the cash collateral received in eligible financial instruments that provide greater return than the financial costs incurred when entering these transactions.

The Sub-Fund's exposure to:

- (i) the repurchase agreement transactions is generally expected to represent approximately 4% of its net assets and will not exceed 15% of its net assets
- (ii) the securities lending operations is generally expected to represent approximately 4% of its net assets and will not exceed 15% of its net assets

The principal amount of the Sub-Fund's assets that can be subject to SFTs described above may represent a maximum of 15% of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund.

#### Track record and launch of the Sub-Fund

The performance that may be shown for the Sub-Fund prior to its inception for the period from 17 October 2011 to the inception date is derived from the historical performance of Seeyond Global MinVariance, a French domiciled *Fonds Commun de Placement* with an identical investment policy, set up in accordance with the Directive 2009/65/EC, registered with the *Autorité des Marchés Financiers* and managed by the same investment team according to the same investment process. Such performance has been adjusted to reflect the different expenses applicable to the Sub-Fund.

## Investors should note that past performance is not indicative of future results.

This Sub-Fund was launched on 19 December 2013 by way of a cross-border operation (merger) with the above mentioned French fund.

# **Typical Investors' Profile**

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional and retail investors who:

- agree not to benefit from a full increase of the global equity securities markets in order to benefit from a lower volatility;
- can afford to set aside capital for a long period of time (over 5 years); and
- can accept capital losses.

# Specific Risks

The specific risks of investing in the Sub-Fund are linked to:

- Capital loss;
- Equity securities;
- Small and Mid Capitalization Companies;
- Emerging Markets;
- Stock Connect;
- Exchange rates;

- Geographic and Portfolio concentration;
- Financial Derivatives Instruments;
- Counterparty;
- Changes in laws and/or tax regimes;
- Sustainability Risks;
- ESG Driven Investments.

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund is managed through the use of the "Commitment Approach" method described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" – "Global Risk Exposure".

For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" below. This same chapter also describes the other risks linked to an investment into the Sub-Fund.

# Characteristics

Category of Share Classes*	Management Fee	Service Fee	All-In Fee**	Maximum Sales Charge	Maximum Redemption Charge	Minimum Initial Investment*	Minimum Holding***
М	0.30% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.40% p.a.	None	None	€20,000,000	€20,000,000
SI	0.35% p.a	0.10% p.a.	0.45% p.a.	None	None	€25,000,000	€25,000,000
N1	0.65% p a	0.10% p.a	0.75% ра	None	None	€500,000	None
Ι	0.65% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.75% p.a.	None	None	€50,000	1 share
Ν	0.65% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.85% p.a.	4%	None	None	None
R	1.60% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.80% p.a.	4%	None	None	None
RE	2.30% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	2.50% p.a.	3%	None	None	None
CW	2.30% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	2.50% p.a.	None	CDSC up to 3 %	None	None

Characteristics of the Categories of Share Classes in the Sub-Fund

\*The comprehensive list of offered share classes with details relating to distribution policy, hedging policy (if any) and currencies is available by referring to im.natixis.com. Further details regarding the currency hedging methodology are available under section "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of this Prospectus.

\*\*The "All-In Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and " Service Fee".

# OSTRUM SRI GLOBAL MINVOL EQUITY

\*\*\* Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund or the same amount in other available currencies.

The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes will be determined by the Board of Directors.

#### Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency	Redemption Date		Settlement Date
Each full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France	D* (i.e., any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France)	D at 1:30 p.m. Luxembourg time	D+2

\*D = Day on which the subscription, redemption or conversion application is processed by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent. Applications received by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent before the cut-off time on any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France will be processed on such day. Applications received after the cut-off time will be processed on the following full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France.

#### **Reference Index**

MSCI World All Countries Dividend Net Reinvested Index, which is an index tracking the performance of the global equity markets, including Emerging Markets.

Information on the MSCI World All Countries Dividend Net Reinvested Index is available at <u>www.msci.com</u>.

The benchmark administrator of the Reference Index, MSCI Limited and the Reference Index are not listed in the registers maintained by ESMA as MSCI Limited is an entity located in a country outside of the European Union and does not comply with the conditions laid down in article 30(1) of the Benchmarks Regulation nor has it required recognition in accordance with article 32 of the Benchmarks Regulation.

Performance of each Share Class is compared to the performance Reference Index in its respective Share Class currency. Nevertheless, performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index in the Share Class hedging currency.

#### **Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund**

Ostrum Asset Management is appointed as Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund.

# **OSTRUM TOTAL RETURN VOLATILITY**

Reference	Currency
-----------	----------

# Euro (EUR)

Reference Index Not applicable

# **Investment Objective**

The investment objective of Ostrum Total Return Volatility (the "Sub-Fund") is to provide a higher performance, net of any fees, than daily-capitalized €STR +2.50% over its recommended minimum period of five (5) years.

The indicative level of annual volatility of the Sub-Fund is expected to be between 4% and 6% in normal market conditions.

The Sub-Fund is actively managed and is not managed with reference to any reference index.

Investment Policy Investment Strategy

The Sub-Fund's investment strategy consists of extracting the volatility risk premium of the equity markets via a portfolio of options and futures contracts on international (including emerging countries) equity indices such as, but not limited to, S&P500 (SPX Index), Eurostoxx50 (SX5E Index), Footsie100 (UKX Index), Nikkei225 (NKY Index), Hong Kong Hang Seng Index (HSI Index).

The volatility of an asset - in the sense of "standard deviation" - is defined by the magnitude of the variation of its returns over a given period. It measures the dispersions of the asset's return around its average.

This investment strategy is implemented primarily by buying and selling international equity index options and futures contracts traded on organised markets.

The Sub-Fund aims to generate positive performances in bull equity markets with low volatility. Conversely, the Sub-Fund could suffer significantly negative performances in bear and/or volatile markets.

Among the different strategies used by management, we note:

- Delta-hedged options strategies: the delta—or the sensitivity of the option to the market's direction—will be hedged by buying or selling equity index futures contracts. These strategies consist of buying or selling equity index options (call and put options, strangles, straddles etc.) across all levels of strike price, all maturities between 0 and 2 years, with daily hedging of the exposure to the equity markets resulting from the purchase or sale of these options.
- Options strategies without delta hedging: These strategies have significant directional exposure in addition to their exposure to volatility\*.

The same strategies are used but without systematic hedging of the equity exposure resulting from the purchase or sale of equity index options.

The Sub-Fund's use of delta-hedged and unhedged strategies explains the Sub-Fund's exposure to volatility and to the direction of the equity markets.

The allocation between the different strategies is managed dynamically according to the investment manager's expectations of the trends on the equity markets. Although it will be dynamic, the Sub-Fund's exposure will on average be seller on volatility and buyer on the equity market directional strategy.

The Sub-Fund's delta will be between -50% and +200% of net assets (with -10% to +40% for emerging countries), and its vega between -3% and +0.5% (-0.6% to +0.1% for emerging countries).

Vega is the risk indicator that measures the portfolio's sensitivity to volatility. For example, if the portfolio has a vega of +3%, this means that, for a 1% increase (or decrease) in volatility (from 20% to 21% for example), the net asset value of the Sub-Fund would increase (or decrease) by 3%. Delta is a risk indicator that measures the sensitivity of the portfolio to the trend on the equity markets. For example, if the portfolio has a delta of +50%, this means that, for a 1% rise (or drop) in the equity markets, the Sub-Fund's net asset value would increase (or decrease) by 0.5%.

The management team of the Delegated Investment Manager regularly performs a detailed analysis of each market, based on quantitative criteria (recent performances of the equity markets, implied and realised volatility levels) and fundamentals (macro data) in order to define the most appropriate strategies for the market environment.

The Sub-Fund invests up to 100% of its net assets either directly, or through units or shares of UCIs, in fixed-income products (bonds, other debt securities and money market instruments) in all currencies, or in term deposits.

The money market instruments used are the following:

- Negotiable debt securities;
- Fixed-rate treasury bills;
- Short-term negotiable securities;
- Annual interest treasury bills;
- Euro Commercial Paper.

The Sub-Fund can invest in money market securities and/or sovereign bonds in the "investment grade" category or an equivalent category based as per the Delegated Investment Manager's analysis.

The modified duration of the Sub-Fund's portfolio will range from 0 to 3.

The Delegated Investment Manager relies on its teams and its own methodology to appraise credit risk. In addition to this assessment, the Delegated Investment Manager selects high credit quality securities. Money market securities with ratings lower than A2 according to the Standard & Poor's scale, P2 for Moody's or F2 for Fitch Ratings or equivalent cannot be considered to be of high credit quality. Likewise, securities rated lower than BBB- according to the Standard & Poor's scale, Baa3 by Moody's or BBB- by Fitch Ratings or equivalent cannot be considered high quality.

However, for securities issued by issuers such as local, regional or federal authority of a Member State, a central bank of a Member State, the European Central Bank, the European Union or the European Investment Bank, or issuers guaranteed by any of the former, the Sub-Fund may only acquire debt securities or similar securities or financial instruments that are rated 'Investment Grade' or above by at least one of the following three rating agencies: Standard & Poor's, Moody's and Fitch Ratings or equivalent.

In the event of a discrepancy between the different agencies' ratings or equivalent rating from the investment manager, the lower rating is used. If a security is not rated, the issuer's rating will be taken into account with the same rating limitations as those that would have been applied to the security. Direct or indirect investment in debt securities or similar securities issued by securitisation vehicles is not authorised.

This strategy will be implemented within a maximum ex ante Value at Risk (VaR) of 20% over 20 days, with a confidence interval of 99%.

The Sub-Fund can be exposed to all currencies on both long and synthetic short positions, within an overall net exposure limit for foreign currency other than the euro of less than 10% of net assets. For this, the Sub-Fund can enter into foreign exchange forward contracts in relation to its holdings of assets denominated in currencies other than the euro.

#### Investment in undertakings for collective investment:

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in undertakings for collective investment.

# Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments:

This investment strategy is implemented by buying and selling European and/or international equity market index options and futures contracts traded on Regulated Market<sup>1</sup> complying with the criteria set by the Article 9 of the Grand-Ducal Regulation dated 8 February 2008. The cost of the options positions bought by the Delegated Investment Manager may reduce the return or performance of the Sub-Fund.

In this framework, the Sub-Fund may invest in financial derivative instruments linked to one or more equity indices such as, but not limited to, the indices mentioned above within the investment Strategy of the Sub-Fund. The constituents are generally rebalanced on a quarterly basis for the S&P500, Eurostoxx 50, Footsie100, Hong Kong Hang Seng Index and an annual basis for the Nikkei225. The costs associated with the rebalancing of such indices are expected to be generally negligible. Information in relation to the indices may be obtained from the respective index providers' website.

The Sub-Fund may also use other derivatives for hedging and investments purposes, as described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques".

The Sub-Fund does not intend to enter into SFTs.

## Track record and launch of the Sub-Fund

The performance that may be shown for the Sub-Fund prior to its inception for the period from 29 May 2013 to the inception date is derived from the historical performance of Seeyond Volatility Alternative Income, a French domiciled *Fonds Commun de Placement* with an identical investment policy, set up in accordance with the Directive 2009/65/EC, registered with the *Autorité des Marchés Financiers* and managed by the same investment team according to the same investment process. Such performance has been adjusted to reflect the different expenses applicable to the Sub-Fund.

Investors should note that past performance is not indicative of future results.

This Sub-Fund will be launched solely by way of cross-border operation (merger) with the abovementioned French fund, upon the approval of any relevant authority. The precise launch date of this Sub-Fund will be determined by the Board of Directors.

# Typical Investors' Profile

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional and retail investors who:

- seek capital growth through strategies that tend to sell volatility on the equity markets.
- are looking for a diversification of their equity investments and;
- can accept capital losses.

# Specific Risks

The specific risks of investing in the Sub-Fund are linked to:

- Capital loss;
- Equity securities;
- Emerging Markets
- Volatility;
- Model;
- Portfolio Management;
- Debt Securities;

- Sustainability Risks;
- Exchange rates;
- Global Investing;
- Geographic and Portfolio concentration;
- Financial Derivatives Instruments;
- Counterparty;
- Leverage risk.

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund is managed through the use of the Absolute Value at Risk (VaR) approach (the "Absolute VaR approach") described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" – "Global Risk Exposure". The VaR approach measures the maximum potential loss at a given confidence level (i.e. probability level) over a specific time frame under normal market conditions.

For the Sub-Fund, the absolute VaR cannot be greater than 20% of its net asset value with a confidence interval of 99% in a holding period equivalent to 1 month (20 business days).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Regulated Market means a regulated market within the meaning of Directive 2004/39/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council on markets in financial instruments.

The expected range of leverage of the Sub-Fund is [1; 7].

The Sub-Fund uses covered and uncovered option strategies. Covered strategies have more leverage than uncovered strategies. As a result, depending on the allocation between the two kinds of strategies, the leverage can vary within the wide range of leverage between 1 and 7.

However, the Sub-Fund should have the possibility of higher or lower leverage levels for strategy implementation optimization.

Leverage should be calculated as the sum of notional of the derivatives used.

For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" below. This same chapter also describes the other risks linked to an investment into the Sub-Fund.

# Characteristics

Category of Share Classes*	Management Fee	Service Fee	All-In Fee**	Maximum Sales Charge	Maximum Redemption Charge	Minimum Initial Investment*	Minimum Holding***
Q	0.05% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.15% p.a.	5%	None	€5,000,000	1 share
SI	0.40% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.50% p.a.	None	None	€20,000,000	€20,000,000
1	0.50% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.60% p.a.	1%	None	€50,000	1 share
N	0.50% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.70% p.a.	3%	None	None	None
R	1.00% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.20% p.a.	3%	None	None	None

#### Characteristics of the Categories of Share Classes in the Sub-Fund

\*\*The "All-In Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and "Service Fee".

\*\*\*Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub Fund or the same amount in other available currencies.

# Performance Fee (as described in section "Charges and Expenses" below):

Performance fee rate	Share Class features	Reference Rate	Observation period
	I	Daily-capitalized €STR + 2.50%	<ul> <li>First Observation period: from the first Valuation Day of each Share Class to the last Valuation</li> </ul>
15%	Ν		day of June (with a minimum period of twelve months).
	R		<ul> <li>Thereafter: from the first Valuation Day of July to the last Valuation Day of June of the following year.</li> </ul>

The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes will be determined by the Board of Directors.

# Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency	Subscription/ Redemption Date	Application Date and Cut-Off Time	Settlement Date
Each full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France	D* (i.e., any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France)	D at 1:30 p.m. Luxembourg time	D+2

\*D = Day on which the subscription, redemption or conversion application is processed by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent. Applications received by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent

before the cut-off time on any full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France will be processed on such day. Applications received after the cut-off time will be processed on the following full bank business day in both Luxembourg and France.

# **Reference Index**

The Sub-Fund is not managed with reference to a specific index.

# Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund

Ostrum Asset Management is appointed as Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund.

**GLOBAL EMERGING SUB-FUNDS** 

# **OSTRUM GLOBAL EMERGING BONDS**

USTRUM GEOBAL EMERGING BONDS
Reference Currency
U.S Dollar (USD)
Reference Index
JP Morgan EMBI Global Diversified
Investment Objective The investment objective of the Ostrum Global Emerging Bonds (the "Sub-Fund") is to outperform the JP Morgan EMBI Global Diversified over its recommended minimum investment period of 3 years.
The Sub-Fund is actively managed. For indicative purposes only, the Sub-Fund's performance may be compared to the Reference Index. However, it does not aim to replicate that Reference Index and may therefore significantly deviate from it.
Investment Policy
Investment Strategy The strategy of the Sub-Fund consists of combining two analyses.
The Delegated Investment Manager first analyses the macro economic outlook and the debt market focusing on global macro-economic scenario. This step is followed by a country-by-country analysis which leads the Delegated Investment Manager to determine the allocation by countries. The Delegated Investment Manager selects the most attractive issuers in terms of fundamentals and yield potential (given the risks identified), whether denominated in Euro, U.S. dollar or local currencies. By adopting a value approach, the Delegated Investment Manager manages investments over a long-term horizon.
The Sub-Fund invests at least 70% of its net assets into Emerging Markets fixed income instruments issued by sovereign and corporate issuers and may invest up to 30% of its net assets into other international fixed income instruments.
<ul> <li>The Sub-Funds invests: <ul> <li>at least 50% of its net assets into emerging sovereign external debt denominated in currencies of G10 countries (Belgium, Canada, France, Germany, Italy, Japan, Netherlands, Sweden, Switzerland, United Kingdom and United States);</li> <li>a maximum of 50% of its net assets into emerging sovereign local debt, denominated in local currencies (non G10 countries); and</li> <li>a maximum of 30% of its net assets into emerging corporate debt, denominated in hard or local currencies.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
The Sub-Fund may invest up to 10% of its total assets in fixed income securities listed on the China Interbank Bond Market through the mutual bond market access between Mainland China and Hong Kong (the "Bond Connect").
The Sub-Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in money market instruments.
The Sub-Fund is exposed to fixed-income securities denominated in other currencies than the euro at all times (and possibly to euro-denominated fixed-income securities).
The global exposure of the Sub-Fund to equities shall not exceed 10% of its net assets.
The modified duration to interest rate of the Sub-Fund will evolve from 0 to 10.
As regards the geographical area of the issuers, the exposure of the portfolio to the Euro Zone may range from 0% to $100\%^1$ and it may range from 0% to $200\%^2$ for the non-Euro zone exposure. The level of exchange rate risk of the portfolio of the Sub-Fund is expected to range from 0% to $100\%^3$ .
The Sub-Fund may use the foreign currency market for hedging and investment purposes.
1 calculated as a percentage of the experience of the Sub Fund

<sup>1</sup> calculated as a percentage of the exposure of the Sub-Fund 2 calculated as a percentage of the exposure of the Sub-Fund 3 calculated as a percentage of the exposure of the Sub-Fund

The indicative average level of leverage for the UCITS is 1. However, the Sub-Fund has the possibility of reaching a higher level of leverage.

The Sub-Fund's global Value at Risk shall not exceed twice the level of Value at Risk of its Reference Index.

The hedged Share Classes aim at hedging the net asset value against the fluctuation between the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund and the relevant hedging currency of a Share Class.

### Investment in undertakings for collective investment

The Sub-Funds may invest up to 10% of its net assets into undertakings for collective investment.

## Use of Derivatives or Other Investment Techniques and Instruments

The Sub-Fund may use derivatives for hedging and investment purposes, as described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" below. The Sub-Fund does not intend to enter into SFTs.

# Track record and launch of the Sub-Fund

The performance that may be shown for the Sub-Fund prior to its inception for the period from 4 October 2011 to inception date is derived from the historical performance of Natixis Global Emerging Bond, a French domiciled *Fonds Commun de Placement* with an identical investment policy, set up in accordance with the Directive 2009/65/EC, registered with the *Autorité des Marchés Financiers* and managed by the same investment team according to the same investment process. Such performance has been adjusted to reflect the different expenses applicable to the Sub-Fund.

In addition, for the period from 1 June 2002 to 4 October 2011, the performance for the euro hedged Share Class of the Sub-Fund ("H" Share Classes: H-I/A(EUR), H-R/A(EUR) and H-RE/A(EUR)) is derived from the historical performance of Natixis Obli Global Emergent, a French domiciled *Société d'Investissement à Capital Variable* with an identical investment policy, set up in accordance with the Directive 2009/65/EC, registered with the *Autorité des Marchés Financiers* and managed by the same Management Company according to the same investment process. Such performance has been adjusted to reflect the different expenses applicable to the Sub-Fund.

#### Investors should note that past performance is not indicative of future results.

This Sub-Fund was launched on 24 January 2014 by way of a cross-border operation (merger) with the above mentioned French fund.

#### **Typical Investors' Profile**

The Sub-Fund is suitable for institutional and retail investors who:

- are looking for an exposure to the bond emerging markets;
- can afford to set aside capital for a long period of time (over 3 years); and
- can accept capital losses.

# Specific Risks

The specific risks of investing in the Sub-Fund are linked to:

- Capital loss;
- Credit;
- Interest rate;
- Liquidity;
- Counterparty;
- Emerging markets;

- Exchange rates;
- Geographic and portfolio concentration;
- Changes in laws and/or tax regimes;
- Financial derivatives Instruments:
- Investment in CNH Bonds
- Bond Connect;
- Sustainability Risks.

The global risk exposure of the Sub-Fund is managed through the use of the Relative Value at Risk (VaR) Approach (the "Relative VaR approach") described under "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" – "Global Risk Exposure".

The calculation of the Relative VaR of the Sub-Fund is based on a reference portfolio which is constituted by the Reference Index.

For a complete description of these risks, please refer to the chapter entitled "Principal Risks" below. This same chapter also describes the other risks linked to an investment into the Sub-Fund. For a complete description of the risks linked to CNH Bonds, please refer to the section entitled "Investment in CNH Bonds" within the chapter entitled "PRINCIPAL RISKS" below.

# Characteristics

# Characteristics of the Categories of Share Classes in the Sub-Fund

Categor y of Share Classes	Management Fee	Service Fee	All-In Fee**	Maximum Sales Charge	Maxim um Rede mptio n Charg e	Minimum Initial Investment*	Minimum Holding***
SI	0.40% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.50% p.a.	None	None	\$25,000,000	\$25,000,000
I	0.70% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.80% p.a.	None	None	\$50,000	1 share
Ν	0.70% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	0.90% p.a.	2.50 %	None	None	None
R	1.10% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	1.30% p.a.	2.50%	None	None	None
RE	2.10% p.a.	0.20% p.a.	2.30% p.a.	None	None	None	None
G	0.30% p.a.	0.10% p.a.	0.40% p.a	None	None	None	1 share

\*The comprehensive list of offered share classes with details relating to distribution policy, hedging policy (if any) and currencies is available by referring to im.natixis.com. Further details regarding the currency hedging methodology are available under section "SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES" of this Prospectus.

\*\*The "All-In Fee" represents the sum of "Management Fee" and "Service Fee".

\*\*\*Denominated in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund or the same amount in other available currencies.

The launch date of each Share Class within any of the foregoing categories of Share Classes is determined by the Board of Directors.

# Subscriptions and Redemptions in the Sub-Fund: Pricing and Settlement

Valuation Frequency Subscription/ Redemption Da		Application Date and Cut-Off Time	Settlement Date
Each full bank business day i Luxembourg, France and United Kingdom	D* (i.e., any full bank business day in Luxembourg, France and United Kingdom)	D at 1:30 p.m. Luxembourg time	D+3

\*D = Day on which the subscription, redemption or conversion application is processed by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent. Applications received by the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent before the cut-off time on any full bank business day in Luxembourg, France and United Kingdom will be processed on such day. Applications received after the cut-off time will be processed on the following full bank business day in Luxembourg, France and United Kingdom.

# **Reference Index**

Performance of each Share Class is compared to the performance Reference Index in its respective Share Class currency. Nevertheless, performance of each hedged Share Class is compared to the performance of the Reference Index in the Share Class hedging currency.

# Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund

The Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund is Ostrum Asset Management.

### **INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS**

Unless more restrictive rules are provided for in the investment policy of any specific Sub-Fund, each Sub-Fund shall comply with the rules and restrictions detailed below and in the chapter entitled "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques".

Investors should note that the Management Company or the Delegated Investment Manager of any Sub-Fund may decide to comply with more restrictive investment rules set forth by the laws and regulations of jurisdictions where such Sub-Fund may be marketed or by laws and regulations applicable to certain investors in such Sub-Fund.

If the limits set forth below or in the chapter entitled "Use of Derivatives, Special Investment and Hedging Techniques" are exceeded for reasons beyond the control of the Management Company or the Delegated Investment Manager, the Management Company or the Delegated Investment Manager must adopt as its primary objective in its sale transactions the remedying of such situation, taking due account of the interests of the Sub-Fund's Shareholders.

# A. Eligible assets

Investments in the Sub-Funds shall consist solely of:

- (a) transferable securities and money market instruments admitted to or dealt in on a regulated market within the meaning of Directive 2004/39/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 2004 on markets in financial instruments;
- (b) transferable securities and money market instruments dealt in on another market in a Member State which is regulated, operates regularly and is recognised and open to the public;
- (c) transferable securities and money market instruments admitted to official listing on a stock exchange in a non-Member State of the European Union or dealt in on another market in a non-Member State of the European Union which is regulated, operates regularly and is recognised and open to the public provided that the choice of the stock exchange or market has been provided for in the management regulations or the instruments of incorporation of the SICAV;

- (d) recently issued transferable securities and money market instruments, provided that:
  - the terms of issue include an undertaking that application will be made for admission to official listing on a stock exchange or to another regulated market as described under (a), (b) and (c) above;
    - the admission is secured within one year of issue;
- (e) units of UCITS authorised according to Directive 2009/65/EC and/or other UCIs within the meaning of Article 1, paragraph (2), points a) and b) of Directive 2009/65/EC, whether or not established in a Member State provided that:
  - such other UCIs are authorised under laws which provide that they are subject to supervision considered by the CSSF to be equivalent to that laid down in Community law, and that cooperation between authorities is sufficiently ensured;
  - the level of protection for unitholders in the other UCIs is equivalent to that provided for unitholders in a UCITS. and in particular that the rules assets segregation, on lending, borrowing, and uncovered sales of transferable securities and money market instruments are equivalent to the requirements of Directive 2009/65/EC;
  - the other UCIs issues in halfyearly and annual reports to enable an assessment of the assets and liabilities, income and operations over the reporting period;
  - no more than 10% of the assets of the UCITS or of the other UCIs, whose acquisition is contemplated, can, according to their management regulations or instruments of incorporation, be invested in aggregate in units of other UCITS or other UCIs;

- (f) deposits with a credit institution which are repayable on demand or have the right to be withdrawn, and maturing in no more than 12 months, provided that the credit institution has its registered office in a Member State or, if the registered office of the credit institution is situated in a third country, provided that it is subject to prudential rules considered by the CSSF as equivalent to those laid down in Community law;
- (g) financial derivative instruments, including equivalent cash-settled instruments, dealt in on a regulated market referred to in points a), b) and c) above and/or financial derivative instruments dealt in over-the-counter ("OTC derivatives"), provided that
  - the underlying consists of instruments covered by this Section A, financial indices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates or currencies, in which the SICAV may invest according to its investment objectives as stated in the SICAV's Prospectus,
  - the counterparties to OTC derivative transactions are institutions subject to prudential supervision, and belonging to the categories approved by the CSSF, and
  - the OTC derivatives are subject to reliable and verifiable valuation on a daily basis and can be sold, liquidated or closed by an offsetting transaction at any time at their fair value at the SICAV's initiative;
- (h) money market instruments other than those dealt in on a regulated market and which fall under Section A, if the issue or the issuer of such instruments is itself regulated for the purpose of protecting investors and savings, and provided that these investments are:
  - issued or guaranteed by a central, regional or local authority or by a central bank of a Member State, the European Central Bank, the European Union or the European Investment Bank, a third country or, in the case of

a Federal State, by one of the members making up the federation, or by a public international body to which one or more Member States belong, or

- issued by an undertaking any securities of which are dealt in on regulated markets referred to in points a), b) or c) above, or
- issued or guaranteed by an establishment subject to prudential supervision. in accordance with criteria defined by Community law, or by an establishment which is subject to and complies with prudential rules considered by the CSSF to be at least as stringent as those laid down by Community law; or
- bodies issued by other belonging to the categories approved by the CSSF provided that investments in such instruments are subject protection investor to equivalent to that laid down in the first, the second or the third indent and provided that the issuer is a company whose capital and reserves amount to at least ten million Euro (EUR 10.000.000) and which presents and publishes annual accounts in its accordance with the fourth Directive 78/660/EEC, is an entity which, within a group of companies which includes several one or listed companies, is dedicated to the financing of the group or is an entity which is dedicated to the financing of securitisation vehicles which benefit from a banking liquidity line.
- (i) Cash, under the conditions set forth in the section below entitled "Cash Management".
- Securities issued by one or several other Sub-Funds of the SICAV (the "Target Fund(s)"), under the following conditions:
  - the Target Fund does not invest in the investing Sub-Fund;

- not more than 10 % of the assets of the Target Fund may be invested in other Sub-Funds;
- the voting rights linked to the transferable securities of the Target Fund are suspended during the period of investment;
- in any event, for as long as these securities are held by the SICAV, their value will not be taken into consideration for the calculation of the net asset value for the purposes of verifying the minimum threshold of the net assets imposed by the Law; and
- there is no duplication of management/subscription or redemption fees between those at the level of the Sub-Fund having invested in the Target Fund and those of the Target Fund.

# B. Prohibited transactions

Each Sub-Fund shall not, however:

- invest more than 10% of its net assets in transferable securities or money market instruments other than those referred to above under Section A;
- (b) acquire either precious metals or certificates representing them.
- (c) acquire commodities or certificates representing commodities;
- invest in real property unless investments are made in securities secured by real estate or interests in real estate or issued by companies that invest in real estate or interests in real estate;
- (e) issue warrants or other rights to subscribe in Shares of the Sub-Fund;
- (f) grant loans or guarantees in favour of a third party. However such restriction shall not prevent each Sub-Fund from investing up to 10% of its net assets in non fully paid-up transferable securities, money market instruments, units of other UCIs or financial derivative instruments; and
- (g) enter into uncovered short sales of transferable securities, money market instruments, units of other UCIs or financial derivative instruments.

#### C. Cash Management

Each Sub-Fund may:

- (a) hold ancillary liquid assets;
- (b) hold up to 20% of its net assets in cash. In exceptional circumstances, this limit may be temporarily exceeded if the Management Company considers this to be in the best interest of the Shareholders;
- borrow up to 10% of its net assets on a temporary and non-recurring basis; acquire foreign currency by means of back-to-back loans.

# D. Acquisition for the direct pursuit of its business

The SICAV may acquire movable and immovable property which is essential for the direct pursuit of its business.

# E. Investment Restrictions

#### E-1. Investment Restriction Principles

(1) Each Sub-Fund may invest no more than 10% of its net assets in transferable securities or money market instruments issued by the same body. Each Sub-Fund may not invest more than 20% of its net assets in deposits made with the same body. The risk exposure to a counterparty of each Sub-Fund in an OTC derivative transaction may not exceed 10% of its net assets when the counterparty is a credit institution referred to in Section A point f), or 5% of its net assets.

(2) The total value of the transferable securities and money market instruments held by each Sub-Fund in the issuing bodies in each of which it invests more than 5% of its assets shall not exceed 40% of the value of its net assets. This limitation does not apply to deposits and OTC derivative transactions made with financial institutions subject to prudential supervision.

Notwithstanding the individual limits laid down in paragraph (1), each Sub-Fund shall not combine, where this would lead to investment of more than 20% of its assets in a single body, any of the following:

- investments in transferable securities or money market instruments issued by that body,
- deposits made with that body, or
- exposures arising from OTC derivative transactions undertaken with that body.

(3) The limit laid down in the first sentence of paragraph (1) may be of a maximum of 35% if the transferable securities or money market

instruments are issued or guaranteed by a Member State, by its public local authorities, by a third country or by public international bodies of which one or more Member States belong.

(4) The limit laid down in the first sentence of paragraph (1) may be of a maximum of 25% for certain bonds where they are issued by a credit institution which has its registered office in a Member State and is subject by law, to special designed public supervision to protect bondholders. In particular, sums deriving from the issue of those bonds must be invested in accordance with the law in assets which, during the whole period of validity of the bonds, are capable of covering claims attaching to the bonds and which, in case of bankruptcy of the issuer, would be used on a priority basis for the reimbursement of the principal and payment of the accrued interest.

Where a Sub-Fund invests more than 5% of its assets in the bonds referred to in the first subparagraph which are issued by a single issuer, the total value of such investments may not exceed 80% of the value of the net assets of such Sub-Fund.

(5) The transferable securities and money market instruments referred to in paragraphs (3) and (4) shall not be taken into account for the purpose of applying the limit of 40% referred to in paragraph (2).

The limits set out in paragraphs (1), (2), (3) and (4) shall not be combined; thus investments in transferable securities or money market instruments issued by the same body or in deposits or derivative instruments made with this body carried out in accordance with paragraphs (1), (2), (3) and (4) shall not exceed in total 35% of the net assets of such Sub-Fund.

Companies which are included in the same group for the purposes of consolidated accounts, as defined in accordance with Directive 83/349/EEC or in accordance with recognised international accounting rules, shall be regarded as a single body for the purpose of calculating the limits contained in this Article.

A Sub-Fund may cumulatively invest up to a limit of 20% of its net assets in transferable securities and money market instruments within the same group.

# E-2. Investment Restriction Derogations

# **Index Replication**

(1) Without prejudice to the limits laid down in Article 48 of the 2010 Law, the limits laid down in the above sub-section E-1 are raised to a maximum of 20% for investments in shares and/or debt securities issued by the same body when the aim of the Sub-Fund's investment policy is to replicate the composition of a certain stock or debt securities index which is recognised by the CSSF, on the following basis:

- the composition of the index is sufficiently diversified;
- the index represents an adequate benchmark for the market to which it refers;
- it is published in an appropriate manner.

(2) The limit laid down in paragraph (1) is raised to 35% where that proves to be justified by exceptional market conditions in particular in regulated markets where certain transferable securities or money market instruments are highly dominant. The investment up to this limit is only permitted for a single issuer.

# Transferable Securities and Money Market Investments of public sector or local authorities

Notwithstanding the above sub-section E-1, each Sub-Fund is authorised to invest in accordance with the principle of risk-spreading up to 100% of its net assets in different transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by a Member State, one or more of its local authorities, by any other State member of the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development ("OECD") or by a public international body to which one or more Member States of the European Union belong, provided that (i) such Sub-Fund shall hold securities from at least six different issues, but securities from any single issue shall not account for more than 30% of its total net assets.

# Units of open-ended funds

(1) Each Sub-Fund may acquire the units of UCITS and/or other UCIs referred to in the above section A, paragraph (1), point e), provided that no more than 20% of its net assets are invested in the units of a single UCITS or other UCI.

For the purpose of the application of this investment limit, each compartment of a UCI with multiple compartments is to be considered as a separate issuer provided that the principle of segregation of the obligations of the various compartments *vis-à-vis* third parties is ensured.

(2) Investments made in units of UCIs other than UCITS may not in aggregate exceed 30% of the assets of each Sub-Fund.

When a Sub-Fund has acquired units of UCITS and/or other UCIs, the assets of the respective UCITS or other UCIs do not have to be combined for the purposes of the limits laid down in the above sub-section E-1 and Paragraphs 2, 5 and 6 of the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES,

# SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES".

(3) Where a Sub-Fund invests in the units of other UCITS and/or other UCIs that are managed, directly or by delegation, by the same Management Company or by any other company with which the Management Company is linked by common management or control, or by a substantial direct or indirect holding, Natixis Investment Managers International or another company may not charge subscription or redemption fees on account of the Sub-Fund investment in the units of such other UCITS and/or other UCIs.

(4) A Sub-Fund that invests a substantial proportion of its assets in other UCITS and/or UCIs shall disclose in the Prospectus the maximum level of investment management fees that may be charged both to the Sub-Fund itself and to the other UCITS and/or UCIs in which it intends to invest. In its annual report, the SICAV shall indicate the investment management fees actually charged both to the Sub-Fund itself and to the other UCITS and/or UCIs in which the Sub-Fund itself and to the other UCITS and/or UCIs in which the Sub-Fund invests.

# Master-feeder Structures

A Sub-Fund may act as master fund within the meaning of the Law where:

- (a) it has, among its shareholders, at least one feeder fund;
- (b) it is not itself a feeder fund;
- (c) it does not hold shares/units of a feeder fund;

(the "Master").

The Master shall not charge subscription or redemption fees for the investment of the feeder fund into its shares or the divestment thereof, as further described herein.

Any Sub-Fund which acts as a feeder fund of a Master shall invest at least 85% of its assets in shares/units of another UCITS or of a compartment of such UCITS (the "Feeder"). The Feeder may not invest more than 15% of its assets in one or more of the following:

- (a) ancillary liquid assets in accordance with Section C a);
- (b) financial derivative instruments, which may be used only for hedging purposes, in accordance with Section A g) and Section B, a), b) and Section C a) and D;
- (c) movable and immovable property which is essential for the direct pursuit of the SICAV's business.

When a Sub-Fund invests in the shares/units of a Master which is managed, directly or by

delegation by the same management company or by any other company with which such management company is linked by common management or control, or by a substantial direct or indirect holding, the management company or such any other company may not charge subscription or redemption fees on account of the Sub-Fund investment in the shares/units of the Master.

The maximum level of the management fees that may be charged both to the Feeder and to the Master is disclosed in this Prospectus. The SICAV indicates the maximum proportion of management fees charged both to the Sub-Fund itself and to the Master in its annual report. The Master shall not charge subscription or redemption fees for the investment of the Feeder into its shares/units or the disinvestment thereof.

# F. Influence over any one Issuer

(1) Each Sub-Fund may not acquire any shares carrying voting rights which would enable it to exercise significant influence over the management of an issuing body.

(2) Moreover, each Sub-Fund may acquire no more than:

- 10% of the non-voting shares of the same issuer;
- 10% of the debt securities of the same issuer;
- 25% of the units of the same UCITS or other UCI within the meaning of Article 2, paragraph (2) of the 2010 Law;
- 10% of the money market instruments of any single issuer.

The limits laid down in the second, third and fourth indents may be disregarded at the time of acquisition if at that time the gross amount of bonds or of the money market instruments or the net amount of the instruments in issue cannot be calculated.

(3) Paragraphs (1) and (2) are waived as regards:

- transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by a Member State or its local authorities;
- transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by a non-Member State of the European Union;
- transferable securities and money market instruments issued by public international bodies of which one or more Member States of the European Union are members;
- shares held by the SICAV in the capital of a company incorporated in a third country of the European Union which invests its assets mainly in the securities of issuing

bodies having their registered office in that State, where under the legislation of that State, such a holding represents the only way in which the SICAV can invest in the securities of issuing bodies of that State. This derogation, however, shall apply only if in its investment policy the company from the third country of the European Union complies with the limits laid down in Section E1and Section E 2 "Units of open-ended funds" and Section F, paragraphs (1) and (2). Where the limits set in Articles E1 and Section E 2 of open-ended funds" "Units are exceeded, Section I shall apply mutatis mutandis:

- shares held by one or more investment companies in the capital of subsidiary companies which, carry on the business of management, advice or marketing in the country where the subsidiary is established, in regard to the redemption of units at the request of unitholders exclusively on its or their behalf.

G. Overall Risk Exposure and Risk Management Process

The Management Company has implemented risk management procedures that enable it to monitor and measure at any time the risks related to the assets held in the Sub-Funds and their contribution to the overall risk profile of the Sub-Funds.

Whenever such risk management process is implemented on behalf of the Management Company by the Delegated Investment Manager, it is deemed to be implemented by the Management Company.

Specific limits and risks relating to financial derivatives instruments are respectively described under the section "Derivatives" of the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES" and the section "Financial Derivatives Instruments" of the chapter entitled "PRINCIPAL RISKS" below.

# H. Derogation Periods

For newly launched Sub-Funds and while ensuring observance of the principle of riskspreading, Sub-Funds are allowed to derogate from E-1 "Investment Restriction Principles" and E-2 sections: "Index Replication", "Transferable Securities and Money Market Investments of public sector or local authorities" and "Units of open-ended funds", for six months following their authorisations. In case of merger of Sub-Funds and while ensuring observance of the principle of riskspreading, the receiving Sub-Fund is allowed to derogate from E-1 "Investment Restriction Principles" and E-2 sections: "Index Replication", "Transferable Securities and Money Market Investments of public sector or local authorities" and "Units of open-ended funds", for six months following the effective date of the merger.

## USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES

For the purpose of hedging, efficient portfolio management, duration management, other risk management of the portfolio or investment, a Sub-Fund may use the following techniques and instruments relating to transferable securities and other liquid assets.

Under no circumstance shall these operations cause a Sub-Fund to fail to comply with its investment objective and policy.

Each Sub-Fund is to be considered as a separate UCITS for the application of this section.

# Derivatives

- A Sub-Fund may use derivatives, including options, futures, swaps and forward contracts, for risk management, hedging or investment purposes, as specified in the Sub-Fund's investment policy. Any such derivatives transaction shall comply with the following restrictions:
  - a. Such derivatives must be traded on a Regulated Market or over-the-counter with counterparties that are subject to prudential supervision and belong to the categories of counterparties approved by the Luxembourg supervisory authority.
  - b. The underlying assets of such derivatives must consist of either the instruments mentioned in Paragraph 1 of the section entitled "Authorized Investments" or financial indices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates or currencies in which the relevant Sub-Fund invests in accordance with its investment policy.
  - c. Such derivatives, if traded over-thecounter ("OTC Derivatives"), must be subject to reliable and verifiable pricing on a daily basis and may be sold, liquidated or closed by the Sub-Fund at any time at their fair value

# Investments in any one Issuer

- 2. The risk exposure to any one counterparty in an OTC Derivative transaction may not exceed:
  - a. 10% of each Sub-Fund's net assets

when the counterparty is a credit institution that has its registered office in a Member State or, if its registered office is located in another state, that is subject to prudential rules considered by the Luxembourg supervisory authority to be equivalent to those provided for under Community law, or

- b. 5% of each Sub-Fund's net assets when the counterparty does not fulfill the requirements set forth above.
- 3. Investments in financial derivatives instruments that are not index-based shall comply with the limits set forth in Paragraphs 2, 5 and 11 of the section entitled "Investments in any one Issuer" of the chapter entitled "INVESTMENT **RESTRICTIONS**" and Paragraph 6 of this chapter, provided that the exposure to the underlying assets does not exceed in the aggregate the investment limits set forth in Paragraphs 1 through 5 and 8 of the chapter entitled "Investment Restrictions" and Paragraphs 2, 5 and 6 of this chapter.
- 4. When a transferable security or money market instrument embeds a derivative, such derivative must comply with the requirements of Paragraph 3 above and those set forth under "Global Risk Exposure" below.

# **Combined Limits**

- 5. Notwithstanding the limits set forth in Paragraphs 1 and 8 of the section entitled "Investment in any one Issuer" and Paragraph 2 of the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES", no Sub-Fund may combine (a) investments in transferable securities or money market instruments issued by, (b) deposits made with, or (c) exposure arising from OTC Derivative transactions undertaken with, any one entity in excess of 20% of its net assets.
- 6. The limits set forth in Paragraphs 1, 3, 4 and 8 of the section entitled "Investments in any one Issuer" and Paragraph 2 of the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES" may not be aggregated. Accordingly, each Sub-Fund's investments in transferable securities or money market instruments issued by, and deposits or derivatives instruments made with, any one

issuer in accordance with Paragraphs 1, 3, 4 and 8 of the section entitled "Investments in any one Issuer" and Paragraph 2 and 5 of the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES" may under no circumstances exceed 35% of its net assets.

# **Global Risk Exposure**

7. Except as otherwise stated therein, each Sub-Fund's global risk exposure relating to financial derivative instruments must not exceed such Sub-Fund's net assets. The Management Company reserves the right to apply more restrictive limits with respect to each Sub-Fund's risk exposure.

The Sub-Fund's global risk exposure is calculated by using the standard commitment approach except if otherwise stated in the Sub-Fund's description (absolute or relative VaR). "Standard commitment" approach means that each financial derivative instrument position is converted into the market value of an equivalent position in the underlying asset of that derivative taking account of netting and hedging arrangements. The Sub-Fund's global risk exposure is also evaluated by taking into account foreseeable market movements and the time available to liquidate the positions.

The Management Company has implemented processes for accurate and independent assessment of the value of OTC Derivatives.

General Quantitative requirements applicable to the absolute VaR approach When applicable, the absolute VaR approach limits the maximum VaR that the Sub-Fund can have relative to its net asset value. In this case and in compliance with the relevant regulation, the absolute VaR cannot be greater than 20% of its net asset value with on one-tailed confidence interval of 99% in a holding period equivalent to 1 month (20 business days).

**General Quantitative requirements applicable to the relative VaR approach** When applicable, the relative VaR approach limits the maximum VaR that the Sub-Fund can have relative to a leverage free reference portfolio which is reflecting the investment strategy which the Sub-Fund is pursuing.

In this case and in compliance with the relevant regulation, the relative VaR cannot be greater than twice the VaR of the reference portfolio. The applicable relative VaR limit is specified is the relevant Sub-Fund's description above.

As at the date of this Prospectus, the Management Company applies the following methodologies to measure global exposure:

Sub-Fund Name	Global Exposure Methodology	Reference Portfolio (if applicable)	Expected-Level of Leverage
Ostrum SRI Total Return Sovereign	Absolute VaR	NA	Between 1 and 5
Ostrum SRI Credit Short Duration	Commitment	NA	NA
Ostrum Euro Inflation	Commitment	NA	NA
Ostrum SRI Euro Aggregate	Commitment	NA	NA
Ostrum Total Return Credit	Absolute VaR	NA	Between 0 and 6
Ostrum SRI Global Subordinated Debt	Commitment	NA	NA
Ostrum Fixed Income Multi Strategies	Absolute VaR	NA	5
Natixis Conservative Risk Parity	Commitment	NA	NA
Natixis Bond Alternative Risk Premia	Absolute VaR	NA	Between 1 and 20
Natixis Global Multi Strategies	Absolute VaR	NA	Between 1 and 5
Ostrum SRI Total Return Conservative	Commitment	NA	NA
Ostrum SRI Total Return Dynamic	Absolute VaR	NA	Between 1.5 and 4.5
Ostrum SRI Europe MinVol Equity	Commitment	NA	NA
Ostrum SRI Global MinVol Equity	Commitment	NA	NA
Ostrum Total Return Volatility	Absolute VaR	NA	Between 1 and 7
Ostrum SRI Euro High Dividend Equity	Commitment	NA	NA
Ostrum Global Emerging Bonds	Relative VaR	Reference Index	1

# **Prohibited Transactions**

8. Each Sub-Fund is prohibited from engaging in uncovered short sales of financial derivative instruments.

# Information regarding OTC Derivatives and selection of counterparties

9. Counterparties to OTC Derivatives are first rank credit institutions. Those counterparties are selected and evaluated regularly in accordance with the procedure for the selection of counterparties available on the website of the Management Company at the following address: www.im.natixis.com (sections "our commitments," "Order execution policy and guidelines for the selection intermediaries of and counterparties") or on request to the Management Company. These operations are always subject to the signing of a contract between the SICAV and the counterparty which defines the wavs of reducina counterparty risk. Counterparties do not have a

discretionary power on the composition and on the management of the investment portfolio of the SICAV or on the underlying assets of the derivative.

# Information on efficient portfolio management techniques

Where contemplated in each Sub-Fund's description section, each Sub-Fund may use techniques and instruments (including but not limited to securities lending, repurchase and reverse purchase agreements) relating to transferable securities and money market instruments for efficient portfolio management purposes. Those techniques will be entered into for one or more of the following aims:

- reduction of risk;
- reduction of cost;
- generation of additional capital or income for the Sub-Fund with a level of risk which is consistent with the risk profile of the Sub-Fund and the risk diversification rules applicable to it.

# Securities Financing transactions and Total Return Swaps

Should any Sub-Fund engage in securities financing transactions ("SFTs") and/or total return swaps ("TRS"), as defined under the Regulation 2015/2365 of the European

Parliament and of the Council of 25 November 2015 on Transparency of Securities Financing Transactions and of Reuse (the "SFT Regulation"), this intended use should be reflected in the relevant Sub-Fund's description and any relevant details related to the SFTs/TRS used as part of the investment policy of the relevant Sub-Fund shall be set out in the relevant Sub-Fund's description.

In accordance with the SFT Regulation, SFT generally include:

(a) repurchase transactions;

(b) securities lending and securities borrowing;

(c) buy-sell back transactions or sell-buy back transactions;

(d) margin lending transactions.

A general description of the types of SFTs/TRS that may be mentioned in each Sub-Fund's investment policy can be found in the following sections: "Repurchase Agreements", "Securities Lending and Borrowing" and "Total Return Swaps" in the chapter entitled "USE OF DERIVATIVES, SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES" of the Prospectus.

The use of any such SFTs/TRS is primarily meant to implement efficient liquidity and collateral management and/or execute the investment strategy of the Sub-Fund and/or generate additional capital or income for the relevant Sub-Fund. In such case, the assets composing the Sub-Fund (including notably equities, bonds and/or financial indices) may be subject to SFT/TRS.

Where applicable, the principal amount of SFTs/TRS based on the net asset value of the relevant Sub-Fund will be disclosed in the relevant Sub-Fund's description.

In any case, the Management Company will ensure to maintain the volume of these transactions at a level such that, it is able, at all times, to meet redemption requests.

## Repurchase Agreements

A repurchase agreement is an agreement involving the purchase and sale of securities with a clause reserving to the seller the right or the obligation to repurchase from the acquirer the securities sold at a price and term specified by the two parties in their contractual arrangement.

A Sub-Fund may enter into repurchase agreement transactions and may act either as purchaser or seller in repurchase agreement

transactions or a series of continuing repurchase transactions under the following restrictions:

- A Sub-Fund may buy or sell securities using a repurchase agreement transaction only if the counterparty in such transactions is a financial institution specializing in this type of transactions and is subject to prudential supervision rules considered by the CSSF as equivalent to those set forth by Community law;
- During the life of a repurchase agreement, a Sub-Fund cannot sell the securities that are the object of the contract, either before the right to repurchase these securities has been exercised by the counterparty, or before the repurchase term has expired except to the extent the Sub-Fund has other means of coverage; and
- A Sub-Fund's level of exposure to repurchase agreement transactions must be such that it is able, at all times, to meet its redemption obligations.
- A Sub-Fund's counterparty risk arising from one or more securities lending transactions, sale with right of repurchase transaction or repurchase/reverse repurchase transaction vis-à-vis one same counterparty may not exceed:
  - 10% of the Sub-Fund's net assets if such counterparty is a credit institution having its registered office in the European Union or in a jurisdiction considered by the CSSF as having equivalent prudential supervision rules; or
  - 5% of the Sub-Fund's net assets in any other case.

# Securities Lending and Borrowing

A Sub-Fund may enter into securities lending and borrowing transactions qualifying as SFT; provided that:

 The Sub-Fund may only lend or borrow securities either directly or through a standardized lending system organized by a recognized clearing institution or through a lending system organized by a financial institution that specializes in this type of transactions that is subject to prudential supervision rules which are considered by the CSSF as equivalent to those set forth by European Union law, in exchange for a securities lending fee;

- As part of lending transactions, the Sub-Fund must receive a collateral, the value of which at any time must be at least equal to 90% of the total value of the securities lent. The amount of collateral must be valued on a daily basis to ensure that this level is maintained.
- The SICAV must ensure that it is able at any time to terminate the transactions or recall the securities that have been lent out;
- A Sub-Fund's net exposure (i.e. the exposure of such Sub-Fund less the collateral received by such Sub-Fund) to a counterparty arising from securities lending transactions or reverse repurchase/repurchase agreement transactions shall be taken into account in the 20% limit provided for in the point (2) of the sub-section E-1 of this Prospectus.

# Total Return Swap

Total return swaps ("TRS") or and other derivative financial instruments with the same characteristics may be used to allow the Sub-Fund to replicate the exposure of an index or to swap the performance of one or more instruments held by the relevant Sub-Fund in exchange for the payment of fixed or a floating fee. The use of TRS as part of the investment policy of the relevant Sub-Fund shall be disclosed in the relevant Sub-Fund's description.

The counterparty to the TRS will be a counterparty approved and monitored by the Management Company in accordance with the procedure for the selection of counterparties available on the website of the Management Company. Counterparty risk is described in more detail is in the "Principal risks" section. At no time will counterparty in a transaction have discretion over the composition or the management of the Sub-Fund's or over the underlying asset of the total return swap. The underlying exposure of the TRS, or an instrument with similar characteristics, is taken into account when considering the Sub-Funds' investment limits.

# Information on collateral

As part of SFT and/or OTC Derivative transactions, the Sub-Fund must receive a collateral, the value of which at any time must be at least equal to 90% of the total value of the securities engaged in such transactions. The collateral received by the Sub-Funds shall take

the form of a transfer of the full ownership right on securities and/or cash. The level of collateral and the haircut policy are set in accordance with the risk policy defined by the Management Company in compliance with applicable regulations. The amount of collateral must be valued on a daily basis to ensure that this level is maintained.

All assets received by the Sub-Fund as collateral should comply with the following criteria at all times:

◆ *Liquidity:* any collateral received other than cash should be highly liquid and traded on a regulated market or multilateral trading facility with transparent pricing in order that it can be sold quickly at a price that is close to pre-sale valuation. Collateral received should also comply with the provisions of Article 56 of the UCITS Directive.

♦ Valuation: collateral received should be valued on at least a daily basis using the last available market prices and taking into account appropriate discounts set out in the haircut policy. The collateral will be marked to market daily and may be subject to daily variation margin requirements.

♦ Issuer credit quality: collateral received should be of high quality. The issuers will typically have a credit rating of BBB- or above.

• Correlation: the collateral received by the Sub-Fund should be issued by an entity that is independent from the counterparty and is expected not to display a high correlation with the performance of the counterparty.

Collateral diversification (asset concentration): collateral should be sufficiently diversified in terms of country, markets and issuers. The criterion of sufficient diversification with respect to issuer concentration is considered to be respected if the Sub-Fund receives from a counterparty of efficient portfolio management and over-the-counter financial derivative transactions a basket of collateral with a maximum exposure to a given issuer of 20% of the Sub-Funds' net asset value. When a Sub-Fund is exposed to different counterparties, the different baskets of collateral should be aggregated to calculate the 20% limit of exposure to a single issuer. By way of derogation from this sub-paragraph, a Sub-Fund may be fully collateralised in different transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by a Member State, one or more of its local authorities, a third country, or a public international body to which one or more Member States belong. Such a Sub-Fund should receive securities from at least six different issues, but securities from any

single issue should not account for more than 30% of the Sub-Fund' net asset value.

♦ Risks linked to the management of collateral, such as operational and legal risks, should be identified, managed and mitigated by the risk management process.

♦ Where there is a title transfer, the collateral received will be held by the Depositary. For other types of collateral arrangement, the collateral can be held by a third party custodian which is subject to prudential supervision, and which is unrelated to the provider of the collateral.

• Collateral received should be capable of being fully enforced by the Sub-Fund at any time without reference to or approval from the counterparty.

• Non-cash collateral received should not be sold, re-invested or pledged.

Cash collateral received should only be:

- placed on deposit with entities prescribed in Article 50(f) of the UCITS Directive;

- invested in high-quality government bonds;

- used for the purpose of reverse repo transactions provided the transactions are with credit institutions subject to prudential supervision and the sub-Fund is able to recall at any time the full amount of cash on accrued basis;

- invested in eligible short-term money market funds.

Re-invested cash collateral should be diversified in accordance with the diversification requirements applicable to noncash collateral.

The above provisions apply subject to any further guidelines issued from time to time by the ESMA amending and/or supplementing ESMA Guidelines 2014/937 and/or any additional guidance issued from time to time by the Luxembourg Supervisory Authority in relation to the above.

The risks linked to SFTs and TRS as well as to collateral Management and reuse of collateral are disclosed in the Principal Risks section of the Prospectus.

Information on the risks of potential conflicts of interest linked to the use of securities lending and repurchase transactions

The Management Company has entrusted the intermediation activity for some Sub-Funds to Natixis TradEx Solutions *Société anonyme* of French law with a corporate capital of

EUR 17 110 439, Natixis TradEx Solutions has obtained on 23 July 2009 from the CECEI the approval to act as bank and as investment service provider . Both companies belong to the same group.

Natixis TradEx Solutions's purpose is, amongst other, to provide intermediation services (i.e. reception-transmission and execution of client orders) to internal client such as the management companies and third parties client.

In the framework of its activities, the Management Company or the Delegated Investment Manager transmit almost all its orders on financial instruments and securities resulting from its management decision through Natixis TradEx Solution on behalf of the portfolios which it manages.

The Management Company or the Delegated Investment Manager, in order to generate additional capital or income for the relevant Sub-Fund, may use securities lending and repurchase transactions. Such transactions are also almost entirely carried out by Natixis TradEx Solutions.

Natixis TradEx Solutions can act either as principal or as agent. Its intervention as principal corresponds to an intervention as a counterparty to the Sub-Fund whereas its intervention as agent corresponds to an intermediation by Natixis TradEx Solutions between the Sub-Funds and the market counterparties. These market counterparties might be entities belonging to the same group as the Management Company, the Delegated Investment Manager, Natixis TradEx Solution or the Depositary.

The volume of the operations dealt by Natixis TradEx Solutions enables Natixis TradEx Solutions to benefit from good market knowledge and thus benefit to the portfolios managed by the Management Company or the Delegated Investment Manager.

Certain Sub-Funds may enter into securities lending transactions, repurchase agreements and buy-sell back transactions directly with other companies in the same group of companies as the Delegated Investment Manager.

The Management Company, the Delegated Investment Manager or Natixis TradEx Solutions may face potential conflicts between its role and its own interests or that of affiliated counterparties. However, affiliated counterparties, if any, will perform their obligations under any securities lending transactions and repurchase agreements concluded with a Sub-Fund in a commercially reasonable manner. The Delegated Investment Manager or Natixis TradEx Solutions will select counterparties and enter into transactions in accordance with best execution principles.

In addition, the Management Company, the Delegated Investment Manager and Natixis TradEx Solutions have implemented specific preventive procedures, including regular reviews of certain activities and transactions to prevent these various possible potential conflicts of interest situations that could arise in the conduct of its activities in particular linked to securities lending and repurchase situations transactions (such as a back to back set up, a minimum of revenue before the transaction, a clear view about the responsibilities of all the actors, a algorithm of the allocation of the trades, etc.). This set up is reviewed annually.

# BENCHMARK REGULATION (EU) 2016/1011 (the "Benchmark Regulation")

Certain Sub-Funds may use their Reference Indices within the meaning of the Benchmark Regulation. In this context, the relevant Reference Index is provided by an administrator included in the ESMA public register:

Reference Index	Administrator
€STR ( Euro short-term interest rate) daily- Capitalized*	European Central Bank ("ECB")
Daily- capitalized 3 Months EURIBOR	European Money Market Institute

Certain Sub-Funds may use their Reference Indices within the meaning of the Benchmark Regulation. In this context, the relevant Reference Index is provided by an administrator in the process of being (i) authorized or registered by the relevant competent authority or (ii) included in the ESMA public register or exempted from the Benchmark Regulation:

Reference Index	Administrator
Thomson	Thomson
Reuters	Reuters

Reference Index	Administrator
Convertible	Benchmark
Index – Global	Services
Focus Hedged	Limited
(USD)	("TRBSL")
MSCI EMU	MSCI
Dividend Net	Limited
Reinvested	
Daily-	Federal
capitalized 3	Reserve
Months SOFR	Bank of
	New York
ICE BofA Euro	ICE Data
Subordinated	Indices,
Financial Index	LLC

The tables above will be updated when the administrators above will be authorized or registered by the relevant competent authority and included in the ESMA public register.

For Sub-Funds falling within the scope of the EU Regulation 2016/1011 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 8 June 2016 on indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and financial contracts or to measure the performance of investment funds (the "Benchmarks Regulation"), the Management Company will ensure that administrator of any Reference Index used is either (i) duly authorized and added to the ESMA register of benchmarks in compliance with the Benchmarks Regulation or (ii) gualify for the transitional provisions in Article 51 of Benchmarks Regulation.

The Management Company has a written plan setting out actions, which it will take with respect to the Sub-Funds in the event of changes to or cessation of the Reference Index (the "**Contingency Plan**"). Investors may access the Contingency Plan at the registered office of the Management Company or of the SICAV and may be obtained free of charge upon request.

#### **PRINCIPAL RISKS**

Various factors may adversely affect the value of a Sub-Fund's assets. The following are the principal risks of investing in the SICAV. This section does not purport to be exhaustive and other factors or risks may affect the value of an investment in the Sub-Funds.

# Arbitrage

Arbitrage is a technique that takes advantage of price differences observed (or anticipated) between markets and/or sectors and/or securities and/or currencies and/or instruments. In the event of an unfavourable outcome in such arbitrage transactions (erroneous expectations: rises in the case of short transactions and/or falls in the case of long transactions), the net asset value of the Sub-Fund may fall.

# Capital loss

Principal value and returns fluctuate over time (including as a result of currency fluctuations) so that Shares, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than their original cost. There is no guarantee that the capital invested in a Share will be returned to the investor in full.

## Capitalization Size of Companies

#### **Smaller Capitalization Companies**

Investments in smaller capitalization companies may involve greater risks than investments in larger companies, including fewer managerial and financial resources. Stocks of small companies may be particularly sensitive to unexpected changes in interest rates, borrowing costs and earnings. As a result of trading less frequently, stocks of smaller companies may also be subject to wider price fluctuations and may be less liquid.

#### Large Capitalization Companies

Sub-Funds investing in large capitalization companies may underperform certain other stock funds (those emphasizing small company stocks, for example) during periods when large company stocks are generally out of favor. Also larger, more established companies are generally not nimble and may be unable to respond quickly to competitive challenges, such as changes in technology and consumer tastes, which may cause the SICAV's performance to suffer.

#### Changes in Laws and/or Tax Regimes

Each Sub-Fund is subject to the laws and tax regime of Luxembourg. The securities held by each Sub-Fund and their issuers will be subject to the laws and tax regimes of various other countries. Changes to any of those laws and tax regimes, or any tax treaty between Luxembourg and another country, could adversely affect the value to any Sub-Fund of those securities.

#### Commodities

The main risk linked to this exposure may come from high fluctuations in the commodities markets value. Volatility of commodities markets may be important notably due to economics, political, social events. Moreover, spread markets spot and forward may create decorrelated fluctuations (due to stock constraints, climatic chances, a scarcity, etc.).

#### **Convertible Securities**

Certain Sub-Funds may invest in convertible securities which are securities generally offering fixed interest or dividend yields which may be converted either at a stated price or stated rate for common or preferred stock. Although to a lesser extent than with fixed income securities generally, the market value of convertible securities tends to decline as interest rates rise. Because of the conversion feature, the market value of convertible securities also tends to vary with fluctuations in the market value of the underlying common or preferred stock.

#### Contingent Convertible Securities

Certain Sub-Funds may invest in contingent convertibles securities ("CoCos") which are debt securities that may be converted into the issuer's equity or be partly or wholly written off if a predefined trigger event occurs. Trigger events generally include the decrease in the issuer's capital ratio below a given threshold or the issue/issuer being subject to a regulatory action or decision by the responsible regulator in the issuer's home market. In addition to credit and changing interest rates risks that are common to debt securities, the conversion trigger activation may cause the value of the investment to fall more significantly than other most conventional debt securities which do not expose investors to this risk.

Investment in CoCos may entail the following risks (non-exhaustive list):

- Trigger level risk: trigger levels differ and determine exposure to conversion risk depending on the capital ratio distance to the trigger level. It might be difficult for the Management Company or the Delegated Investment Manager(s) to anticipate the triggering events that would require the debt to convert into equity. Triggers are designed so that conversion occurs when the issuer faces a given crisis situation, as determined either by regulatory assessment or objective losses (e.g. measure of the issuer's core tier 1 prudential capital ratio).
- **Coupon cancellation:** Coupon payments on some CoCos are entirely discretionary and may be cancelled by the issuer at any point, for any reason, and for any length of time. The cancellation of coupon payments on CoCos does not amount to an event of default.
- Conversion risk: It might be difficult for the Management Company or the Delegated Investment Manager(s) to assess how the securities will behave upon conversion. In case of conversion into equity, the Management Company or the Delegated Investment Manager(s) might be forced to sell these new equity shares because of the investment policy of the relevant Sub-Fund does not allow equity in its portfolio. This forced sale may itself lead to liquidity issue for these shares.
- Capital structure inversion risk: Contrary to the classic capital hierarchy, investors in contingent convertible securities may suffer a loss of capital when equity holders do not, for example when the loss absorption mechanism of a high trigger/ write down of a contingent convertible security is activated.
- **Call extension risk**: CoCos are issued as perpetual instruments, callable at predetermined levels only with the approval of the competent authority. It cannot be assumed that the perpetual CoCos will be called on call date and the investor may not receive return of principal on call date or indeed at any date.
- **Unknown risk**: the structure of the CoCos is innovative yet untested. When the underlying features of these instruments will be put to the test, it is uncertain how they will perform.
- Yield/Valuation risk: CoCos often offer attractive yield which may be viewed as a complexity premium. The value of contingent convertible securities may need to be reduced due to a higher risk of

overvaluation of such asset class on the relevant eligible markets.

- **Particular Industry**: To the extent that investments are concentrated in a particular industry, the investor investing in a Fund which invests in CoCos will be susceptible to loss due to adverse occurrences affecting that industry.
- Write-Down: The investment in CoCos may also result in material losses to the SICAV as the debt security may suffer capital market loss by decreasing the face value ("write-down") on the occurrence of certain trigger events. In this event, holders of contingent convertible debt securities will suffer losses ahead of holders of equity securities issued by the same issuer, contrary to the classic order of capital structure hierarchy where equity holders are expected to suffer the loss before debt holders.
- Liquidity risk: CoCos are also innovative financial instruments and their behavior under a stressed financial environment is thus unknown. This increases uncertainty in the valuation of contingent convertible debt securities and the risks of potential price contagion and volatility to the entire contingent convertible securities asset class. This may also lead to a certain level of market illiquidity which may adversely impact both the price formation and the transferability of the instruments. In particular finding a ready buyer for CoCos may be difficult and the seller may have to accept a significant discount to the expected value of the bond in order to sell it.

# Counterparties

One or more counterparties used to swap transactions, foreign currency forwards or other contracts may default on their obligations under such swap, forward or other contract, and as a result, the Sub-Funds may not realize the expected benefit of such swap, forward or other contract.

Furthermore and in the case of insolvency or failure of any counterparty, a Sub-Fund might recover, even in respect of property specifically traceable to it, only a pro-rata share of all property available for distribution to all of such party's creditors and/or customers. Such an amount may be less than the amounts owed to the Sub-Fund.
# Debt Securities

Among the principal risks of investing in debt securities are the following:

#### Changing Interest Rates

The value of any fixed income security held by a Sub-Fund will rise or fall inversely with changes in interest rates. Interest rates typically vary from one country to the next, and may change for a number of reasons. Those reasons include rapid expansions or contractions of a country's money supply, changes in demand by business and consumers to borrow money and actual or anticipated changes in the rate of inflation.

# Credit Risk

The issuer of any debt security acquired by any Sub-Fund may default on its financial obligations. Moreover, the price of any debt security acquired by a Sub-Fund normally reflects the perceived risk of default of the issuer of that security at the time the Sub-Fund acquired the security. If after acquisition the perceived risk of default increases, the value of the security held by the Sub-Fund is likely to fall.

There are many factors that could cause an issuer to default on its financial obligations, or an increase in the perceived risk of default of an issuer. Among those factors are the deteriorating financial condition of the issuer caused by changes in demand for the issuer's products or services, catastrophic litigation or the threat of catastrophic litigation and changes in laws, regulations and applicable tax regimes. The more concentrated the Sub-Fund is in a particular industry; the more likely it will be affected by factors that affect the financial condition of that industry as a whole.

# Below Investment Grade Securities or Unrated Securities

The Management Company relies on the appraisal of credit risk by its team and its own methodology.

Certain Sub-Funds may invest in unrated fixed income securities or fixed income securities rated below investment grade. Below investment grade fixed income securities are securities rated less than BBB- (Standard & Poor's Ratings Services), Baa3 (Moody's Investors Service, Inc.) or BBB- (Fitch Ratings) or an equivalent rating in accordance with the Management Company's analysis that are considered low credit quality. Securities rated below investment grade and unrated securities may have greater price volatility and a greater risk of loss of principal and interest than investment grade debt securities.

# Zero Coupon Securities

Certain Sub-Funds may invest in zero coupon securities issued by governmental and private coupon securities issuers. Zero are transferable debt securities that do not pay regular interest payments, and instead are sold at substantial discounts from their value at maturity. The value of these instruments tends to fluctuate more in response to changes in interest rates than the value of ordinary interest-paying transferable debt securities with similar maturities. The risk is greater when the period to maturity is longer. As the holder of certain zero coupon obligations, the relevant Sub-Funds may be required to accrue income with respect to these securities prior to the receipt of cash payment. They may be required to distribute income with respect to these securities and may have to dispose of such securities under disadvantageous circumstances in order to generate cash to satisfy these distribution requirements.

#### Variation in Inflation Rates

Certain Sub-Funds may invest in inflationlinked debt securities. The value of such securities fluctuates with the inflation rate of the corresponding geographical area.

#### Emerging Markets

Investments in emerging market securities involve certain risks, such as illiquidity and volatility, which may be greater than those generally associated with investing in developed markets. The extent of economic development, political stability, market depth, infrastructure, capitalization, and regulatory oversight in emerging market economies may be less than in more developed countries.

## **ESG Driven Investments**

When provided for in their appendix, certain Sub-Funds may seek to implement all or part of their investment policy in accordance with the Delegated Investment Manager's sustainable environmental, social, and governance ("Sustainable ESG") criteria. By using Sustainable ESG criteria, the relevant Sub-Fund's objective would in particular be to better manage risk and generate sustainable, long-term returns.

Sustainable ESG criteria may include amongst others:

- Environmental: gas emissions, resource depletion, waste and pollution, deforestation, carbon footprint;
- Social: working conditions, relation to the local communities, health and safety, employee relations, diversity considerations;
- Governance: executive pay, bribery and corruption, political lobbying and donations, tax strategy.

Sustainable ESG criteria may be generated using the Delegated Investment Manager's proprietary models, third party models and data or a combination of both. Such models mainly take into account the sustainable ESG scoring as well as other metrics integrated in and applicable to the models of the issuing companies. Delegated The Investment Manager may also take into consideration case studies, environmental impact associated with the issuers and company visits. Shareholders should note that assessment criteria may change over time or vary depending on the sector or industry in which the relevant issuer operates. Applying Sustainable ESG criteria to the investment process may lead the Delegated Investment Manager to invest in or exclude for non-financial securities reasons, irrespective of market opportunities available if assessed while disregarding Sustainable ESG criteria.

Shareholders should note that ESG data received from third parties may be incomplete, inaccurate or unavailable from time to time. As a result, there is a risk that the Delegated Investment Manager may incorrectly assess a security or issuer, resulting in the incorrect direct or indirect inclusion or exclusion of a security in the portfolio of a Sub-Fund.

Besides, the ESG principles which may be applied by the Delegated Investment Manager when determining a company's eligibility to predefined Sustainable ESG criteria are intentionally non-prescriptive, allowing for a diversity of solutions for ESG incorporation for each relevant Sub-Fund. However, the flexibility also affords potential confusion around the application of ESG criteria without a generally-agreed framework for constructing such investment strategy.

# Investing in A-Shares through the Stock Connects

A-Shares means securities of Mainland China (or alternatively the People's Republic of China – i.e. "PRC") incorporated companies, listed and traded in Renminbi ("RMB") on the Shanghai Stock Exchange or the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

All the Sub-Funds (the "Stock Connect Fund(s)") which can invest in Mainland China will invest in A-Shares through the Stock Connect program and any other similar regulated securities trading and clearing linked programs subject to any applicable regulatory limits.

### Stock Connects

The Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect is a securities trading and clearing links programme developed by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited ("HKEx"), Shanghai Stock Exchange ("SSE") and China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited ("ChinaClear"). The Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect is a securities trading and clearing links program developed by HKEx, Shenzhen Stock Exchange ("SZSE") and ChinaClear.

The Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect are together referred to as the "Stock Connects".

The aim of the Stock Connects is to achieve mutual stock market access between the Mainland China and Hong Kong.

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited ("HKSCC"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of HKEx, and ChinaClear will be responsible for the clearing, settlement and the provision of depository, nominee and other related services of the trades executed by their respective market participants and/or investors.

### **Eligible Securities**

# (i) Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect Program

Under the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect program, Hong Kong and overseas investors (including the Stock Connect Fund(s)) are able to trade certain eligible A-Shares listed on the SSE (i.e. "SSE Securities"). These include all the constituent stocks from time to time of the SSE 180 Index and SSE 380 Index, and all the SSE-listed A-Shares that are not included as constituent stocks of the relevant indices but which have corresponding H-Shares listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong ("SEHK"), except the following:

- SSE-listed shares which are not traded in RMB; and
- SSE-listed shares which are included in the "risk alert board".

# (ii) Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect Program

Under the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect program, Hong Kong and overseas investors (including the Stock Connect Fund(s)) are able to trade certain eligible A-Shares listed on the SZSE market (i.e. "SZSE Securities"). These include all the constituent stocks of the SZSE Component Index and SZSE Small/Mid Cap Innovation Index which has a market capitalization of not less than RMB 6 billion, and all the SZSE-listed A-Shares which have corresponding H Shares listed on SEHK, except the following:

- SZSE-listed shares which are not traded in RMB; and
- SZSE-listed shares which are included in the "risk alert board" or under delisting arrangement.

At the initial stage of the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect program, investors eligible to trade shares that are listed on the ChiNext Board of the SZSE ("ChiNext Board") under Northbound trading will be limited to institutional professional investors (such as the Stock Connect Fund(s)) as defined in the relevant Hong Kong rules and regulations.

It is expected that the list of eligible securities will be subject to review.

In accordance with the UCITS requirements, the Depositary shall provide for the safekeeping of the Stock Connect Fund(s)'s assets in the PRC through its global custody network. Such safekeeping meets the conditions required by the CSSF as follows:

- legal separation of non-cash assets held under custody; and
- the Depositary, through its delegates, must maintain appropriate internal control systems to ensure that records clearly identify:
  - the nature and amount of assets under custody;
  - the ownership of each asset; and
  - where documents of title relating
  - to each asset are located.

In addition to paying trading fees, levies and stamp duties in connection with trading in A-Shares, the Stock Connect Fund(s) may be subject to new fees arising from trading of A-Shares via the Stock Connects.

# Specific Risks applicable to investing via the Stock Connect

*Quota Limitations*: Trading through Stock Connect is subject to a daily quota ("Daily Quota").

The Daily Quota limits the maximum net buy value of cross-boundary trades under each of the Stock Connects each day. The Northbound Daily Quota is currently set at RMB13 billion for each of the Stock Connects. In particular, the Stock Connect is subject to a daily quota which does not belong to the Stock Connect Fund(s) and can only be utilized on a first-come-firstserve basis. Once the Daily Quota is exceeded, buy orders will be rejected (although investors will be permitted to sell their cross-boundary securities regardless of the quota balance). Therefore, quota limitations may restrict the Stock Connect Fund(s)'s ability to invest in A-Shares through the Stock Connects on a timely basis and the relevant Stock Connect Fund may not be able to effectively pursue its investment strategy.

Local market rules, foreign shareholding restrictions and disclosure obligations: Under the Stock Connects, China A-Shares listed companies and trading of China A-Shares are subject to market rules and disclosure requirements of the China A-Shares market.

The Investment Manager of the Stock Connect Fund(s) should also take note of the foreign shareholding restrictions and disclosure obligations applicable to China A-Shares. The Investment Manager of the Stock Connect Fund(s) will be subject to restrictions on trading (including restriction on retention of proceeds) in China A-Shares as a result of its interest in the China A-Shares. The Investment Manager of the Stock Connect Fund(s) is solely responsible for compliance with all notifications, reports and relevant requirements in connection with its interests in China A-Shares.

Beneficial Ownership: HKSCC is the nominee holder of the SSE Securities and SZSE Securities acquired by Hong Kong and overseas investors through the Stock Connects. The current Stock Connects rules expressly provide for the concept of a "nominee holder" and there are other laws and regulations in the PRC which recognize the concepts of "beneficial owner" and "nominee holder". Although there is reasonable ground to believe that an investor may be able to take legal action in its own name to enforce its rights in the courts of the PRC if he/she/it can provide evidence to show that he/she/it is the beneficial owner of SSE Securities/SZSE Securities and that he/she/it has a direct interest in the matter, investors should note that some of the relevant PRC rules related to nominee holder are only departmental regulations and are generally untested in the PRC. There is no assurance that a Stock Connect Fund will not encounter difficulties or delays in terms of enforcing its rights in relation to China "A" shares acquired through the Stock Connects. However, regardless of whether a beneficial owner of SSE Securities under the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect or the SZSE Securities under the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect is legally entitled to bring legal action directly in the PRC courts against a listed company to enforce its rights, HKSCC is prepared to provide assistance to the beneficial owners of the SSE Securities and the SZSE Securities where necessary.

Regulatory Risk: The current regulations relating to Stock Connects are untested and there is no certainty as to how they will be applied. In addition, the current rules and regulations on Stock Connects are subject to change which may have potential retrospective effects and there can be no assurance that the Stock Connects will not be abolished. New regulations may be issued from time to time by the regulators / stock exchanges in the PRC and Hong Kong in connection with operations, legal enforcement and cross-border trades under the Stock Connects. The Stock Connect Funds as well as share prices may be adversely affected as a result of such changes.

Recalling of Eligible Security: When/if a security is recalled from the scope of eligible

security for trading via the Stock Connect, the security can only be sold but restricted from being bought. This may affect the investment portfolio or strategies of the relevant Funds, for example, if the Investment Manager wishes to purchase a security which is recalled from the scope of eligible security.

No Protection by Investor Compensation Fund: Investment in SSE and SZSE shares via the Stock Connects is conducted through brokers, and is subject to the risks of default by such brokers' in their obligations. Investments of the Funds are not covered by the Hong Kong's Investor Compensation Fund. Therefore the Stock Connect Fund(s) is exposed to the risks of default of the broker(s) it engages in its trading in A-Shares through the Stock Connects.

Differences in Trading Day: The Stock Connects will only operate on days when both the PRC and Hong Kong markets are open for trading and when banks in both markets are open on the corresponding settlement days. So it is possible that there are occasions when it is a normal trading day for the PRC market but the Stock Connect Fund(s) cannot carry out any A-Shares trading via the Stock Connects. The Stock Connect Funds may be subject to risks of price fluctuations in A-Shares during the time when any of the Stock Connects is not trading as a result.

*Operational risks:* The Stock Connects are premised on the functioning of the operational systems of the relevant market participants. Market participants are permitted to participate in these programs subject to meeting certain information technology capability, risk management and other requirements as may be specified by the relevant exchanges and/or clearing houses.

The securities regimes and legal systems of the two markets differ significantly and market participants may need to address issues arising from the differences on an on-going basis. There is no assurance that the systems of the SEHK and market participants will function properly or will continue to be adapted to changes and developments in both markets. In the event that the relevant systems fail to function properly, trading in both markets through the program could be disrupted. The Stock Connect Fund's ability to access the A-Share market via the Stock Connects (and hence to pursue its investment strategy) may be adversely affected. *Currency risks*: If the Stock Connect Fund(s) holds a class of shares denominated in a local currency other than RMB, the Stock Connect Fund(s) will be exposed to currency risk if the Stock Connect Fund(s) invest in a RMB product due to the need for the conversion of the local currency into RMB. During the conversion, the Stock Connect Fund(s) will also incur currency conversion costs. Even if the price of the RMB asset remains the same when the Stock Connect Fund purchases it and when such Fund redeems / sells it, the Stock Connect Fund will still incur a loss when it converts the redemption / sale proceeds into local currency if RMB has depreciated.

Clearing and settlement risk: The HKSCC and ChinaClear have established the clearing links and each has become a participant of the other to facilitate clearing and settlement of cross boundary trades. For cross-boundary trades initiated in a market, the clearing house of that market will, on one hand, clear and settle with its own clearing participants, and, on the other hand, undertake to fulfil the clearing and settlement obligations of its clearing participants with the counterparty clearing house.

As the national central counterparty of the PRC's securities market, ChinaClear operates comprehensive network of clearing. settlement and stock holding infrastructure. ChinaClear has established a risk management framework and measures that are approved and supervised by the China Securities Regulatory Commission ("CSRC"). The chances of ChinaClear default are considered to be remote. In the remote event of a ChinaClear default, HKSCC's liabilities in the SSE Securities and SZSE Securities under its market contracts with clearing participants will be limited to assisting clearing participants in pursuing their claims against ChinaClear. HKSCC should in good faith, seek recovery of the outstanding stocks and monies from ChinaClear through available legal channels or the liquidation of ChinaClear. In this event, the Stock Connect Funds may not fully recover their losses or their SSE Securities and SZSE Securities and the process of recovery could also be delayed.

Suspension Risk: Each of the SEHK, SSE and SZSE reserves the right to suspend trading if necessary for ensuring an orderly and fair market and that risks are managed prudently. Consent from the relevant regulator would be sought before a suspension is triggered. Where a suspension in the trading through the Stock Connects is effected, the relevant Stock Connect Fund's ability to invest in A-Shares or access the PRC market through the Stock Connects will be adversely affected. In such event, the relevant Stock Connect Fund's ability to achieve its investment objective could be negatively affected.

Restrictions on Selling Imposed by Front-end Monitoring: PRC regulations require that before an investor sells any share, there should be sufficient shares in the account; otherwise the SSE or the SZSE will reject the sell order concerned. The SEHK will carry out pre-trade checking on A-Shares sell orders of its participants (i.e. the stock brokers) to ensure there is no over-selling.

Depending on the operational model/set-up used by the relevant Stock Connect Fund to access the Stock Connects, if a Stock Connect Fund intends to sell certain A-Shares it holds, it may have to transfer those A-Shares to the respective accounts of its broker(s) before the market opens on the day of selling ("trading day"). In that case, if it fails to meet this deadline, it will not be able to sell those shares on the trading day. Should that constraint apply to the Stock Connect Fund, it may not be able to dispose of its holdings of A-Shares in a timely manner.

Taxation risk: The taxation position of foreign investors holding Chinese shares has historically been uncertain. Pursuant to the "Notice about the tax policies related to the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect" (Caishui [2014] No. 81) ("Notice No. 81") promulgated by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, the State Administration of Taxation of the PRC and the CSRC on 14 November 2014, a Stock Connect Fund is subject to a withholding income tax at 10% on dividends received from A-Shares traded via Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, unless reduced under a double tax treaty with China upon application to and obtaining approval from the competent China authority.

Pursuant to the "Notice on the tax policies related to the Pilot program of Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect" (Caishui [2016] No. 127) ("Notice No. 127") promulgated by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, the State Administration of Taxation of the PRC and the CSRC on 5 November 2016, a Stock Connect Fund is subject to a withholding tax at 10% on dividends received from A-Shares traded via Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect. Pursuant to Notice No. 81 and Notice No. 127, PRC corporate income tax will be temporarily exempted on capital gains derived by Hong Kong and overseas investors (including the relevant Stock Connect Funds) on the trading of A-Shares through the Stock Connects. It is noted that Notice No. 81 and Notice No. 127 both state that the corporate income tax exemption effective from 17 November 2014 and from 5 December 2016 respectively is temporary. The duration of the period of temporary exemption has not been stated and is subject to termination by the PRC tax authorities with or without notice and, in the worst case, retrospectively.

There are risks and uncertainties associated with the current PRC tax laws, regulations and practice in respect of capital gains realized via Stock Connect in the PRC (which may have retrospective effect). Any increased tax liabilities on the fund may adversely affect the relevant Sub-Fund's value.

# Risks associated with the Small and Medium Enterprise board and/or ChiNext market

The Stock Connect Funds may invest in the Small and Medium Enterprise ("SME") board and/or the ChiNext market of the SZSE via the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect program. Investments in the SME board and/or ChiNext market may result in significant losses for the Stock Connect Fund(s) and its/their investors.

The following additional risks apply:

- Higher fluctuation on stock prices: Listed companies on the SME board and/or ChiNext market are usually of emerging nature with smaller operating scale. Hence, they are subject to higher fluctuation in stock prices and liquidity and have higher risks and turnover ratios than companies listed on the main board

- Over-valuation risk: Stocks listed on the SME board and/or ChiNext may be overvalued and such exceptionally high valuation may not be sustainable. Stock price may be more susceptible to manipulation due to fewer circulating shares.

- Differences in regulations:

The rules and regulations regarding companies listed on ChiNext market are less stringent in terms of profitability and share capital than those in the main board and SME board.

- Delisting risk:

of the SZSE.

It may be more common and faster for companies listed on the SME board and/or ChiNext to delist. This may have an adverse impact on the relevant Sub-Fund if the companies that it invests in are delisted.

# Investing in fixed income securities through the Bond Connect

Some Funds may have the ability to invest in the fixed income securities (the "Bond Connect Securities") listed on the China Interbank Bond Market ("CIBM") through the mutual bond market access between Mainland China and Hong Kong ("the Bond Connect") established by China Foreign Exchange Trade System & National Interbank Funding Centre ("CFETS"), China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd, Shanghai Clearing House, and HKEX and Central Moneymarkets Unit ("CMU"), as specified in the Fund's investment policy (the "Bond Connect Fund(s)").

Under the prevailing regulations in Mainland China, the Bond Connect Funds may invest in the bonds circulated in the CIBM through the northbound trading of Bond Connect (the "Northbound Trading Link"). There will be no investment quota for Northbound Trading Link.

Under the Northbound Trading Link, eligible foreign investors are required to appoint the CFETS or other institutions recognised by the People's Bank of China ("PBOC") as registration agents to apply for registration with the PBOC.

Pursuant to the prevailing regulations in Mainland China, an offshore custody agent recognised by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA") (currently, the CMU) shall open omnibus nominee accounts with the onshore custody agent recognised by the PBOC (currently, the China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd and Shanghai Clearing House). All the Bond Connect Securities traded by the Bond Connect Funds will be registered in the name of the CMU, which will hold such Securities as a nominee owner.

# Specific Risks applicable to investing via the Bond Connect:

Regulatory risks: Bond Connect rules and regulations are relatively new. The application and interpretation of such investment regulations are therefore relatively untested and there is no certainty as to how they will be applied as the PRC authorities and regulators have been given wide discretion in such investment regulations and there is no precedent or certainty as to how such discretion may be exercised now or in the future. The relevant rules and regulations on investment in the CIBM via the Bond Connect are subject to change which may have potential retrospective effect. In addition, there can be no assurance that the Bond Connect rules and regulations will not be abolished in the future. The Bond Connect Funds may be adversely affected as a result of any such changes or abolition.

*Custody risks*: Under the prevailing regulations in Mainland China, the Bond Connect Funds who wish to invest in Bond Connect Securities may do so via an offshore custody agent approved by the HKMA ("Offshore Custody Agent"), who will be responsible for the account opening with the relevant onshore custody agent approved by PBOC. Since the account opening for investment in the CIBM market via Bond Connect has to be carried out via an offshore custody agent the relevant Fund is subject to the risks of default or errors on the part of the Offshore Custody Agent.

*Trading risks*: Trading in securities through the Bond Connect may be subject to clearing and settlement risk. If the PRC clearing house defaults on its obligation to deliver securities / make payment, the Bond Connect Funds may suffer delays in recovering its losses or may not be able to fully recover its losses.

*Taxation Risk*: There is no specific written guidance by the Mainland China tax authorities on the treatment of income tax and other tax categories payable in respect of trading in CIBM by eligible foreign institutional investors via Bond Connect. Hence, there is uncertainty as to the investment portfolio's tax liabilities for trading in CIBM via Bond Connect.

Beneficial owner of Bond Connect Securities: The Funds' Bond Connect Securities will be held following settlement by custodians as clearing participants in accounts in the CMU maintained by the HKMA as central securities depositary in Hong Kong and nominee holder. The CMU maintains omnibus securities account at both the China Central Depository & Clearing Co. Ltd (CCDC) and Shanghai Clearing House (SCH). The depositories are responsible for safekeeping different assets. The CCDC holds government bonds, corporate bonds, financial debentures and bond funds while the SCH holds short term commercial paper, private placement notes, and asset backed securities/notes. Because CMU is only a nominee holder and not the beneficial owner

of Bond Connect Securities, in the unlikely event that CMU becomes subject to winding up proceedings in Hong Kong, investors should note that Bond Connect Securities will not be regarded as part of the general assets of CMU available for distribution to creditors even under Mainland China law. CMU will not be obliged to take any legal action or enter into court proceedings to enforce any rights on behalf of investors in Bond Connect Securities in Mainland China. The Bond Connect Funds holding the Bond Connect Securities through CMU are the beneficial owners of the assets and are therefore eligible to exercise their rights through the nominee only. However, physical deposit and withdrawal of Bond Connect Securities are not available under the Northbound trading for the Bond Connect Fund. In addition, the Bond Connect Fund's title or interests in, and entitlements to Bond Connect Securities (whether legal, equitable or otherwise) will be subject to applicable requirements, including laws relating to any disclosure of interest requirement or foreign bondholding restriction, if any. It is uncertain whether the Chinese courts would recognise the ownership interest of the investors to allow them standing to take legal action against the Chinese entities in case disputes arise.

Not protected by Investor Compensation Fund: Investors should note that any trading under Bond Connect will not be covered by Hong Kong's Investor Compensation Fund nor the China Securities Investor Protection Fund and investors will thus not benefit from compensation under such schemes. Hong Kong's Investor Compensation Fund is established to pay compensation to investors of any nationality who suffer pecuniary losses as a result of default of a licensed intermediary or authorised financial institution in relation to exchange-traded products in Hong Kong. Examples of default are insolvency, in bankruptcy or winding up, breach of trust, defalcation, fraud, or misfeasance.

<u>Difference in trading day and trading hours</u>: Due to differences in public holiday between Hong Kong and Mainland China or other reasons such as bad weather conditions, there may be a difference in trading days and trading hours on the CIBM and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Bond Connect will thus only operate on days when both markets are open for trading and when banks in both markets are open on the corresponding settlement days. So it is possible that there are occasions when it is a normal trading day for the Mainland China market but it is not possible to carry out any Bond Connect Securities trading in Hong Kong.

The recalling of eligible bond and trading restrictions: A bond may be recalled from the scope of eligible bonds for trading via Bond Connect for various reasons, and in such event the bond can only be sold but is restricted from being bought. This may affect the investment portfolio or strategies of the Investment Manager.

*Trading costs*: In addition to paying trading fees and other expenses in connection with Bond Connect Securities trading, the Bond Connect Funds carrying out Northbound trading via Bond Connect should also take note of any new portfolio fees, coupon interest tax and tax concerned with income arising from transfers which would be determined by the relevant authorities.

Currency risks: Investments by the Bond Connect Funds in the Bond Connect Securities will be traded and settled in RMB. If the Bond Connect Fund holds a class of shares denominated in a local currency other than RMB, the Bond Connect Fund will be exposed to currency risk if the Bond Connect Fund invests in a RMB product due to the need for the conversion of the local currency into RMB. During the conversion, the Bond Connect Fund will also incur currency conversion costs. Even if the price of the RMB asset remains the same the Bond Connect when Fund purchases/redeems/sells it, the Bond Connect Fund will still incur a loss when it converts the redemption / sale proceeds into local currency if RMB has depreciated.

Risk of Mainland Financial Infrastructure Institutions default: A failure or delay by the Mainland financial infrastructure institutions in the performance of its obligations may result in a failure of settlement, or the loss, of Bond Securities and/or Connect monies in connection with them and the Umbrella Fund and its investors may suffer losses as a result. Neither the Umbrella Fund nor the Investment Manager shall be responsible or liable for any such losses. Investors should note that dealing a Fund's investments through Bond Connect may also entail operational risks due notably to the relatively new applicable rules and regulation or the clearing and trade-settlement obligations. Investors should also note that Bond Connect is ruled mostly by the laws and regulations applicable in Mainland China.

### Risks associated with the CIBM

Market volatility and potential lack of liquidity due to low trading volume of certain debt securities in the CIBM may result in prices of certain debt securities traded on such market fluctuating significantly. The Bond Connect Funds are therefore subject to liquidity and volatility risks. The bid and offer spreads of the prices of such securities may be large, and the Bond Connect Funds may therefore incur significant trading and realisation costs and may even suffer losses when selling such investments.

A Bond Connect Fund may also be exposed to risks associated with settlement procedures and default of counterparties. The counterparty which has entered into a transaction with the Bond Connect Fund may default in its obligation to settle the transaction by delivery of the relevant security or by payment for value.

For investments via the Bond Connect, the relevant filings, registration with the PBOC and account opening have to be carried out via an offshore custody agent, registration agent or other third parties (as the case may be). As such, the Bond Connect Fund is subject to the risks of default or errors on the part of such third parties.

Investing in the CIBM via the Bond Connect is also subject to regulatory risks. The relevant rules and regulations on these regimes are subject to change which may have potential retrospective effect. In the event that the relevant Mainland Chinese authorities suspend account opening or trading on the CIBM, the Bond Connect Fund's ability to invest in the CIBM will be adversely affected. In such event, the Bond Connect Fund's ability to achieve its investment objective will be negatively affected.

There is no specific written guidance by the Mainland China tax authorities on the treatment of income tax and other tax categories payable in respect of trading in the CIBM by eligible foreign institutional investors via the Bond Connect. Hence, there is uncertainty as to a Bond Connect Fund's tax liabilities for trading in the CIBM via the Bond Connect.

#### Equity Securities

Investing in equity securities involve risks associated with the unpredictable drops in a stock's value or periods of below-average performance in a given stock or in the stock market as a whole.

# Capitalization Size of Companies – Small and Mid Capitalization Companies

Investments in small and mid capitalization companies may involve greater risks than investments in larger companies, including fewer managerial and financial resources. Stocks of small and mid-size companies may be particularly sensitive to unexpected changes in interest rates, borrowing costs and earnings. As a result of trading less frequently, stocks of small and mid-size companies may also be subject to wider price fluctuations and may be less liquid.

# Real Estate Securities and REITs

Some Sub-Funds may invest in equity securities of companies linked to the real estate industry or publicly traded securities of closedended Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs). REITs are companies that acquire and/or develop real property for long term investment purposes. They invest the majority of their assets directly in real property and derive their income primarily from rents.

The performance of a Sub-Fund investing in real estate securities will be dependent in part on the performance of the Real Estate market and the Real Estate industry in general.

REITs are usually subject to certain risks, including fluctuating property values, changes in interest rates, property taxes and mortgagerelated risks. Furthermore, REITs are dependent on management skills, are not diversified, and are subject to heavy cash flow dependency, risks of borrower default and selfliquidation.

#### When-issued Securities

Certain Sub-Funds may invest in when-issued securities. This involves the Sub-Fund entering into a commitment to buy a security before the security has been issued. The payment obligation and the interest rate on the security are determined when the Sub-Fund enters into the commitment. The security is typically delivered 15 to 120 days later.

If the value of the security being purchased falls between the time the Sub-Fund commits to buy it and the payment date, the Sub-Fund may sustain loss.

The risk of this loss is in addition to the Sub-Fund's risk of loss on the securities actually in its portfolio at the time. In addition, when the Sub-Fund buys a security on a when-issued basis, it is subject to the risk that market rates of interest will increase before the time the security is delivered, with the result that the yield on the security delivered to the Sub-Fund may be lower than the yield available on other comparable securities at the time of.

# Initial Public Offerings ("IPOs")

Investors should note that certain Sub-Funds, notwithstanding their investment policy and/or restrictions, may not be eligible to participate in equity IPOs due to the fact that the parent companies and/or affiliates of the Management Company, which themselves are precluded from participating in equity IPOs, or other investors subject to similar restrictions, have invested in such Sub-Funds. Such ineligibility for equity IPOs results in the loss of an investment opportunity, which may adversely affect the performance of the concerned Sub-Funds.

### Exchange Rates

Some Sub-Funds are invested in securities denominated in a number of different currencies other than their Reference Currency. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates will affect the value of some securities held by such Sub-Funds.

# Currency risk at Share Class level

For unhedged Share Classes denominated in currencies different from the Sub-Fund's Reference Currency, the Share Class value follows fluctuations of the exchange rate between the Shares Class hedging currency and the Sub Fund's Reference Currency, which can generate additional volatility at the Share Class level.

# Financial Derivatives Instruments

A Sub-Fund may engage in derivatives transactions as part of its investment strategy for hedging and efficient portfolio management purpose. These strategies currently include the use of listed and OTC derivatives.

A derivative is a contract whose price is dependent upon or derived from one or more underlying assets. The most common derivatives instruments include, without limitation, futures contracts, forward contracts, options, warrants, swaps and convertibles securities. The value of a derivative instrument is determined by fluctuations in its underlying asset. The most common underlying assets include stocks, bonds, currencies, interest rates and market indexes.

The use of derivatives for investment purposes may create greater risk for the Sub-Funds than using derivatives solely for hedging purposes.

These instruments are volatile and may be subject to various types of risks, including but not limited to market risk, liquidity risk, credit risk, counterparty risk, legal and operations risks.

Furthermore, there may be an imperfect correlation between derivatives instruments used as hedging vehicles and the investments or market sectors to be hedged. This might result in an imperfect hedge of these risks and a potential loss of capital.

Most derivatives are characterized by high leverage.

The principal risks associated with using derivatives in managing a portfolio are:

• a higher absolute market exposure for Sub-Funds that make an extensive use of derivatives;

• difficulty of determining whether and how the value of a derivative will correlate to market movements and other factors external to the derivative;

• difficulty of pricing a derivative, especially a derivative that is traded over-the-counter or for which there is a limited market;

• difficulty for a Sub-Fund, under certain market conditions, to acquire a derivative needed to achieve its objectives;

• difficulty for a Sub-Fund, under certain market conditions, to dispose of certain derivatives when those derivatives no longer serve their purposes.

#### Credit Default Swaps – Special Risk Consideration

A credit default swap "CDS" is a bilateral financial contract in which one counterparty (the protection buyer) pays a periodic fee in return for a contingent payment by the protection seller following a credit event of a reference issuer. The protection buyer acquires the right to sell a particular bond or the right to receive the difference between par value and market price of the said bond or other designated reference obligations (or some other designated reference or strike price) when a credit event occurs. A credit event is commonly defined as bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, material adverse restructuring of debt, or failure to meet payment obligations when due. The International Swap and Derivatives Association (ISDA) has produced standardized documentation for these derivatives transactions under the umbrella of its ISDA Master Agreement.

A Sub-Fund may use credit derivatives in order to hedge the specific credit risk of certain issuers on its portfolio by buying protection. In addition, a Sub-Fund may, provided it is in its exclusive interest, buy protection using credit derivatives without holding the underlying assets. Provided it is in its exclusive interest, a Sub-Fund may also sell protection using derivatives in order to acquire specific credit exposure.

#### Geographic Concentration

Certain Sub-Funds may concentrate their investments in companies of certain specific parts of the world, which involves more risk than investing more broadly. As a result, such Sub-Funds may underperform funds investing in other parts of the world when economies of their investment area are experiencing difficulty or their stocks are otherwise out of favor. Moreover, economies of such Sub-Fund's investment area may be significantly affected by adverse political, economic or regulatory developments.

#### Global Investing

International investing involves certain risks such as currency exchange rate fluctuations, political or regulatory developments, economic instability and lack of information transparency. Securities in one or more markets may also be subject to limited liquidity.

#### Gold

The price of gold (precious metals generally) is particularly volatile. Production costs in goldmines amplify more such fluctuations because of the leverage which is inherent to them.

#### Growth/Value Risk

#### Value Investing

Value investing seeks underpriced stocks, but there is no guarantee the price will rise and these stocks may continue to be undervalued by the market for long periods of time.

#### **Growth Investing**

Growth stocks may be more volatile and sensitive to certain market movements because their value is often based on factors such as future earnings expectations which may change with market changes. Since they usually reinvest a high proportion of earnings in their own businesses, they may lack the dividends associated with value stocks that can cushion their decline in a falling market. Also, since investors buy these stocks because of their expected superior earnings growth, earnings disappointments often result in sharp price declines.

#### Index Tracking

Tracking a specific index involves the risk that the returns of the relevant Sub-Fund will be less than the returns of such index. Sub-Fund expenses will also tend to reduce the Sub-Fund's return to below the return of the index.

# Investing on the Moscow Exchange MICEX-RTS

Investing on the Moscow Exchange MICEX-RTS (the "MICEX-RTS") involves greater risks than those generally associated with investing in developed markets, including risks of nationalization, expropriation of assets, high inflation rates, and custodial risks. As a result, investments on the MICEX-RTS are generally considered as volatile and illiquid.

The regional sub-custodian in Eastern Europe shall be 'UniCredit Bank Austria AG' with as local sub-custodian in Russia 'ZAO UniCredit Bank'.

# Investment in CNH Bonds

CNH Bonds are bonds denominated in the Chinese currency, the Renminbi (RMB) issued in the offshore market - for instance the Central Money Markets Unit in Hong Kong.

Investing in CNH Bonds involves greater risks than those generally associated with debt securities (changing interest rates, credit risk...) and with investing in developed markets.

This offshore market, on which certain Sub-Funds may invest, may prove at time to be insufficiently liquid or illiquid. This affects the spread between bid and ask prices negotiated and the valuation price of such a Sub-Fund's securities. Moreover, the CNH Bonds investments may be adversely affected by changes of local laws and tax regimes, whether or not aimed specifically at foreign investors. In such cases, the net asset value of Sub-Funds investing in CNH Bonds could also decrease.

# Leverage Risk

Due to the use of financial derivatives instruments, repurchase agreements and securities lending and borrowing transactions, certain Sub-Funds may be leveraged. For these Sub-Funds, Market variations may thus be amplified and consequently, their net asset value could decrease more significantly.

# Liquidity

Certain Sub-Funds may acquire securities that are traded only among a limited number of investors.

The limited number of investors for those securities may make it difficult for the Sub-Funds to dispose of those securities quickly or in adverse market conditions. Many derivatives and securities that are issued by entities that pose substantial credit risks typically are among those types of securities that the Sub-Funds may acquire that only are traded among limited numbers of investors.

Some markets, on which certain Sub-Funds may invest, may prove at time to be insufficiently liquid or illiquid. This affects the market price of such a Sub-Fund's securities and therefore its net asset value.

Furthermore, there is a risk that, because of a lack of liquidity and efficiency in certain markets due to unusual market conditions or unusual high volumes of repurchase requests or other reason, the Sub-Funds may experience some difficulties in purchasing or selling holdings of therefore, securities and, meeting subscriptions and redemptions in the time scale indicated in this Prospectus. In such circumstances, the Management Company may, in accordance with the SICAV's Articles of Incorporation and in the investors' interest, suspend subscriptions and redemptions or extend the settlement timeframe.

#### Loans

Certain Sub-Funds may invest in loans that qualify as money market instruments and also in undertakings for collective investment investing in loans. Those loans may be difficult to value and may be subject to various types of risks, including but not limited to, market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and risk of changing interest rates.

#### Market Risk

The value of investments may decline over a given time period due to the fluctuation of market risk factors (such as stock prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates or commodity prices). To varying degrees, market risk affects all securities. Market risk may significantly affect the market price of Sub-Funds' securities and, therefore their net asset value.

### Mining

This is the risk engendered by the exploitation of the mineral resources which is characterized by an accident occurring on an industrial site mining and being able to entail grave consequences for the staff, the populations, the goods, the environment or the natural environment.

#### Model Risk

The process of management of the Sub-Fund bases on the elaboration of a systematic model allowing identifying signals on the basis of past statistical results. There is a risk that the model is not efficient, guaranteeing nothing that the past situations of market reproduce in the future.

#### Portfolio Management Risk

For any given Sub-Fund, there is a risk that investment techniques or strategies are unsuccessful and may incur losses for the Sub-Fund. Shareholders will have no right or power to participate in the day-to-day management or control of the business of the Sub-Funds, nor an opportunity to evaluate the specific investments made by the Sub-Funds or the terms of any of such investments.

Past performance is not a reliable indicator as to future performance. The nature of and risks associated with the Sub-Fund's future performance may differ materially from those investments and strategies historically undertaken by the Management Company. There can be no assurance that the Management Company will realise returns comparable to those achieved in the past or generally available on the market.

#### Portfolio Concentration

Although the strategy of certain Sub-Funds of investing in a limited number of stocks has the potential to generate attractive returns over time, it may increase the volatility of such Sub-Funds' investment performance as compared to funds that invest in a larger number of stocks. If the stocks in which such Sub-Funds invest perform poorly, the Sub-Funds could incur greater losses than if it had invested in a larger number of stocks.

# Risk on Cross Class Liabilities for all Share Classes

Although there is an accounting attribution of assets and liabilities to the relevant Class, there is no legal segregation with respect to Classes of the same Sub-Fund. Therefore, if the liabilities of a Class exceed its assets, creditors of said Class of the Sub-Fund may seek to have recourse to the assets attributable to the other Classes of the same Sub-Fund. As there is an accounting attribution of assets and liabilities without any legal segregation amongst Classes, a transaction relating to a

amongst Classes, a transaction relating to a Class could affect the other Classes of the same Sub-Fund.

Securities Lending, / Repurchase Transactions Risk

Securities lending transactions, repurchase reverse repurchase transactions and agreements on unlisted contracts expose the Sub-Funds to counterparty risks. If the counterparty goes into liquidation or fails or defaults on the contract, the Sub-Fund might only recover, even in respect of property specifically traceable to it, a pro rata part of all property available for distribution to all of such counterparty's creditors and/or customers. In such case, the Sub-Funds could suffer a loss. Counterparty risk is generally mitigated by the transfer or pledge of collateral in favour of the relevant Sub-Fund. However, there are certain risks associated with collateral management, including difficulties in selling collateral and/or losses incurred upon realization of collateral, as described below.

Securities lending transactions, repurchase transactions and reverse repurchase transactions also entail liquidity risks due, inter alia, to locking cash or securities positions in transactions of excessive size or duration relative to the liquidity profile of the relevant Sub-Fund or delays in recovering cash or securities paid to the counterparty. These circumstances may delay or restrict the ability of the relevant Sub-Fund to meet redemption requests

These operations are volatile and may be subject to other various types of risks, including but not limited to market risk, legal risks related to the document used in respect of such transactions and operations risks such as, inter alia, non-settlement or delay in settlement of instructions, failure or delays in satisfying delivery oblitions under sales of securities.

# Collateral Management

Counterparty risk arising from investments in OTC, financial derivative instruments and securities lending transactions, repurchase and agreements reverse repurchase agreements is generally mitigated by the transfer or pledge of collateral in favour of the Sub-Fund. However, transactions may not be fully collateralised. Fees and returns due to the Sub-Fund may not be collateralised. If a counterparty defaults, the Sub-Fund may need to sell non-cash collateral received at prevailing market prices. In such a case the Sub-Fund could realise a loss due, inter alia, to inaccurate pricing or monitoring of the collateral, adverse market movements, deterioration in the credit rating of issuers of the collateral or illiquidity of the market on which the collateral is traded. Difficulties in selling collateral may delay or restrict the ability of the Sub-Fund to meet redemption requests.

A Sub-Fund may also incur a loss in reinvesting cash collateral received, where permitted. Such a loss may arise due to a decline in the value of the investments made. A decline in the value of such investments would reduce the amount of collateral available to be returned by the Sub-Fund to the counterparty as required by the terms of the transaction. The Sub-Fund would be required to cover the difference in value between the collateral originally received and the amount available to be returned to the counterparty, thereby resulting in a loss to the Sub-Fund.

# Custody Risk

Assets of the SICAV are safe kept by the Depositary and investors are exposed to the risk of the Depositary not being able to fully meet its obligation to restitute in a short time frame all of the assets of the SICAV in the case of bankruptcy of the Depositary. The assets of the SICAV will be identified in the Depositary's books as belonging to the SICAV. Securities held by the Depositary will be segregated from other assets of the Depositary which mitigates but does not exclude the risk of non-restitution in case of bankruptcy. However, no such segregation applies to cash which increases the risk of non-restitution in case of bankruptcy. The Depositary does not keep all the assets of the SICAV itself but uses a network of subcustodians which are not necessarily part of the same group of companies as the Depositary. Investors are exposed to the risk of bankruptcy of the sub-custodians in the same manner as they are to the risk of bankruptcy of the Depositary.

A Sub-Fund may invest in markets where custodial and/or settlement systems are not fully developed. The assets of the Sub-Fund that are traded in such markets and which have been entrusted to such sub-custodians may be exposed to risk in circumstances where the Depositary will have no liability.

#### Securitization

#### Mortgage-related Securities and Assetbacked Securities

Certain Sub-Funds may invest in mortgage derivatives and structured notes, including mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. Mortgage pass-through securities are securities representing interests in "pools" of mortgages in which payments of both interest and principal on the securities are usually made monthly, in effect "passing through" monthly payments made by the individual borrowers on the residential mortgage loans which underlie the securities.

Early or late repayment of principal based on an expected repayment schedule on mortgage pass-through securities held by a Sub-Fund (due to early or late repayments of principal on the underlying mortgage loans) may result in a lower rate of return when the relevant Sub-Fund reinvests such principal. In addition, as with callable fixed income securities generally, if the Sub-Fund purchased the securities at a premium, sustained earlier than expected repayment would reduce the value of the security relative to the premium paid.

When interest rates rise or decline the value of a mortgage-related security generally will decline, or increase but not as much as other fixed-income, fixed-maturity securities which have no prepayment or call features.

Asset-backed transferable securities represent a participation in, or are secured by and payable from, a stream of payments generated by particular assets, most often a pool of assets similar to one another, such as motor vehicle receivables or credit card receivables, home equity loans, manufactured housing loans or bank loan obligations.

Interest rate risk is greater for mortgage-related and asset-backed securities than for many other types of debt securities because they are generally more sensitive to changes in interest rates. These types of securities are subject to prepayment – borrowers paying off mortgages or loans sooner than expected – when interest rates fall. As a result, when interest rates rise, the effective maturities of mortgage-related and asset-backed securities tend to lengthen, and the value of the securities decreases more significantly. The result is lower returns to the Sub-Fund because the Sub-Fund must reinvest assets previously invested in these types of securities in securities with lower interest rates.

#### Structured Instrument

Certain Sub-Funds may invest in structured instruments, which are debt instruments linked to the performance of an asset, a foreign currency, an index of securities, an interest rate, or other financial indicators. The payment on a structured instrument may vary linked to changes of the value of the underlying assets. Structured instruments may be used to indirectly increase a Sub-Fund's exposure to changes to the value of the underlying assets or to hedge the risks of other instruments that the Sub-Fund holds.

Structured investments involve special risks including those associated with leverage, illiquidity, changes in interest rate, market risk and the credit risk of their issuers. As an example, the issuer of the structured instruments may be unable or unwilling to satisfy its obligations and/or the instrument's underlying assets may move in a manner that may turn out to be disadvantageous for the holder of the instrument.

# Structured instrument risk (including securitizations)

Securitization instruments result from complex financial configurations that may contain both legal and specific risks pertaining to the characteristics of the underlying assets.

# Investment in undertakings for collective investments:

Certain Sub-Funds may invest in undertaking for collective investments: although the undertakings for collective investments are regulated by the relevant local authority, the investment in such undertaking for collective investments carries specific risks:

- Portfolio management risk consisting in the undertaking for collective investment underperforming its benchmark and therefore not achieving the performance objective that was anticipated by the Management Company;

- valuation risk as the calculation of the net asset value of the undertaking for collective investments may be altered by temporary price distortion - especially in a context of lack of liquidity;

- risk on liquidity as the undertaking for collective investments may delay or reduce redemption request under specific market circumstances or as the volume of redemption may reach a certain percentage of the undertaking for collective investments.

#### Sustainability risks

The Sub-Funds listed below are subject to sustainability risks as defined in the Regulation 2019/2088 (article 2(22)) as an environmental, social or governance event or condition that, if it occurs, could cause an actual or a potential material negative impact on the value of the investment (the **"Sustainability Risk(s)**").

Sustainability Risks are principally linked to climate-related events resulting from climate change (i.e. Physical Risks) or to the society's response to climate change (i.e. Transition Risks), which may result in unanticipated losses that could affect the Sub-Funds' investments and financial condition.

Social events (e.g. inequality, inclusiveness, labour relations, investment in human capital, accident prevention, changing customer behaviour, etc.) or governance shortcomings (e.g. recurrent significant breach of international agreements, bribery issues, products quality and safety, selling practices, etc.) may also translate into Sustainability Risks.

Sustainability factors consist in environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery matters (the "**Sustainability Factors**").

Even though the portfolio investment process may integrate an ESG approach, the preliminary investment objective is not to mitigate Sustainability Risk.

Principal adverse impacts of investment decisions on Sustainability Factors are not currently considered by the Management Company due to the lack of available and reliable data. The situation will however be reviewed going forward.

- 1. NATIXIS CONSERVATIVE RISK PARITY;
- OSTRUM TOTAL RETURN VOLATILITY;
- 3. NATIXIS BOND ALTERNATIVE RISK PREMIA;
- 4. NATIXIS GLOBAL MULTI STRATEGIES.

The Sub-Funds listed below are subject to sustainability risks as defined in Regulation 2019/2088 (Article 2(22)) by environmental, social or governance event or condition that, if it occurs, could have a real or potential negative impact on the value of the investment. Even if the portfolio investment process is in line with the ESG policy defined by Ostrum Asset Management the preliminary investment objective of the Sub-Funds is not to mitigate the Sustainability Risk as defined in Regulation 2019/2088 (Article 2(22)) by an environmental, social or governance event or condition which, if it occurs, could have a real or potential negative effect on the value of the investment.

Ostrum Asset Management integrates systematically Sustainability Risks in issuers' analysis, applies strong exclusions, a controversy management policy and a voting policy.

Engagement with issuers is also applied for all portfolio management teams at Ostrum Asset Management level.

# 1. OSTRUM GLOBAL EMERGING BONDS.

The Sub-Funds listed below are subject to Sustainability Risks as defined in the Regulation 2019/2088 (article 2(22)) by environmental, social or governance event or condition that, if it occurs, could cause an actual or a potential material negative impact on the value of the investment.

Portfolio investment process includes the above mentioned ESG approach *inter alia* to integrate Sustainability Risks into the investment decision or process.

Principal adverse impacts of investment decisions on sustainability factors are not currently considered by the Management Company due to the lack of available and reliable data. The situation will however be reviewed going forward.

1. OSTRUM SRI EURO AGGREGATE

- 2. OSTRUM SRI CREDIT SHORT DURATION
- 3. OSTRUM SRI GLOBAL SUBORDINATED DEBT
- 4. OSTRUM SRI TOTAL RETURN SOVEREIGN
- 5. OSTRUM EURO INFLATION
- 6. OSTRUM SRI EUROPE MINVOL EQUITY
- 7. OSTRUM SRI GLOBAL MINVOL EQUITY
- 8. OSTRUM SRI TOTAL RETURN CONSERVATIVE
- 9. OSTRUM SRI TOTAL RETURN DYNAMIC
- 10. OSTRUM SRI HIGH EURO DIVIDEND EQUITY
- 11. OSTRUM FIXED INCOME MULTI STRATEGIES
- 12. OSTRUM TOTAL RETURN CREDIT

More information on the framework related to the incorporation of Sustainability Risks set by the Management Company are to be found in the sustainability risk management policy of the Management Company on its website.

# Volatility Risk

The volatility is uncorrelated from the performances of the traditional markets of securities. As a consequence, the risk is the manager anticipates an increase of the volatility and the volatility lowers or conversely the manager anticipates a reduction in the volatility and the volatility increases.

#### Sport Theme

Investments in Sport related companies may be adversely impacted if any restriction occurs on movement of people, transportation freeze or restrictions, borders closing, quarantine due to health crisis. The events described above could restrict or prohibit sport practices (for example ski resorts closure), organization and/or access to sport events (empty stadiums), supply chains disruptions of sport equipment (store closures). Such events could increase market volatility and may negatively impact Sub-Fund performances.

More specifically, the Sport teams' segment could be adversely impacted by negative sportive results induced by no fans in stadiums, cancelation of competitions or games.

### CHARGES AND EXPENSES

The SICAV pays out of its assets all taxes and expenses payable by the SICAV. Those expenses include :

- The Management Fees;
- The Service Fees.

The aggregate amount of Management Company fees, Investment Managers fees, Distributors fees, registration fees and expenses specific to a Sub-Fund or Share Class are known as "**Management Fees**" and shall not exceed such percentage of each Sub-Fund's average daily net asset value as indicated in each Sub-Fund's description under "Characteristics."

The Management Company pays the Delegated Investment Managers, Distributors, out of the fees it receives from the SICAV.

In relation to the fees that might be payable to distributors, the distributors and their sub-distributors shall inform their clients and any other applicable party about the nature and amount of any remuneration received, if required by applicable laws and regulations.

"Service Fees" are defined as the total amount of the fees charged to the Sub-Fund and cover services and regulatory requirements such as but not limited to:

- The Depositary fees ;
- The Administrative Agent fees ;
- Paying Agent, Domiciliary and Corporate Agent;
- Registrar and Transfer Agent fees;
- The costs of preparing, printing, publishing and translating as are necessary, and distributing
  offering information or documents concerning the SICAV or/and the Sub-Fund (such as Key
  Information Documents, Key Investor Information Documents, this Prospectus), notices to
  shareholders, annual and semi-annual reports and such other reports or documents as may be
  desirable or required under laws or regulations applicable to the SICAV or the offering of
  shares;
- the costs associated with the required collection, reporting and publication of data about the SICAV, its investments and shareholders;
- Independent auditors'fees;
- Outside counsels and other professionals fees;
- Legal fees;
- Management company expenses including AML/CFT, KYC, Risk and oversight of delegated activities;
- Registration expenses including regulators fees, translation, legal fees, dissemination, regulatory and tax reporting;
- ESG certification and service fees;
- Cost of preparing and filing all documents pertaining to the SICAV
- Distribution and sales support costs;
- Financial index licensing
- Other administrative expenses, such as insurance coverage;
- All charges and expenses similar to the ones listed above.

Advertising and promotion expenses in connection with the SICAV will not be paid by its assets.

Service Fees shall not exceed such percentage of each Sub-Fund's average daily net asset value as indicated in each Sub-Fund's description under "Characteristics".

The **"All in Fee"** is defined as the aggregate of Management Fees and Service Fees paid annually by each Sub-Fund, other than taxes (such as "Taxe d'abonnement") and expenses relating to the creation or liquidation of any Sub-Fund or Share Class; the All in Fee shall not exceed such percentage of each Sub-Fund's average daily net asset value as indicated in each Sub-Fund's description under "Characteristics." The All-in Fee paid by each Share Class, as indicated in each Sub-Fund's description, does not necessarily include all the expenses linked to the SICAV's investments (such as the taxe

d'abonnement, brokerage fees, expenses linked to withholding tax reclaims) that are paid by such SICAV.

Unless otherwise provided for in any Sub-Fund's description, if the yearly actual expenses paid by any Sub-Fund exceed the applicable **All-in Fee**, the Management Company will support the difference and the corresponding income will be recorded under Management Company fees in the SICAV's audited annual report. If the yearly actual expenses paid by each Sub-Fund are lower than the applicable All-in Fee, the Management Company will keep the difference and the corresponding charge will be recorded under SICAV's audited annual report.

Expenses that are specific to a Sub-Fund or Share Class will be borne by that Sub-Fund or Share Class. Charges that are not specifically attributable to a particular Sub-Fund or Share Class are allocated among the relevant Sub-Funds or Share Classes based on their respective net assets or any other reasonable basis given the nature of the charges.

Initial formation expenses as well as subsequent charges relating to the creation of a new Sub-Fund or Share Class will be amortised over a period not exceeding 5 years.

The "**indirect management fees**" are defined as the total amount of the fees related to investment in UCITS/AIF/other investment funds.

#### **Performance fee**

When applicable, the Management Company shall receive a performance fee in case of outperformance of the Sub-fund versus the relevant Reference Index.

The performance fee applicable to a particular class of share of the relevant Sub-Fund is based on a comparison of the Valued Asset (as defined below) against the Reference Asset (as defined below).

When the Sub-Fund employs a performance fee model based on a Reference Asset, it should be ensured that any underperformance of the Sub-Fund compared to the Reference is clawed back before any performance fee becomes payable. The length of the performance reference period is set equal to 5 years on a rolling basis.

On each Valuation Day (the "**Calculation Day**"), the **Valued Asset** of the Sub-Fund is the portion of the net assets corresponding to a particular class of share, valued in accordance with the rules applicable to the assets net of all costs (including the All In Fee and before deducting the performance fee) corresponding to the said share class.

The **Reference Asset** corresponds to the portion of the Sub-Fund's net assets related to a particular share class on the Valuation Day preceding the Calculation Day, adjusted to take into account the subscription/redemption amounts applicable to the said share class on such Valuation Day and to which Reference Rate (as defined below) of the said class of share is applied.

The **Reference Rate** of the Sub-Funds is specified in each relevant section of the Sub-Funds.

The **Crystallization Frequency** is the frequency at which the accrued performance fee, if any, becomes payable to the Management Company.

The Crystallization Frequency is aligned with the Observation Period and should not be more than once a year.

The **Observation Period** of the Sub-Funds is defined in each relevant section of the Sub-Funds.

If, over the Observation Period, the Valued Asset of the Sub-Fund is higher than the Reference Asset, the actual performance fee will be accrued with the applicable percentage of performance fee, as set out in each Sub-Fund's description under "Characteristics", (inc. tax) applied on the difference between these two assets. The performance fee is calculated and accrued on each Valuation Day.

If, over the Observation Period, the Valued Asset of the Sub-Fund is lower than the Reference Asset, the performance fees will be zero.

Any underperformance of the Valued Asset of the Sub-Fund compared to the Reference Asset at the end of the relevant Observation Period should be clawed back before any performance fee becomes payable over years on a rolling basis, i.e. the Management Company should look back at the past 5 years for the purpose of compensating underperformances. A reset will be implemented if:

- (i) an underperformance is not compensated and no longer relevant as this successive period of five years has elapsed,
- (ii) a performance fee is paid at any time during this successive period of five years.

In case the Valued Asset of the Sub-Fund has overperformed the Reference Asset on the last Valuation Day of the Observation Period, the Management Company should be able to crystallise the accrued performance fee over the Observation Period (subject to any clawback as indicated above). Such crystallized performance fee shall be payable within three months to the Management Company.

In case of redemption and/or closure/merger of the relevant Sub-Fund, the due share of performance fee portion corresponding to the number of shares which have been redeemed is definitely payable to the Management Company within three months as from the relevant Observation Period.

# Unless specified in the supplement of a Sub-Fund, a performance fee will not be accrued and payable in the case where the relevant Sub-Fund delivered a negative performance, even though the Valued Asset has overperformed the Reference Asset.



The following example illustrates the principles above:

Year (Financial Year end)	Valued Asset Performance in amount	Reference Asset Performance in amount	Net Performance (Comparison between the Valued Asset of the Sub-Fund and the Reference Asset as described above)	Underperformance to be compensated in the following year	Payment of performances fees	Comments
31 December of Year 1	10	5	Outperformance:+5 Calculation: 10 - 5	-	Yes	(5 X 20%)
31 December of Year 2	5	5	Net performance:0 Calculation: 5 - 5	-	No	
31 December of Year 3	3	8	Underperformance:-5 Calculation: 3 - 8	-5	No	Underperformance should be brought forward until year 7
31 December of Year 4	4	1	Outperformance:+3 Calculation: 4 - 1	-2 (-5 + 3)	No	
31 December of Year 5	2	0	Outperformance:+2 Calculation: 2 - 0	0 (-2 + 2)	No	Underperformance of year 3 compensated
31 December of Year 6	-1	-6	Outperformance:+5 Calculation: -1 - (-6)	-	Yes	(5 X 20%)
31 December of Year 7	4	-1	Outperformance:+5 Calculation: 4 - (-1)	-	Yes	(5 X 20%)
31 December of Year 8	-10	+0	Underperformance:-10 Calculation: -10 - 0	-10	No	Underperformance should be brought forward until year 12
31 December of Year 9	-1	-3	Outperformance:+2 Calculation: -1 - (-3)	-8 (-10 + 2)	No	
31 December of Year 10	-5	-7	Outperformance:+2 Calculation: -5 - (-7)	-6 (-8 + 2)	No	
31 December of Year 11	0	-2	Outperformance:+2 Calculation: 0 - (-2)	-4 (-6 + 2)	No	
31 December of Year 12	1	1	Net Performance:+0 Calculation: 1 - 1	-4	No	The underperformance of year 12 to be taken forward to the following year (year 13) is 0 (and not -4) in light of the fact that the residual underperformance coming from year 8 that was not yet compensated (-4) is no longer relevant as the 5-year period has elapsed (the underperformance of year 8 is compensated until year 12).
31 December of Year 13	4	2	Outperformance:+2 Calculation:4 - 2	-	Yes	(2 X 20%)
31 December of Year 14	1	7	Underperformance:-6 Calculation: 1 - 7	-6	No	Underperformance should be brought forward until year 18
31 December of Year 15	6	4	Outperformance:+2 Calculation: 6 - 4	-4 (-6 + 2)	No	
31 December of Year 16	5	3	Outperformance:+2 Calculation : 5 - 3	-2 (-4+2)	No	
31 December of Year 17	1	5	Underperformance:-4 Calculation 1 - 5	-6 (-2 + -4)	No	Underperformance should be brought forward until year 21
1 December of Year 18	3	3	Net Performance: 0 Calculation: 3 - 3	-4	No	The underperformance of year 18 to be taken forward to the following year (year 19) is 4 (and not -6) in light of the fact that the residual underperformance coming from year 14 that was not yet compensated (-2) is no longer relevant as the 5-year period has elapsed (the underperformance of year 14 is compensated until year 18).
31 December of Year 19	7	2	Outperformance:+5 Calculation: 7 - 2	+1 (-4 + 5)	Yes	Underperformance of year 18 compensated (1 X 20%)

# Information on income generated by securities lending transactions and repurchase agreements

The securities lending transactions and repurchase agreements may be entered into with (i) Natixis TradEx Solutions, a company belonging to the Management Company's group acting as principal or (ii) with other market counterparties. Those transactions may also be intermediated by Natixis TradEx Solutions acting as agent.

All revenues deriving from securities lendings and repurchase are, after operational costs, for the benefit of the relevant Sub-Fund.

With respect to these activities, Natixis TradEx Solutions in its capacity as agent or principal receive a fee equal to 40% (corresponding to the abovementioned operational costs) excluding taxes of the income generated by these securities lending transactions and repurchase agreements, which amount is specified in the Annual Report of the SICAV. In relation to reverse repurchase agreements only, all revenues deriving from these transactions are for the benefit of the relevant Sub-Fund without any operational costs generated by intermediaries.

#### SUBSCRIPTION, TRANSFER, CONVERSION AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES

# Share Characteristics

# **List of Share Classes**

Each Sub-Fund may issue Shares in several separate classes of Shares, as set out in each Sub-Fund's description under "Characteristics". The Board of Directors may at any time create additional Sub-Funds and/or classes of Shares.

Such Shares Classes may differ notably in their minimum initial investment, minimum holding amounts, investors eligibility requirements, applicable fees and expenses, distribution policy and their Share Class reference currencies.

As at the date of this Prospectus, the following Share Classes may be made available:

- Class R Shares are designed for retail investors (as defined under Markets in Financial Instruments Directive, known as "MIFID").
   The availability of these Share Classes may depend on the investor's location
  - and/or the type of service that the investor may receive from Intermediaries.
- Class R2 Shares are designed for retail investors investing through life insurance linked products (or other similar investment programs) sponsored by financial intermediaries (as part of their arbitrage activities for their clients) upon prior approval, as approved by of the Management Company, via their life insurance unit link products. These Share Classes are subject to a Minimum Initial Investment Amount.
- Class RE Shares are classes designed for retail investors (as defined under MIFID) for which there is no sales charge at the time of subscription but with a higher All-In Fee than the class R Shares of the same Sub-Fund;
- Class N Shares and Class N1 Shares are appropriate for investors investing through an approved distributor, platform, or intermediary ("Intermediary") that have entered into a separate legal agreement with the Management Company, or an approved Intermediary

that:

- has agreed not to receive any payments on the basis of a contractual arrangement, or
- is required to comply with the restrictions on payments in accordance with MIFID II, or, where applicable, any more restrictive regulatory requirements imposed by local regulators.

Accordingly, these Share Classes may typically be appropriate for:

- discretionary portfolio managers or independent advisers, as defined under MIFID II; and/or
- non-independent or restricted advisers who have agreed not to receive any payments or are not permitted to receive any payments pursuant to regulatory requirements imposed by local regulators.
- Class I Shares, appropriate for investors that qualify as Institutional investors (within the meaning of article 174 of the 2010 Law) or as Eligible Counterparties (as such term is defined under MIFID).
- Class SI and S1 Shares, appropriate for investors (i) qualifying as Institutional investors (within the meaning of article 174 of the 2010 Law) or Eligible Counterparties (as defined under MIFID) and (ii) that may be required to comply with the restrictions on the payment of commissions set-out under MIFID. These Share Classes are subject to a Minimum Initial Investment Amount.
- Class M Shares are designed for and reserved for feeder fund of Natixis Investment Managers Group only;

Class CW Shares can only be subscribed through a financial institution with (as defined under MIFID) which the Management Company has а distribution agreement covering class CW Shares. Class CW Shares are classes with no initial charge and no minimum investment amount at the time of subscription. Subscriptions for class CW Shares are consequently made at their net asset value calculated in accordance with Prospectus. this Investors in class CW Shares who redeem some or all of their Shares within the first 3 years from the date of their

subscription may be subject to a contingent deferred sales charge ("CDSC") in accordance with the percentage scale as set out under Redemption Charge below that will be retained by the financial institution through which the subscription of Shares was made by deducting such charge from the redemption proceeds paid to the relevant investor. Please refer to the section entitled "Class CW Shares -Contingent Deferred Sales Charge ("CDSC")" under Redemption Charge below for more details on the CDSC;

- Class Q Shares are reserved for (a) BPCE and any company of the Natixis group, each in its role as funding shareholder of the relevant Sub-Fund and upon prior approval of the Management Company, (b) the Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund concerned subscribing into Shares on behalf of its clients solely as part of its individual or collective discretionary portfolio management activities, (c) clients of the Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund concerned where the subscription is operated by the Delegated Investment Manager pursuant to a discretionary investment management agreement concluded with such clients; and (d) unaffiliated entities upon certain conditions determined by, and with the prior approval of, the Management Company;
- Class G Shares are reserved for undertakings for collective investment and segregated accounts for which VEGA Investment Solutions is acting as portfolio manager.

Each Share Class will be identified by the letter of the corresponding Share Class listed above (Class R, R2, RE, N, N1 I, SI,S1 etc.).

An up-to-date list of Share Classes available for subscription can be obtained from the Management Company or on the Management Company website: <u>www.im.natixis.com</u>

# Share Class Features

Each of the Share Classes listed above may be made available with a combination of the following features:

- Accumulation Share Classes reinvest in principal all revenues and capital gains and not to pay any dividends and are identified by a "A" following the class name (e.g. RA, IA). The Shareholders may however, upon proposal of the Board of Directors, elect to issue dividends to Shareholders of any Sub-Fund holding class A Shares as well as for Shareholders of any Sub-Fund holding class D Shares.
- Distribution Share Classes make periodic distributions (yearly or more frequently as deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors), as decided by the Shareholders upon proposal of the Board of Directors, and are identified by a "D" following the class name (e.g. RD, ID). In addition, the Board of Directors may declare interim dividends.
- No Performance Fee Share Classes are identified by a "NPF" in the Share Class name. These Shares do not pay any Performance Fee.

# **Hedging Policy**

Hedged Share Classes are quoted in a currency other than the Sub-Fund's Reference Currency and hedged against the Sub-Fund's Reference Currency. These Shares are identified by a "H" in the class name. Shareholders should note that hedged Shares will be hedged against the Sub-Fund's Reference Currency exchange risk regardless of whether the Sub-Fund's Reference Currency is declining or increasing in value relative to the Share Class hedging currency. Therefore, while holding hedged Shares may substantially protect the Shareholders against declines in the Sub-Fund's Reference Currency relative to the Share Class hedging Currency, holding such Shares may also substantially limit the Shareholders from benefiting if there is an increase in the value of the Sub-Fund's Reference Currency relative to the Share Class hedging Currency. The portion of the portfolio hedged against the Sub-Fund's Reference Currency may be over or under hedged during certain periods and thus the Shareholders may remain exposed to a residual Sub-Fund's Reference Currency exchange risk. This hedging will typically be undertaken by means of forward contracts but may also include options, Swaps futures. currency or Shareholders of hedged Shares should be aware that the intention is to provide hedging for the Sub-Fund's Reference Currency

denominated part of the assets attributable to the relevant hedged Shares against the Sub-Fund's Reference Currency exchange risk only. It does not target any hedging against other currencies in which the Sub-Fund's may invest.

When provided for in the relevant Sub-Fund appendix, the reference index which the Sub-Fund aims to outperform is adjusted, for hedged share classes only, to take account of the hedging at share class level. As indicated in the relevant Sub-Fund's appendix, in such circumstances, the reference index is adjusted to the difference between the relevant Share Class currency interest rate and the Euro zone interest rate (Euribor 1 month) over the Sub-Fund's recommended minimum investment period. In light of the transition to new risk free rates and the discontinuation/cessation of the LIBOR, the applicable Share Class currency interest rate will vary depending on the currency of the hedged share class concerned and will be as follows:

Hedged Share Class Currency	Applicable Share Class currency interest rate
EUR	EURIBOR (Euro Interbank Offered Rate)
GBP	SONIA (Sterling OverNight index Average)
USD	SOFR (Secured overnight Financing rate)
CHF	SARON (Swiss Average Rate OverNight)
AUD	AONIA (AUD overnight Index Average)



# **Shareholder Rights**

All Shareholders have the same rights, regardless of the class of Shares held. Each Share is entitled to one vote at any general meeting of the Shareholders. There are no preferential or pre-emptive rights attributable to the Shares.

#### **Reference Currency**

The Reference Currency of the SICAV is the Euro.

#### **Dividend Policy**

The Shareholders have the option to receive the dividend or to reinvest it in the SICAV. Cash dividends may be re-invested in additional Shares of the same class of the relevant Sub-Fund at the net asset value per Share determined on the day of re-investment at no charge to the Shareholder. If a Shareholder does not express its choice between reinvestment of dividends and payment of cash dividends, the dividends will be automatically re-invested in additional Shares.

Dividends not claimed within five years of distribution will be forfeited and revert to the relevant Sub-Fund. No interest shall be paid on dividends that have not been claimed.

Shareholders should note that no distribution may be made if the net asset value of the SICAV fall below €1,250,000.

# **Fractional Shares**

The Sub-Fund issues whole and fractional Shares up to one ten-thousandth of a Share. Fractional entitlements to Shares do not carry voting rights but do grant rights of participation on a pro-rated basis in net results and liquidation proceeds attributable to the relevant Sub-Fund.

# Share Registration and Certificates

All Shares are issued in registered

uncertificated form. All Shareholders shall receive from the SICAV's Registrar and Transfer Agent a written confirmation of his or her shareholding.

#### Subscription of Shares

# **Investor Qualifications**

Individuals may invest only in class R Shares, class R2 Shares, class RE Shares class CW Shares, class N1 Shares and class N Shares, regardless of whether they are investing directly or through a financial advisor acting as nominee (except for class N Shares, which are available to individuals when investing through Intermediaries on the basis of a separate agreement or fee arrangement between the investor and the Intermediary).

Only investors that meet the following qualifications may purchase class I Shares, class SI Shares or class S1 Shares:

The investor must be an "institutional investor," as that term is defined from time to time by the Luxembourg supervisory authority. Generally, an institutional investor is one or more of the following:

- Credit institution or other financial professional investing in its own name or on behalf of an institutional investor or any other investor, provided that the credit institution or financial professional has a discretionary management relationship with the investor and that relationship does not grant the investor any right to a direct claim against the SICAV;
- Insurance or reinsurance company that is making the investment in connection with a share-linked insurance policy, provided that the insurance or reinsurance company is the sole subscriber in the SICAV and no policy grants the holder any right to receive, upon termination of the insurance policy, Shares of the SICAV;
- Pension fund or pension plan, provided that the beneficiaries of such pension fund or pension plan are not entitled to any direct claim against the SICAV;
- Undertaking for collective investment;
- Governmental authority investing in its own name;
- Holding company or similar entity in which

either (a) all shareholders of the entity are institutional investors, or (b) the entity either (i) conducts non-financial activities and holds significant financial interests or (ii) is a "family" holding company or similar entity through which a family or a branch of a family holds significant financial interests;

- Financial or industrial group; or
- Foundation holding significant financial investments and having an existence independent from the beneficiaries or recipients of their income or assets.

In addition, the Management Company may impose additional qualifications on some or all potential investors intending to purchase Shares. *See* Additional Considerations for Certain Non- Luxembourg Investors above.

No investor may be a U.S. person, as that term is defined under Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and as described under "Important Information".

### **Restrictions on subscriptions**

The Management Company reserve the right to reject or postpone any application to subscribe to Shares for any reason, including if the SICAV or the Management Company considers that the applying investor is engaging in excessive trading or market-timing.

The Management Company may also impose restrictions on the subscription of Shares of any Sub-Fund by any person or entity in connection with an unauthorized structured, guaranteed or similar instrument, note or scheme if the Management Company believes that such subscription may have adverse consequences for the Sub-Fund's Shareholders or the fulfillment of the Sub-Fund's investment objectives and policies.

The Management Company reserves the right to temporarily close a Sub-Fund to any new investor if the Management Company considers that it is in the best interest of the Sub-Fund's Shareholders.

## Minimum Investment and Holding Amount

No investor may subscribe initially for less than the amount of the minimum initial investment indicated in each Sub-Fund's description under "Characteristics". There is no minimum investment amount for subsequent investments in the Shares. No investor may transfer or redeem Shares of any class if the transfer or redemption would cause the investor's holding amount of that class of Shares to fall below the minimum holding amount indicated in each Sub-Fund's description under "Characteristics".

The Management Company may, provided that equal treatment of Shareholders be complied with, grant to Shareholders of I, SI or S1 Share Classes an exception from the conditions of minimum initial investment and minimum holding of Shares and accept a subscription of an amount which is below the minimum initial investment threshold or a redemption request that would cause the investor's holding in any Sub-Fund to fall below the minimum holding amount.

In the event the conditions of the exception are no longer satisfied within a certain period of time determined by the Management Company, the Management Company reserves the right to transfer the Shareholders into another Share Class of the relevant Sub-Fund for which the minimum initial investment and/or minimum holding requirements are met.

# Sales Charge

The subscription of class R, R2, RE, N, SI, S1 and I Shares may be subject to a sales charge of a percentage of the net asset value of the Shares being purchased as indicated in each Sub-Fund's description under "Characteristics". The actual amount of the sales charge is determined by the financial institution through which the subscription of Shares is made. Such financial institution shall retain such sales charge in remuneration for its intermediary activity.

Before subscribing for Shares, please ask the financial institution whether a sales charge will apply to your subscription and the actual amount of that sales charge.

In case the relevant Sub-Fund is a Master, the relevant Feeder will not pay any sales charge.

# Additional Levies

The Management Company reserve the right to levy an additional fee of up to 2% of the net asset value of the Shares subscribed if the Management Company considers that the applying investor is engaging in excessive trading or market-timing practices. Any such fee shall be levied for the benefit of the Sub-Fund concerned.

# Procedure of Subscription

<u>Subscription Application</u>: Any investor intending to subscribe initially must complete an application form. Application forms are available from the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the SICAV or, as the case may be, any Local Agent.

All completed applications must be sent to the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the SICAV or any Local Agent as mentioned in the relevant applications forms.

The Registrar and Transfer Agent may request an investor to provide additional information to substantiate any representation made by the investor in its application. Any application that has not been completed to the satisfaction of the Registrar and Transfer Agent will be rejected. In addition, the Management Company, in their sole discretion, may at any time suspend or close the sale of any class of Shares or all Shares.

Investors should note that by signing the application form, the investor authorizes the Registrar and Transfer Agent to collect, use, process, share, store and transmit data, such as personal data, identification documents and details as to the investor's investment in a Sub-Fund, to the SICAV, the Management Company, Natixis Investment Managers and its affiliates as well as to Brown Brothers Harriman (Luxembourg) S.C.A. (in the event that the investor uses its services to invest in a Sub-Fund).

These data will be collected, used, processed, shared, stored and transmitted for the following purposes:

(i) to facilitate the investor's subscriptions, redemptions and conversions in the SICAV or the other funds of Natixis Investment Managers as well as Brown Brothers Harriman (Luxembourg) S.C.A.;

(ii) to process, manage and administer the investor's holdings in a Sub-Fund and any related accounts on an on-going basis;

(iii) to provide investors with reporting, communications and other shareholder services related to the investor's investment in a Sub-Fund;

(iv) to comply with legal or regulatory requirements applicable to the SICAV, the fund service providers or the investor; and

(v) where applicable, for the purposes of notification to the relevant revenue authorities in accordance with the EU Directive 2003/48/EC and applicable local regulations on taxation of savings income in the form of

#### interest payments.

Shareholders have the right at any time to access to their personal data that the Administrative Agent holds in relation to them and have the right to amend and rectify any inaccuracies in their personal data by making a request in writing to the Company at the Administrative Agent's address.

The Registrar and Transfer Agent will send to each investor a written confirmation of each subscription of Shares within three (3) full bank business days in France, Luxembourg and United Kingdom ("Business Day(s)") from the relevant subscription date.

Subscription Date and Purchase Price: Shares may be subscribed on any day that the relevant Sub-Fund calculates its net asset value. Except initial offering period, during the the subscription date subscription of any application shall be as indicated in the relevant Sub-Fund's description under "Characteristics". The purchase price of any subscription application will be the sum of the net asset value of such Shares on the subscription date plus any applicable sales charge.

Investors should note that they will not know the actual purchase price of their Shares until their order has been fulfilled.

<u>Clearing Platforms</u>: Investors should note that certain financial advisors use clearing platforms to process their trades. Certain clearing platforms may process trades in batches once or twice a day after the Sub-Fund's cut-off time (which is indicated in the relevant Sub-Fund's description under "Characteristics"). Please note that applications received after the Sub-Fund's cut-off time will be processed on the following full bank Business Day. Please contact your financial advisor if you have any questions.

<u>Payment</u>: Each investor must pay the purchase price in full within three (3) full bank Business Days from the relevant subscription date.

The purchase price must be paid by electronic bank transfer, as specified in the application form.

An investor should pay the purchase price in the currency of the Share Class purchased. If an investor pays the purchase price in another currency, the Management Company or its agent will make reasonable efforts to convert the payment into the currency of the Share Class purchased. All costs associated with the conversion of that payment will be borne by the investor, whether such conversion actually is made. Neither the Management Company nor any of its agents shall be liable to an investor if the Management Company or agent is unable to convert any payment into the currency of the Share Class purchased by the investor.

The Management Company will immediately redeem the Shares corresponding to any subscription not paid for in full in accordance with these provisions, and the investor submitting the subscription will be liable to the SICAV and each of its agents for any loss incurred by them, individually and collectively, as a result of such forced redemption. Investors are encouraged to make payment as soon as they receive written confirmation of their shareholding from the Registrar and Transfer Agent.

#### Subscriptions in Kind

The Management Company may accept payment for subscriptions in the form of securities and other instruments, provided that such securities or instruments comply with the investment objectives and policies of the relevant Sub-Fund and in compliance with the conditions set forth by Luxembourg law, in particular the obligation to deliver a valuation report from the SICAV's Auditor (*réviseur d'entreprises agréé*) which shall be available for inspection. Any costs incurred in connection with a contribution in kind of securities or other instruments shall be borne by the relevant Shareholders.

The report on "voting policy" as established by the Management Company, Natixis Investment Managers International and describing the conditions whereby the Management Company exerts the voting rights attached to the stocks held in the portfolio, is available on the website of the Management Company or can be obtained by a simple request per regular mail to the Management Company.

The detection, the prevention and the management of "conflict of interests" risk are addressed by the implementation of a specific organization which is described in a document called "summary of the policy for detecting, preventing and managing conflict of interests"; this document is available on the internet site of the Management Company or can be obtained by a simple request per regular mail to the Management Company.

#### Transfer of Shares

A Shareholder may transfer Shares to one or more other persons, provided that all Shares have been paid in full and each transferee meets the qualifications of an investor in the relevant Share Class.

In order to transfer Shares, the Shareholder must notify the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the proposed date and the number of Shares transferred. The Registrar and Transfer Agent only will recognize a transfer with a future date. In addition, each transferee must complete an application form.

The Shareholder should send its notice and each completed application form to:

Brown Brothers Harriman(Luxembourg) S.C.A. 80, route d'Esch,, L-1470 Luxembourg

The Registrar and Transfer Agent may request a transferee to provide additional information to substantiate any representation made by the transferee in its application. Any application that has not been completed to the satisfaction of the Registrar and Transfer Agent will be rejected.

The Registrar and Transfer Agent will not effectuate any transfer until it is satisfied with the form of notice and has accepted each transferee's subscription application.

Any Shareholder transferring Shares and each transferee, jointly and severally, agree to hold the Sub-Fund and each of its agents harmless with respect to any loss suffered by one or more of them in connection with a transfer.

# Transfer of Shares on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange

The transfer of listed Shares to one or more persons may be effected by sending all relevant details to the Registrar and Transfer Agent at the following address:

Brown Brothers Harriman(Luxembourg) S.C.A. 80, route d'Esch, L-1470 Luxembourg

When the transfer is effected in favor of persons who are not already shareholders of the SICAV, the transferee must complete an application form. The Registrar and Transfer Agent, the Management Company may request a transferee to provide additional information to substantiate any representation made by the transferee in its application.

In the event that a Shareholder is not entitled to be invested in the Shares he holds pursuant to the investor qualifications defined in this Prospectus, the Management Company may decide to redeem or convert, without any prior notice or charge, the Shares held by the Shareholder.

#### Redemption of Shares

A Shareholder may request the Management Company to redeem some or all of the Shares it holds in the SICAV. If, as a result of any redemption request, the number of Shares held by any Shareholder in a class would fall below the minimum holding amount for that class of Shares, the Management Company may treat such request as a request to redeem the full balance of such Shareholder's holding of Shares in the relevant class. Shares may be redeemed on any day that the relevant Sub-Fund calculates its net asset value.

If the aggregate value of the redemption requests received by the Registrar and Transfer Agent on any day corresponds to more than 5% of the net assets of a Sub-Fund, the Management Company may defer part or all of such redemption requests and may also defer the payment of redemption proceeds for such period as it considers to be in the best interest of the Sub-Fund and its Shareholders. Any deferred redemption or deferred payment of redemption proceeds shall be treated as a priority to any further redemption request received on any following redemption date.

# **Redemption Notice**

Any Shareholder intending to redeem Shares must notify the Registrar and Transfer Agent:

Brown Brothers Harriman(Luxembourg) S.C.A. 80, route d'Esch, L-1470 Luxembourg

That notice must include the following:

- The Shareholder's name, as it appears on the Shareholder's account, his or her address and account number;
- The number of Shares of each class or amount of each Share Class to be

redeemed; and

 Bank details of beneficiary of redemption proceeds.

Shareholders holding Share certificates must include these certificates in their redemption notice to the Registrar and Transfer Agent.

The Registrar and Transfer Agent may request the Shareholder to provide additional information to substantiate any representation made by the investor in the notice. The Registrar and Transfer Agent will reject any redemption notice that has not been completed to its satisfaction. Payments will only be made to the Shareholder of record; no third-party payments will be made.

Any Shareholder redeeming Shares agrees to hold the SICAV, the Management Company and each of its agents harmless with respect to any loss suffered by one or more of them in connection with that redemption.

# **Redemption Charge**

The redemption of Shares may be subject to a redemption charge of a percentage of the net asset value of the Shares being redeemed as indicated in each Sub-Fund's description under "Characteristics". Any redemption charge shall be levied for the benefit of the Sub-Fund concerned.

Class CW Shares - Contingent Deferred Sales Charge ("CDSC"):

The CDSC will be paid only by investors in class CW Shares who redeem Shares within three years from the date of their subscription and in accordance with the following applicable rates:

Years since purchase	Applicable rate of CDSC	
Up to 1 year	3%	
Over 1 year up to 2 years	2%	
Over 2 years up to 3 years	1%	
Over 3 years	0	

The applicable rate of CDSC is determined with reference to the total length of time during which the Shares being redeemed were held by the relevant investor. Shares will be redeemed on a First In, First Out basis, so that the CDSC will be applied on those CW Shares of the relevant Fund which have been held for the longest period of time. The CDSC applicable to CW Share Classes will be:

- calculated on the basis of the lesser of

   (i) the initial subscription price and (ii) the current net asset value of the Shares redeemed by the relevant investor as of the date of their redemption; and
- deducted from the redemption proceeds paid to the relevant investor. Where relevant, no CDSC will be charged on reinvestments of dividends or other distributions.

The Management Company reserves the right to apply a lower CDSC or waive the CDSC at its own discretion.

The Management Company reserve the right to levy an additional fee of up to 2% of the net asset value of the Shares redeemed if the Management Company considers that the redeeming investor is engaging in excessive trading or market-timing practices. Any such fee shall be levied for the benefit of the Sub-Fund concerned.

In the event that a redemption request causes a Sub-Fund to incur exceptional costs, the Management Company may levy an additional fee reflecting such exceptional costs for the benefit of the Sub-Fund concerned.

In case the relevant Sub-Fund is a Master, the relevant Feeder will not pay any redemption charge.

# **Redemption Date and Redemption Price**

The redemption date of any redemption notice shall be as indicated in the relevant Sub-Fund's description under "Characteristics". The redemption price of any redemption notice will be the net asset value of such Shares on the redemption date less any applicable redemption charge.

Investors should note that they will not know the redemption price of their Shares until their redemption request has been fulfilled.

Clearing Platforms: Investors should note that certain financial advisors use clearing platforms to process their trades. Certain clearing platforms may process trades in batches once or twice a day after the Sub-Fund's cut-off time (which is indicated in the relevant Sub-Fund's description under "Characteristics"). Please note that applications received after the Sub-Fund's cutoff time will be processed on the following full

bank Business Day. Please contact your financial advisor if you have any questions.

# Payment

Unless otherwise provided for in this Prospectus, the SICAV will pay the Shareholder redemption proceeds within three (3) full bank Business Days from the relevant redemption date.

The redemption proceeds will be paid by electronic bank transfer in accordance with the instructions in the redemption notice as accepted. All costs associated with that payment will be borne by the SICAV. The Transfer Agent will not pay redemption proceeds to a third party.

Redemption proceeds will be paid in the currency of the Share Class redeemed. If an investor requests payment in another currency, the Management Company or its agent will make reasonable efforts to convert the payment into the currency requested. All costs associated with the conversion of that payment will be borne by the Shareholder, whether such conversion actually is made. Neither the Management Company nor the SICAV nor any agent of the SICAV shall be liable to an investor if the Management Company or agent is unable to convert and pay into a currency other than the currency of the Share Class redeemed by the Shareholder.

Neither the Management Company nor the SICAV nor any of its agents shall pay any interest on redemption proceeds or make any adjustment on account of any delay in making payment to the Shareholder.

# **Forced Redemption**

The Management Company may immediately redeem some or all of a Shareholder's Shares if the Management Company believes that:

- The Shareholder has made any misrepresentation as to his or her qualifications to be a Shareholder;
- The Shareholder's continued presence as a Shareholder of the SICAV would cause irreparable harm to the SICAV or the other Shareholders of the SICAV;
- The Shareholder's continued presence as a Shareholder would cause the SICAV or a Sub-Fund to be or become subject to any reporting obligation, tax withholding

obligation, or withholding tax that the SICAV or the Sub-Fund would not otherwise be subject to but for the Shareholder's (or similarly situated Shareholders') presence as a Shareholder;

- The Shareholder, by trading Shares frequently, is causing the relevant Sub-Fund to incur higher portfolio turnover and thus, causing adverse effects on the Sub-Fund's performance, higher transactions costs and/or greater tax liabilities;
- The Shareholder's continued presence as a Shareholder would result in a breach of any law or regulation, whether Luxembourg or foreign, by the SICAV;
- The continued presence of a person or entity as a Shareholder in any Sub-Fund in connection with an unauthorized structured, guaranteed or similar instrument, note or scheme, as a Shareholder would have adverse consequences for the other Shareholders of the Sub-Fund or for the fulfillment of the Sub-Fund's investment objectives and policies; or
- The Shareholder is or has engaged in marketing and/or sales activities using the name of, or references to the SICAV, a Sub-Fund, the Management Company and/or the Delegated Investment Manager or any of its strategies or portfolio managers without the prior written consent of the Management Company.

# Withholding of Proceeds in Certain Cases of Forced Redemption

In the event that a Shareholder's presence in the SICAV or a Sub-Fund causes the Management Company to initiate a Forced Redemption, as described above, and the Shareholder's presence in the SICAV has caused the SICAV or the relevant Sub-Fund to suffer any withholding tax which would not have been incurred but for the Shareholder's ownership of Shares, the Management Company shall have the right to redeem that Shareholder's Shares and withhold as much of the redemption proceeds as is required to satisfy the costs that arose solely due to the Shareholder's presence in the SICAV. To the extent that there is more than one Shareholder similarly situated, proceeds will be withheld based on the relative value of redeemed shares.

#### **Redemptions In Kind**

Any Shareholder redeeming Shares representing at least 20% of any Share Class may redeem those Shares in kind, provided that the Management Company determines that the redemption would not be detrimental to remaining Shareholders the and the redemption is effected in compliance with the conditions set forth by Luxembourg law, in particular the obligation to deliver a valuation report from the SICAV's Auditor (réviseur d'entreprises agréé) which shall be available for inspection. Any costs incurred in connection with a redemption in kind shall be borne by the relevant Shareholders.

# Simultaneous redemption and subscription orders from existing Shareholders

A given Shareholder may send simultaneously a redemption order and a subscription order for the same number of shares to be carried out on the same net asset value. In such case no subscription and/or redemption fees will be levied. Such orders will be compensated and thus will not necessarily imply any exchange of any flow of payment in relation with these orders.

# Conversion of Shares

Any Shareholder may request the conversion of Shares from one Sub-Fund or class of Shares to another Sub-Fund or class of Shares. Such conversion request will be treated as a redemption of Shares and a simultaneous purchase of Shares. Consequently, any Shareholder requesting such conversion must comply with the procedures of redemption and subscription as well as all other requirements, notably relating to investor qualifications and minimum investment and holding thresholds, applicable to each of the Sub-Funds or classes of Shares concerned.

When a Shareholder holding class CW Shares in a Sub-Fund converts these Shares to other class CW Shares (i.e. subject to the same CDSC) in the same Sub-Fund (to the extent possible) or in another Sub-Fund, the holding period of three years after which no CDSC is due will continue to be considered as starting on the date of his/her/its initial subscription for the initial class CW Share(s) and the remaining CDSC will be carried forward to the new CW Share class of the relevant Sub-Fund.

With the exception of the foregoing, any other conversion of CW Share(s), shall not be

permitted and shall instead be treated as a redemption that will trigger the payment of the CDSC if such request is made within the first three years from the date of the initial subscription into the CW Share Class, followed by a subsequent subscription subject to a sales charge as indicated in each Sub-Fund's description under "Characteristics", the actual amount of which is determined by the financial institution through which the subscription of Shares is made. At the end of the three year period when the CDSC is no longer due, the corresponding CW Share(s) will automatically be converted into the corresponding class RE Share(s) (i.e. with the same currency and distribution policy) of the same Sub-Fund with no additional sales charges.

Attention of Shareholders is drawn to this restriction that may limit their possibility to acquire Shares of another Sub-Fund through conversion because class CW Shares are not available in all Sub-Funds and the further issue of class CW Shares of any Sub-Fund may be suspended at any time by the Board of Directors or the Management Company.

Investors should note that a conversion between Shares of different Sub-Funds may give rise to an immediate taxable event. As tax laws differ widely from country to country, investors should consult their tax advisers as to the tax implications of such a conversion in their individual circumstances.

In case the relevant Sub-Fund is a Master, the relevant Feeder will not pay any conversion fee.

The conversion of Shares between Sub-Funds or classes of Shares having different valuation frequencies may only be effected on a common subscription date. If Shares are converted for Shares of another Sub-Fund or class of Shares having a notice period for subscriptions different from the notice period required for redemptions for the original Shares, the longest notice period will be taken into account for the conversion.

In the event that a Shareholder is no longer entitled to be invested in the Shares he holds pursuant to the investor qualifications defined in this Prospectus, the Management Company may decide to convert, without any prior notice or charge, the Shares held by the Shareholder into such other Shares which All-In Fee is the lowest among the Share Classes for which the Shareholder complies with the investor qualifications.

# Local Intermediaries

Orders for subscription, transfer, conversion and/or redemption of Shares can be sent on an aggregate basis in the name of local intermediaries on behalf of underlying shareholders under the mandate contained in the country specific offering documents. Such local intermediaries are those appointed by the Management for the payment services in connection with the distribution of Shares. Shares will be registered in the Shareholder register of the SICAV in the name of local intermediaries on behalf of these underlying shareholders.

# DETERMINATION OF THE NET ASSET VALUE

# Time of Calculation

The Management Company calculates the net asset value of each Share Class for each subscription/ redemption date at 17h00 Luxembourg time on the full bank Business Day following the relevant subscription/redemption date, as indicated for each Sub-Fund in its description page under "Characteristics" /"Valuation Frequency".

If since the time of determination of the net asset value, there has been a material change in the quotations in the markets on which a substantial portion of the investments of any Sub-Fund are dealt in or quoted, the Management Company may, in order to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the Sub-Fund, cancel the first valuation and carry out a second valuation for all applications made on the relevant subscription/redemption date.

# Method of Calculation

The net asset value of each Share of any one class on any day that any Sub-Fund calculates its net asset value is determined by dividing the value of the portion of assets attributable to that class less the portion of liabilities attributable to that class, by the total number of Shares of that class outstanding on such day.

The net asset value of each Share shall be determined in the Share Class Reference Currency of the relevant class of Shares.

For any Share Class denominated in a different currency from the Sub-Fund's Reference Currency, the net asset value per Share of that class shall be the net asset value per Share of the class denominated in the Sub-Fund's Reference Currency multiplied by the exchange between the Sub-Fund Reference rate Currency and the Share Class currency at the WMR rates (4.00 pm in London). If such quotations are not available, the rate of exchange will be determined in good faith by or under procedures established by the Management Company.

The net asset value of each class Share may be rounded to the nearest 1/100 of the relevant Share Class in accordance with the Management Company's guidelines.

The value of each Sub-Fund's assets shall be determined as follows:

- Securities and money market instruments traded on exchanges and Regulated Markets - last closing price (unless the Management Company believes that an occurrence after the publication of the last market price and before any Sub-Fund next calculates its net asset value will materially affect the security's value. In that case, the security may be fair valued at the time the Administrative Agent determines its net asset value by or pursuant to procedures approved by the Management Company.
- Securities and money market instruments not traded on a Regulated Market (other than short-term money market instruments)
   based upon valuations provided by pricing vendors, which valuations are determined based on normal, institutional-size trading of such securities using market information, transactions for comparable securities and various relationships between securities which are generally recognized by institutional traders.
- Short-term money market instruments (remaining maturity of less than 90 calendar days or less) - amortized cost (which approximates market value under normal conditions).
- Futures, options and forwards unrealized gain or loss on the contract using current settlement price. When a settlement price is not used, future and forward contracts will be valued at their fair value as determined pursuant to procedures approved by the Management Company, as used on a consistent basis.
- Units or shares of open-ended funds last published net asset value.
- Cash on hand or deposit, bills, demand notes, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, cash dividends and interest declared or accrued and not yet received full amount, unless in any case such amount is unlikely to be paid or received in full, in which case the value thereof is arrived at after the Management Company or its agent makes such discount as it may consider appropriate in such case to reflect the true value thereof.
- All other assets fair market value as determined pursuant to procedures approved by the SICAV.

The Management Company also may value securities at fair value or estimate their value pursuant to procedures approved by the Management Company in other circumstances such as when extraordinary events occur after the publication of the last market price but prior to the time the Sub-Funds' net asset value is

# calculated.

The effect of fair value pricing as described above for securities traded on exchanges and all other securities and instruments is that securities and other instruments may not be priced on the basis of quotations from the primary market in which they are traded. Instead, they may be priced by another method that the Management Company believes is more likely to result in a price that reflects fair value. When fair valuing its securities, the Management Company may, among other things, use modeling tools or other processes that take into account factors such as securities market activity and/or significant events that occur after the publication of the last market price and before the time a Sub-Fund's net asset value is calculated.

Trading in most of the portfolio securities of the Sub-Funds takes place in various markets outside Luxembourg on days and at times other than when banks in Luxembourg are open for regular business. Therefore, the calculation of the Sub-Funds' net asset values does not take place at the same time as the prices of many of their portfolio securities are determined, and the value of the Sub-Funds' portfolio may change on days when the SICAV is not open for business and its Shares may not be purchased or redeemed.

The value of any asset or liability not expressed in a Sub-Fund's Reference Currency will be converted into such currency at the WMR rates (4.00 pm in London). If such quotations are not available, the rate of exchange will be determined in good faith by or under procedures established by the Administrative Agent.

# Valuation of Dormant Share Classes

The Sub-Fund's Administrative Agent shall calculate the value of a dormant Share Class within a Sub-Fund, when such Share Class is reactivated, by using the net asset value of such Sub-Fund's active Share Class, which has determined by the Management been Company as having the closest characteristics to such dormant Share Class, and by adjusting it based on the difference in All in Fees between the active Share Class and the dormant Share Class and, where applicable, converting the net asset value of the active Share Class into the Share Class Reference Currency of the dormant Share Class using the WMR rates (4.00 pm in London).

# Swing Pricing mechanism

Subscriptions and redemptions can potentially have a dilutive effect on the Sub-Funds' NAVs per share and be detrimental to long term investors as a result of the costs, bid-offer spreads or other losses that are incurred by the SICAV in relation to the trades undertaken by the Management Company. In order to protect the interest of existing Shareholders, the Management Company may decide to introduce a Swing Pricing mechanism.

If, for the Sub-Funds listed below, net subscriptions or net redemptions on any calculation day exceeds a certain threshold ("the Swing Threshold"), the net asset value per share will be adjusted respectively upwards or downwards by a Swing Factor. Swing Thresholds and Swing Factors are determined and reviewed on a periodic basis by the Management Company.

The Swing Factor will be set by the Management Company to reflect estimated dealing and other costs.

The Swing Threshold is set by the Board taking into account factors such as the prevailing market conditions, the estimated dilution costs and the size of a sub-fund. The level of swing pricing adjustment will be reviewed and may be adjusted on a periodic basis to reflect an approximation of dealing costs as determined by the Board. The swing pricing adjustment will be applicable to all Shares of a sub-fund (and all transactions) on that Business Day. The swing pricing adjustment may vary by sub-fund and is dependent upon the particular assets in which a sub-fund is invested.

The swing pricing adjustment will generally not exceed 2% of the original Net Asset Value of a Portfolio. The swing threshold is a predetermined level set as a percentage of the sub-fund's net asset value and is revised every three months without prior notification and without amendment during this three months period. But if a market event occurs, it can be updated by an emergency process. The percentage will range from 1 % to 10 % and will be systematically applied if it reached, i.e. if absolute value difference between of subscriptions and redemptions is greater than the threshold as follows:

• if |S-R|> threshold => the swing pricing is applied

• if |S-R|<= threshold => no swing pricing applied

where S=subscriptions and R=redemptions.

The drawback of using partial swing pricing is that a risk of dilution may occur with no adjustment of the Net Asset Value, when the swing threshold remains unreached by the net amount of subscriptions and redemptions.

The volatility of the Sub Funds' net asset values may not reflect the true portfolio performance, and therefore might deviate from the Sub-Funds' Reference Index as a consequence of the application of the Swing Pricing mechanism.

Investors are advised that the application of swing pricing may result in increased volatility in a sub-fund's valuation and performance, and a sub-fund's Net Asset Value may deviate from the underlying investments' performance on a particular Business Day as a result of the application of swing pricing. Typically, such adjustment will increase the Net Asset Value per Share on a given Business Day when there are net inflows into a sub-fund and decrease the Net Asset Value per Share when there are net outflows. Investors should also note that the SICAV's swing pricing policy is designed to approximate, and may not exactly offset the dilution effect brought about by transactions in underlying securities held by a portfolio due to purchase/redemption/exchange activity.

In addition, as the swing pricing adjustment is of only triggered when the level purchase/redemption activity crosses the relevant threshold for a sub-fund, there may still be some dilution impact for existina Shareholders of that sub-funds on days when there are subscriptions/redemptions below the relevant threshold.

Performance fees, if any, are calculated on the basis of the net asset value before the application of Swing Pricing adjustments.

The Swing Pricing Mechanism may be applied to the following Sub-Funds:

- OSTRUM SRI TOTAL RETURN SOVEREIGN;
- OSTRUM SRI CREDIT SHORT DURATION ;
- OSTRUM EURO INFLATION;
- OSTRUM SRI EURO AGGREGATE;
- OSTRUM TOTAL RETURN CREDIT;
- OSTRIUM SRI GLOBAL SUBORDINATED DEBT
- OSTRUM GLOBAL EMERGING BONDS;
- OSTRUM FIXED INCOME MULTI STRATEGIES;
- OSTRUM SRI EUROPE MINVOL EQUITY;
- OSTRUM SRI GLOBAL MINVOL EQUITY;
- NATIXIS BOND ALTERNATIVE RISK PREMIA
- OSTRUM SRI EURO HIGH DIVIDEND EQUITY

- OSTRUM SRI TOTAL RETURN CONSERVATIVE
- OSTRUM SRI TOTAL RETURN DYNAMIC
- OSTRUM TOTAL RETURN VOLATILITY

# Temporary Suspension of Calculation of the Net Asset Value

The Management Company may temporarily suspend the determination of the net asset value per Share within any Sub-Fund, and accordingly the issue and redemption of Shares of any class within any Sub-Fund:

- During any period when any of the principal stock exchanges or other markets on which any substantial portion of the investments of the SICAV attributable to such class of Shares from time to time is quoted or dealt in is closed otherwise than for ordinary holidays, or during which dealings therein are restricted or suspended, provided that such restriction or suspension affects the valuation of the investments of the SICAV attributable to a class quoted thereon;
- During the existence of any state of affairs which in the opinion of the Management Company constitutes an emergency as a result of which disposals or valuation of assets owned by the SICAV attributable to such class of Shares would be impracticable;
- During any breakdown in the means of communication or computation normally used in determining the price or value of any of the investments of such class of Shares or the current price or value on any stock exchange or other market in respect of the assets attributable to such class of Shares;
- When for any other reason the prices of any investments owned by the SICAV attributable to any class of Shares cannot promptly or accurately be ascertained;
- During any period when the Management Company is unable to repatriate funds for the purpose of making payments on the redemption of the Shares of such class or during which any transfer of funds involved in the realization or acquisition of investments or payments due on redemption of Shares cannot in the opinion of the Management Company be effected at normal rates of exchange;
- From the time of publication of a notice

convening an extraordinary general meeting of Shareholders for the purpose of winding-up the SICAV; or

• Following the suspension of the calculation of the net asset value, issue, redemptions or conversions of shares or units of the Master in which the SICAV or a Sub-Fund invests as its Feeder.

# Performance

The Sub-Funds present their performance as average annual total return, reflecting all charges and expenses accrued by the relevant Sub-Fund and including the reinvestment of any distribution paid by the Sub-Fund. Performance does not include any adjustment for sales charges and does not consider any tax consequence to Shareholders as a result of investing in Shares.

The Sub-Funds, when presenting their average annual total return, also may present their performance using other means of calculation, and may compare their performance to various benchmarks and indices.

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future results.

#### Publication of the Net Asset Value

The net asset value for each Share Class of each Sub-Fund of the SICAV is available on the Management Company website: www.im.natixis.com

#### TAXATION

The following is based on the Management Company's understanding of, and advice received on, certain aspects of the law and practice currently in force in Luxembourg. There can be no guarantee that the tax position at the date of this Prospectus or at the time of an investment will endure indefinitely.

# Taxation of the SICAV

The SICAV is not subject to any Luxembourg tax on interest or dividends received by any Sub-Fund, any realized or unrealized capital appreciation of Sub-Fund assets or any distribution paid by any Sub-Fund to Shareholders.

The SICAV is not subject to any Luxembourg stamp tax or other duty payable on the issuance of Shares.

The SICAV is subject to the Luxembourg *taxe d'abonnement* at the following rates:

- 0.01% per year of each Sub-Fund's net asset value with respect to class I Shares, class M Shares, class Q Shares, class SI Shares and class S1 Shares; and
- 0.05% per year of each Sub-Fund's net asset value with respect to class R Shares, class R2 Shares class RE Shares, class CW Shares, class N1 Shares, and class N Shares.

That tax is calculated and payable quarterly. Other jurisdictions may impose withholding and other taxes on interest and dividends received by the Sub-Funds on assets issued by entities located outside of Luxembourg. The SICAV may not be able to recover those taxes.

# Withholding Taxes

Under current Luxembourg tax law there is no withholding tax on any distribution made by the SICAV or its Luxembourg paying agent (if any) to the Shareholders.

#### Taxation of the Shareholders

Shareholders currently are not subject to any Luxembourg income tax on capital gain or income, any Luxembourg wealth tax or any further Luxembourg domestic withholding tax other than Shareholders domiciled, resident or having a permanent establishment in Luxembourg.

Shareholders who are not residents of Luxembourg may be taxed in accordance with the laws of other jurisdictions. This Prospectus does not make any statement regarding those jurisdictions. Before investing in the SICAV, investors should discuss with their tax advisers the implications of acquiring, holding, transferring and redeeming Shares.
### FUND SERVICE PROVIDERS

### Management Company and Promoter

The SICAV's Board of Directors has appointed Natixis Investment Managers International (the "Management Company") as its management company and has delegated to the Management Company all powers related to the investment management, administration and distribution of the SICAV. However, the SICAV's Board of Directors oversees and retains ultimate responsibility for the SICAV and its activities.

The Management Company may delegate some of its responsibilities to affiliated and nonaffiliated parties; however, the Management Company oversees and retains full responsibility for the activities delegated to service providers.

Natixis Investment Managers International is a *Société par Actions Simplifiée (French Simplified Joint Stock Company)* incorporated under French law on the 25<sup>th</sup> April 1984 for an unlimited period of time, regulated by the French financial supervisory authority (AMF) and licensed as a Management Company in accordance with article L-532-9 of the French monetary and financial code.

The articles of incorporation of the Management Company were published in the *Journal La Gazette du Palais* and filed with the *Greffe du Tribunal de Commerce de Paris* on the 23th March 1984. The capital of the Management Company currently amounts to 94 127 658,48 euros.

The Management Company is a subsidiary of Natixis Investment Managers, an international asset management group. Headquartered in Paris and Boston, Natixis Investment Managers is wholly-owned by Natixis. Natixis is a subsidiary of BPCE, the second-largest banking group in France.

Natixis Investment Managers International is also promoter of the SICAV.

The Management Company has established a remuneration policy that:

- is consistent with and promotes sound and effective risk management;
- does not encourage excessive or inappropriate risk taking which would be incompatible with the risk profiles, the rules or instruments of incorporation of the funds it manages;

- does not interfere with the obligation of the Management Company to act in the best interest of the funds.

This policy applies to all categories of staff including the senior management, control functions and any employee identified as a risk taker whose professional activities have a material impact on the funds they manage. It is compliant with the business strategy, the objectives, the values and interests of the Management Company, the funds it manages and the investors of these funds, and includes measures aiming at avoiding conflicts of interests.

The Management Company's staff receives a remuneration composed of a fixed and a variable component, appropriately balanced, reviewed annually and based on individual or collective performance.

The fixed component represents a portion sufficiently substantial of the global remuneration to exercise a fully flexible policy in terms of variable component of the remuneration, notably to have the possibility not to pay any variable component.

The performance management process uses both non-financial and financial criteria to assess performance in the context of a multiyear framework adapted to the holding period recommended to the investors of the funds managed by the Management Company to ensure that:

- (i) the assessment concerns long term performance of the funds;
- (ii) the assessment concerns the investment risks. An adjustment mechanism capable of integrating current and future risks is implemented in this respect;
- (iii) the actual payment of the components of the remuneration which depend on the performance is made by instalments over the same period.

In addition, performance of staff engaged in control functions is assessed only on qualitative criteria and is independent from the performances of the business areas that they control.

Above a certain limit, the variable component of the remuneration is allocated half in cash, and half in financial instruments of equivalent value. A portion of the variable component of the remuneration may be deferred for a period of time as disclosed in the remuneration policy. The remuneration policy is reviewed regularly by Natixis Investment Managers International Human Resources and the Executive Committee to ensure internal equity and consistency with market practices.

Further details on the up-to-date remuneration policy (including a description on how the remuneration and benefits are calculated, the identities of the persons responsible for awarding the remunerations and benefits including the composition of the remuneration committee are available on the following website: <u>www.im.natixis.com</u>. A paper copy will be made available free of charge upon request.

#### Delegated Investment Manager

The Management Company may appoint a delegated investment manager (the "Delegated Investment Manager") for each Sub-Fund. In such case the information regarding the Delegated Investment Manager is described in this Prospectus under the part specific to the Sub-Fund.

Ostrum Asset Management and VEGA Investment Solutions are registered as a Société de Gestion de Portefeuille with the French Autorité des Marchés Financiers (the "AMF").

Ostrum Asset Management is a joint venture held between Natixis Investment Managers and La Banque Postale. Natixis Investment Managers keep a majority stake in Ostrum Asset Management.

The Delegated Investment Managers are subsidiaries or affiliates of Natixis Investment Managers , which is a subsidiary of Natixis Investment Managers, an international asset management group. Headquartered in Paris and Boston, Natixis Investment Managers is wholly-owned by Natixis. Natixis is a subsidiary of BPCE, the second-largest banking group in France.

### Fund Administration

The Management Company has appointed Brown Brothers Harriman, (Luxembourg) S.C.A. as Administrative Agent, Paying Agent, Listing Agent, Domiciliary and Corporate Agent and Registrar and Transfer Agent of the SICAV. The Management Company may also directly appoint agents in local jurisdictions from time to time ("Local Agents") to facilitate the processing and execution of subscription, transfer, conversion and redemption orders of Shares in other time zones.

The SICAV's administrative agent ("Administrative Agent") is responsible for maintaining the books and financial records of the SICAV, preparing the SICAV's financial statements, calculating the amounts of any distribution, and calculating the net asset value of each class of Shares.

The SICAV's paying agent ("Paying Agent") is responsible for paying to Shareholders any distribution or redemption proceeds.

The SICAV's listing agent ("Listing Agent") coordinates the listing of Shares on any stock exchange, as decided by the SICAV, and liaises with the authorities of such stock exchange.

The SICAV's domiciliary and corporate agent ("Domiciliary and Corporate Agent") provides the SICAV with a registered Luxembourg address and such facilities that may be required by the SICAV for holding meetings convened in Luxembourg. It also provides assistance with the SICAV's legal and regulatory reporting obligations, including required filings and the mailing of Shareholder documentation.

The SICAV's registrar and transfer agent ("Registrar and Transfer Agent") is responsible for the processing and execution of subscription, transfer, conversion and redemption orders of Shares. It also maintains the SICAV's Shareholder register. All Local Agents are required to coordinate with the Registrar and Agent of the SICAV when transacting in Shares.

Brown Brothers Harriman (Luxembourg) S.C.A. is a Luxembourg société en commandite par actions and is registered with the Luxembourg supervisory authority as a credit institution.

### Custody

The SICAV has appointed Brown Brothers Harriman (Luxembourg) S.C.A. as depositary of the SICAV's assets. ( "**Depositary**")

The Depositary of the SICAV's assets holds all cash, securities and other instruments owned by each Fund in one or more accounts.

The Depositary shall also be responsible for the oversight of the SICAV to the extent required by and in accordance with applicable law, rules and regulations..

The key duties of the Depositary are to perform on behalf of the SICAV, the depositary duties referred to in the 2010 Law essentially consisting of:

- i. monitoring and verifying the SICAV's cash flows;
- safekeeping of the SICAV's assets, including inter alia holding in custody financial instruments that may be held in custody and verification of ownership of other assets;
- iii. ensuring that the sale. issue. redemption repurchase, and cancellation of shares are carried out in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation applicable and Luxembourg and law,rules the regulations;
- iv. ensuring that the value of the Shares is calculated in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and applicable Luxembourg law, rules and regulations;
- ensuring that in transactions involving the SICAV's assets any consideration is remitted to the SICAV within the usual time limits;
- vi. ensuring that the SICAV's income is applied in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and applicable Luxembourg law, rules and regulations;and
- vii. carrying out instructions from the Management Company unless they conflict with Articles of Incorportion or applicable Luxembourg law, rules.and regulations.

The Depositary may, subject to certain conditions, and in order to effectively conduct its duties, delegate part or all of its safekeeping duties with regard to financial instruments or to certain of the SICAV's assets to one or more delegates appointed by the Depositary from time to time.

When selecting and appointing a delegate, the Depositary shall exercise all due skill, care and diligence as required by the 2010 Law to ensure that it entrusts the SICAV's assets only to a delegate who may provide an adequate standard of protection.. The Depositary's liability shall not be affected by any such delegation. The Depositary is liable to the SICAV or its Shareholders pursuant the provisions of the 2010 Law.

The 2010 Law provides also for a strict liability of the Depositary in case of loss of financial instruments held in custody. In case of loss of these financial instruments, the Depositary shall return financial instruments of identical type of the corresponding amount to the SICAV unless it can prove that the loss is the result of an external event beyond its reasonable control, the consequences of which would have been unavoidable despite all reasonable efforts to the contrary. The Depositary will be liable to the SICAV for any losses other than the loss of a financial instrument held in custody arising out of the Depositary's negligent or intentional failure to properly fulfill its obligations pursuant to the 2010 Law.

The Depositary maintains comprehensive and detailed corporate policies and procedures requiring the Depositary to comply with applicable laws and regulations.

The Depositary policies and procedures governing the management of conflicts of interest. These policies and procedures adress conflicts of interest that may arise through the provision of services to UCITS.

The Depositary's policies require that all material conflicts of interest involving internal or external parties are promptly disclosed escalated to senior management, registered, mitigated and/or prevented, as appropriate. In the event a conflict of interest may not be avoided, the Depositary shall maintain and operate effective organizational and administrative arrangements in order to take all reasonable steps to properly (i) disclosing conflicts of interest to the UCITS and to, shareholders (ii) managing and monitoring such conflicts.

The Depositary ensures that employees are informed, trained and advised of conflicts of interest policies and procedures and that duties and responsibilities are segregated appropriately to prevent conflicts of interest issues.

Compliance with conflicts of interest policies and procedures is supervised and monitored by the Board of Managers as general partner of the Deposittary and by the Depositary's Authorized Management, as well as the Depositary's compliance, internal audit and risk management functions.

The Depositary shall take all reasonable steps to identify and mitigate potential conflicts of interest. This includes implementing its conflicts of interest policies that are appropriate for the scale, complexity and nature of its This policy identifies business. the circumstances that give rise or may give rise to a conflict of interest and includes the procedures to be followed and measures to be adopted in order to manage conflicts of interest. A conflicts of interest register is maintained and monitored by the Depositary.

The Depositary does also act as administrative agent and/or registrar and transfer agent pursuant to the terms of the administration agreements between the Depositary and the SICAV. The Depositary has implemented appropriate segregation of activities between the Depositary and the administration/ registrar and transfer agency services, including escalation processes and governance. In addition, the depositary function is hierarchically and functionally segregated from the administration and registrar and transfer agency services business unit.

The Depositary may delegate to third parties the safe-keeping of the SICAV's assets to correspondents (the "Correspondents") subject to the conditions laid down in the applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of . In relation to the Correspondents, the Depositary has a process in place designed to select the highest quality provider(s) in each market. The Depositary shall exercise due care and diligence in choosing and appointing each Correspondent so as to ensure that each Correspondent has and maintains the required expertise and competence. The Depositary periodically assess whether also shall Correspondents has and maintains the required expertise and competence. The Depositary shall also periodically assess whether Correspondents fulfill applicable legal and regulatory requirements and shall exercise ongoing supervision over each Correspondent to ensure that the obligations of the Correspondents continue to be appropriately discharged. The list of Correspondents relevant to the SICAV is available on https://www.bbh.com/en-us/investor-

services/custody-and-fundservices/depositaryand-trustee/lux-subDepositary-list.

This list may be updated from time to time and

is available from the Depositary upon written request.

A potential risk of conflicts of interest may occur in situations where the Correspondents may enter into or have a separate commercial business relationship and/or with the Depositary in parallel to the safekeeping delegation relationship. In the conduct of its business, conflicts of interest may arise between the Depositary and the Correspondent. Where a Correspondent shall have a group link with the Depositary, the Depositary undertakes to identify potential conflicts of interests arising from that link, if any, and to take all reasonable steps to mitigate those conflicts of interest.

The Depositary does not anticipate that there would be any specific conflicts of interest arising as a result of any delegation to any Correspondent. The Depositary will notify the Board of Directors of the SICAV and/or the Management Company of any conflict should it so arise.

To the extent that any other potential conflicts of interest exist pertaining to the Depositary, they have been identified, mitigated and addressed in accordance with the Depositary's policies and procedures.

Updated information on the Depositary's custody duties and conflicts of interest that may arise may be obtained, free of charge and upon request, from the Depositary.

Brown Brothers Harriman (Luxembourg) S.C.A.

#### **GENERAL INFORMATION**

### Organization

The SICAV was incorporated on May 21, 2013 as a Luxembourg *Société Anonyme* under the name of "Natixis AM Funds".

The Articles of Incorporation of the SICAV have been lastly amended on June 30, 2016 and published in the Recueil Electronique des Sociétés et Associations on July 15, 2016.

The registered office of the SICAV is located at Brown Brothers Harriman , (Luxembourg) S.C.A., 80, route d'Esch , L-1470 Luxembourg. The SICAV is recorded in the Luxembourg *Registre de Commerce* under the number B 177 509.

Under Luxembourg law, the SICAV is a distinct legal entity. Each of the Sub-Funds, however, is not a distinct legal entity from the SICAV.

All assets and liabilities of each Sub-Fund are distinct from the assets and liabilities of the other Sub-Funds.

### Qualification under Luxembourg Law

The SICAV qualifies under Part I of the Law.

#### Accounting Year

The SICAV's accounting year end is 30<sup>th</sup> of June and its first accounting year will end on the 30th June 2014.

### Reports

The SICAV publishes annually audited financial statements and semi-annually unaudited financial statements. The SICAV's annual financial statements are accompanied by a discussion of each Sub-Fund's management by the Management Company and the Delegated Investment Manager(s), if any. The first semi-annual unaudited financial statement shall end on December 31, 2013. The first annual audited financial statement shall end on June 30, 2014.

#### Soft dollar commissions

The Management Company or the Delegated Investment Manager may use brokerage firms which, in addition to routine order execution, provide a range of other goods and services. To the extent permitted by the rules/regulations in the jurisdiction in which each is registered, the Management Company or the Delegated Investment Manager may accept goods or services (often referred to as "soft dollar commissions" or "soft commissions") from these brokerage firms. The precise nature of such services will vary, but may include (i) research related to the economy, industries or a specific company, (ii) investment related hardware or software, (iii) electronic and other types of market quotation information systems, or (iv) financial or economic programs and seminars. Where the Management Company the Delegated Investment Manager or executes an order on behalf of a Sub-Fund through such a broker or other person, passes on that person's charges to the Sub-Fund, and receives in return goods or services additional to that execution service, it will seek to ensure that such additional goods and services benefit the Sub-Fund or comprises the provision of research.

#### Shareholders' Meetings

The annual general meeting of Shareholders is held at 10.00 a.m. Luxembourg time in Luxembourg on the fourth Friday of the month of October. Extraordinary Shareholders' meetings or general meetings of Shareholders of any Sub-Fund or any class of Shares may be held at such time and place as indicated in the notice to convene. Notices of such meetings shall be provided to the Shareholders in accordance with Luxembourg law.

### Disclosure of Sub-Funds' Positions

The Board of Directors may, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations (in particular those relating to the prevention of market timing and related practices), authorize the disclosure of information pertaining to a Sub-Fund's positions subject to (i) certain restrictions designed to protect the Sub-Fund's interests, (ii) the Shareholder's acceptance of the terms of a confidentiality agreement.

### Minimum Net Assets

The SICAV must maintain assets equivalent in net value to at least €1,250,000. There is no requirement that the individual Sub-Funds have a minimum amount of assets.

### Changes in Investment Policies of the Sub-Fund

The investment objective and policies of each Sub-Fund may be modified from time to time by the Board of Directors of the SICAV without the consent of the Shareholders, although the Shareholders will be given one (1) month's prior notice of any such change in order to redeem their Shares free of charge.

### Merger of the SICAV or any Sub-Fund with Other Sub-Funds or UCIs

In the circumstances as provided by the SICAV's Articles of Incorporation, the Board of Directors may decide to allocate the assets of any Sub-Fund to those of another existing Sub-Fund or to another Luxembourg or foreign UCITS (the "new UCITS") or to another fund within such other Luxembourg or foreign UCITS (the "new Fund") and to redesignate the Shares of the class or classes concerned, as relevant, as shares of the new UCITS of or the new Fund (following a split or consolidation, if necessary, and the payment of the amount corresponding to any fractional entitlement to shareholders). In case the SICAV or the Sub-Fund concerned by the merger is the receiving UCITS (within the meaning of the 2010 Law), the Board of Directors will decide on the effective date of the merger it has initiated. Such a merger shall be subject to the conditions and procedures imposed by the 2010 Law, in particular concerning the merger project to be established by the Board of Directors and the information to be provided to the Shareholders.

A contribution of the assets and of the liabilities attributable to any Sub-Fund to another Sub-Fund may, in any other circumstances, be decided upon by a general meeting of the Shareholders of the class or classes of Shares issued in the Sub-Fund concerned for which there shall be no quorum requirements and which will decide upon such an amalgamation by resolution taken by simple majority of the votes validly cast. Such general meeting of the Shareholders will decide on the effective date of such merger.

The Shareholders may also decide a merger (within the meaning of the 2010 Law) of the assets and of the liabilities attributable to the SICAV or any Sub-Fund with the assets of any new UCITS or new Fund. Such merger and the decision on the effective date of such merger shall require resolutions of the Shareholders of the SICAV or Sub-Fund concerned, subject to the quorum and majority requirements referred to in the Articles. The assets which may not or are unable to be distributed to such Shareholders for whatever reasons will be deposited with the Luxembourg Caisse de Consignations on behalf of the persons entitled thereto.

Where the SICAV or any of its Sub-Funds is the absorbed entity which, thus, ceases to exist and irrespective of whether the merger is initiated by the board of directors or by the Shareholders, the general meeting of Shareholders of the SICAV or of the relevant Sub-Fund must decide the effective date of the merger. Such general meeting is subject to the quorum and majority requirements referred to in the SICAV's Articles of Incorporation.

### Dissolution and Liquidation of the SICAV, any Sub-Fund or any Class of Shares

Each of the SICAV and any Sub-Fund has been established for an unlimited period. The SICAV's Board of Directors, however, may dissolve the SICAV, any Sub-Fund or any class of Shares and liquidate the assets of the SICAV, Sub-Fund or class of Shares in accordance with Luxembourg law and the SICAV's Articles of Incorporation.

Shareholders will receive from the Depositary their pro rata portion of the net assets of the SICAV, Sub-Fund or class, as the case may be, in accordance with Luxembourg law and the SICAV's Articles of Incorporation.

Liquidation proceeds not claimed by Shareholders will be held by the Luxembourg *Caisse des Consignations* in accordance with Luxembourg law.

All redeemed Shares shall be cancelled.

The dissolution of the last Sub-Fund of the SICAV will result in the liquidation of the SICAV.

Liquidation of the SICAV shall be carried out in compliance with the Company Law and with the SICAV's Articles of Incorporation.

Transparency of environmentally sustainable investments in relation to Regulation (EU) 2020/852 (the "Taxonomy Regulation")

Unless as otherwise provided in the relevant Sub-Fund's supplement, the transparency of environmentally sustainable investments applies as follows: For the Sub-Funds listed below, investors should note that the investments underlying these financial products do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities:

- Natixis Conservative Risk Parity
- Natixis Bond Alternative Risk Premia
- Natixis Global Multi Strategies
- Ostrum Total Return Volatility
- Ostrum Global Emerging Bonds

### DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE

Any investor may obtain a copy of any of the following documents at:

Brown Brothers Harriman(Luxembourg) S.C.A. 80, route d'Esch L-1470 Luxembourg

between 10h00 and 16h00 Luxembourg time on any day that Luxembourg banks are open for regular business.

- The SICAV's Articles of Incorporation;
- The management company services agreement between the SICAV and the Management Company;
- The administrative agency, registrar and transfer agency and listing agency agreements between the SICAV, the Management Company and Brown Brothers Harriman, (Luxembourg) S.C.A.;
- The depositary, paying agency and domiciliary agency agreements between the SICAV and Brown Brothers Harriman (Luxembourg) S.C.A.;
- The SICAV's Prospectus and Key Investor Document(s) (KID) and/or the Key Information Document(s) (KIID), as applicable;
- The most recent annual and semi-annual financial statements of the SICAV;
- The net asset value of a Share of each Share Class of any Sub-Fund for any day that the Shares' net asset values were calculated;
- The subscription and redemption prices of a Share of each Share Class of any Sub-Fund for any day that the Shares' net asset values were calculated; and
- Luxembourg Law of December 17, 2010 on undertakings for collective investment, as amended.

The Management Company will publish on its website (<u>www.im.natixis.com</u>), if appropriate, any Shareholder notices of the SICAV required by Luxembourg law or as provided in the Articles of Incorporation.

### FUND SERVICE PROVIDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FUND SERVICE PROVIDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS			
Board of Directors of the SICAV:	<b>Natixis Investment Managers International</b> represented by Jason Trépanier, <i>"Secrétaire</i> <i>Général"</i> of Natixis Investment Managers International		
	Mr Jean-Baptiste Gubinelli		
	Mr. Charles Muller		
Management Company and Promoter	Natixis Investment Managers International 43, avenue Pierre Mendès France 75013 Paris France		
	Natixis Investment Managers International is a corporation incorporated under the laws of France set up as Société par Actions Simplifiée (French Simplified Joint Stock Company) incorporated under the laws of France on 25th April 1984 for a limited period of time of 99 years. Its issued share capital a <sup>s</sup> of June 25th, 2021 is of EUR 94 127 658,48 euros and its registered office is at 43, avenue Pierre Mendès France, 75013 Paris (France).		
	Natixis Investment Managers International is a management company for portfolios of securities for institutional investors, companies and financial institutions. Natixis Investment Managers International is part of Natixis Group. Natixis is established in a Member State other than the home Member State of the SICAV.		
	<u>"Direction":</u>		
	Mathieu Cheula		
	"Président – non-administrateur":		
	"Conseil d'Administration":		
	"Président":		
	Christophe Lanne		
	<u>"Administrateurs":</u>		
	Fabrice Chemouny		
	Natixis Investment Managers, represented by		
	Susan Tobin		
	Natixis Investment Managers Participations 1, represented by Alix Boisaubert		
	153		

**Delegated Investment Manager** 

**Ostrum Asset Management** 43 avenue Pierre Mendès France 75013 Paris France

**VEGA Investment Solutions** 43 avenue Pierre Mendès France 75013 Paris France

Brown Brothers Harriman (Luxembourg) S.C.A. 80, route d'Esch

L-1470 Luxembourg

Administrative Agent, Paying Agent, Listing Agent, Domiciliary and Corporate Agent and Registrar and Transfer Agent:

**Brown Brothers Harriman** (Luxembourg) S.C.A. 80, route d'Esch L-1470 Luxembourg

Auditor of the SICAV:

**Depositary:** 

Supervisory Authority:

**KPMG Luxembourg**, Société coopérative 39, Avenue John F. Kennedy L-1855 Luxembourg

**CSSF**: Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (www.cssf.lu) SFDR ANNEXES

### Pre-contractual disclosure for the financial products referred to in Article 8, paragraphs 1, 2 and 2a, of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 and Article 6, first paragraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852

#### Sustainable

investment means an investment in an economic activity that contributes to an environmental or social objective, provided that the investment does not significantly harm any environmental or social objective and that the investee companies follow good governance practices.

The EU Taxonomy is a classification system laid down in Regulation (EU) 2020/852, establishing a list of environmentally sustainable economic activities. That Regulation does not include a list of socially sustainable economic activities. Sustainable investments with an environmental objective might be aligned with the Taxonomy or not.

**Product name:** Ostrum SRI Euro High Dividend Equity<sup>1</sup> (the "Sub-Fund") **Legal entity identifier:** 636700WGS9EJPOD69I57

### **Environmental and/or social characteristics**

Does this financial product have a sustainable investment objective?				
•• Yes	•• 🗶 No			
It will make a minimum of sustainable investments with an environmental objective:% in	It promotes Environmental/Social (E/S) characteristics and while it does not have as its objective a sustainable investment, it will have a minimum proportion of% of sustainable investments         with       an environmental objective in economic activities that qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy         with       an environmental objective in economic activities that do not qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy         with       an environmental objective in economic activities that do not qualify as         with       an environmental objective in economic activities that do not qualify as         with       a social objective			
It will make a minimum of sustainable investments with a social objective:%	X It promotes E/S characteristics, but <b>will not</b> <b>make any sustainable investments</b>			



### What environmental and/or social characteristics are promoted by this financial product?

The Sub-Fund promotes the environmental and social characteristics of maintaining an average ESG rating higher than that of its Filtered Investment Universe (as defined below).

The filtered investment universe (the "Filtered Investment Universe") is defined as the initial investment universe (the MSCI EMU DNR index) from which are excluded 20% of the issuers with the lowest ESG ratings within each issuer category.

The Sub-Fund also complies with the sectoral and exclusions policies of the Delegated Investment Manager including the exclusion of the worst offenders of fundamental standards of responsibility.

No reference benchmark has been designated for the purpose of attaining the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This Sub-Fund does not have the French "Label ISR".

Sustainability indicators measure how the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product are attained.

### Principal adverse

**impacts** are the most significant negative impacts of investment decisions on sustainability factors relating to environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anticorruption and antibribery matters. What sustainability indicators are used to measure the attainment of each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

- Average ESG rating of the Sub-fund.
- Average ESG rating of the Filtered Investment Universe

What are the objectives of the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make and how does the sustainable investment contribute to such objectives?

Not applicable.

How do the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make, not cause significant harm to any environmental or social sustainable investment objective?

Not applicable.

How have the indicators for adverse impacts on sustainability factors been taken into account?

Not applicable.

How are the sustainable investments aligned with the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights? Details:

Not applicable.

The EU Taxonomy sets out a "do not significant harm" principle by which Taxonomy-aligned investments should not significantly harm EU Taxonomy objectives and is accompanied by specific EU criteria.

The "do no significant harm" principle applies only to those investments underlying the financial product that take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. The investments underlying the remaining portion of this financial product do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

Any other sustainable investments must also not significantly harm any environmental or social objectives.



Does this financial product consider principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors?

X Yes

The Sub-Fund takes into account the 14 principal adverse impacts listed in Annex 1 on the declaration of the main negative impacts on sustainability of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1288 of 6 April 2022

The methodology is available on the Ostrum Asset Management's website : <u>https://www.ostrum.com/en/our-csr-and-esg-publications</u>

If PAI correspond to indicators followed by the Sub-Fund, they are taken into account by the Delegated Investment Manager through the integration in the rating methodology or the definition of an investment constraint specific to the Sub-Fund.

In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion and sectoral policies which allow to remove from the investment universe any sector or issuer that fails to comply with certain criteria some of which are directly related PAI (for example : investee countries subject to social violations through our exclusions policies (worst offenders).

More information on principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors is available in the periodic reporting pursuant to Article 11(2) of the SFDR.

No



The investment strategy guides investment decisions based on factors such as investment objectives and risk tolerance.

### What investment strategy does this financial product follow?

The Delegated Investment Manager will manage the Sub-Fund with the objective to promote environmental and social characteristics by maintaining an average ESG rating better than the ESG rating of the Filtered Investment Universe.

The Delegated Investment Manager relies on the rating of external data providers selected for the quality of their approach and their wide coverage

(further details on Data Sources are describeb in the Sustainability-related Product Disclosure document and available on the following website : <u>https://www.im.natixis.com/intl/intl-fund-documents.</u>)

The non-financial rating of private issuers is based on a specific methodology allowing a pragmatic and differentiating analysis of companies with regard to sustainable development issues.

Beyond taking into account Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) criteria, this methodology measures the commitment, responsibility, opportunities and risks for companies on 4 (four) pillars:

• Responsible governance: this pillar aims to assess the organization and effectiveness of powers within each issuer (for example, for companies: assess the balance of power, executive compensation, business ethics or tax practices).

• Sustainable management of resources: this pillar makes it possible, for example, to study environmental impacts and human capital (for example, quality of working conditions, management of relations with suppliers).

• The energy transition: this pillar allows, for example, to evaluate for each issuer its strategy in favor of the energy transition (for example, approach to reduce greenhouse gases, response to long-term challenges)

• The development of territories: this pillar allows, for example, to analyze for each issuer its strategy in terms of access to basic services.

Investments are evaluated based on extra-financial criteria according to a score which ranges from 1 (high extra-financial quality) to 10 (low extra-financial quality). This rating directly influences the in-house valuation models used by the Delegated Investment Manager. These valuation models are used both for stock selection and to determine the calibration of portfolio positions.

ESG rating from an external supplier's methodology directly impacts the discount rate used by the in-house valuation model. The higher the rating, the lower the discount rate or "Cost of Equity" and the lower the rating, and the higher the discount rate or "Cost of Equity".

The integration of ESG into the investment process follows a Best In Class approach.

This approach consists in favouring the companies with the highest ratings from an extrafinancial point of view within their sector of activity, without favouring or excluding a sector compared to the investment universe used as the starting point.

What are the binding elements of the investment strategy used to select the investments to attain each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

The Sub-Fund aims at maintaining an average ESG rating better than the one of its Filtered Investment Universe on average over the medium term.

Applying of ESG policies implemented by Ostrum Asset Management (not exhaustive):

- Sector Policies,
- Exclusion Policies,

• Controversy Management policies (including the "Worst Offenders" policy which includes governance issues).

ESG policies are available on the Ostrum AM website: <u>https://www.ostrum.com/en/our-csr-and-esg-publications</u>.

### What is the committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered prior to the application of that investment strategy?

Not applicable

### What is the policy to assess good governance practices of the investee companies?

The Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion policies (especially worst offenders), ensures a permanent monitoring of controversies and applies also its active and responsible voting policy. In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager will, as part of the responsible governance pillar forming part of the investment strategy, assess the organization and effectiveness of powers within each issuer (e.g. for companies, assessing the balance of power, executive remuneration, business ethics or even tax practices).

The governance practices are considered in the analysis as well as in the selection of issuers carried out by Ostrum Asset Management,

1. The 'worst offenders' policy in order to exclude all companies for which there have been severe controversies in accordance with commonly established international standards (United Nations, OECD); in particular on governance elements such as labour rights and/or business ethics (corruption, etc.); The 'worst offenders' policy is detailed on the Delegated Investment Manager's website (<u>https://www.ostrum.com/en/our-sector-policies</u>)

2. Credit analysis, which includes the determination of the ESG materiality score specific to each private issuer in order to determine any impacts on the company's risk profile

3. Corporate ESG ratings are taken into account by portfolio managers in their stock selection (responsible corporate governance is one of 4 pillars of the rating methodology used).

The pillar "Responsible governance" aims in particular to assess the organization and effectiveness of powers within each issuer (e.g. for companies, assessing the balance of power, executive remuneration, business ethics or even tax practices)".

**Good governance** practices include sound management structures, employee relations, remuneration of staff and tax compliance.



Asset allocation describes the share of investments in specific assets. Each issuer has a global rating and a rating by pillar. Ratings are updated every six months to reflect the updated indicators provided by the data providers.

The Active and Responsible voting policy is detailed on the Delegated Investment Manager's website (<u>https://www.ostrum.com/en/our-csr-and-esg-publications#voting-policy-and-shareholder-engagement-policy</u>)

### What is the asset allocation planned for this financial product?

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest at least 80% of its NAV in investments that qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics).

The Sub-Fund may invest a maximum of 20% of its NAV in investments that do not qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#2 Other).



### How does the use of derivatives attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Derivatives are not used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.

### To what minimum extent are sustainable investments with an environmental objective aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

The Sub-Fund does not currently commit to invest in any "sustainable investment" within the meaning of the EU Taxonomy. However, the position will be kept under review as the underlying rules are finalised and the availability of reliable data increases over time

Does the financial product invest in fossil gas and/or nuclear energy related activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy<sup>1</sup>?

	Yes :
	In fossil gas In nuclear energy
No	x



expressed as a share of: - turnover reflecting the share of revenue from green activities of investee companies - capital expenditure (CapEx) showing

(CapEx) showing the green investments made by investee companies, e.g. for a transition to a green economy.

operational expenditure (OpEx) reflecting green operational activities of investee companies.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Fossil gas and/or nuclear related activities will only comply with the EU Taxonomy where they contribute to limiting climate change (« climate change mitigation ») and do not significantly harm any EU Taxonomy objective - see explanatory note in the left hand margin. The full criteria for fossil gas and nuclear energy economic activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy are laid down in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1214.

To comply with the EU Taxonomy, the criteria for fossil gas include limitations on emissions and switching to renewable power or low-carbon fuels by the end of 2035. For nuclear energy, the criteria include comprehensive safety and waste management rules. Enabling activities directly enable other activities to make a substantial contribution to an environmental objective. Transitional activities are activities for which low-carbon alternatives are not yet available and among others have greenhouse gas emission levels corresponding to the

best performance.

are

investments with an

objective that **do not** take into account the criteria for environmentally

sustainable

sustainable economic activities

under the EU Taxonomy.

environmental

The two graphs below show in green the minimum percentage of investments that are aligned with the EU Taxonomy. As there is no appropriate methodology to determine the Taxonomy-alignment of sovereign bonds\*, the first graph shows the Taxonomy alignment in relation to all the investments of the financial product including sovereign bonds, while the second graph shows the Taxonomy alignment only in relation to the investments of the financial product other than sovereign bonds. 1.Taxonomy-alignment of investments including 2.Taxonomy-alignment of investments excluding sovereign bonds\* sovereign bonds\* Taxonomy-aligned: Fossil gas Taxonomy-aligned: Fossil gas Taxonomy-aligned: Nuclear Taxonomy-aligned: Nuclear Taxonomy-aligned (no fossil gas & Taxonomy-aligned (no fossil gas & nuclear) nuclear) Non Taxonomy-aligned Non Taxonomy-aligned This graph represents 100% of the total investments\*\* \* For the purpose of these graphs, 'sovereig. \*\*As the Sub-Fund does not commit to making sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy, the proportion of sovereign bonds in the Sub-Fund's portfolio will not impact the proportion of sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy included in the graph.

What is the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities?

As the Sub-Fund does not commit to invest any "sustainable investment" within the meaning of the EU Taxonomy, the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities within the meaning of the EU Taxonomy is therefore also set at 0%.

### What is the minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

The Sub-Fund promotes environmental and social characteristics but does not commit to making any sustainable investments. As a consequence, the Sub-Fund does not commit to a minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy.

### What is the minimum share of socially sustainable investments?

Not applicable



What investments are included under "#2 Other", what is their purpose and are there any minimum environmental or social safeguards?

The following investments are included in "#2others" :, assets and financial instruments not covered by an ESG rating, (such as but not limited to, cash, the proportion of UCIs not aligned with E/S characteristics, derivatives traded on regulated markets for cash management purposes). Information on the list of assets classes and financial instruments and their use can be found in the Prospectus. Minimum environmental or social safeguards are not systematically applied. Is a specific index designated as a reference benchmark to determine whether this financial product is aligned with the environmental and/or social characteristics that it promotes? Not applicable How is the reference benchmark continuously aligned with each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product? Not applicable How is the alignment of the investment strategy with the methodology of the index ensured on a continuous basis? benchmarks are Not applicable indexes to measure financial product How does the designated index differ from a relevant broad market index? environmental or Not applicable characteristics that Where can the methodology used for the calculation of the designated index be found? Not applicable

Where can I find more product specific information online?

More product-specific information can be found on the website:

https://www.im.natixis.com/intl/intl-fund-documents





Reference

whether the

attains the

they promote.

social

Pre-contractual disclosure for the financial products referred to in Article 8, paragraphs 1, 2 and 2a, of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 and Article 6, first paragraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852

### Sustainable

investment means an investment in an economic activity that contributes to an environmental or social objective, provided that the investment does not significantly harm any environmental or social objective and that the investee companies follow good governance practices.

The EU Taxonomy is a classification system laid down in Regulation (EU) 2020/852, establishing a list of environmentally sustainable economic activities. That Regulation does not include a list of socially sustainable economic activities. Sustainable investments with an environmental objective might be aligned with the Taxonomy or not.

Product name: Ostrum SRI Total Return Sovereign<sup>1</sup> (the "Sub-Fund") Legal entity identifier : 549300THFQDO6K1JWA65

# Environmental and/or social characteristics

### Does this financial product have a sustainable investment objective?

••	Yes		× No
susta	Il make a minimum of ainable investments with an ronmental objective:% in economic activities that qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy in economic activities that do not qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy	ch it: ha	<ul> <li>promotes Environmental/Social (E/S) haracteristics and while it does not have as so objective a sustainable investment, it will ave a minimum proportion of 40% of ustainable investments</li> <li>with an environmental objective in economic activities that qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy</li> <li>with an environmental objective in economic activities that do not qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy</li> <li>with a social objective</li> </ul>
susta	ll make a minimum of ainable investments with a al objective:%		promotes E/S characteristics, but will not ake any sustainable investments

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This Sub-Fund does not have the French "Label ISR".



Sustainability indicators measure how the sustainable objectives of this financial product are attained.

## What environmental and/or social characteristics are promoted by this financial product?

The Sub-Fund promotes the environmental and social characteristics of maintaining an average ESG rating higher than that of its investment universe (the "Investment Universe").

The Sub-Fund's GHG intensity must be lower than that of the Investment Universe.

Moreover, the Sub-Fund must maintain an average ESG rating higher than that of its Filtered Investment Universe (as defined below) and the Government spending on health and education indicator of the Sub-Fund must be higher than that of the Investment Universe. () The calculations exclude assets that are not aligned with the environmental or social characteristics promoted (the "**#2 Other**") including:

- non green sovereign debt,
- assets not covered asset by an ESG rating, cash (cash not invested),
- the proportion of UCIs not aligned with E/S characteristics,
- derivatives traded on a regulated or over the counter markets for hedging and/or exposure purposes,
- repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements.

The Sub-Fund also complies with the sectoral and exclusions policies of the Delegated Investment Manager including the exclusion of the worst offenders of fundamental standards of responsibility

The filtered investment universe (the "Filtered Investment Universe") is defined as the Investment Universe (Euro-denominated bonds and money market securities issued by OECD and EEA member states) from which are excluded :

- 20% of the issuers with the lowest ESG ratings within each issuer category (including the most controversial issuers according to the Delegated Investment Manager's exclusion and sector policies and the lowest rated issuers); and
- the sovereign debt.

No reference benchmark has been designated for the purpose of attaining the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.

What sustainability indicators are used to measure the attainment of each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

- GHG Intensity of the Sub-Fund;
- GHG Intensity of the Investment Universe;
- Average ESG rating of the Sub-Fund;
- Average ESG rating of the
  - The Investment Universe
  - Filtered Investment Universe (1)
- Government spending on health and education indicator of The Sub-Fund;
- Government spending on health and education indicator of the Investment Universe

(1) The calculations exclude assets that do not qualify as aligned with the environmental or social characteristics promoted (defined as "#2 Other" below).

What are the objectives of the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make and how does the sustainable investment contribute to such objectives?

Sustainable investment is an investment in an economic activity that contributes to an environmental or social objective as long as it does not cause significant harm to any of these objectives.

As part of its sustainable investments, the portfolio may invest in green bonds, social bonds or sustainability bonds whose funds raised finance activities that contribute to an environmental and/or social objective. The portfolio may also invest in sustainability linked bonds associated with environmental and/or social indicators that, after examination by our team of sustainable bond analysts, are not 'disqualified.'

All these securities are then subject to study to verify that they do not significantly harm an environmental and/or social objective.

Investments going through the two steps ([1. « contributes to an environmental (E) and/or social (S) objective » 2. « provided that investments do not cause material harm to these objectives » (« Do Not Significant Harm » / « DNSH ») will be considered sustainable investments. The detailed definition is available at https://www.ostrum.com/fr/notre-documentation-rse-et-esg#politique-esg

Principal adverse impacts are the most significant negative impacts of investment decisions on sustainability factors relating to environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anticorruption and antibribery matters. How do the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make, not cause significant harm to any environmental or social sustainable investment objective?

The Delegated Investment Manager, at the level of the Sub-Fund, takes into in a quantitative way account the Principal Adverse Impacts (the "PAI") which concern Sovereign issuers, Green bond sovereign issuers, quasisovereign issuers (guaranteed agencies, supranational agencies, local authorities, etc.) and semi-public issuers (non-guaranteed agencies, or sponsored, and public compagnies). The Sub-Fund does not invest in private sector issuers.

Taking into account PAI allows the Delegated Investment Manager to verify that sustainable investments do not harm other objectives. In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion policies (especially worst offenders) and ensures a permanent monitoring of controversies.

### How have the indicators for adverse impacts on sustainability factors been taken into account?

Ostrum AM takes into consideration the two mandatory PAI that apply to sovereigns. In both cases, to ensure a country is compliant with DNSH when a country is considered to be making a positive contribution to a E/S objective, Ostrum AM considers that carbon intensity scopes 1+2+3 must be lower than that of the 70th quantile (thus the country is positioned best-in-class, amongst the top 30% relative to peers) and that the country is not subject to violations in accordance with international conventions and treaties, United Nations principles and, where appropriate, national legislation.

 How are the sustainable investments aligned with the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights? Details:

Not applicable. The Sub-fund does not invest in private sector issuers

The EU Taxonomy sets out a "do not significant harm" principle by which Taxonomy-aligned investments should not significantly harm EU Taxonomy objectives and is accompanied by specific EU criteria.

The "do no significant harm" principle applies only to those investments underlying the financial product that take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. The investments underlying the remaining portion of this financial product do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

Any other sustainable investments must also not significantly harm any environmental or social objectives.



Does this financial product consider principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors?

X Yes

The mandatory PAI which concern which concern Sovereign issuers, Green bond sovereign issuers, quasi-sovereign issuers (guaranteed agencies, supranational agencies, local authorities, etc.) and semi-public issuers (nonguaranteed agencies, or sponsored, and public compagnies) are taken into account.. The methodology is available on Ostrum Asset Management's website <u>https://www.ostrum.com/fr/notre-documentation-rse-etesg#prise-en-compte-des-pai</u>

If PAI correspond to indicators followed by the Sub-Fund, they are taken into account by the Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund through the integration in the rating methodology or the definition of an investment constraint specific to the Sub-Fund.

For instance, the GHG Intensity of the Sub-Fund is monitored and must be lower than GHG Intensity of the Investment Universe.

In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion and sectoral policies which allow to remove from the Investment Universe any sector or issuer that fails to comply with certain criteria some of which are directly related to PAI (Investee countries subject to social violations through our exclusions policies (worst offenders));

More information on principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors is available in the annual report.



The investment strategy guides investment decisions based on factors such as investment objectives and risk tolerance.

### What investment strategy does this financial product follow?

The SRI Investment Strategy of the Sub-Fund is threefold as described hereafter:

1. Applying a sectoral and exclusion list:

The Delegated Investment Manager applies exclusion, sectoral and worst offenders policies. They mainly concern private sector issuers and are available on Ostrum's website (<u>https://www.ostrum.com/en/our-sector-policies</u>) <u>https://www.ostrum.com/en/our-sector-policies</u>) section 'SRI'. The Sub-Fund does not invest in private sector issuers and only applies the Ostrum exclusion policy, which concerns blacklisted states (Exclusion of countries with strategic deficiencies in their anti-money laundering and anti-terrorist financing arrangements)

### 2. Integrating ESG elements into our research

After having excluded the most controversial issuers from the Investment Universe, the investment teams systematically assess for each underlying issuer, whether the extra-financial dimensions impact the issuer's credit risk profile, both in terms of risk and opportunity, as well as their probability of occurrence. Thus, extra-financial dimensions are systematically integrated into the risk assessment and fundamental analysis of issuers.

The Delegated Investment Manager then analyses a set of quantitative and qualitative indicators through the environmental pillar, the social pillar, and the governance pillar. The following examples are given for illustrative purposes only.

- The environmental pillar deals notably with biodiversity, climate change, resource management. Indicators used in the score could be the carbon footprint, the carbon intensity, the existence of a climate change policy, the existence of a biodiversity policy.
- The social pillar deals notably with gender diversity, human rights, education. Indicators used in the score could be the employee turnover, the existence of diversity programs, the percentage of employees covered by a collective bargaining agreement, the spending on healthcare or on education.
- The governance pillar deals notably with the exposure to corruption and bribery, the diversity among the management, and overall information concerning the governance. Indicators used in the score could be the independence of the board, the percentage of women in the management, or the number business ethics incidents.
- 3. Applying a selectivity process to The Sub-Fund

The Sub-Fund adopts a process based on the "average rating" method. This method aims to ensure that the Sub-Fund's average ESG rating is never lower than that of its Investment Universe.

Moreover, the Sub-Fund must maintain an average ESG rating higher than that of its Filtered Investment Universe.

The Sub-Fund's investment process thus selects issuers using an "average rating" - "best in universe" approach, aiming to outperform the Filtered Investment Universe filtered by 20% (lowest ESG rated issuers by weight).

Sovereign issuers, Green bond sovereign issuers, quasi-sovereign issuers (guaranteed agencies, supranational agencies, local authorities, etc.) and semipublic issuers (non-guaranteed agencies, or sponsored, and public compagnies) evaluation done by the Delegated Investment Manager is taking into account SDG index, which is based on 17 SDG's. This index is published by SDSN(« Sustainable Development Solutions Network », a global UN initiative) and Bertelsmannstiftung (a German foundation), for sovereign issuers.

SDG index aggregate available datas for the 17 SDG's and give a compared evaluation of States performance. His goal is to help each States (i) to identify priorities in sustainable development and set up action plan but also (ii) to understand challenges and identify deficiencies that need to be gaped to reach the SDG by 2030. The index allows each States to compare themselves with their home regions, or with any other counterpart States, rated with similar levels.

SDG Index is a numeric score between 0 (worst score) and 100 (best score), that follows accomplished progresses of states in their pursuit of each SDG's. the report published by the SDG index present reports on SDG's, for each cover States. Each objectives is attached with a color status : Green is the country succeed on his objective, orange when significant challenges remains or red when Major challenges remains.

In order to assess each of these objectives, the SDG index rely on official data (communicated by national government, or international organization) and non-official datas (collected by non-government entities such as research institute, universities, non-governmental organization, private sector). Half of datas come from official organization : OECD, WHO, UNICEF. Main indicators analyzed by SDG index are maternal mortality rate, life expectancy, Universal health coverage.

Investors can access to more information on SDG index website : <a href="https://www.sdgindex.org/">https://www.sdgindex.org/</a>

Limitation of the approach adopted: The Sub-Fund 's approach could lead to an under-representation of certain sectors due to a poor ESG rating or else through the Delegated Investment Manager's sector exclusion policy.

What are the binding elements of the investment strategy used to select the investments to attain each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

• The Sub-Fund maintains an average ESG rating higher than the one of its Investment Universe;

- The Sub-Fund maintains an average ESG rating higher than the one of its Filtered Investment Universe. The calculations exclude assets that do not qualify as aligned with the the environmental or social characteristics promoted (defined as "#2 Other" below).
- The Sub-Fund maintains an GHG Intensity lower than the one of its Investment Universe
- Government spending on health and education indicator of the Sub-Fund must be higher than that of the Investment Universe

What is the committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered prior to the application of that investment strategy?

There is no committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered.

### What is the policy to assess good governance practices of the investee companies?

As the Sub-Fund does not invest in private sector issuers, no specific policy should apply.

### What is the asset allocation planned for this financial product?

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest minimum 85% of its NAV in investments that qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#1).

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest at least 40% of its NAV in sustainable investments.

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest a maximum of 15% ot its NAV in investments that do not qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#2 Other).

structures, employee relations, remuneration of staff ad tax compliance.

**Good governance** 

practices include sound management



Asset allocation describes the share of investments in specific assets.



**#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics** includes the investments of the financial product used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product.

**#2 Other** includes the remainings investments of the financial product which are neither aligned with the environmental or social characteristics, nor are qualified as sustainable investments.

The category **#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics** covers:

• The sub-category **#1A Sustainable** covers environmentally and socially sustainable investments.

• The sub-category **#1B Other E/S characteristics** covers investments aligned with the environemental or social characteristics that do not qualify as sustainable investments.

### How does the use of derivatives attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Derivatives are not used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-fund.

To what minimum extent are sustainable investments with an environmental objective aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

Not applicable.

Taxonomyaligned activities are expressed as a share of:

- **turnover** reflecting the share of revenue from green activities of investee companies

- capital expenditure (CapEx) showing the green investments made by investee companies, e.g. for a transition to a green economy.

- operational expenditure (OpEx) reflecting green operational activities of investee companies.



Does the financial product invest in fossil gas and/or nuclear energy related activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy ?<sup>1</sup>



The two graphs below show in green the minimum percentage of investments that are aligned with the EU Taxonomy. As there is no appropriate methodology to determine the Taxonomyalignment of sovereign bonds<sup>\*</sup>, the first graph shows the Taxonomy alignment in relation to all the investments of the financial product including sovereign bonds, while the second graph shows the Taxonomy alignment only in relation to the investments of the financial product other than sovereign bonds.



\*For the purpose of these graphs, 'sovereign bonds' consist of all sovereign exposures \*\*As the Sub-Fund does not commit to making sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy, the proportion of sovereign bonds in the Sub-Fund's portfolio will not impact the proportion of sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy included in the graph.

To comply with the EU Taxonomy, the criteria for fossil gas include limitations on emissions and switching to fully renewable power or low-carbon fuels by the end of 2035. For nuclear energy, the criteria include comprehensive safety and waste management rules. **Enabling activities** directly enable other activities to make a substantial contribution to an environmental objective. Transitional activities are economic activities for which low-carbon alternatives are not vet available and that have greenhouse gas

emission levels corresponding to the

best performance.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Fossil gas and/or nuclear related activities will only comply with the EU Taxonomy where they contribute to limiting climate change ("climate change mitigation") and do not significantly harm any EU Taxonomy objectives - see explanatory note in the left hand margin. The full criteria for fossil gas and nuclear energy economic activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy are laid down in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1214.

are sustainable investements with an environmental objective that **do not take into account the criteria** for environmentaly sustainable economic activities under the EU Taxonomy.



### What is the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities?

Not applicable.

### What is the minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

The Sub-Fund commits to a minimum of 1% of sustainable investments with an environmental objective. These investments could be aligned with the EU Taxonomy but the Delegated Investment Manager is not currently in a position to specify the exact proportion of the Sub-Fund's underlying investments which take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. However, the position is kept under review as the underlying rules are finalized and the availability of reliable data increases over time.



### What is the minimum share of socially sustainable investments?

The Sub-Fund commits to a minimum of 1% of socially sustainable investments.



What investments are included under "#2 Other", what is their purpose and are there any minimum environmental or social safeguards?

The investments included in others are :, assets not covered by an ESG rating, cash ( cash not invested), the proportion of UCIs not aligned with E/S characteristics, derivatives traded on a regulated or over the counter markets for hedging and/or exposure purposes, repurchase and revers repurchase agreements for cash management purposes and to optimise the Sub-Fund's income and performance. Information on the list of assets classes and financial instruments and their use can be found in the Prospectus. Minimum environmental or social safeguards are not systematically applied.

### Reference

benchmarks are indexes to measure whether the financial product attains the environmental or social characteristics that they promote. Is a specific index designated as a reference benchmark to determine whether this financial product is aligned with the environmental and/or social characteristics that it promotes?

Not applicable.

How is the reference benchmark continuously aligned with each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Not applicable.

How is the alignment of the investment strategy with the methodology of the index ensured on a continuous basis?

Not applicable.

How does the designated index differ from a relevant broad market index?

Not applicable.

Where can the methodology used for the calculation of the designated index be found?

Not applicable.



Where can I find more product specific information online? More product-specific information can be found on the website:

https://www.im.natixis.com/intl/intl-fund-documents

Pre-contractual disclosure for the financial products referred to in Article 8, paragraphs 1, 2 and 2a, of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 and Article 6, first paragraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852

#### Sustainable investment means an Product name: Ostrum SRI Credit Short Duration<sup>1</sup> (the "Sub-Fund") investment in an Legal entity identifier : 549300DRWTJV30SSEL30 economic activity that **Environmental and/or social** contributes to an environmental or social objective, characteristics provided that the investment does not significantly Does this financial product have a sustainable investment objective? harm any Yes × environmental or No social objective It will make a minimum of and that the It promotes Environmental/Social (E/S) Х investee characteristics and while it does not have as sustainable investments with an companies its objective a sustainable investment, it will environmental objective: % follow good have a minimum proportion of 20% of governance in economic activities that qualify practices. sustainable investments as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy with an environmental objective in economic activities that qualify as environmentally in economic activities that do not sustainable under the EU Taxonomy qualify as environmentally with an environmental objective in sustainable under the EU Х The EU Taxonomy economic activities that do not qualify as Taxonomy is a classification environmentally sustainable under the EU system laid down Taxonomy in Regulation (EU) 2020/852, with a social objective X establishing a list of environmentally sustainable It promotes E/S characteristics, but will not It will make a minimum of economic activities. That make any sustainable investments sustainable investments with a Regulation does not social objective: \_\_\_% include a list of socially sustainable economic activities. Sustainable investments with an environmental

objective might be aligned with the Taxonomy or not.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>This Sub-Fund does not have the French "Label ISR"



Sustainability indicators measure how the sustainable objectives of this financial product are attained.

### What environmental and/or social characteristics are promoted by this financial product?

The Sub-Fund promotes the environmental and social characteristics of maintaining an average ESG rating higher than its Filtered Investment Universe (as defined below) and avoiding issuers based on sectoral and exclusions policies including worst offenders of fundamental standards of responsibility

The filtered investment universe (the "Filtered Investment Universe") is defined as the initial investment universe (euro-denominated credit) from which are excluded:

- 20% of the issuers with the lowest ESG ratings within each issuer category (including the most controversial issuers according to Ostrum's exclusion and sector policies and the lowest rated issuers); and
- the sovereign debt.

In addition, the Sub-Fund's GHG intensity must be lower than the one of its Investment Universe.

The calculations exclude assets that are not aligned with the environmental or social characteristics promoted (the "**#2 Other**"), including:

- non green sovereign debt,
- assets not covered asset by an ESG rating, cash ( cash not invested),
- the proportion of UCIs not aligned with E/S characteristics,
- derivatives traded on a regulated or over the counter markets for hedging and/or exposure purposes,
- repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements.

No reference benchmark has been designated for the purpose of attaining the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the sub-fund.

What sustainability indicators are used to measure the attainment of each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

- Average ESG rating of the Sub-Fund\*
- Average ESG rating of the Filtered Investment Universe
- GHG Intensity of the Sub-Fund\*
- GHG Intensity of the Investment Universe

\*the calculations exclude assets that are not aligned with the environmental or social characteristics promoted (defined as "**#2 Other**" below).

What are the objectives of the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make and how does the sustainable investment contribute to such objectives?

Sustainable investment is an investment in an economic activity that contributes to an environmental or social objective as long as (1) it does not cause significant harm to any of these objectives and (2) that the companies receiving the investments apply good governance practices.

As part of its sustainable investments, the portfolio may invest in green bonds, social bonds or sustainability bonds whose funds raised finance activities that contribute to an environmental and/or social objective. The portfolio may also invest in sustainability linked bonds associated with environmental and/or social indicators that, after examination by our team of sustainable bond analysts, are not 'disqualified.'

Additionnaly, companies whose products or services contribute to positive social or environmental economic activities through a sustainable impact indicator established according to the MSCI methodology are also considered to have a positive contribution to an E or S objective.

All these securities are then subject to study to verify that they do not significantly harm an environmental and/or social objective.

Finally, we ensure that the companies or sovereigns in which the portfolio invests apply good governance practices.

Investments going through the three steps ([1. « contributes to an environmental (E) and/or social (S) objective » 2. « provided that investments do not cause material harm to these objectives » (« Do Not Significant Harm » / « DNSH ») 3. « and that investments made apply good governance practices ») will be considered sustainable investments. The detailed definition is available at https://www.ostrum.com/fr/notre-documentation-rse-et-esg#politique-esg

How do the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make, not cause significant harm to any environmental or social sustainable investment objective?

The Delegated Investment Manager takes into account all the Principal Adverse Impacts (the "PAI") in a quantitative way (. Taking into account PAI allows The Delegated Investment Manager to verify that sustainable investments do not harm other objectives. In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion policies (especially worst offenders) and ensures a permanent monitoring of controversies.

#### Principal adverse

impacts are the most significant negative impacts of investment decisions on sustainability factors relating to environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anticorruption and antibribery matters. How have the indicators for adverse impacts on sustainability factors been taken into account?

PAI at the level of the Sub-Fund managed by the Delegated Investment Manager, are taken into account at several levels as detailed in the methodology published on the Delegated Investment Manager's website <a href="https://www.ostrum.com/sites/default/files/1-ostrum-mediatheque/esg-rse/investissement-durable-definition-ostrum-am/Ostrum%20AM%20-%20Definition%20Sustainable%20Investments-EN.pdf">https://www.ostrum.com/sites/default/files/1-ostrum-mediatheque/esg-rse/investissement-durable-definition-ostrum-am/Ostrum%20AM%20-%20Definition%20Sustainable%20Investments-EN.pdf</a> and summarised below:

#### 1. Sectoral and exclusion policies

The Delegated Investment Manager's exclusion and sectoral policies allow to remove from the investment universe any sector or issuer that fails to comply with certain criteria some of which are directly related to certain PAI (e.g. coal exclusion is related to GHG emissions).

For other greenhouse gas emitting sectors, the Delegated Investment Manager has developed a climate approach that, on the one hand, leads to engagement with high emitting companies and, on the other hand, integrates greenhouse gas aspects into the ESG materiality score.

To meet the "Do Not Significantly Harm" criteria, the Delegated Investment Manager also takes into account certain PAI indicators by applying its Worst Offenders Exclusion Policy that is based on the fundamental standards of responsibility: the United Nations Global Compact or the OECD Guidelines. This policy implies that Ostrum AM excludes from investments all companies, listed or not, for which are proven severe controversies to the principles defended by these international standards seriously affecting human rights, labour rights, environmental preservation and business ethics.

Similarly, the Delegated Investment Manager also takes into account certain PAI indicators by applying its controversial weapons policy. The Delegated Investment Manager's policy is consistent with the Ottawa Convention, the Oslo Treaty, the Convention on the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons, the Convention on the Prohibition of Biological Weapons, the Treaty on the Prohibition of nuclear weapons. This policy allows the Delegated Investment Manager to exclude from all portfolios the actors involved in the use, development, production, marketing, distribution, storage or transport of the following categories of weapons:

- Anti-personnel mines
- Cluster bombs
- Chemical weapons
- biological weapons
- Nuclear weapons (outside the Non-proliferation Treaty)
- And depleted uranium weapons
  - 2. Engagement policy and engagement campaigns

Through its engagement policy and engagement campaigns, the Delegated Investment Manager tries to influence companies to limit the negative impact of its investment decisions on Environmental, social, respect for human rights and the fight against corruption issues. 3. MSCI methodology to strengthen compliance with DNSH

Moreover the Delegated Investment Manager uses the MSCI methodology to apply an additional filter, implying the exclusion of companies that may have a positive E/S contribution, but that :

- violates global standards such as UNGC or OECD or
- has an orange or red controversy note or
- is involved in activities related to significant damage or
- is involved in one of the following sectors: tobacco producer, controversial weapons and thermal coal
- How are the sustainable investments aligned with the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights? Details:

The Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion policies (especially worst offenders) and ensures a permanent monitoring of controversies.

The EU Taxonomy sets out a "do not significant harm" principle by which Taxonomy-aligned investments should not significantly harm EU Taxonomy objectives and is accompanied by specific EU criteria.

The "do no significant harm" principle applies only to those investments underlying the financial product that take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. The investments underlying the remaining portion of this financial product do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

Any other sustainable investments must also not significantly harm any environmental or social objectives.



### Does this financial product consider principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors?

X Yes

All mandatory PAI are taken into account. The methodology is available on the Delegated Investment Manager's website <u>https://www.ostrum.com/fr/notre-documentation-rse-et-esg#prise-en-compte-des-pai</u>

If PAI correspond to indicators followed by the Sub-Fund, they are taken into account by the Delegated Investment Manager through the integration in the rating methodology or the definition of an investment constraint specific to the Sub-Fund.

For instance, the GHG Intensity of the Sub-Fund is monitored and must be lower than GHG Intensity of the Investment Universe

In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion and sectoral policies which allow to remove from the investment universe any sector or issuer that fails to comply with certain criteria some of which are directly related to PAI (e.g. coal exclusion is related to GHG emissions)

More information on principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors is available in the annual report.

No

### What investment strategy does this financial product follow?

The Sub Fund's investment strategy is based on the following three steps:

1. Applying an exclusion list

The Fund is required to apply sectoral and exclusion policies against:

### Controversial weapons\*

Regulatory exclusion: emitters involved in the employment, development, production, marketing, distribution, storage or transfer of anti-personnel mines (MAP) and cluster bombs (BASM)\*.

\*In accordance with the treaties signed with the French government, the funds directly managed by Ostrum Asset Management do not invest in companies that produce, sell or store anti-personnel mines and cluster bombs

### Worst Offenders

Exclusion of issuers not meeting certain fundamental criteria.

### **Blacklisted states**

Exclusion of countries with strategic deficiencies in their anti-money laundering and anti-

The investment strategy guides investment decisions based on factors such as investment objectives and risk tolerance.
terrorist financing arrangements.

### Oil and gas

2022: end of new investments in companies where more than 10% of production is related to these activities.

by 2030: Full exit from unconventional and/or controversial oil and gas exploration and production activities.

### Tobacco

Exclusion of tobacco manufacturers and producers.

### Coal

End of investment in enterprises according to strict criteria.

The sectoral and exclusion policies of the Investment Manager are described in more detail on its website: <u>www.ostrum.com</u>

### 2. Incorporating ESG factors into our research

After excluding the most controversial issuers from the investment universe, the investment teams systematically assess whether non-financial factors have an impact on each underlying issuer's credit risk profile, in terms of both risk and opportunity, as well as their likelihood of occurrence. Non-financial factors are thus systematically incorporated into the risk assessment and the fundamental analysis of private and public issuers.

The Delegated Investment Manager then analyses a set of quantitative and qualitative indicators in the environmental, social and governance domains. The following examples are for information purposes only.

ESG ratings from external providers are used to assess the Investment Universe composed of private sector issuers

The non-financial rating of issuers, which applies to all asset classes, is based on four pillars, which allow for a pragmatic and differentiating analysis:

- Responsible governance: this pillar aims in particular to assess the organization and effectiveness of powers within each issuer (e.g. for companies, assessing the balance of power, executive remuneration, business ethics or even tax practices).
- Sustainable management of resources: this pillar makes it possible to, for example, study the environmental impacts and human capital (e.g. quality of working conditions, management of relationships with suppliers) of each issuer.
- Energy transition: this pillar makes it possible to, for example, assess each issuer's strategy with regard to the energy transition (e.g. approach to greenhouse gas reduction, response to long-term issues).
- Territorial development: this pillar makes it possible to, for example, analyze each issuer's strategy for access to basic services.

Several criteria are identified for each pillar and monitored by means of indicators collected from non-financial rating agencies. Ultimately, the Delegated Investment Manager remains the sole judge of the issuer's non-financial quality.

3. Applying a selection process to the Sub-Fund

The Sub-Fund adopts a process based on the "average rating" method. This method aims to ensure that the Sub-Fund's average ESG rating is never lower than that of its Filtered Investment Universe (defined above).

The ESG ratings from external providers are used to assess the Investment Universe composed of private sector issuers.

The Delegated Investment Manager has also defined for each following pilar - Environment, Social, Governance and Human Rights – a specific indicator which will be measured and compared between the sub-fund and the Filtered Investment Universe.

In addition, the Sub-Fund's GHG intensity must be lower than the one of its Investment Universe.The calculations exclude assets that are not aligned with the environmental or social characteristics promoted (defined as "#2 Other" below).Limitations of the selected approach: The Sub-Fund's approach could lead to underrepresentation in certain countries due to poor ESG ratings or due to the application of the sector exclusion policy by the Delegated Investment Manager.

The portfolio's net asset is composed of at least 90% of assets that are covered by an ESG rating.

What are the binding elements of the investment strategy used to select the investments to attain each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

- The Sub-Fund maintains an average ESG rating higher than the one of its Filtered Investment Universe (1)
- The Sub-Fund maintains an GHG Intensity lower than the one of its Investment Universe (1)
- No target investment should breach the sectoral and exclusion policies.

(1) The calculations exclude assets that are not aligned with the environmental or social characteristics promoted (defined as "#2 Other" below).

### What is the committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered prior to the application of that investment strategy?

There is no committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered.

# What is the policy to assess good governance practices of the investee companies?

The Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion polic (especially worst offenders) and ensures a permanent monitoring of controversies. In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager will, as part of the responsible governance pillar forming part of the investment strategy, assess the organisation and effectiveness of powers within each issuer (e.g. for companies, assessing the balance of power, executive remuneration, business ethics or even tax practices).

The governance practices are taken into account in the analysis as well as in the selection of issuers carried out by the Delegated Investment Manager,

1. The 'worst offenders' policy in order to exclude all companies for which there have been severe controversies in accordance with commonly established international standards (United Nations, OECD); in particular on governance elements such as labour rights and/or business ethics (corruption, etc.);

The 'worst offenders' policy is detailed on the Delegated Investment Manager's website (<u>https://www.ostrum.com/en/our-sector-policies</u>)

2. Credit analysis, which includes the determination of the ESG materiality score specific to each private sector issuer in order to determine any impacts on the company's risk profile

3. **Corporate ESG ratings** are taken into account by managers in their stock selection (responsible corporate governance is one of 4 pillars of the rating methodology used).

The pillar "Responsible governance" aims in particular to assess the organization and effectiveness of powers within each issuer (e.g. for companies, assessing the balance of power, executive remuneration, business ethics or even tax practices)".

Each issuer has a global rating and a rating by pillar. Rating are updated every six months to reflect the updated indicators provided by the data providers.

**Good governance** practices include sound management structures, employee relations, remuneration of staff ad tax compliance.



Asset allocation describes the share of investments in specific assets.

### What is the asset allocation planned for this financial product?

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest at least 70% of its NAV in investments that qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics).

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest at least 20% of its NAV in sustainable investments.

The Sub-Fund may invest a maximum of 30% ot ifs NAV in investments that do not qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#2 Other).



**#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics** includes the investments of the financial product used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product.

**#2 Other** includes the remainings investments of the financial product which are neither aligned with the environmental or social characteristics, nor are qualified as sustainable investments.

The category **#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics** covers:

• The sub-category **#1A Sustainable** covers environmentally and socially sustainable investments.

• The sub-category **#1B Other E/S characteristics** covers investments aligned with the environemental or social characteristics that do not qualify as sustainable investments.

How does the use of derivatives attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Derivatives are not used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.



# To what minimum extent are sustainable investments with an environmental objective aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

Not applicable.

Taxonomyaligned activities are expressed as a share of:

- **turnover** reflecting the share of revenue from green activities of investee companies
- capital expenditure

(CapEx) showing the green investments made by investee companies, e.g. for a transition to a green economy.

- operational expenditure (OpEx) reflecting green operational activities of investee companies. Does the financial product invest in fossil gas and/or nuclear energy related activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy ?<sup>2</sup>



The two graphs below show in green the minimum percentage of investments that are aligned with the EU Taxonomy. As there is no appropriate methodology to determine the Taxonomyalignment of sovereign bonds<sup>\*</sup>, the first graph shows the Taxonomy alignment in relation to all the investments of the financial product including sovereign bonds, while the second graph shows the Taxonomy alignment only in relation to the investments of the financial product other than sovereign bonds.



Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1214.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Fossil gas and/or nuclear related activities will only comply with the EU Taxonomy where they contribute to limiting climate change ("climate change mitigation") and do not significantly harm any EU Taxonomy objectives - see explanatory note in the left hand margin. The full criteria for fossil gas and nuclear energy economic activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy are laid down in

To comply with the EU Taxonomy, the criteria for fossil gas include limitations on emissions and switching to fully renewable power or low-carbon fuels by the end of 2035. For nuclear energy, the criteria include comprehensive safety and waste management rules. **Enabling activities** directly enable other activities to make a substantial contribution to an environmental objective. Transitional activities are economic activities for which lowcarbon alternatives are not yet available and that have

and that have greenhouse gas emission levels corresponding to the best performance.



### What is the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities?

Not applicable.

What is the minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

The Sub-Fund commits to a minimum of 1% of sustainable investments with an environmental objective. These investments could be aligned with the EU Taxonomy but the Delegated Investment Manager is not currently in a position to specify the exact proportion of the Sub-Fund's underlying investments which take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. However, the position is kept under review as the underlying rules are finalized and the availability of reliable data increases over time.

What is the minimum share of socially sustainable investments?

The Sub-Fund commits to a minimum of 1% socially sustainable investments.

What investments are included under "#2 Other", what is their purpose and are there any minimum environmental or social safeguards?

The following investments are included in "#2 other": sovereign debt, assets not covered asset by an ESG rating, cash (cash not invested), the proportion of UCIs not aligned with E/S characteristics, derivatives traded on a regulated or over the counter markets for hedging and/or exposure purposes, repurchase and revers repurchase agreements for cash management purposes and to optimise the Sub-Fund's income and performance. Information on the list of assets classes and financial instruments and their use can be found in the Prospectus. Minimum environmental or social safeguards are not systematically applied.



Is a specific index designated as a reference benchmark to determine whether this financial product is aligned with the environmental and/or social characteristics that it promotes?

Not applicable.

Reference benchmarks are indexes to measure whether the financial product attains the environmental or social characteristics that they promote. How is the reference benchmark continuously aligned with each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Not applicable.

How is the alignment of the investment strategy with the methodology of the index ensured on a continuous basis?

Not applicable.

How does the designated index differ from a relevant broad market index?

Not applicable.

Where can the methodology used for the calculation of the designated index be found?

Not applicable.



Where can I find more product specific information online? More product-specific information can be found on the website:

https://www.im.natixis.com/intl/intl-fund-documents

Pre-contractual disclosure for the financial products referred to in Article 8, paragraphs 1, 2 and 2a, of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 and Article 6, first paragraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852

investment means an investment in an economic activity that contributes to an environmental or social objective, provided that the investment does not significantly harm any environmental or social objective and that the investee companies follow good governance practices.

Sustainable

is a classification system laid down in Regulation (EU) 2020/852, establishing a list of environmentally sustainable economic activities. That Regulation does not include a list of socially sustainable economic activities. Sustainable investments with an environmental objective might be aligned with the Taxonomy or not.

The EU Taxonomy

Product name: Ostrum Euro Inflation (the "Sub-Fund") Legal entity identifier : 54930002KMABI9MYHI39

# Environmental and/or social characteristics

### Does this financial product have a sustainable investment objective?

•• Yes	• No
<ul> <li>It will make a minimum of sustainable investments with an environmental objective:%</li> <li>in economic activities that qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy</li> <li>in economic activities that do not qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy Taxonomy</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>It promotes Environmental/Social (E/S) characteristics and while it does not have as its objective a sustainable investment, it will have a minimum proportion of 40% of sustainable investments</li> <li>with an environmental objective in economic activities that qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy</li> <li>with an environmental objective in economic activities that do not qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy</li> <li>with a social objective</li> </ul>
It will make a minimum of sustainable investments with a social objective:%	It promotes E/S characteristics, but <b>will not</b> make any sustainable investments



Sustainability indicators measure how the sustainable objectives of this financial product are attained.

# What environmental and/or social characteristics are promoted by this financial product?

The Sub-Fund promotes the environmental and social characteristics of maintaining an average ESG rating higher than that of the Bloomberg Euro Govt Inflation Linked Bond 1 to 10 Year Treasury Index (the "Reference Index") and excluding countries that are considered as controversial according to the Delegated Investment Manager. Additionally, the Sub-Fund's GHG intensity must be lower than that of the Reference Index.

No reference benchmark has been designated for the purpose of attaining the E/S characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.

### What sustainability indicators are used to measure the attainment of each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

- average ESG rating of the Sub-Fund;
- average ESG rating of the Reference Index;
- GHG Intensity of the Sub-Fund;
- GHG intensity of the Reference Index.

# What are the objectives of the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make and how does the sustainable investment contribute to such objectives?

Sustainable investment is an investment in an economic activity that contributes to an environmental or social objective as long as it does not cause significant harm to any of these objectives.

As part of its sustainable investments, the portfolio may invest in green bonds, social bonds or sustainability bonds whose funds raised finance activities that contribute to an environmental and/or social objective. The portfolio may also invest in sustainability linked bonds associated with environmental and/or social indicators that, after examination by our team of sustainable bond analysts, are not 'disqualified.'

Moreover, certain securities issued by sovereigns and analysed according to the 17 UN Sustainable Development Goals responding positively to internal selectivity are considered to have a positive contribution to an environmental or social objective.

All these securities are then subject to study to verify that they do not significantly harm an environmental and/or social objective.

Investments going through the two steps ([1. « contributes to an environmental (E) and/or social (S) objective » 2. « provided that investments do not cause material harm to these objectives » (« Do Not Significant Harm » / « DNSH ») will be considered sustainable investments. The detailed definition is available at https://www.ostrum.com/fr/notre-documentation-rse-et-esg#politique-esg

How do the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make, not cause significant harm to any environmental or social sustainable investment objective?

The Delegated Investment Manager, at the level of the Sub-Fund, takes into in a quantitative way account the Principal Adverse Impacts (the "PAI") which concern Sovereign issuers, Green bond sovereign issuers, quasi-sovereign issuers (guaranteed agencies, supranational agencies, local authorities, etc.) and semi-public issuers (non-guaranteed agencies, or sponsored, and public companies). The Sub-Fund does not invest in private sector issuers.

Taking into account PAI allows the Delegated Investment Manager to verify that sustainable investments do not harm other objectives. In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion policies (especially worst offenders) and ensures a permanent monitoring of controversies.

How have the indicators for adverse impacts on sustainability factors been taken into account?

The Delegated Investment Manager takes into consideration the 2 mandatory PAI that apply to sovereigns. In both cases, to ensure a country is compliant with DNSH when a country is considered to be making a positive contribution to a E/S objective, Ostrum AM considers that carbon intensity scopes 1+2+3 must be lower than that of the 70th quantile (thus the country is positioned best-in-class, amongst the top 30% relative to peers) and that the country is not subject to violations in accordance with international conventions and treaties, United Nations principles and, where appropriate, national legislation.

 How are the sustainable investments aligned with the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights? Details:

Not applicable. The Sub-fund does not invest in private sector issuers

Principal adverse impacts are the most significant negative impacts of investment decisions on sustainability factors relating to environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anticorruption and antibribery matters. The EU Taxonomy sets out a "do not significant harm" principle by which Taxonomy-aligned investments should not significantly harm EU Taxonomy objectives and is accompanied by specific EU criteria.

The "do no significant harm" principle applies only to those investments underlying the financial product that take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. The investments underlying the remaining portion of this financial product do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

Any other sustainable investments must also not significantly harm any environmental or social objectives.



Does this financial product consider principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors?

X Yes

The mandatory PAI which concern Sovereign issuers, Green bond sovereign issuers, quasi-sovereign issuers (guaranteed agencies, supranational agencies, local authorities, etc.) and semi-public issuers (non-guaranteed agencies, or sponsored, and public compagnies) are taken into account.

The methodology is available on Ostrum Asset Management's website ([https://www.ostrum.com/fr/notre-documentation-rse-et-esg#prise-en-compte-des-pai]). The Sub-Fund does not invest in private sector issuers.

If PAI correspond to indicators followed by the Sub-Fund, they are taken into account by the Delegated Investment Manager through the integration in the rating methodology or the definition of an investment constraint specific to the Sub-Fund.

For instance, the GHG Intensity of the Sub-Fund is monitored and must be lower than GHG Intensity of the Reference Index.

In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager applies exclusion and sectoral policies which allow to remove from the investment universe any sector or issuer that fails to comply with certain criteria some of which are directly related to PAI

More information on principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors is available in the annual report.

No



The investment strategy guides investment decisions based on factors such as investment objectives and risk tolerance.

### What investment strategy does this financial product follow?

The ESG Investment Strategy of the Sub-Fund is threefold as described hereafter:

1. Applying a sectoral and exclusion policy

The Delegated Investment Manager applies exclusion, sectoral and worst offenders policies. They mainly concern private sector issuers and are available on Ostrum's website (<u>www.ostrum.com</u>) section 'ESG.'

The Sub-Fund does not invest in private sector issuers and only applies the Ostrum exclusion policy, which concerns blacklisted states (Exclusion of countries with strategic deficiencies in their anti-money laundering and anti-terrorist financing arrangements).

2. Integrating ESG elements into our research

After having excluded the most controversial issuers from the investment universe thanks to the sectoral and exclusion policies deployed by the Delegated Investment Manager, the investment teams systematically assess for each underlying issuer, whether the extrafinancial dimensions impact the issuer's credit risk profile, both in terms of risk and opportunity, as well as their probability of occurrence. Thus, extra-financial dimensions are systematically integrated into the risk assessment and fundamental analysis of both private and public issuers.

The Delegated Investment Manager then analyses a set of quantitative and qualitative indicators through the environmental pillar, the social pillar, and the governance pillar. The following examples are given for illustrative purposes only.

- The environmental pillar deals notably with biodiversity, climate change, resource management. Indicators used in the score could be the carbon footprint, the carbon intensity, the existence of a climate change policy, the existence of a biodiversity policy.
- The social pillar deals notably with gender diversity, human rights, education. Indicators used in the score could be the existence of diversity programs, the spending on healthcare or on education.
- The governance pillar deals notably with the exposure to corruption and bribery and overall information concerning the governance. Indicators used in the score could the percentage of women in the parliament or the number business ethics incidents.

The Delegated Investment Manager uses the SDG index to assess sovereign issuers on an extra-financial level: the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals ("Sustainable Development Goals" - SDG index) are used to analyze the Reference Index' sovereign issuers.

The extra financial evaluation done by the Delegated Investment Manager is taking into account SDG index, which is based on 17 SDG's. This index is published by SDSN (« Sustainable Development Solutions Network », a global UN initiative) and Bertelsmannstiftung (a German foundation), for sovereign issuers. SDG index aggregates available data for the 17 SDG's and give a compared evaluation of State performance. Its goal is to help each State (i) to identify priorities in sustainable development and set up action plan but also (ii) to understand challenges and identify deficiencies that need to be gaped to reach the SDG by 2030. The index allows each State to compare themselves with their home regions, or with any other counterpart States, rated with similar levels. SDG

Index is a numeric score between 0 (worst score) and 100 (best score), that follows accomplished progresses of states in their pursuit of each SDG's. The report published by the SDG index presents reports on SDG's, for each covered State. Each objective is attached with a color status : Green if the country succeeds on his objective, orange when significant challenges remain or red when major challenges remain. In order to assess each of these objectives, the SDG index rely on official data (communicated by national government, or international organization) and non official data (collected by non government entitie such as research institute, universities, non governmental organization, private sector). Half of data comes from official organization : OECD, WHO, UNICEF. Main indicators analyzed by SDG index are maternal mortality rate, life expectancy, Universal health coverage. Investors can access to more information on SDG index website: <a href="https://www.sdgindex.org/">https://www.sdgindex.org/</a>

### 3. Applying an ESG selectivity process to the Sub-Fund

The asset of the Sub-Fund covered by extra-financial analysis are 90% minimum for sovereign debt The Sub-Fund adopts an ESG process based on the average rating method : the Sub-Fund's average ESG rating is never lower than that of the Reference Index.

The process also integrates an extra-financial upgrade objective: the Sub-Fund's GHG Intensity must be lower than the one of the Reference Index

Limitation of the approach adopted:

The Sub-Fund's ESG Investment Strategy could lead to an under-representation of certain countries due to a poor ESG rating.

### What are the binding elements of the investment strategy used to select the investments to attain each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

- The Sub-Fund maintains an average ESG rating (based on SDG index) higher than the one of its Reference Index;
- The Sub-Fund maintains an GHG Intensity lower than the one of its Reference Index;

What is the committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered prior to the application of that investment strategy?

There is no committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered.

#### Good governance

practices include sound management structures, employee relations, remuneration of staff ad tax compliance.

# What is the policy to assess good governance practices of the investee companies?

As the Sub-Fund does not invest in private sector issuers, no specific policy should apply.

### What is the asset allocation planned for this financial product?

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest at least 85% of its NAV in investments that qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics).

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest at least 40% of its NAV in sustainable investments.

The Sub-Fund is allowed to invest up to 15% of its NAV in cash, assets not covered by an ESG rating, money market funds, futures, options or swaps, as well as over-thecounter forward contracts, to expose its assets to interest rate, foreign exchange or credit risks, or hedge against such risks (#2 Other).

Asset allocation describes the share of investments in specific assets.



**#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics** includes the investments of the financial product used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product.

**#2 Other** includes the remainings investments of the financial product which are neither aligned with the environmental or social characteristics, nor are qualified as sustainable investments.

### The category **#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics** covers:

• The sub-category **#1A Sustainable** covers environmentally and socially sustainable investments.

• The sub-category **#1B Other E/S characteristics** covers investments aligned with the environemental or social characteristics that do not qualify as sustainable investments.

# How does the use of derivatives attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Derivatives are not used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.



To what minimum extent are sustainable investments with an environmental objective aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

Not applicable.

Taxonomyaligned activities are expressed as a share of:

- **turnover** reflecting the share of revenue from green activities of investee companies

- capital expenditure (CapEx) showing the green investments made by investee companies, e.g. for a transition to a green economy.

- operational expenditure (OpEx) reflecting green operational activities of investee companies. Does the financial product invest in fossil gas and/or nuclear energy related activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy ?<sup>45</sup>



The two graphs below show in green the minimum percentage of investments that are aligned with the EU Taxonomy. As there is no appropriate methodology to determine the Taxonomyalignment of sovereign bonds<sup>\*</sup>, the first graph shows the Taxonomy alignment in relation to all the investments of the financial product including sovereign bonds, while the second graph shows the Taxonomy alignment only in relation to the investments of the financial product other than sovereign bonds.



\*For the purpose of these graphs, 'sovereign bonds' consist of all sovereign exposures \*\*As the Sub-Fund does not commit to making sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy, the proportion of sovereign bonds in the Sub-Fund's portfolio will not impact the proportion of sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy included in the graph.

To comply with the EU Taxonomy, the criteria for **fossil gas** include limitations on emissions and switching to fully renewable power or low-carbon fuels by the end of 2035. For nuclear energy, the criteria include comprehensive safety and waste management rules. **Enabling activities** directly enable other activities to make a substantial contribution to an environmental objective. Transitional activities are economic activities for which lowcarbon alternatives are not yet available and that have greenhouse gas emission levels corresponding to the best performance.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>45</sup> Fossil gas and/or nuclear related activities will only comply with the EU Taxonomy where they contribute to limiting climate change ("climate change mitigation") and do not significantly harm any EU Taxonomy objectives - see explanatory note in the left hand margin. The full criteria for fossil gas and nuclear energy economic activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy are laid down in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1214.

### What is the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities?

Not applicable.



are sustainable investements with an environmental objective that **do not take into account the criteria** for environmentaly sustainable economic activities under the EU Taxonomy.



The Sub-Fund commits to a minimum of 1% of sustainable investments with an environmental objective. These investments could be aligned with the EU Taxonomy but the Delegated Investment Manager is not currently in a position to specify the exact proportion of the Sub-Fund's underlying investments which take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. However, the position is kept under review as the underlying rules are finalized and the availability of reliable data increases over time

What is the minimum share of socially sustainable investments?

The Sub-Fund commits to a minimum of 1% socially sustainable investments.



What investments are included under "#2 Other", what is their purpose and are there any minimum environmental or social safeguards?

The following investments are included in "#2 Other" : assets not covered asset by an ESG rating, cash (cash not invested), the proportion of UCIs not aligned with E/S characteristics, derivatives traded on a regulated or over the counter markets for hedging and/or exposure purposes, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements for cash management purposes and to optimise the Sub-Fund's income and performance. Information on the list of assets classes and financial instruments and their use can be found in the Prospectus. Minimum environmental or social safeguards are not systematically applied.



benchmarks are indexes to measure whether the financial product attains the environmental or social characteristics that they promote. Is a specific index designated as a reference benchmark to determine whether this financial product is aligned with the environmental and/or social characteristics that it promotes?

Not applicable.

How is the reference benchmark continuously aligned with each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Not applicable.

How is the alignment of the investment strategy with the methodology of the index ensured on a continuous basis?

Not applicable.

How does the designated index differ from a relevant broad market index?

Not applicable.

Where can the methodology used for the calculation of the designated index be found?

Not applicable.



Where can I find more product specific information online? More product-specific information can be found on the website:

https://www.im.natixis.com/intl/intl-fund-documents

### Pre-contractual disclosure for the financial products referred to in Article 8, paragraphs 1, 2 and 2a, of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 and Article 6, first paragraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852

#### Sustainable investment means an Product name: Ostrum SRI Euro Aggregate<sup>1</sup> (the "Sub-Fund") investment in an Legal entity identifier : 5493002NJ6FRPOMN6I22 economic activity that contributes to an **Environmental and/or social** environmental or social objective, characteristics provided that the investment does not significantly Does this financial product have a sustainable investment objective? harm any Yes × No environmental or social objective It will make a minimum of and that the It promotes **Environmental/Social (E/S)** X investee characteristics and while it does not have as sustainable investments with an companies its objective a sustainable investment, it will environmental objective: % follow good have a minimum proportion of 15% of governance in economic activities that qualify practices. sustainable investments as environmentally sustainable with an environmental objective in economic under the EU Taxonomy activities that qualify as environmentally in economic activities that do not sustainable under the EU Taxonomy qualify as environmentally with an environmental objective in sustainable under the EU Х The EU Taxonomy economic activities that do not qualify as Taxonomy is a classification environmentally sustainable under the EU system laid down Taxonomy in Regulation (EU) 2020/852, with a social objective X establishing a list of environmentally sustainable It promotes E/S characteristics, but **will not** It will make a minimum of economic make any sustainable investments activities. That sustainable investments with a Regulation does not social objective: % include a list of socially sustainable economic activities. Sustainable

investments with an environmental objective might be aligned with the Taxonomy or not.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This Sub-Fund does not have the French "Label ISR"



**Sustainability indicators** measure how the sustainable objectives of this financial product are attained.

# What environmental and/or social characteristics are promoted by this financial product?

The Sub-Fund promotes the environmental and social characteristics of maintaining an average ESG rating higher than that of its Filtered Investment Universe (as defined below). The calculations exclude assets that are not aligned with the environmental or social characteristics promoted (the **"#2 Other").** 

The filtered investment universe (the "**Filtered Investment Universe**") is defined as the initial investment universe (euro-denominated investment-grade credit and government bonds as well as agencies and covered bonds) from which are excluded :

- 20% of the issuers with the lowest ESG ratings within each issuer category (including the most controversial issuers according to the Delegated Investment Manager's exclusion and sector policies and the lowest rated issuers); and
- The non green sovereign debt.

The Sub-Fund also complies with the sectoral and exclusions policies of the Delegated Investment Manager including the exclusion of the worst offenders of fundamental standards of responsibility

In addition, the Sub-Fund's GHG intensity must be lower than that of the Investment Universe.

No reference benchmark has been designated for the purpose of attaining the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.

What sustainability indicators are used to measure the attainment of each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

- Average ESG rating of the Sub-Fund(1)
- Average ESG rating of the Filtered Investment Universe
- GHG Intensity of the Sub-Fund
- GHG Intensity of the Investment Universe
- Public expenditure on education indicator for the Sub-Fund (only for green bonds sovereign issuers and quasi-sovereign issuers).
- Public expenditure on education indicator for the Investment Universe (only for green bonds sovereign issuers and quasi-sovereign issuers)

(1) the calculations exclude assets that are not aligned with the environmental or social characteristics promoted (defined as "#2 Other" below).

# What are the objectives of the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make and how does the sustainable investment contribute to such objectives?

Sustainable investment is an investment in an economic activity that contributes to an environmental or social objective as long as (1) it does not cause significant harm to any of these objectives and (2) that the companies receiving the investments apply good governance practices.

As part of its sustainable investments, the portfolio may invest in green bonds, social bonds or sustainability bonds whose funds raised finance activities that contribute to an environmental and/or social objective. The portfolio may also invest in sustainability linked bonds associated with environmental and/or social indicators that, after examination by our team of sustainable bond analysts, are not 'disqualified.'

Additionnaly, companies whose products or services contribute to positive social or environmental economic activities through a sustainable impact indicator established according to the MSCI methodology are also considered to have a positive contribution to an E or S objective.

Moreover, certain securities issued by sovereigns and analysed according to the 17 UN Sustainable Development Goals responding positively to internal selectivity are considered to have a positive contribution to an E or S objective.

All these securities are then subject to study to verify that they do not significantly harm an environmental and/or social objective.

Finally, we ensure that the companies or sovereigns in which the portfolio invests apply good governance practices.

Investments going through the three steps ([1. « contributes to an environmental (E) and/or social (S) objective » 2. « provided that investments do not cause material harm to these objectives » (« Do Not Significant Harm » / « DNSH ») 3. « and that investments made apply good governance practices ») will be considered sustainable investments. The detailed definition is available at https://www.ostrum.com/fr/notre-documentation-rse-et-esg#politique-esg

### How do the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make, not cause significant harm to any environmental or social sustainable investment objective?

The Delegated Investment Manager takes into account all the Principal Adverse Impacts ( the "**PAI**") in a quantitative way. Taking into account PAI allows the Delegated Investment Manager to verify that sustainable investments do not harm other objectives. In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion policies (especially worst offenders) and ensures a permanent monitoring of controversies.

#### **Principal adverse**

impacts are the most significant negative impacts of investment decisions on sustainability factors relating to environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anticorruption and antibribery matters. How have the indicators for adverse impacts on sustainability factors been taken into account?

PAI at the level of the Sub-Fund managed by the Delegated Investment Manager, are taken into account at several levels as detailed in the methodology published on the Delegated Investment Manager's website <u>https://www.ostrum.com/sites/default/files/1-ostrum-</u> <u>mediatheque/esg-rse/investissement-durable-definition-ostrum-</u> <u>am/Ostrum%20AM%20-%20Definition%20Sustainable%20Investments-</u> <u>EN.pdf</u> and summarised below:

### 1. Sectoral and exclusion policies

The Delegated Investment Manager's exclusion and sectoral policies allow to remove from the investment universe any sector or issuer that fails to comply with certain criteria some of which are directly related to certain PAI (e.g. coal exclusion is related to GHG emissions).

For other greenhouse gas emitting sectors, the Delegated Management Company has developed a climate approach that, on the one hand, leads to engagement with high emitting companies and, on the other hand, integrates greenhouse gas aspects into the ESG materiality score.

To meet the "Do Not Significantly Harm" criteria, the Delegated Investment Manager also takes into account certain PAI indicators by applying its Worst Offenders Exclusion Policy that is based on the fundamental standards of responsibility: the United Nations Global Compact or the OECD Guidelines. This policy implies that the Delegated Investment Manager excludes from investments all companies, listed or not, for which are proven severe controversies to the principles defended by these international standards seriously affecting human rights, labour rights, environmental preservation and business ethics.

Similarly, the Delegated Investment Manager also takes into account certain PAI indicators by applying its controversial weapons policy. The Delegated Management Company's policy is consistent with the Ottawa Convention, the Oslo Treaty, the Convention on the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons, the Convention on the Prohibition of Biological Weapons, the Treaty on the Prohibition of nuclear weapons. This policy allows the Delegated Investment Manager to exclude from all portfolios the actors involved in the use, development, production, marketing, distribution, storage or transport of the following categories of weapons:

- Anti-personnel mines
- Cluster bombs
- Chemical weapons
- biological weapons
- Nuclear weapons (outside the Non-proliferation Treaty)
- And depleted uranium weapons
  - 2. Engagement policy and engagement campaigns

Through its engagement policy and engagement campaigns, the Delegated Investment Manager tries to influence companies to limit the negative impact of its investment decisions on Environmental, social, respect for human rights and the fight against corruption issues. 3. MSCI methodology to strengthen compliance with DNSH

Moreover the Delegated Investment Manager's uses the MSCI methodology to apply an additional filter, implying the exclusion of companies that may have a positive E/S contribution, but that :

- violates global standards such as UNGC or OECD or
- has an orange or red controversy note or
- is involved in activities related to significant damage or
- is involved in one of the following sectors: tobacco producer, controversial weapons and thermal coal
- How are the sustainable investments aligned with the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights? Details:

The Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion policies (especially worst offenders) and ensures a permanent monitoring of controversies.

The EU Taxonomy sets out a "do not significant harm" principle by which Taxonomy-aligned investments should not significantly harm EU Taxonomy objectives and is accompanied by specific EU criteria.

The "do no significant harm" principle applies only to those investments underlying the financial product that take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. The investments underlying the remaining portion of this financial product do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

Any other sustainable investments must also not significantly harm any environmental or social objectives.



# Does this financial product consider principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors?

X Yes

All mandatory PAI are taken into account. The methodology is available on Ostrum Asset Management's website <u>https://www.ostrum.com/fr/notre-documentation-</u><u>rse-et-esg#prise-en-compte-des-pai</u>

If PAI correspond to indicators followed by the Sub-Fund, they are taken into account by the Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund through the integration in the rating methodology or the definition of an investment constraint specific to the Sub-Fund.

For instance, the GHG Intensity of the Sub-Fund is monitored and must be lower than GHG Intensity of the Investment Universe

In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion and sectoral policies which allow to remove from the Investment Universe any sector or issuer that fails to comply with certain criteria some of which are directly related PAI (for example :investee countries subject to social violations through our exclusions policies (worst offenders).

More information on principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors is available in the annual report.

No

### What investment strategy does this financial product follow?

The Investment Strategy is threefold as described hereafter:

1. Applying exclusion policies

The Sub-Fund applies sectoral and exclusion policies detailed on the Delegated Investment Manager's website (<u>https://www.ostrum.com/en/our-sector-policies</u>) and targeting the following topics / sectors:

### **Controversial weapons\***

Regulatory exclusion: emitters involved in the employment, development, production, marketing, distribution, storage or transfer of anti-personnel mines (MAP) and cluster bombs (BASM)\*

\*In accordance with the treaties signed with the French government, the funds directly managed by Ostrum Asset Management do not invest in companies that produce, sell or store anti-personnel mines and cluster bombs

The investment strategy guides investment decisions based on factors such as investment objectives and risk tolerance.

### Worst Offenders

Exclusion of issuers not meeting certain fundamental criteria

### **Blacklisted states**

Exclusion of countries with strategic deficiencies in their anti-money laundering and antiterrorist financing arrangements

### Oil and gas

2022: end of new investments in companies where more than 10% of production (from unconventional or controversial activities) is related to these activities.

by 2030 : Full exit from unconventional and/or controversial oil and gas exploration and production activities.

### Tobacco

Exclusion of tobacco manufacturers and producers.

### Coal

End of investment in enterprises according to strict criteria.

The sectoral and exclusion policies of the Delegated Investment Manager are described in more detail on its website:www.ostrum.com.

2. Integrating ESG elements into our research

After having excluded the most controversial issuers from the investment universe, the investment teams systematically assess for each underlying issuer, whether the extra-financial dimensions impact the issuer's credit risk profile, both in terms of risk and opportunity, as well as their probability of occurrence. Thus, extra-financial dimensions are systematically integrated into the risk assessment and fundamental analysis of both private and public issuers.

### • Private Issuers

The non-financial rating of private issuers is provides by external providers and is based on four pillars, which allow for a pragmatic and differentiating analysis:

- Responsible governance: this pillar aims in particular to assess the organization and effectiveness of powers within each issuer (e.g. for companies, assessing the balance of power, executive remuneration, business ethics or even tax practices).
- Sustainable management of resources: this pillar makes it possible to, for example, study the environmental impacts and human capital (e.g. quality of working conditions, management of relationships with suppliers) of each issuer.
- Energy transition: this pillar makes it possible to, for example, assess each issuer's strategy with regard to the energy transition (e.g. approach to greenhouse gas reduction, response to long-term issues).
- Territorial development: this pillar makes it possible to, for example, analyze each issuer's strategy for access to basic services.
- Several criteria are identified for each pillar and monitored by means of indicators collected from non-financial rating agencies. Ultimately, the Delegated Investment Manager remains the sole judge of the issuer's non-financial quality. Green bond sovereign issuers, quasi-sovereign issuers (guaranteed agencies, supranational agencies, local authorities, etc.) and semi-public issuers (non-guaranteed agencies, or sponsored, and public compagnies) evaluation done by the Delegated Investment

Manager is taking into account SDG index, which is based on 17 SDG's. This index is published by SDSN(« Sustainable Development Solutions Network », a global UN initiative) and Bertelsmannstiftung (a German foundation), for sovereign issuers SDG index aggregate available datas for the 17 SDG's and give a compared evaluation of States performance. His goal is to help each States (i) to identify priorities in sustainable development and set up action plan but also (ii) to understand challenges and identify

deficiencies that need to be gaped to reach the SDG by 2030. The index allows each States to compare themselves with their home regions, or with any other counterpart States, rated with similar levels.

SDG Index is a numeric score between 0 (worst score) and 100 (best score), that follows accomplished progresses of states in their pursuit of each SDG's. the report published by the SDG index present reports on SDG's, for each cover States. Each objectives is attached with a color status : Green is the country succeed on his objective, orange when significant challenges remains or red when Major challenges remains.

In order to assess each of these objectives, the SDG index rely on official data (communicated by national government, or international organization) and non-official datas (collected by non-government entities such as research institute, universities, non-governmental organization, private sector). Half of datas come from official organization : OECD, WHO, UNICEF. Main indicators analyzed by SDG index are maternal mortality rate, life expectancy, Universal health coverage.

Investors can access to more information on SDG index website : <a href="https://www.sdgindex.org/">https://www.sdgindex.org/</a>

3. Applying a selectivity process to the Sub-Fund

The Sub-Fund adopts a process based on the "average rating" method. It aims at obtaining an average ESG rating of the Sub-Fund always higher than its Filtered Investment Universe(1) (defined above).

In order to obtain a rating, the following methodology is implemented:

- on the one hand, ESG ratings from external providers are used in order to rate the Investment Universe composed of private issuers.
- on the other hand, the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDG index) are used to analyse the initial investment universe composed of Green bond sovereign issuers, quasi-sovereign issuers (guaranteed agencies, supranational agencies, local authorities, etc.) and semi-public issuers (non-guaranteed agencies, or sponsored, and public compagnies).

In addition, the Sub-Fund's GHG intensity must be lower than the one of its Investment Universe and the Sub-Fund maintains a Public expenditure on education indicator higher than the one of its Investment Universe (only for green bonds sovereign issuers and quasisovereign issuers)

Limitation of the approach adopted:

The Sub-Fund 's approach could lead to an under-representation of certain sectors due to a poor ESG rating or else through the Delegated Investment Manager's sector exclusion policy.

The assets of the Sub-Fund covered by extra-financial analysis are :

- 90% minimum for investment grade and sovereign securities of developed countries
- 75% minimum for high yield and emerging countries securities

The calculations exclude assets that are not aligned with the environmental or social characteristics promoted (defined as "#2 Other" below).

What are the binding elements of the investment strategy used to select the investments to attain each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

- The Sub-Fund maintains an average ESG rating higher than the one of its Filtered Investment Universe
- The Sub-Fund maintains an GHG Intensity lower than the one of its Investment Universe
- The Sub-Fund maintains a Public expenditure on education indicator higher than the one of its Investment Universe (only for green bonds sovereign issuers and quasi-sovereign issuers)

What is the committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered prior to the application of that investment strategy?

There is no committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered.

What is the policy to assess good governance practices of the investee companies?

The Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion policies (especially worst offenders) and ensures a permanent monitoring of controversies. In addition, The Delegated Investment Manager will, as part of the responsible governance pillar forming part of the investment strategy, consider the following aspects: exposure to corruption and bribery, the diversity among the management, and overall information concerning the governance. Indicators used in the score could be the independence of the board, the percentage of women in the management, or the number business ethics incidents.

The governance practices are taken into account in the analysis as well as in the

### **Good governance** practices include sound management structures, employee relations, remuneration of staff ad tax

compliance.

selection of issuers carried out by the Ostrum Asset Management,

1. The 'worst offenders' policy in order to exclude all companies for which there have been severe controversies in accordance with commonly established international standards (United Nations, OECD); in particular on governance elements such as labour rights and/or business ethics (corruption, etc.)

The 'worst offenders' policy is detailed on the Delegated Investment Manager's website (https://www.ostrum.com/en/our-sector-policies)

2. Credit analysis, which includes the determination of the ESG materiality score specific to each private issuer in order to determine any impacts on the company's risk profile

3. Corporate ESG ratings are taken into account by managers in their stock selection (responsible corporate governance is one of 4 pillars of the rating methodology used).

The pillar "Responsible governance" aims in particular to assess the organization and effectiveness of powers within each issuer (e.g. for companies, assessing the balance of power, executive remuneration, business ethics or even tax practices)".

Each issuer has a global rating and a rating by pillar. Rating are updated every six months to reflect the updated indicators provided by the data providers.

### What is the asset allocation planned for this financial product?

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest minimum 66.7% of its NAV in investments that qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics).

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest at least 15% of its NAV in sustainable investments.

The Sub-Fund may invest a maximum of 33.3% ot ifs NAV in investments that do not qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#2 Other).





**#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics** includes the investments of the financial product used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product.

**#2 Other** includes the remainings investments of the financial product which are neither aligned with the environmental or social characteristics, nor are qualified as sustainable investments.

The category #1 Aligned with E/S characteristics covers:

• The sub-category **#1A Sustainable** covers environmentally and socially sustainable investments.

• The sub-category **#1B Other E/S characteristics** covers investments aligned with the environemental or social characteristics that do not qualify as sustainable investments.

How does the use of derivatives attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Not applicable.



To what minimum extent are sustainable investments with an environmental objective aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

Not applicable.

Taxonomyaligned activities are expressed as a share of:

- **turnover** reflecting the share of revenue from green activities of investee companies

- capital expenditure (CapEx) showing the green investments made by investee companies, e.g. for a transition to a green economy.

- operational expenditure (OpEx) reflecting green operational activities of investee companies. Does the financial product invest in fossil gas and/or nuclear energy related activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy ?<sup>1</sup>



The two graphs below show in green the minimum percentage of investments that are aligned with the EU Taxonomy. As there is no appropriate methodology to determine the Taxonomyalignment of sovereign bonds<sup>\*</sup>, the first graph shows the Taxonomy alignment in relation to all the investments of the financial product including sovereign bonds, while the second graph shows the Taxonomy alignment only in relation to the investments of the financial product other than sovereign bonds.



\*For the purpose of these graphs, 'sovereign bonds' consist of all sovereign exposures \*\*As the Sub-Fund does not commit to making sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy, the proportion of sovereign bonds in the Sub-Fund's portfolio will not impact the proportion of sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy included in the graph.

EU Taxonomy, the criteria for **fossil gas** include limitations on emissions and switching to fully renewable power or low-carbon fuels by the end of 2035. For nuclear energy, the criteria include comprehensive safety and waste management rules. **Enabling activities** directly enable other activities to make a substantial contribution to an environmental objective. Transitional activities are economic activities for which lowcarbon alternatives are not yet available and that have greenhouse gas emission levels corresponding to the best performance.

To comply with the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Fossil gas and/or nuclear related activities will only comply with the EU Taxonomy where they contribute to limiting climate change ("climate change mitigation") and do not significantly harm any EU Taxonomy objectives - see explanatory note in the left hand margin. The full criteria for fossil gas and nuclear energy economic activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy are laid down in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1214.

What is the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities?

Not applicable.



are sustainable investements with an environmental objective that **do not take into account the criteria** for environmentaly sustainable economic activities under the EU Taxonomy.

# What is the minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

The Sub-Fund commits to a minimum of 1% of sustainable investments with an environmental objective. These investments could be aligned with the EU Taxonomy but the Delegated Investment Manager is not currently in a position to specify the exact proportion of the Sub-Fund's underlying investments which take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. However, the position is kept under review as the underlying rules are finalized and the availability of reliable data increases over time.



### What is the minimum share of socially sustainable investments?

Sustainable investments are green, social and sustainability-linked bonds that can contribute to an environmental or social objective. The minimum share of socially sustainable investments is of 1% of the Sub-Fund's NAV.



What investments are included under "#2 Other", what is their purpose and are there any minimum environmental or social safeguards?

Are included in others :, assets not covered by an ESG rating, Emerging debt, cash ( cash not invested), the proportion of UCIs not aligned with E/S characteristics, derivatives traded on a regulated or over the counter markets for hedging and/or exposure purposes, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements for cash management purposes and to optimise the Sub-Fund's income and performance. Information on the list of assets classes and financial instruments and their use can be found in the prospectus. Minimum environmental or social safeguards are not systematically applied.



Is a specific index designated as a reference benchmark to determine whether this financial product is aligned with the environmental and/or social characteristics that it promotes?

Not applicable.

How is the reference benchmark continuously aligned with each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Not applicable.

How is the alignment of the investment strategy with the methodology of the index ensured on a continuous basis?

Not applicable.

How does the designated index differ from a relevant broad market index?

Not applicable.

Reference benchmarks are indexes to measure whether the financial product attains the environmental or social characteristics that they promote. Where can the methodology used for the calculation of the designated index be found?

Not applicable.



Where can I find more product specific information online?

More product-specific information can be found on the website:

https://www.im.natixis.com/intl/intl-fund-documents

## Pre-contractual disclosure for the financial products referred to in Article 8, paragraphs 1, 2 and 2a, of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 and Article 6, first paragraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852



What environmental and/or social characteristics are promoted by this financial product?

environmental objective might be aligned with the Taxonomy or not.

**Sustainability** 

are attained.

**indicators** measure how the sustainable objectives of this financial product

The Sub-Fund promotes the environmental and social characteristics of maintaining an average ESG rating higher than its Investment Universe (50% Bloomberg Euro Aggregate Corporate TR € + 50% ICE Euro HY Constrained TR €) and avoiding issuers based on sectoral and exclusions policies including worst offenders of fundamental standards of responsibility

In addition, the Sub-Fund's GHG intensity must be lower than the one of its Investment Universe.

No reference benchmark has been designated for the purpose of attaining the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund

What sustainability indicators are used to measure the attainment of each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

- Average ESG rating of the Sub-Fund
- Average ESG rating of the Investment Universe
- GHG Intensity of the Sub-Fund
- GHG Intensity of the Investment Universe

What are the objectives of the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make and how does the sustainable investment contribute to such objectives?

Sustainable investment is an investment in an economic activity that contributes to an environmental or social objective as long as (1) it does not cause significant harm to any of these objectives and (2) that the companies receiving the investments apply good governance practices.

As part of its sustainable investments, the portfolio may invest in green bonds, social bonds or sustainability bonds whose funds raised finance activities that contribute to an environmental and/or social objective. The portfolio may also invest in sustainability linked bonds associated with environmental and/or social indicators that, after examination by our team of sustainable bond analysts, are not 'disqualified.'

Additionnaly, companies whose products or services contribute to positive social or environmental economic activities through a sustainable impact indicator established according to the MSCI methodology are also considered to have a positive contribution to an E or S objective.

All these securities are then subject to study to verify that they do not significantly

harm an environmental and/or social objective.

Finally, we ensure that the companies or sovereigns in which the portfolio invests apply good governance practices.

Investments going through the three steps ([1. « contributes to an environmental (E) or social (S) objective » 2. « provided that investments do not cause material harm to these objectives » (« Do Not Significant Harm » / « DNSH ») 3. « and that investments made apply good governance practices ») will be considered sustainable investments. The detailed definition is available at https://www.ostrum.com/fr/notre-documentation-rse-et-esg#politique-esg

### How do the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make, not cause significant harm to any environmental or social sustainable investment objective?

The Delegated Investment Manager takes into account all the Principal Adverse Impacts (the "PAI") in a quantitative way. Taking into account PAI allows The Delegated Investment Manager to verify that sustainable investments do not harm other objectives. In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion policies (especially worst offenders) and ensures a permanent monitoring of controversies.

— How have the indicators for adverse impacts on sustainability factors been taken into account?

PAI at the level of the Sub-Fund are taken into account at several levels as detailed in the methodology published on the Delegated Investment Manager's website <u>https://www.ostrum.com/sites/default/files/1-ostrum-mediatheque/esg-rse/investissement-durable-definition-ostrum-am/Ostrum%20AM%20-%20Definition%20Sustainable%20Investments-EN.pdf</u> and summarised below:

### 1. Sectoral and exclusion policies

The Delegated Investment Manager's exclusion and sectoral policies allow to remove from the investment universe any sector or issuer that fails to comply with certain criteria some of which are directly related to certain PAI (e.g. coal exclusion is related to GHG emissions).

For other greenhouse gas emitting sectors, the Delegated Investment Manager has developed a climate approach that, on the one hand, leads to engagement with high emitting companies and, on the other hand,

Principal adverse impacts are the most significant negative impacts of investment decisions on sustainability factors relating to environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anticorruption and antibribery matters.
integrates greenhouse gas aspects into the ESG materiality score.

To meet the "Do Not Significantly Harm" criteria, Ostrum AM also takes into account certain PAI indicators by applying its Worst Offenders Exclusion Policy that is based on the fundamental standards of responsibility: the United Nations Global Compact or the OECD Guidelines. This policy implies that the Delegated Investment Manager excludes from investments all companies, listed or not, for which are proven severe controversies to the principles defended by these international standards seriously affecting human rights, labour rights, environmental preservation and business ethics.

Similarly, Ostrum AM also takes into account certain PAI indicators by applying its controversial weapons policy. The Delegated Investment Manager's policy is consistent with the Ottawa Convention, the Oslo Treaty, the Convention on the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons, the Convention on the Prohibition of Biological Weapons, the Treaty on the Prohibition of nuclear weapons. This policy allows the Delegated Investment Manager to exclude from all portfolios the actors involved in the use, development, production, marketing, distribution, storage or transport of the following categories of weapons:

- Anti-personnel mines
- Cluster bombs
- Chemical weapons
- biological weapons
- Nuclear weapons (outside the Non-proliferation Treaty)
- And depleted uranium weapons
- 2. Engagement policy and engagement campaigns

Through its engagement policy and engagement campaigns, the Delegated Investment Manager tries to influence companies to limit the negative impact of its investment decisions on Environmental, social, respect for human rights and the fight against corruption issues.

#### 3. MSCI methodology to strengthen compliance with DNSH

Moreover, the Delegated Investment Manager uses the MSCI methodology to apply an additional filter, implying the exclusion of companies that may have a positive E/S contribution but that :

- violates global standards such as UNGC or OECD or
- has an orange or red controversy note or
- is involved in activities related to significant damage or
- is involved in one of the following sectors: tobacco producer,

 How are the sustainable investments aligned with the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights? Details:

The Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion policies (especially worst offenders) and ensures a permanent monitoring of controversies.

The EU Taxonomy sets out a "do not significant harm" principle by which Taxonomy-aligned investments should not significantly harm EU Taxonomy objectives and is accompanied by specific EU criteria.

The "do no significant harm" principle applies only to those investments underlying the financial product that take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. The investments underlying the remaining portion of this financial product do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

Any other sustainable investments must also not significantly harm any environmental or social objectives.



# Does this financial product consider principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors?

X Yes

All mandatory PAI are taken into account. The methodology is available on the Delegated Investment Manager's website <u>https://www.ostrum.com/fr/notre-documentation-rse-et-esg#prise-en-compte-des-pai</u>

If PAI correspond to indicators followed by the Sub-Fund, they are taken into account by the Delegated Investment Manager through the integration in the rating methodology or the definition of an investment constraint specific to the Sub-Fund.

For instance, the GHG Intensity of the Sub-Fund is monitored and must be lower than GHG Intensity of the Investment Universe

In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion and sectoral policies which allow to remove from the investment universe any sector or issuer that fails to comply with certain criteria some of which are directly related to PAI (e.g. coal exclusion is related to GHG emissions)

More information on principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors is available in the annual report.

No

### What investment strategy does this financial product follow?

The Sub-Fund's SRI investment strategy is based on the following three steps:

1. Applying an exclusion list

The Sub-Fund is required to apply sectoral and exclusion policies against:

### **Controversial weapons\***

Regulatory exclusion: emitters involved in the employment, development, production, marketing, distribution, storage or transfer of anti-personnel mines (MAP) and cluster bombs (BASM)\*

\*In accordance with the treaties signed with the French government, the funds directly managed by Ostrum Asset Management do not invest in companies that produce, sell or store anti-personnel mines and cluster bombs

### Worst Offenders

Exclusion of issuers not meeting certain fundamental criteria

The investment strategy guides investment decisions based on factors such as investment objectives and risk tolerance.

#### **Blacklisted states**

Exclusion of countries with strategic deficiencies in their anti-money laundering and antiterrorist financing arrangements

#### Oil and gas

2022: end of new investments in companies where more than 10% of production (from unconventional or controversial activities) is related to these activities.

by 2030 : Full exit from unconventional and/or controversial oil and gas exploration and production activities.

#### Tobacco

Exclusion of tobacco manufacturers and producers

#### Coal

End of investment in enterprises according to strict criteria

#### 2. Incorporating ESG factors into our research

After excluding the most controversial issuers from the investment universe, the investment teams systematically assess whether non-financial factors have an impact on each underlying issuer's credit risk profile, in terms of both risk and opportunity, as well as their likelihood of occurrence. Non-financial factors are thus systematically incorporated into the risk assessment and the fundamental analysis of private and public issuers.

The Delegated Investment Manager then analyses a set of quantitative and qualitative indicators in the environmental, social and governance domains. The following examples are for information purposes only.

ESG ratings from external providers are used to assess the Investment Universe composed of private sector issuers

The non-financial rating of issuers, which applies to all asset classes, is based on four pillars, which allow for a pragmatic and differentiating analysis:

- Responsible governance: this pillar aims in particular to assess the organization and effectiveness of powers within each issuer (e.g. for companies, assessing the balance of power, executive remuneration, business ethics or even tax practices).

- Sustainable management of resources: this pillar makes it possible to, for example, study the environmental impacts and human capital (e.g. quality of working conditions, management of relationships with suppliers) of each issuer.

- Energy transition: this pillar makes it possible to, for example, assess each issuer's strategy with regard to the energy transition (e.g. approach to greenhouse gas reduction, response to long-term issues).

- Territorial development: this pillar makes it possible to, for example, analyze each issuer's strategy for access to basic services.

Several criteria are identified for each pillar and monitored by means of indicators collected from non-financial rating agencies. Ultimately, the Delegated Investment

Manager remains the sole judge of the issuer's non-financial quality, which is expressed as a final rating of between 1 and 10, where an SRI rating of 1 represents high non-financial quality, and 10 represents low non-financial quality.

3. Applying an SRI selection process to the Sub-Fund

The Sub-Fund adopts an ESG process based on the average rating method: the Sub-Fund's average ESG rating is never lower than that of its investment universe.

The process also integrates an extra-financial upgrade objective: the Sub-Fund's GHG Intensity must be lower than the one of its investment universe.

The ESG ratings from external providers are used to assess the investment universe.

The assets of the Sub-Fund covered by extra-financial analysis are :

- 90% minimum for investment grade and sovereign securities of developed countries
- 75% minimum for high yield and emerging countries securities

Limitations of the selected approach: The Sub-Fund's article 8 approach could lead to underrepresentation in certain sectors due to poor ESG ratings or due to the application of the sectoral exclusions policy by the Delegated Investment Manager.

What are the binding elements of the investment strategy used to select the investments to attain each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

- the Sub-Fund maintains an average ESG rating higher than the one of its Investment Universe .

- the Sub-Fund maintains an GHG Intensity lower than the one of its Investment Universe.

- No target investment should breach the sectoral and exclusion policies.

What is the committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered prior to the application of that investment strategy?

There is no committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered.

**Good governance** practices include sound management structures, employee relations, remuneration of staff ad tax compliance.

# What is the policy to assess good governance practices of the investee companies?

The Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion policy (especially worst offenders) and ensures a permanent monitoring of controversies. In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager will, as part of the responsible governance pillar forming part of the investment strategy, assess the organisation and effectiveness of powers within each issuer (e.g. for companies, assessing the balance of power, executive remuneration, business ethics or even tax practices).

The governance practices are taken into account in the analysis as well as in the selection of issuers carried out by the Ostrum Asset Management,

1. The 'worst offenders' policy in order to exclude all companies for which there have been severe controversies in accordance with commonly established international standards (United Nations, OECD); in particular on governance elements such as labour rights and/or business ethics (corruption, etc.);

The 'worst offenders' policy is detailed on the Delegated Investment Manager's website (<u>https://www.ostrum.com/en/our-sector-policies</u>)

2. Credit analysis, which includes the determination of the ESG materiality score specific to each private sector issuer in order to determine any impacts on the company's risk profile

3. Corporate ESG ratings are taken into account by managers in their stock selection (responsible corporate governance is one of 4 pillars of the rating methodology used).

The pillar "Responsible governance" aims in particular to assess the organization and effectiveness of powers within each issuer (e.g. for companies, assessing the balance of power, executive remuneration, business ethics or even tax practices)".

Each issuer has a global rating and a rating by pillar. Rating are updated every six months to reflect the updated indicators provided by the data providers.



Asset allocation describes the share of investments in specific assets.

### What is the asset allocation planned for this financial product?

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest at least 65% of its NAV in investments that qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics).

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest at least 20% of its NAV in sustainable investments.

The Sub-Fund may invest a maximum of 35% ot ifs NAV in investments that do not qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#2 Other).



**#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics** includes the investments of the financial product used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product.

**#2** Other includes the remainings investments of the financial product which are neither aligned with the environmental or social characteristics, nor are qualified as sustainable investments.

The category #1 Aligned with E/S characteristics covers:

- The sub-category #1A Sustainable covers environmentally and socially sustainable investments.
- The sub-category #1B Other E/S characteristics covers investments aligned with the environemental or social characteristics that do not qualify as sustainable investments.
- How does the use of derivatives attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Derivatives are not used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.



# To what minimum extent are sustainable investments with an environmental objective aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

Not applicable

Taxonomyaligned activities are expressed as a share of:

- **turnover** reflecting the share of revenue from green activities of investee companies
- capital expenditure (CapEx) showing the green investments made by

Does the financial product invest in fossil gas and/or nuclear energy related activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy ?<sup>1</sup>

Yes :	
In fossil gas	In nuclear energy
X No	

The two graphs below show in green the minimum percentage of investments that are aligned with the EU Taxonomy. As there is no appropriate methodology to determine the Taxonomy-alignment of sovereign bonds\*, the first graph shows the Taxonomy alignment in relation to all the investments of the financial product including sovereign bonds, while the second graph shows the Taxonomy alignment only in relation to the investments of the financial product other than sovereign bonds.



\*For the purpose of these graphs, 'sovereign bonds' consist of all sovereign exposures \*\*As the Sub-Fund does not commit to making sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy, the proportion of sovereign bonds in the Sub-Fund's portfolio will not impact the proportion of sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy included in the graph.

• What is the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities?

Not applicable

To comply with the EU Taxonomy, the criteria for **fossil gas** include limitations on emissions and switching to fully renewable power or low-carbon fuels by the end of 2035. For nuclear energy, the criteria include comprehensive safety and waste management rules. **Enabling activities** directly enable other activities to make a substantial contribution to an environmental objective. Transitional activities are economic activities for which lowcarbon alternatives are not yet available and that have greenhouse gas emission levels corresponding to the best performance.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Fossil gas and/or nuclear related activities will only comply with the EU Taxonomy where they contribute to limiting climate change ("climate change mitigation") and do not significantly harm any EU Taxonomy objectives - see explanatory note in the left hand margin. The full criteria for fossil gas and nuclear energy economic activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy are laid down in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1214.



are sustainable investements with an environmental objective that **do not take into account the criteria** for environmentaly sustainable economic activities under the EU Taxonomy.



The Sub-Fund commits to a minimum of 5% of sustainable investments with an environmental objective. These investments could be aligned with the EU Taxonomy but the Delegated Investment Manager is not currently in a position to specify the exact proportion of the Sub-Fund's underlying investments which take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. However, the position is kept under review as the underlying rules are finalized and the availability of reliable data increases over time.

### What is the minimum share of socially sustainable investments?

The Sub-Fund commits to a minimum of 1% socially sustainable investments.



What investments are included under "#2 Other", what is their purpose and are there any minimum environmental or social safeguards?

The following investments are included in "#2 other": assets not covered asset by an ESG rating, cash ( cash not invested), the proportion of UCITS not aligned with E/S characteristics, derivatives traded on a regulated or over the counter markets for hedging and/or exposure purposes, repurchase and revers repurchase agreements for cash management purposes and to optimise the Sub-Fund's income and performance. Information on the list of assets classes and financial instruments and their use can be found in the Prospectus. Minimum environmental or social safeguards are not systematically applied.



Is a specific index designated as a reference benchmark to determine whether this financial product is aligned with the environmental and/or social characteristics that it promotes?

Not applicable

Reference benchmarks are indexes to measure whether the financial product attains the environmental or social characteristics that they promote. How is the reference benchmark continuously aligned with each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Not applicable

How is the alignment of the investment strategy with the methodology of the index ensured on a continuous basis?

Not applicable

How does the designated index differ from a relevant broad market index? Not applicable

# Where can the methodology used for the calculation of the designated index be found?

Not applicable



Where can I find more product specific information online?

More product-specific information can be found on the website:

https://www.im.natixis.com/intl/intl-fund-documents

# Pre-contractual disclosure for the financial products referred to in Article 8, paragraphs 1, 2 and 2a, of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 and Article 6, first paragraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852





economic activities.

investments with an

Sustainable

environmental objective might be

aligned with the Taxonomy or not.

are attained.

What environmental and/or social characteristics are promoted by this financial product?

The Sub-Fund promotes the environmental and social characteristics of maintaining an average ESG rating higher than its Filtered Investment Universe (as defined below) and avoiding issuers based on sectoral and exclusions policies including worst offenders of fundamental standa rds of responsibility.

The filtered investment universe (the "Filtered Investment Universe") is defined as the initial investment universe (subordinated bonds or similar securities), issued by private, public, sovereign or supranational issuers, which may be corporate entities

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This Sub-Fund does not have the French "Label ISR"

and/or financial institutions from which are excluded :

- 20% of the issuers with the lowest ESG ratings within each issuer category (including the most controversial issuers according to the Delegated Investment Manager 's exclusion and sector policies and the lowest rated issuers); and
- the non green sovereign debt.

The Sub-Fund's GHG intensity must be lower than the one of its Investment Universe.

The calculations exclude assets that are not aligned with the environmental or social characteristics promoted (the **"#2 Other").** 

### What sustainability indicators are used to measure the attainment of each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

- Average ESG rating of the Sub-Fund (1)
- Average ESG rating of the Filtered Investment Universe
- GHG Intensity Sub-Fund
- GHG Intensity of the Investment Universe

(1) The calculations exclude assets that are not aligned with the environmental or social characteristics promoted (defined as "#2 Other" below).

# What are the objectives of the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make and how does the sustainable investment contribute to such objectives?

Sustainable investment is an investment in an economic activity that contributes to an environmental or social objective as long as (1) it does not cause significant harm to any of these objectives and (2) that the companies receiving the investments apply good governance practices.

As part of its sustainable investments, the portfolio may invest in green bonds, social bonds or sustainability bonds whose funds raised finance activities that contribute to an environmental and/or social objective. The portfolio may also invest in sustainability linked bonds associated with environmental and/or social indicators that, after examination by our team of sustainable bond analysts, are not 'disqualified.'

Additionnaly, companies whose products or services contribute to positive social or environmental economic activities through a sustainable impact indicator established according to the MSCI methodology are also considered to have a positive contribution to an E or S objective.

All these securities are then subject to study to verify that they do not significantly harm an environmental and/or social objective.

Finally, we ensure that the companies or sovereigns in which the portfolio invests apply good governance practices.

Investments going through the three steps ([1. « contributes to an environmental (E) and/or social (S) objective » 2. « provided that investments do not cause material harm to these objectives » (« Do Not Significant Harm » / « DNSH ») 3. « and that investments made apply good governance practices ») will be considered sustainable investments. The detailed definition is available at https://www.ostrum.com/fr/notre-documentation-rse-et-esg#politique-esg

### How do the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make, not cause significant harm to any environmental or social sustainable investment objective?

The Delegated Investment Manager takes into account all the Principal Adverse Impacts (the "PAI") in a quantitative way. Taking into account PAI allows The Delegated Investment Manager to verify that sustainable investments do not harm other objectives. In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion policies (especially worst offenders) and ensures a permanent monitoring of controversies.

How have the indicators for adverse impacts on sustainability factors been taken into account?

PAI at the level of the Sub-Fund managed by Ostrum Asset Management, the Delegated Investment Manager, are taken into account at several levels as detailed in the methodology published on the Delegated Investment Manager's website <a href="https://www.ostrum.com/sites/default/files/1-ostrum-mediatheque/esg-rse/investissement-durable-definition-ostrum-am/Ostrum%20AM%20-%20Definition%20Sustainable%20Investments-EN.pdf">https://www.ostrum.com/sites/default/files/1-ostrum-mediatheque/esg-rse/investissement-durable-definition-ostrum-am/Ostrum%20AM%20-%20Definition%20Sustainable%20Investments-EN.pdf</a> and summarised below:

1. Sectoral and exclusion policies

The Delegated Investment Manager's exclusion and sectoral policies allow to remove from the investment universe any sector or issuer that fails to comply with certain criteria some of which are directly related to certain PAI (e.g. coal exclusion is related to GHG emissions).

For other greenhouse gas emitting sectors, the Delegated Investment Manager has developed a climate approach that, on the one hand, leads to engagement with high emitting companies and, on the other hand, integrates greenhouse gas aspects into the ESG materiality score.

To meet the "Do Not Significantly Harm" criteria, the Delegated Investment Manager also takes into account certain PAI indicators by applying its Worst Offenders Exclusion Policy that is based on the fundamental standards of responsibility: the United Nations Global Compact or the OECD Guidelines. This policy implies that the Delegated Investment Manager excludes from investments all companies, listed or not, for which are proven severe controversies to the principles defended by these international standards seriously affecting human rights, labour rights, environmental preservation and business ethics.

Similarly, the Delegated Investment Manager also takes into account certain PAI indicators by applying its controversial weapons policy. The Delegated Investment Manager's policy is consistent with the Ottawa Convention, the Oslo Treaty, the Convention on the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons, the

Principal adverse impacts are the most significant negative impacts of investment decisions on sustainability factors relating to environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anticorruption and antibribery matters. Convention on the Prohibition of Biological Weapons, the Treaty on the Prohibition of nuclear weapons. This policy allows the Delegated Investment Manager to exclude from all portfolios the actors involved in the use, development, production, marketing, distribution, storage or transport of the following categories of weapons:

- Anti-personnel mines
- Cluster bombs
- Chemical weapons
- biological weapons
- Nuclear weapons (outside the Non-proliferation Treaty)
- And depleted uranium weapons
  - 2. Engagement policy and engagement campaigns

Through its engagement policy and engagement campaigns, the Delegated Investment Manager tries to influence companies to limit the negative impact of its investment decisions on Environmental, social, respect for human rights and the fight against corruption issues.

3. MSCI methodology to strengthen compliance with DNSH

Moreover the Delegated Investment Manager uses the MSCI methodology to apply an additional filter, implying the exclusion of companies that may have a positive E/S contribution, but that :

- violates global standards such as UNGC or OECD or
- has an orange or red controversy note or
- is involved in activities related to significant damage or
- is involved in one of the following sectors: tobacco producer, controversial weapons and thermal coal
- How are the sustainable investments aligned with the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights? Details:

The Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion policies (especially worst offenders) and ensures a permanent monitoring of controversies.

The EU Taxonomy sets out a "do not significant harm" principle by which Taxonomy-aligned investments should not significantly harm EU Taxonomy objectives and is accompanied by specific EU criteria.

The "do no significant harm" principle applies only to those investments underlying the financial product that take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. The investments underlying the remaining portion of this financial product do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

Any other sustainable investments must also not significantly harm any environmental or social objectives.



# Does this financial product consider principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors?

X Yes

All mandatory PAI are taken into account. The methodology is available on Delegated Investment Manager's website <u>https://www.ostrum.com/fr/notre-documentation-rse-et-esg#prise-en-compte-des-pai</u>

If PAI correspond to indicators followed by the Sub-Fund, they are taken into account by the Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund through the integration in the rating methodology or the definition of an investment constraint specific to the Sub-Fund.

For instance, the GHG Intensity of the Sub-Fund is monitored and must be lower than GHG Intensity of the Investment Universe

In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion and sectoral policies which allow to remove from the investment universe any sector or issuer that fails to comply with certain criteria some of which are directly related to PAI (e.g. coal exclusion is related to GHG emissions)

More information on principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors is available in the annual report.

No



#### The investment strategy guides investment decisions based on factors such as investment objectives and risk tolerance.

### What investment strategy does this financial product follow?

The Sub-Fund's SRI investment strategy is based on the following three steps:

1. Applying an exclusion list

The Sub-Fund applies sectoral and exclusion policies detailed on the Delegated Investment Manager's website (<u>https://www.ostrum.com/en/our-sector-policies</u>) and targeting the following topics / sectors:

#### **Controversial weapons\***

Regulatory exclusion: emitters involved in the employment, development, production, marketing, distribution, storage or transfer of anti-personnel mines (MAP) and cluster bombs (BASM)\*

\*In accordance with the treaties signed with the French government, the funds directly managed by Ostrum Asset Management do not invest in companies that produce, sell or store anti-personnel mines and cluster bombs.

#### Worst Offenders

Exclusion of issuers not meeting certain fundamental criteria

#### **Blacklisted states**

Exclusion of countries with strategic deficiencies in their anti-money laundering and antiterrorist financing arrangements

#### Oil and gas

2022: end of new investments in companies where more than 10% of production (from unconventional or controversial activities) is related to these activities.

by 2030 : Full exit from unconventional and/or controversial oil and gas exploration and production activities.

#### Tobacco

Exclusion of tobacco manufacturers and producers

#### Coal

End of investment in enterprises according to strict criteria

The sectoral and exclusion policies of the Investment Manager are described in more detail on its website: <u>www.ostrum.com</u>. Incorporating ESG factors into our research

2. After excluding the most controversial issuers from the investment universe—by means of sectoral and exclusion policies put in place by the Delegated Investment Manager—the investment teams systematically assess whether non-financial factors have an impact on each underlying issuer's credit risk profile, in terms of both risk and opportunity, as well as their likelihood of occurrence. Non-financial factors are thus systematically incorporated into the risk assessment and the fundamental analysis of private and public issuers.

The Delegated Investment Manager then analyses a set of quantitative and qualitative indicators in the environmental, social and governance domains. The following examples are for information purposes only.

ESG ratings from external providers are used to assess the Investment Universe composed of private sector issuers

The non-financial rating of issuers, which applies to all asset classes, is based on four pillars, which allow for a pragmatic and differentiating analysis:

- Responsible governance: this pillar aims in particular to assess the organisation and effectiveness of powers within each issuer (e.g. for companies, assessing the balance of power, executive remuneration, business ethics or even tax practices).
- Sustainable management of resources: this pillar makes it possible to, for example, study the environmental impacts and human capital (e.g. quality of working conditions, management of relationships with suppliers) of each issuer.
- Energy transition: this pillar makes it possible to, for example, assess each issuer's strategy with regard to the energy transition (e.g. approach to greenhouse gas reduction, response to long-term issues).
- Territorial development: this pillar makes it possible to, for example, analyse each

issuer's strategy for access to basic services.

Several criteria are identified for each pillar and monitored by means of indicators collected from non-financial rating agencies. Ultimately, the Delegated Investment Manager remains the sole judge of the issuer's non-financial quality.

3. Applying a selection process to The Sub-Fund

The Sub-Fund adopts a process based on the "average rating" method. This method aims to ensure that The Sub-Fund's average ESG rating is never lower than that of its Filtered Investment Universe (defined above).

The ESG ratings from external providers are used to assess the d Investment Universe composed of private sector issuers.

The Delegated Investment Manager has defined for each following pilar - Environment, Social, Governance and Human Rights – a specific indicator which will be measured and compared between The Sub-Fund and the Filtered Investment Universe. The indicator details are described in more details in the "Code de transparence" of The Sub-Fund available on the Delegated Investment Manager website in The Sub-Fund page.

In addition, The Sub-Fund's GHG intensity must be lower than the one of its Investment Universe

Limitations of the selected approach: The Sub-Fund's approach could lead to underrepresentation in certain sectors due to poor ESG ratings or due to the application of the sector exclusion policy by the Delegated Investment Manager.

The portfolio's net asset is composed of at least 90% of SRI qualified assets that are covered by an ESG rating.

What are the binding elements of the investment strategy used to select the investments to attain each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

- the Sub-Fund maintains an Average ESG rating higher than the one of its Filtered Investment Universe
- the Sub-Fund maintains an GHG Intensity lower than the one of its Investment Universe
- No target investment should breach the sectoral and exclusion policies.

What is the committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered prior to the application of that investment strategy?

There is no committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered.

Good governance

practices include sound management structures, employee relations, remuneration of staff ad tax compliance.

Asset allocation describes the share of investments in specific assets.

# What is the policy to assess good governance practices of the investee companies?

The Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion policies (especially worst offenders) and ensures a permanent monitoring of controversies. In addition, The Delegated Investment Manager will, as part of the responsible governance pillar forming part of the investment strategy, assess the organisation and effectiveness of powers within each issuer (e.g. for companies, assessing the balance of power, executive remuneration, business ethics or even tax practices).

The governance practices are taken into account in the analysis as well as in the selection of issuers carried out by the Delegated Investment Manager,

1. The 'worst offenders' policy in order to exclude all companies for which there have been severe controversies in accordance with commonly established international standards (United Nations, OECD); in particular on governance elements such as labour rights and/or business ethics (corruption, etc.);

The 'worst offenders' policy is detailed on the Delegated Investment Manager's website (<u>https://www.ostrum.com/en/our-sector-policies</u>)

2. Credit analysis, which includes the determination of the ESG materiality score specific to each private sector issuer in order to determine any impacts on the company's risk profile

3. Corporate ESG ratings are taken into account by managers in their stock selection (responsible corporate governance is one of 4 pillars of the rating methodology used).

The pillar "Responsible governance" aims in particular to assess the organization and effectiveness of powers within each issuer (e.g. for companies, assessing the balance of power, executive remuneration, business ethics or even tax practices)".

Each issuer has a global rating and a rating by pillar. Rating are updated every six months to reflect the updated indicators provided by the data providers.

### What is the asset allocation planned for this financial product?

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest at least 50% of its NAV in investments that qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics).

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest at least 15% of its NAV in sustainable investments.

The Sub-Fund may invest a maximum of 50% ot ifs NAV in investments that do not qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#2 Other).



**#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics** includes the investments of the financial product used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product.

**#2 Other** includes the remainings investments of the financial product which are neither aligned with the environmental or social characteristics, nor are qualified as sustainable investments.

The category **#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics** covers:

• The sub-category **#1A Sustainable** covers environmentally and socially sustainable investments.

• The sub-category **#1B Other E/S characteristics** covers investments aligned with the environemental or social characteristics that do not qualify as sustainable investments.

How does the use of derivatives attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Derivatives are not used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.



# To what minimum extent are sustainable investments with an environmental objective aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

Not applicable.

Does the financial product invest in fossil gas and/or nuclear energy related activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy ?<sup>1</sup>

	Yes :		
		In fossil gas	In nuclear energy
X	No		

Taxonomyaligned activities are expressed as a share of:

- **turnover** reflecting the share of revenue from green activities of investee companies
- capital expenditure (CapEx) showing the green investments made by investee companies, e.g. for a transition to a green economy.

- operational expenditure (OpEx) reflecting green

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Fossil gas and/or nuclear related activities will only comply with the EU Taxonomy where they contribute to limiting climate change ("climate change mitigation") and do not significantly harm any EU Taxonomy objectives - see explanatory note in the left hand margin. The full criteria for fossil gas and nuclear energy economic activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy are laid down in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1214.

The two graphs below show in green the minimum percentage of investments that are aligned with the EU Taxonomy. As there is no appropriate methodology to determine the Taxonomy-alignment of sovereign bonds<sup>\*</sup>, the first graph shows the Taxonomy alignment in relation to all the investments of the financial product including sovereign bonds, while the second graph shows the Taxonomy alignment only in relation to the investments of the financial product other than sovereign bonds.



\*For the purpose of these graphs, 'sovereign bonds' consist of all sovereign exposures \*\*As the Sub-Fund does not commit to making sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy, the proportion of sovereign bonds in the Sub-Fund's portfolio will not impact the proportion of sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy included in the graph.

## What is the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities?

Not applicable.

# What is the minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

The Sub-Fund commits to a minimum of 1% of sustainable investments with an environmental objective. These investments could be aligned with the EU Taxonomy but the Delegated Investment Manager is not currently in a position to specify the exact proportion of the Sub-Fund's underlying investments which take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. However, the position is kept under review as the underlying rules are finalized and the availability of reliable data increases over time.

criteria for fossil gas include limitations on emissions and switching to fully renewable power or low-carbon fuels by the end of 2035. For nuclear energy, the criteria include comprehensive safety and waste management rules. **Enabling activities** directly enable other activities to make a substantial contribution to an environmental objective. Transitional activities are economic activities for which lowcarbon alternatives are not yet available and that have greenhouse gas emission levels corresponding to the best performance. (\*-)

To comply with the EU Taxonomy, the



are sustainable investements with an environmental objective that **do not take into account the criteria** for environmentaly sustainable economic activities under the EU Taxonomy.



What is the minimum share of socially sustainable investments?

The Sub-Fund commits to a minimum of 1% socially sustainable investments.

What investments are included under "#2 Other", what is their purpose and are there any minimum environmental or social safeguards?

The investments included in others are : sovereign debt, asset not covered asset by an ESG rating, cash (cash not invested), the proportion of UCIs not aligned with E/S characteristics, derivatives traded on a regulated or over the counter markets for hedging and/or exposure purposes, repurchase and revers repurchase agreements for cash management purposes and to optimise the Sub-Fund's income and performance. Information on the list of assets classes and financial instruments and their use can be found in the prospectus. Minimum environmental or social safeguards are not systematically applied.

### Is a specific index designated as a reference benchmark to determine whether this financial product is aligned with the environmental and/or social characteristics that it promotes?

Not applicable.

How is the reference benchmark continuously aligned with each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Not applicable.

How is the alignment of the investment strategy with the methodology of the index ensured on a continuous basis?

Not applicable.

How does the designated index differ from a relevant broad market index?

Not applicable.

Where can the methodology used for the calculation of the designated index be found?

Not applicable.

### Reference

benchmarks are indexes to measure whether the financial product attains the environmental or social characteristics that they promote.



Where can I find more product specific information online? More product-specific information can be found on the website:

https://www.im.natixis.com/intl/intl-fund-documents

Pre-contractual disclosure for the financial products referred to in Article 8, paragraphs 1, 2 and 2a, of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 and Article 6, first paragraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852

#### Sustainable

**investment** means an investment in an economic activity that contributes to an environmental or social objective, provided that the investment does not significantly harm any environmental or social objective and that the investee companies follow good governance practices.

The EU Taxonomy is a classification system laid down in Regulation (EU) 2020/852, establishing a list of environmentally sustainable economic activities. That Regulation does not include a list of socially sustainable economic activities. Sustainable investments with an environmental objective might be aligned with the Taxonomy or not.

Product name: Ostrum Fixed Income Multi Strategies (the "Sub-Fund") Legal entity identifier: 549300YIYY848CXOUB68

### **Environmental and/or social characteristics**

Does this financial product have a sustainable investment objective?				
•• Yes	•• 🗶 No			
It will make a minimum of sustainable investments with an environmental objective: % in economic activities that qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy in economic activities that do not qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy	<ul> <li>It promotes Environmental/Social (E/S) characteristics and while it does not have as its objective a sustainable investment, it will have a minimum proportion of of sustainable investments</li> <li>with an environmental objective in economic activities that qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy</li> <li>with an environmental objective in economic activities that do not qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy</li> <li>with a social objective</li> </ul>			
It will make a minimum of sustainable investments with a social objective:%	X It promotes E/S characteristics, but <b>will not</b> <b>make any sustainable investments</b>			

# What environmental and/or social characteristics are promoted by this financial product?

The Sub-Fund promotes the environmental and social characteristics of maintaining an average ESG rating higher than that of its Investment Universe (28% High Yield 1-3 (USD – Euro), 20% Emerging debt (Investment Grade), 7% Emerging debt (BB), 10% Asia Pacifc 3-5, 10% US government bonds 1-3, 10% US corporate bonds 3-5 (BBB), 10% euro aggregate 3-5, 5% coco & hybrid)\*

The Sub-Fund also complies with the sectoral and exclusions policies of the Delegated Investment Manager including the exclusion of the worst offenders of fundamental standards of responsibility

In addition, the Sub-Fund's GHG intensity must be lower than that of the Investment Universe.

\*28% Ice Bofa Merrill Lynch 1-3 Y BB-B Nfi C2 Hed\$, 20% J.P. Morgan EMBI Global Diversified Inv Grade, 7% J.P. Morgan EMBI Global Diversified Credit BB Index, 10% Bloomberg Asian Pacific 3-5 Yrs Total Return Index Unhedged Jpy, 10% Ftse US GBI 1-3 Yr Lcl, 10% Ice Bofa 3-5 Year BBB US Corporate & Yankees Index Total Return Usd, 10% Bloomberg Euroagg Treasury 3-5 Year Tr Index Value Unhedged Eur, 5% Ice Bofa Merrill Lynch Contingent Capital Ind Tr €,

No reference benchmark has been designated for the purpose of attaining the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.

#### What sustainability indicators are used to measure the attainment of each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

- Average ESG rating of the Sub-Fund
- Average ESG rating of the Investment Universe
- GHG Intensity of the Sub-Fund
- GHG Intensity of the Investment Universe
- What are the objectives of the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make and how does the sustainable investment contribute to such objectives?
  - Not applicable
  - How do the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make, not cause significant harm to any environmental or social sustainable investment objective?

Not applicable

How have the indicators for adverse impacts on sustainability factors been taken into account?

#### Not applicable

 How are the sustainable investments aligned with the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights? Details:

Not applicable

#### Sustainability

indicators measure how the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product are attained.

#### Principal adverse

**impacts** are the most significant negative impacts of investment decisions on sustainability factors relating to environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery matters. The EU Taxonomy sets out a "do not significant harm" principle by which Taxonomyaligned investments should not significantly harm EU Taxonomy objectives and is accompanied by specific EU criteria.

The "do no significant harm" principle applies only to those investments underlying the financial product that take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. The investments underlying the remaining portion of this financial product do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

Any other sustainable investments must also not significantly harm any environmental or social objectives.



# Does this financial product consider principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors?

### X Yes

All mandatory PAI are taken into account. The methodology is available on Ostrum Asset Management's website https://www.ostrum.com/fr/notre-documentation-rse-et-esg#prise-en-compte-des-pai

If PAI correspond to indicators followed by the Sub-Fund, they are taken into account by the Delegated Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund through the integration in the rating methodology or the definition of an investment constraint specific to the Sub-Fund.

For instance, the GHG Intensity of the Sub-Fund is monitored and must be lower than GHG Intensity of the Investment Universe

In addition, the Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion and sectoral policies which allow to remove from the Investment Universe any sector or issuer that fails to comply with certain criteria some of which are directly related PAI (for example :investee countries subject to social violations through our exclusions policies (worst offenders).

More information on principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors is available in the annual report.

No



#### What investment strategy does this financial product follow?

The SRI investment strategy of the Sub-Fund is threefold as described hereafter:

1. Applying exclusion policies

The Sub-Fund applies sectoral and exclusion policies detailed on the Delegated Investment Manager's website (https://www.ostrum.com/en/our-sector-policies) and targeting the following topics / sectors: **Controversial weapons**\*

Regulatory exclusion: emitters involved in the employment, development, production, marketing, distribution, storage or transfer of anti-personnel mines (MAP) and cluster bombs (BASM)\*

The investment strategy guides investment decisions based on factors such as investment objectives and risk tolerance. \*In accordance with the treaties signed with the French government, the Sub-Funds directly managed by Ostrum Asset Management do not invest in companies that produce, sell or store anti-personnel mines and cluster bombs

#### Worst Offenders

Exclusion of issuers not meeting certain fundamental criteria

#### Blacklisted states

Exclusion of countries with strategic deficiencies in their anti-money laundering and antiterrorist financing arrangements

#### Oil and gas

- 2022: end of new investments in companies where more than 10% of production (from unconventional or controversial activities) is related to these activities.
- by 2030 : Full exit from unconventional and/or controversial oil and gas exploration and production activities.

#### Tobacco

Exclusion of tobacco manufacturers and producers

#### Coal

End of investment in enterprises according to strict criteria

The sectoral and exclusion policies of the Delegated Investment Manager are described in more detail on its website: <u>www.ostrum.com</u>".

2. Integrating ESG elements into our research

After having excluded the most controversial issuers from the investment universe, the investment teams systematically assess for each underlying issuer, whether the extra-financial dimensions impact the issuer's credit risk profile, both in terms of risk and opportunity, as well as their probability of occurrence. Thus, extra-financial dimensions are systematically integrated into the risk assessment and fundamental analysis of both private and public issuers.

#### • Private sector Issuers

The non-financial rating of private sector issuers is provides by external providers and is based on four pillars, which allow for a pragmatic and differentiating analysis:

- Responsible governance: this pillar aims in particular to assess the organization and effectiveness of powers within each issuer (e.g. for companies, assessing the balance of power, executive remuneration, business ethics or even tax practices).
- Sustainable management of resources: this pillar makes it possible to, for example, study the environmental impacts and human capital (e.g. quality of working conditions, management of relationships with suppliers) of each issuer.
- Energy transition: this pillar makes it possible to, for example, assess each issuer's strategy with regard to the energy transition (e.g. approach to greenhouse gas reduction, response to long-term issues).
- Territorial development: this pillar makes it possible to, for example, analyze each issuer's strategy for access to basic services.

Several criteria are identified for each pillar and monitored by means of indicators collected from non-financial rating agencies. Ultimately, the Delegated Investment Manager remains the sole judge of the issuer's non-financial quality, which is expressed as a final rating of

between 1 and 10, where an SRI rating of 1 represents high non-financial quality, and 10 represents low non-financial quality.

 Sovereign Bonds, Green bond sovereign issuers, quasi-sovereign issuers (guaranteed agencies, supranational agencies, local authorities, etc.) and semi-public issuers (non-guaranteed agencies, or sponsored, and public compagnies) evaluation done by the Delegated Investment Manager is taking into account SDG index, which is based on 17 SDG's. This index is published by SDSN (« Sustainable Development Solutions Network », a global UN initiative) and Bertelsmannstiftung (a German foundation), for sovereign issuers

SDG index aggregate available datas for the 17 SDG's and give a compared evaluation of States performance. His goal is to help each States (i) to identify priorities in sustainable development and set up action plan but also (ii) to understand challenges and identify deficiencies that need to be gaped to reach the SDG by 2030. The index allows each States to compare themselves with their home regions, or with any other counterpart States, rated with similar levels.

SDG Index is a numeric score between 0 (worst score) and 100 (best score), that follows accomplished progresses of states in their pursuit of each SDG's. the report published by the SDG index present reports on SDG's, for each cover States. Each objectives is attached with a color status : Green is the country succeed on his objective, orange when significant challenges remains or red when Major challenges remains.

In order to assess each of these objectives, the SDG index rely on official data (communicated by national government, or international organization) and non-official datas (collected by non-government entities such as research institute, universities, non-governmental organization, private sector). Half of datas come from official organization : OECD, WHO, UNICEF. Main indicators analyzed by SDG index are maternal mortality rate, life expectancy, Universal health coverage.

Investors can access to more information on SDG index website : <u>https://www.sdgindex.org/</u>

#### 3. Applying an SRI selectivity process to the Sub-Fund

The Sub-Fund adopts an ESG process based on the average rating method: the Sub-Fund's average ESG rating is never lower than that of its Investment Universe.

The process also integrates an extra-financial upgrade objective: the Sub-Fund's GHG Intensity must be lower than the one of its Investment Universe.

The ESG ratings from external providers are used to assess the benchmark composed of private sector issuers included in the Investment Universe.

The assets of the Sub-Fund covered by extra-financial analysis are :

- 90% minimum for investment grade and sovereign securities of developed countries
- 75% minimum for high yield and emerging countries securities

Limitations of the selected approach: The Sub-Fund's article 8 approach could lead to underrepresentation in certain sectors due to poor ESG ratings or due to the application of the sectoral exclusions policy by the Delegated Investment Manager.

# What are the binding elements of the investment strategy used to select the investments to attain each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

- The Sub-Fund maintains an average ESG rating higher than the one of its Investment Universe
- The Sub-Fund maintains an GHG Intensity lower than the one of its Investment Universe
- No target investment should breach the sectoral and exclusion policies.

## What is the committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered prior to the application of that investment strategy?

There is no committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered.

### What is the policy to assess good governance practices of the investee companies?

The Delegated Investment Manager applies its exclusion policies (especially worst offenders) and ensures a permanent monitoring of controversies. In addition, The Delegated Investment Manager will, as part of the responsible governance pillar forming part of the investment strategy, consider the following aspects: exposure to corruption and bribery, the diversity among the management, and overall information concerning the governance. Indicators used in the score could be the independence of the board, the percentage of women in the management, or the number business ethics incidents.

The governance practices are taken into account in the analysis as well as in the selection of issuers carried out by the Delegated Investment Manager,

1. The 'worst offenders' policy in order to exclude all companies for which there have been severe controversies in accordance with commonly established international standards (United Nations, OECD); in particular on governance elements such as labour rights and/or business ethics (corruption, etc.)

The 'worst offenders' policy is detailed on the Delegated Investment Manager's website (https://www.ostrum.com/en/our-sector-policies)

- 2. Credit analysis, which includes the determination of the ESG materiality score specific to each private sector issuer in order to determine any impacts on the company's risk profile
- 3. Corporate ESG ratings are taken into account by managers in their stock selection (responsible corporate governance is one of 4 pillars of the rating methodology used).

The pillar "Responsible governance" aims in particular to assess the organization and effectiveness of powers within each issuer (e.g. for companies, assessing the balance of power, executive remuneration, business ethics or even tax practices)".

Each issuer has a global rating and a rating by pillar. Rating are updated every six months to reflect the updated indicators provided by the data providers.

#### Good governance

practices include sound management structures, employee relations, remuneration of staff and tax compliance.



Asset allocation describes the share of investments in specific assets.

### What is the asset allocation planned for this financial product?

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest minimum 75% of its NAV in investments that qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics).

The Sub-Fund may invest a maximum of 25% ot ifs NAV in investments that do not qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#2 Other).



**#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics** includes the investments of the financial product used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product.

**#2 Other** includes the remainings investments of the financial product which are neither aligned with the environmental or social characteristics, nor are qualified as sustainable investments.

The category #1 Aligned with E/S characteristics covers:

• The sub-category **#1A Sustainable** covers environmentally and socially sustainable investments.

• The sub-category **#1B Other E/S characteristics** covers investments aligned with the environemental or social characteristics that do not qualify as sustainable investments.

How does the use of derivatives attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Not Applicable

To what minimum extent are sustainable investments with an environmental objective aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

Not applicable

Does the financial product invest in fossil gas and/or nuclear energy related activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy<sup>51</sup>?

Yes :

Taxonomy-aligned activities are expressed as a share of:

- **turnover** reflecting the share of revenue from green activities of investee companies
- capital expenditure (CapEx) showing the green investments made by investee companies, e.g. for a transition to a green economy.
- operational expenditure (OpEx) reflecting green operational activities of investee companies.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>51</sup> Fossil gas and/or nuclear related activities will only comply with the EU Taxonomy where they contribute to limiting climate change (« climate change mitigation ») and do not significantly harm any EU Taxonomy objective-see explanatory note in the left hand margin. Th full criteria for fossil gas and nuclear energy economic activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy are laid down in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1214.





What is the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities? Not applicable



are

sustainable investments with an

criteria for

environmentally sustainable economic

activities under the EU Taxonomy.

environmental objective that **do not take into account the**  What is the minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

Not applicable



What is the minimum share of socially sustainable investments? Not applicable



What investments are included under "#2 Other", what is their purpose and are there any minimum environmental or social safeguards? The investments included in others are: assets not covered by an ESG rating, cash (cash not invested), the proportion of UCIs not aligned with E/S characteristics, derivatives traded on a regulated or over the counter markets for hedging and/or exposure purposes, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements for cash management purposes and to optimise the Sub-Fund's income and performance. Information on the list of assets classes and financial instruments and their use can be found in the prospectus. Minimum environmental or social safeguards are not systematically applied.



### Is a specific index designated as a reference benchmark to determine whether this financial product is aligned with the environmental and/or social characteristics that it promotes?

Not applicable

Reference benchmarks are indexes to measure whether the financial product attains the environmental or social characteristics that they promote.

How is the reference benchmark continuously aligned with each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Not applicable

• How is the alignment of the investment strategy with the methodology of the index ensured on a continuous basis?

Not applicable

- How does the designated index differ from a relevant broad market index?
   Not applicable
  - Where can the methodology used for the calculation of the designated index be found?

Not applicable



Where can I find more product specific information online?

More product-specific information can be found on the website:

https://www.im.natixis.com/intl/intl-fund-documents

### Sustainable

investment means an investment in an economic activity that contributes to an environmental or social objective, provided that the investment does not significantly harm any environmental or social objective and that the investee companies follow good governance practices.

The **EU Taxonomy** is a classification system laid down in Regulation (EU) 2020/852, establishing a list of **environmentally** sustainable economic

activities. That Regulation does not include a list of socially sustainable economic activities. Sustainable investments with an environmental objective might be aligned with the Taxonomy or not.

Sustainability indicators measure how the sustainable objectives of this financial product are attained.



Describing financial and duct have a sustainable investment abiastica?

# Environmental and/or social characteristics

Does this mancial product have a sustainable investment objective?				
••	Yes	o 🗶 No		
sus	<ul> <li>ill make a minimum of</li> <li>tainable investments with an</li> <li>ironmental objective:%</li> <li>in economic activities that qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy</li> <li>in economic activities that do not qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy</li> <li>in activities that do not qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy</li> </ul>	with an environmental objective in economic activities that qualify as environmentally		
sus	ill make a minimum of tainable investments with a ial objective:%	X It promotes E/S characteristics, but will not make any sustainable investments		

# What environmental and/or social characteristics are promoted by this financial product?

The Sub-Fund seeks to promote the environmental and social characteristics of maintaining a value weighted ESG score better than its "investment universe" (as

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This Sub-Fund does not have the French "Label ISR"

defined below), maintaining a carbon footprint lower than that of its "investment universe", and excluding companies that are considered as controversial and actively engaging with portfolio companies on ESG issues.

No reference benchmark has been designated for the purpose of attaining the E/S characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.

What sustainability indicators are used to measure the attainment of each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

1) Percentage of issuers that violate the UN Global Compact principles on human rights, labour standards, environmental protection and anti-corruption.

2) Percentage of issuers that generate more than 25% revenue from thermal coal.

3) Percentage of issuers that generate more than 10 % revenue from non-conventional fossil fuels.

4) Percentage of issuers that generate more than 25% revenue from palm oil.

5) Percentage of issuers that generate more than 0% revenue from tobacco or controversial weapons.

6) Portfolio ESG Score on value-weighted average basis versus the ESG score of the investment universe.

7) Total greenhouse gas emissions (GHG scope 1,2 3)

8) GHG score of the investment universe

9) Average carbon intensity of the Sub-Fund

10) Average carbon intensity score of the investment universe

11) Average percentage of board members of the issuers of securities held who meet independence criteria ESG SCORE

12) Percentage of issuers of securites held which are located in countries that are "blacklisted", i.e. under US or European embargo mentioned on the EU list of noncooperative jurisdictions for tax purposes, or identified by the Financial Action Task Force (FATF) as having strategic deficiencies in terms of anti-money laundering or counter-terrorist financing

13) Percentage of governments issuing securities held in the portfolio having a high ESG risk per the standard developed by external rating agencies

What are the objectives of the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make and how does the sustainable investment contribute to such objectives?

Not applicable.

Principal adverse impacts are the most significant negative impacts of investment decisions on sustainability factors relating to environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anticorruption and antibribery matters. How do the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make, not cause significant harm to any environmental or social sustainable investment objective?

Not applicable.

— How have the indicators for adverse impacts on sustainability factors been taken into account?

Not applicable.

 How are the sustainable investments aligned with the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights? Details:

Not applicable.

The EU Taxonomy sets out a "do not significant harm" principle by which Taxonomy-aligned investments should not significantly harm EU Taxonomy objectives and is accompanied by specific EU criteria.

The "do no significant harm" principle applies only to those investments underlying the financial product that take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. The investments underlying the remaining portion of this financial product do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

Any other sustainable investments must also not significantly harm any environmental or social objectives.



# Does this financial product consider principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors?

X Yes

The Sub-Fund considers these impacts through the following means:

#### Exclusions :

- For Equity : This ensures that the portfolio excludes certain issuers on the basis of specific regulatory, sectoral and normative criteria. These exclusions include, inter alia, the following
  - As required by law, companies that are involved in the production or distribution of anti-personnel mines or duster bombs, in accordance with the Ottawa and Oslo Conventions.
  - Companies involved in the production, use, storage, sale or transfer of depleted uranium, chemical and biological weapons.
  - Companies whose have significant revenue exposure in coal mining and coal-fired power generation
  - Companies that are involved in serious controversies are also excluded, Such as those that violate the principles of the UN Global Compact (UNGC).
- For Sovereign Bonds :The purpose of this step is to reduce the government bond investment universe on the basis of non-financial, regulatory or normative criteria, as well as relative to their ESG rating.
  - Countries that are "blacklisted", i.e. under US or European embargo mentioned on the EU list of noncooperative jurisdictions for tax purposes, or identified by the Financial Action Task Force (FATF) as having strategic deficiencies in terms of anti-money laundering or counter-terrorist financing;
  - Governments having a high ESG risk per the standard developed by external rating agencies are also excluded

#### Relative approach applied to :

- Global Equities :The ESG issues considered and their impact on stock ratings may depend on the company's sector, geographic location and capitalisation size.
  - Environmental (E) issues include, in particular, carbon emissions, waste treatment and water stress.
  - Social (S) issues include, in particular, employee safety, human capital management, and compliance with international labour standards.
  - Corporate governance (G) issues include, in particular, the composition of supervisory and governance bodies, and accounting practices.

The first non-financial objective of the so-called "score-improving" global equity investment strategy is to improve the overall ESG rating (by relying on an ESG risk indicator supplied by a non-financial rating agency) of the securities held as compared to the investment universe from which the lowest-rated 20% of companies are excluded.

The purpose of the second "non-financial-indicator-improving" objective is to improve:

- A climate-related indicator:

This consists in improving the overall carbon intensity level (total carbon emissions of a company compared to its revenue) of the securities held, in comparison With the investment universe. Aggregated to the portfolio, the objective is to achieve an average carbon intensity level below that of its investment universe.

- A good governance-related indicator:

This consists in improving the overall independence level of the bodies governing the securities held, as compared to the investment universe. In other words, aggregated to the portfolio, having a higher average percentage of directors meeting independence criteria than the investment universe.

- Global Sovereign Bonds :The ESG issues considered, and their impact on how securities are rated, are related to the nature of their issuers (sovereign states).
  - Environmental (E) factors include the analysis of energy and natural resource issues.
  - o Social responsibility (S) factors include criteria related to meeting basic needs, health, and fairness,
  - Governance (G) factors include analysis of institutions, compliance with laws and civil rights, and political stability.

The number-one objective of the "non-financial-indicator-improving sovereign bond investment strategy is to improve the overall ESG score of the securities held, compared to the investment universe filtered by our exclusion policy. This overall ESG rating is based on evaluations by an external service provider.

The second "non-financial-indicator-improving" objective is to improve climate risk measurement using a proprietary method. This measurement is based primarily on a carbon intensity analysis as well as the Governance quality of the sovereign issuers. The aim of the strategy is to improve this rating compared to the investment universe filtered by our exclusion policy.

More information on principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors is available in the periodic reporting pursuant to Article 11(2) of the SFDR.

No



investment

tolerance.

objectives and risk

#### What investment strategy does this financial product follow?

The Portfolio construction combines non-financial criteria through investment choices that are primarily guided by the application of ESG criteria and financial considerations – performance and volatility targets – through dynamic exposure management.

The purpose of the non-financial approach applied in the Sub-Fund is to prioritize financing of the most virtuous operators (corporate, sovereigns) in terms of global ESG issues, with a specific focus on climate impact.

The ESG investment strategy prioritizes investments that meet ESG criteria taken as a whole. However, special attention is paid to climate issues. Indeed, the adoption of proactive climate policies led by governments and supranational regulators, as well as the companies' consideration of their impact and their ecosystem, are major factors whose analysis should permeate and drive decisions about financing and investing in economic activity. Lastly, inclusion of Governance-related criteria is a means of bolstering the portfolios ESG strategy, since companies and governments that enjoy quality governance are more inclined to prioritize climate issues in their strategies.

At least 90% of the portfolio's net assets (equities and debt securities issued by private and public issuers) undergo ESG analysis. For our methodology we use data provided by
ESG rating agencies.

Shares in the portfolio are selected with the aim of gaining market exposure while meeting ESG criteria. For each asset class, the portfolio's construction is based on an exclusion policy and a so-called-"relative" approach.

The purpose of the exclusion policy is to limit the portfolio's exposure to risks that are deemed to be material.

It consists of reducing the investment universe based on ESG criteria. This step is based on compliance with fundamental non-financial principles and specifically on Investment Manager's "Exclusion Policy", which can be viewed on the Investment Manager website at <u>www.ostrum.com</u>.

For this product, "investment universe" is defined by the MSCI World Index for equity investments and by the combination of a strategic universe (ICE Bank of America Global Sovereign Index) and a tactical diversification universe (ICE Bank of America EM Sovereign and EM External Debt Sovereign Indexes) for sovereign bond investments.

The purpose of the so-called "relative" approach is to prioritize top-rated securities and limit lower-rated securities by including predefined ESG criteria in their weighting.

The target investment allocation is as follows:

- Global Equities: 40% of net assets in the portfolio
- Global Government Bonds 60% of net assets in the portfolio

Relative approach applied to Global Equities

The ESG issues considered and their impact on stock ratings may depend on the company's sector, geographic location and capitalisation size.

- Environmental (E) issues include, in particular, carbon emissions, waste treatment and water stress.
- Social (S) issues include, in particular, employee safety, human capital management, and compliance with international labour standards.
- Corporate governance (G) issues include, in particular, the composition of supervisory and governance bodies, and accounting practices.

The first non-financial objective of the so-called "score-improving" global equity investment strategy is to improve the overall ESG rating (by relying on an ESG risk indicator supplied by a non-financial rating agency) of the securities held as compared to the investment universe from which the lowest-rated 20% of companies are excluded.

The purpose of the second "non-financial-indicator-improving" objective is to improve:

• A climate-related indicator:

This consists in improving the overall carbon intensity level (total carbon emissions of a company compared to its revenue) of the securities held, in comparison With the investment universe. Aggregated to the portfolio, the objective is to achieve an average carbon intensity level below that of its investment universe

• A good governance-related indicator:

This consists in improving the overall independence level of the bodies governing the securities held, as compared to the investment universe. In other words, aggregated to the portfolio, having a higher average percentage of directors meeting independence criteria than the investment universe.

Relative approach applied to global sovereign bonds

The ESG issues considered, and their impact on how securities are rated, are related to the nature of their issuers (sovereign states).

- Environmental (E) factors include the analysis of energy and natural resource issues.
- Social responsibility (S) factors include criteria related to meeting basic needs, health, and fairness,
- Governance (G) factors include analysis of institutions, compliance with laws and civil rights, and political stability.

The number-one objective of the "non-financial-indicator-improving" sovereign bond investment strategy is to improve the overall ESG score of the securities held, compared to the investment universe filtered by the Investment Manager exclusion policy. This overall ESG rating is based on evaluations by an external service provider.

The second "non-financial-indicator-improving" objective is to improve climate risk measurement using a proprietary method. This measurement is based primarily on a carbon intensity analysis as well as the Governance quality of the sovereign issuers. The aim of the strategy is to improve this rating compared to the investment universe filtered by the Investment Manager exclusion policy.

#### What are the binding elements of the investment strategy used to select the investments to attain each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

1) The Sub-Fund excludes issuers that violate the UN Global Compact principles on human rights, labour standards, environmental protection and anticorruption.

2) The Sub-Fund excludes issuers that generate more than 25% revenue from thermal coal, 10 % revenue from non-conventional fossil fuels or 25% revenue from palm oil and more than 0% revenue from tobacco or controversial weapons.

3) The Sub-Fund maintains an ESG score that is higher than the one of its investment universe.

4) The Sub-Fund maintains a carbon footprint, both in total greenhouse g as emissions (GHG scope 1,2, 3) and average carbon intensity, lower than that of its investment universe.

5) The Sub-Fund keeps an average percentage of board members of issuers of securities held who meet independence criteria higher than that of its investment universe.

What is the committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered prior to the application of that investment strategy?

Not applicable.

**Good governance** practices include sound management structures, employee relations, remuneration of staff ad tax compliance.

Asset allocation describes the share of investments in specific assets.



## What is the policy to assess good governance practices of the investee companies?

The governance quality is assessed in particular by measuring the board responsibility.

Goverance quality is also followed through the Investment Manager active ownership policiy notably the proxy voting implementatation that deals with these topics such as voting principles for : shareholders right, goverance structure (director Nominees, gender responsibility independance, responsibility, climate responsability), executives remuneration.

#### What is the asset allocation planned for this financial product?

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest at least 80% of its NAV in companies that qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (Aligned with E/S characteristics).

The Sub-Fund is allowed to invest up to 20% of its NAV in cash, cash equivalents and/or hedging instruments (#2 Other). The Sub-Fund may include securities of issuers that are neither aligned with the Sub-Fund's E/S characteristics (but do meet the E/S safeguards defined in the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights).



**#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics** includes the investments of the financial product used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product.

**#2** Other includes the remainings investments of the financial product which are neither aligned with the environmental or social characteristics, nor are qualified as sustainable investments.

How does the use of derivatives attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

The ESG characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund are implemented within the stock and government bond selection. Listed derivatives on Equity markets are mainly used in order to hedge the market risk embedded in stock picking. It means that it does not alter but strenghten the ESG characteristics of the product. On Fixed Income markets, the use of listed derivatives will be restricted to the ESG universe (out of balcklisted, "severe" or "high" ESG risk countries) in order to reach the risk/return objectives of the product. By the end, currency swaps will be used in order to hedge the currency risk generated by stock and bond picking.



## To what minimum extent are sustainable investments with an environmental objective aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

The Sub-Fund does not currently commit to invest in any "sustainable investment" within the meaning of the EU Taxonomy. However, the position will be kept under review as the underlying rules are finalised and the availability of reliable data increases over time.

Does the financial product invest in fossil gas and/or nuclear energy related activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy  $?^1$ 

Yes :		
	In fossil gas	In nuclear energy
X No		

Taxonomyaligned activities are expressed as a share of:

 turnover reflecting the share of revenue from green activities of investee companies
 capital expenditure (CapEx) showing the green investments made by investee

companies, e.g. for a transition to a green economy.

operational expenditure (OpEx) reflecting green operational activities of investee companies.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Fossil gas and/or nuclear related activities will only comply with the EU Taxonomy where they contribute to limiting climate change ("climate change mitigation") and do not significantly harm any EU Taxonomy objectives - see explanatory note in the left hand margin. The full criteria for fossil gas and nuclear energy economic activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy are laid down in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1214.

EU Taxonomy, the criteria for fossil gas include limitations on emissions and switching to fully renewable power or low-carbon fuels by the end of 2035. For nuclear energy, the criteria include comprehensive safety and waste management rules. **Enabling activities** directly enable other activities to make a substantial contribution to an environmental objective. Transitional activities are economic activities for which lowcarbon alternatives are not yet available and that have greenhouse gas emission levels corresponding to the best performance.

To comply with the

Taxonomy. As there is no appropriate methodology to determine the Taxonomy-alignment of sovereign bonds<sup>\*</sup>, the first graph shows the Taxonomy alignment in relation to all the investments of the financial product including sovereign bonds, while the second graph shows the Taxonomy alignment only in relation to the investments of the financial product other than sovereign bonds.

The two graphs below show in green the minimum percentage of investments that are aligned with the EU



\*For the purpose of these graphs, 'sovereign bonds' consist of all sovereign exposures \*\*As the Sub-Fund does not commit to making sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy, the proportion of sovereign bonds in the Sub-Fund's portfolio will not impact the proportion of sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy included in the graph.

## What is the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities?

As the Sub-Fund does not commit to invest in any "sustainable investment" within the meaning of the Taxonomy Regulation, the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities within the meaning of the Taxonomy Regulation is therefore also set at 0%.

## What is the minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

The Sub-Fund promotes environmental and social characteristics but does not commit to making any sustainable investments. As a consequence, the Sub-Fund does not commit to a minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy.



are sustainable investements with an environmental objective that **do not take into account the criteria** for environmentaly sustainable economic activities under the EU Taxonomy.



What is the minimum share of socially sustainable investments?

Not applicable.



What investments are included under "#2 Other", what is their purpose and are there any minimum environmental or social safeguards?

Few issuers may not be covered by the ESG Analysis while cash management is used for liquidity and passive management purposes. Then the Sub-Fund may include derivatives and cash positions (which are not aligned with the E/S characteristics) as well as securities of issuers that are neither aligned with the Sub-Fund's E/S characteristics nor qualify as sustainable (but do meet the E/S safeguards defined in the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights).

Is a specific index designated as a reference benchmark to determine whether this financial product is aligned with the environmental and/or social characteristics that it promotes?

Not applicable.

How is the reference benchmark continuously aligned with each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Not applicable.

How is the alignment of the investment strategy with the methodology of the index ensured on a continuous basis?

Not applicable.

How does the designated index differ from a relevant broad market index?

Not applicable.

Reference benchmarks are indexes to measure whether the financial product attains the environmental or social characteristics that they promote. Where can the methodology used for the calculation of the designated index be found?



Where can I find more product specific information online? More product-specific information can be found on the website:

https://www.im.natixis.com/intl/intl-fund-documents

Pre-contractual disclosure for the financial products referred to in Article 8, paragraphs 1, 2 and 2a, of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 and Article 6, first paragraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852

Product name : Ostrum SRI Total Return Dynamic<sup>1</sup> Legal entity identifier : 5493 00YFRCW6NM7Y2T 55

Sustainable

**investment** means an investment in an economic

activity that contributes to an environmental or

environmental objective might be aligned with the Taxonomy or not.

Sustainability

are attained.

indicators measure how the sustainable objectives of this financial product

# Environmental and/or social characteristics



What environmental and/or social characteristics are promoted by this financial product?

The Sub-Fund seeks to promote the environmental and social characteristics of maintaining a value weighted ESG score better than its "investment universe" (as defined below), maintaining a carbon footprint lower than that of its "investment

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This Sub-Fund does not have the French "Label ISR".

universe", and excluding companies that are considered as controversial and actively engaging with portfolio companies on ESG issues.No reference benchmark has been designated for the purpose of attaining the E/S characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.

What sustainability indicators are used to measure the attainment of each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

1) Percentage of issuers that violate the UN Global Compact principles on human rights, labour standards, environmental protection and anti-corruption.

2) Percentage of issuers that generate more than 25% revenue from thermal coal.

3) Percentage of issuers that generate more than 10 % revenue from non-conventional fossil fuels.

4) Percentage of issuers that generate more than 25% revenue from palm oil.

5) Percentage of issuers that generate more than 0% revenue from tobacco or controversial weapons.

6) Portfolio ESG Score on value-weighted average basis versus the ESG score of the investment universe.

7) Total greenhouse gas emissions (GHG scope 1,2 3)

8) GHG score of the investment universe

9) Average carbon intensity of the Sub-Fund

10) Average carbon intensity score of the investment universe

11) Average percentage of board members of the issuers of securities held who meet independence criteria ESG SCORE

12) Percentage of issuers of securites held which are located in countries that are "blacklisted", i.e. under US or European embargo mentioned on the EU list of noncooperative jurisdictions for tax purposes, or identified by the Financial Action Task Force (FATF) as having strategic deficiencies in terms of anti-money laundering or counter-terrorist financing

13) Percentage of governments issuing securities held in the portfolio having a high ESG risk per the standard developed by external rating agencies

What are the objectives of the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make and how does the sustainable investment contribute to such objectives?

Not applicable.

Principal adverse impacts are the most significant negative impacts of investment decisions on sustainability factors relating to environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anticorruption and antibribery matters.

#### How do the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make, not cause significant harm to any environmental or social sustainable investment objective?

Not applicable.

How have the indicators for adverse impacts on sustainability factors been taken into account?

Not applicable.

 How are the sustainable investments aligned with the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights? Details:

Not applicable.

The EU Taxonomy sets out a "do not significant harm" principle by which Taxonomy-aligned investments should not significantly harm EU Taxonomy objectives and is accompanied by specific EU criteria.

The "do no significant harm" principle applies only to those investments underlying the financial product that take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. The investments underlying the remaining portion of this financial product do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

Any other sustainable investments must also not significantly harm any environmental or social objectives.



## Does this financial product consider principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors?

X Yes

#### The Sub-Fund considers these impacts through the following means:

#### Exclusions :

- For Equity :This ensures that the portfolio excludes certain issuers on the basis of specific regulatory, sectoral and normative criteria. These exclusions include, inter alia, the following
  - As required by law, companies that are involved in the production or distribution of anti-personnel mines or duster bombs, in accordance with the Ottawa and Oslo Conventions.
  - Companies involved in the production, use, storage, sale or transfer of depleted uranium, chemical and biological weapons.
  - o Companies whose have significant revenue exposure in coal mining and coal-fired power generation
  - Companies that are involved in serious controversies are also excluded, Such as those that violate the principles of the UN Global Compact (UNGC).
- For Sovereign Bonds :The purpose of this step is to reduce the government bond investment universe on the basis of non-financial, regulatory or normative criteria, as well as relative to their ESG rating.
  - Countries that are "blacklisted", i.e. under US or European embargo mentioned on the EU list of noncooperative jurisdictions for tax purposes, or identified by the Financial Action Task Force (FATF) as having strategic deficiencies in terms of anti-money laundering or counter-terrorist financing;
  - Governments having a high ESG risk per the standard developed by external rating agencies are also excluded.

#### Relative approach applied to :

- Global Equities :The ESG issues considered and their impact on stock ratings may depend on the company's sector, geographic location and capitalisation size.
  - Environmental (E) issues include, in particular, carbon emissions, waste treatment and water stress.
  - Social (S) issues include, in particular, employee safety, human capital management, and compliance with international labour standards.
  - Corporate governance (G) issues include, in particular, the composition of supervisory and governance bodies, and accounting practices.

The first non-financial objective of the so-called "score-improving" global equity investment strategy is to improve the overall ESG rating (by relying on an ESG risk indicator supplied by a non-financial rating agency) of the securities held as compared to the investment universe from which the lowest-rated 20% of companies are excluded.

The purpose of the second "non-financial-indicator-improving" objective is to improve:

- A climate-related indicator:

This consists in improving the overall carbon intensity level (total carbon emissions of a company compared to its revenue) of the securities held, in comparison With the investment universe. Aggregated to the portfolio, the objective is to achieve an average carbon intensity level below that of its investment universe

- A good governance-related indicator:

This consists in improving the overall independence level of the bodies governing the securities held, as compared to the investment universe. In other words, aggregated to the portfolio, having a higher average percentage of directors meeting independence criteria than the investment universe

- Global Sovereign Bonds : The ESG issues considered, and their impact on how securities are rated, are related to the nature of their issuers (sovereign states).
  - Environmental (E) factors include the analysis of energy and natural resource issues.
  - Social responsibility (S) factors include criteria related to meeting basic needs, health, and fairness,
  - Governance (G) factors include analysis of institutions, compliance with laws and civil rights, and political stability.

The number-one objective of the "non-financial-indicator-improving sovereign bond investment strategy is to improve the overall ESG score of the securities held, compared to the investment universe filtered by our exclusion policy. This overall ESG rating is based on evaluations by an external service provider.

The second "non-financial-indicator-improving" objective is to improve climate risk measurement using a proprietary method. This measurement is based primarily on a carbon intensity analysis as well as the Governance quality of the sovereign issuers. The aim of the strategy is to improve this rating compared to the investment universe filtered by our exclusion policy.

More information on principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors is available in the periodic reporting pursuant to Article 11(2) of the SFDR.

No

#### What investment strategy does this financial product follow?

The Portfolio construction combines non-financial criteria through investment choices that are primarily guided by the application of ESG criteria and financial considerations – performance and volatility targets – through dynamic exposure management.

The purpose of the non-financial approach applied in the Sub-Fund is to prioritize financing of the most virtuous operators (corporate, sovereigns) in terms of global ESG issues, with a specific focus on climate impact.

The ESG investment strategy prioritizes investments that meet ESG criteria taken as a whole. However, special attention is paid to climate issues. Indeed, the adoption of proactive climate policies led by governments and supranational regulators, as well as the companies' consideration of their impact and their ecosystem, are major factors whose analysis should permeate and drive decisions about financing and investing in economic activity. Lastly, inclusion of Governance-related criteria is a means of bolstering the portfolios ESG strategy, since companies and governments that enjoy quality governance are more inclined to prioritize climate issues in their strategies.

At least 90% of the portfolio's net assets (equities and debt securities issued by private and public issuers) undergo ESG analysis. For our methodology we use data provided by ESG rating agencies.

Shares in the portfolio are selected with the aim of gaining market exposure while meeting ESG criteria. For each asset class, the portfolio's construction is based on an exclusion



policy and a so-called-"relative" approach.

The purpose of the exclusion policy is to limit the portfolio's exposure to risks that are deemed to be material.

It consists of reducing the investment universe based on ESG criteria. This step is based on compliance with fundamental non-financial principles and specifically on Investment Manager's "Exclusion Policy", which can be viewed on the Investment Manager website at <u>www.ostrum.com</u>

For this product, "investment universe" is defined by the MSCI World Index for equity investments and by the combination of a strategic universe (ICE Bank of America Global Sovereign Index) and a tactical diversification universe (ICE Bank of America EM Sovereign and EM External Debt Sovereign Indexes) for sovereign bond investments.

The purpose of the so-called "relative" approach is to prioritize top-rated securities and limit lower-rated securities by including predefined ESG criteria in their weighting.

The target investment allocation is as follows:

- Global Equities: 80% of net assets in the portfolio
- Global Government Bonds 20% of net assets in the portfolio

Relative approach applied to Global Equities

The ESG issues considered and their impact on stock ratings may depend on the company's sector, geographic location and capitalisation size.

- Environmental (E) issues include, in particular, carbon emissions, waste treatment and water stress.
- Social (S) issues include, in particular, employee safety, human capital management, and compliance with international labour standards.
- Corporate governance (G) issues include, in particular, the composition of supervisory and governance bodies, and accounting practices.

The first non-financial objective of the so-called "score-improving" global equity investment strategy is to improve the overall ESG rating (by relying on an ESG risk indicator supplied by a non-financial rating agency) of the securities held as compared to the investment universe from which the lowest-rated 20% of companies are excluded.

The purpose of the second "non-financial-indicator-improving" objective is to improve:

• A climate-related indicator:

This consists in improving the overall carbon intensity level (total carbon emissions of a company compared to its revenue) of the securities held, in comparison With the investment universe. Aggregated to the portfolio, the objective is to achieve an average carbon intensity level below that of its investment universe

• A good governance-related indicator:

This consists in improving the overall independence level of the bodies governing the securities held, as compared to the investment universe. In other words, aggregated to the portfolio, having a higher average percentage of directors meeting independence criteria than the investment universe.

Relative approach applied to global sovereign bonds

The ESG issues considered, and their impact on how securities are rated, are related to the nature of their issuers (sovereign states).

- Environmental (E) factors include the analysis of energy and natural resource issues.
- Social responsibility (S) factors include criteria related to meeting basic needs, health, and fairness,
- Governance (G) factors include analysis of institutions, compliance with laws and civil rights, and political stability.

The number-one objective of the "non-financial-indicator-improving" sovereign bond investment strategy is to improve the overall ESG score of the securities held, compared to the investment universe filtered by the Investment Manager exclusion policy. This overall ESG rating is based on evaluations by an external service provider.

The second "non-financial-indicator-improving" objective is to improve climate risk measurement using a proprietary method. This measurement is based primarily on a carbon intensity analysis as well as the Governance quality of the sovereign issuers. The aim of the strategy is to improve this rating compared to the investment universe filtered by the Investment Manager exclusion policy.

What are the binding elements of the investment strategy used to select the investments to attain each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

1) The Sub-Fund excludes issuers that violate the UN Global Compact principles on human rights, labour standards, environmental protection and anticorruption.

2) The Sub-Fund excludes issuers that generate more than 25% revenue from thermal coal, 10 % revenue from non-conventional fossil fuels or 25% revenue from palm oil and more than 0% revenue from tobacco or controversial weapons.

3) The Sub-Fund maintains an ESG score that is higher than the one of its investment universe.

4) The Sub-Fund maintains a carbon footprint, both in total greenhouse g as emissions (GHG scope 1,2, 3) and average carbon intensity, lower than that of its investment universe.

5) The Sub-Fund keeps an average percentage of board members of issuers of securities held who meet independence criteria higher than that of its investment universe.

What is the committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered prior to the application of that investment strategy?

Not applicable.

What is the policy to assess good governance practices of the investee companies?

The governance quality is assessed in particular by measuring the board responsibility.

**Good governance** practices include sound management structures, employee relations, remuneration of staff ad tax compliance. Goverance quality is also followed through the Investment Manager active ownership policiy notably the proxy voting implementatation that deals with these topics such as voting principles for : shareholders right, goverance structure (director Nominees, gender responsibility independance, responsibility, climate responsability), executives remuneration.

#### Asset allocation describes the share of investments in specific assets.

What is the asset allocation planned for this financial product?

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest at least 80% of its NAV in companies that qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (Aligned with E/S characteristics).

The Sub-Fund is allowed to invest up to 20% of its NAV in cash, cash equivalents and/or hedging instruments (#2 Other). The Sub-Fund may include securities of issuers that are neither aligned with the Sub-Fund's E/S characteristics (but do meet the E/S safeguards defined in the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights).



**#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics** includes the investments of the financial product used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product.

**#2 Other** includes the remainings investments of the financial product which are neither aligned with the environmental or social characteristics, nor are qualified as sustainable investments.

How does the use of derivatives attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

The ESG characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund are implemented within the stock and government bond selection. Listed derivatives on Equity markets are mainly used in order to hedge the market risk embedded in stock picking. It means that it does not alter but strenghten the ESG characteristics of the product. On Fixed Income markets, the use of listed derivatives will be restricted to the ESG universe (out of balcklisted, "severe" or "high" ESG risk countries) in order to reach the risk/return objectives of the product. By the end, currency swaps will be used in order to hedge the currency risk generated by stock and bond picking.

Taxonomyaligned activities are expressed as a share of:

- **turnover** reflecting the share of revenue from green activities of investee companies
- capital expenditure (CapEx) showing the green investments made by investee companies, e.g. for a transition to a green economy.

operational expenditure (OpEx) reflecting green operational activities of investee companies.



## To what minimum extent are sustainable investments with an environmental objective aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

The Sub-Fund does not currently commit to invest in any "sustainable investment" within the meaning of the EU Taxonomy. However, the position will be kept under review as the underlying rules are finalised and the availability of reliable data increases over time.

Does the financial product invest in fossil gas and/or nuclear energy related activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy ?<sup>1</sup>



The two graphs below show in green the minimum percentage of investments that are aligned with the EU Taxonomy. As there is no appropriate methodology to determine the Taxonomy-alignment of sovereign bonds\*, the first graph shows the Taxonomy alignment in relation to all the investments of the financial product including sovereign bonds, while the second graph shows the Taxonomy alignment only in relation to the investments of the financial product other than sovereign bonds.



\*For the purpose of these graphs, 'sovereign bonds' consist of all sovereign exposures \*\*As the Sub-Fund does not commit to making sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy, the proportion of sovereign bonds in the Sub-Fund's portfolio will not impact the proportion of sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy included in the graph.

To comply with the EU Taxonomy, the criteria for fossil gas include limitations on emissions and switching to fully renewable power or low-carbon fuels by the end of 2035. For nuclear energy, the criteria include comprehensive safety and waste management rules. **Enabling activities** directly enable other activities to make a substantial contribution to an environmental objective. Transitional activities are economic activities for which lowcarbon alternatives are not yet available and that have greenhouse gas emission levels corresponding to the best performance.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Fossil gas and/or nuclear related activities will only comply with the EU Taxonomy where they contribute to limiting climate change ("climate change mitigation") and do not significantly harm any EU Taxonomy objectives - see explanatory note in the left hand margin. The full criteria for fossil gas and nuclear energy economic activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy are laid down in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1214.

## What is the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities?

As the Sub-Fund does not commit to invest in any "sustainable investment" within the meaning of the Taxonomy Regulation, the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities within the meaning of the Taxonomy Regulation is therefore also set at 0%.



## What is the minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

The Sub-Fund promotes environmental and social characteristics but does not commit to making any sustainable investments. As a consequence, the Sub-Fund does not commit to a minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy.

#### What is the minimum share of socially sustainable investments?

Not applicable.



## What investments are included under "#2 Other", what is their purpose and are there any minimum environmental or social safeguards?

Few issuers may not be covered by the ESG Analysis while cash management is used for liquidity and passive management purposes. Then the Sub-Fund may include derivatives and cash positions (which are not aligned with the E/S characteristics) as well as securities of issuers that are neither aligned with the Sub-Fund's E/S characteristics nor qualify as sustainable (but do meet the E/S safeguards defined in the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights).



Is a specific index designated as a reference benchmark to determine whether this financial product is aligned with the environmental and/or social characteristics that it promotes?

Not applicable.



investements with an environmental objective that **do not take into account the criteria** for environmentaly sustainable economic activities under the EU Taxonomy. Reference benchmarks are indexes to measure whether the financial product attains the environmental or social characteristics that they promote. How is the reference benchmark continuously aligned with each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Not applicable.

How is the alignment of the investment strategy with the methodology of the index ensured on a continuous basis?

Not applicable.

How does the designated index differ from a relevant broad market index?

Not applicable.

Where can the methodology used for the calculation of the designated index be found?

Not applicable.



Where can I find more product specific information online? More product-specific information can be found on the website:

https://www.im.natixis.com/intl/intl-fund-documents

Pre-contractual disclosure for the financial products referred to in Article 8, paragraphs 1, 2 and 2a, of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 and Article 6, first paragraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852

Product name : Ostrum SRI Europe MinVol Equity<sup>1</sup> Legal entity identifier : 5493 00XUKE0EPV3QGK 94

Sustainable

**investment** means an investment in an economic

activity that contributes to an environmental or

environmental objective might be aligned with the Taxonomy or not.

Sustainability

are attained.

indicators measure how the sustainable objectives of this financial product

# Environmental and/or social characteristics



What environmental and/or social characteristics are promoted by this financial product?

The Sub-Fund seeks to promote the environmental and social characteristics of maintaining a value weighted ESG score better than its "investment universe" (as defined below), maintaining a carbon footprint lower than that of its "investment

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This Sub-Fund does not have the French "Label ISR".

universe", and excluding companies that are considered as controversial and actively engaging with portfolio companies on ESG issues.

No reference benchmark has been designated for the purpose of attaining the E/S characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.

What sustainability indicators are used to measure the attainment of each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

1) Percentage of issuers that violate the UN Global Compact principles on human rights, labour standards, environmental protection and anti-corruption.

2) Percentage of issuers that generate more than 25% revenue from thermal coal.

3) Percentage of issuers that generate more than 10 % revenue from non-conventional fossil fuels.

4) Percentage of issuers that generate more than 25% revenue from palm oil.

5) Percentage of issuers that generat more than 0% revenue from tobacco or controversial weapons.

6) Portfolio ESG Score on value-weighted average basis versus the ESG score of the investment universe.

7) Total greenhouse gas emissions (GHG scope 1,2 3)

8) GHG score of the investment universe.

9) Average carbon intensity of the Sub-Fund

10) carbon intensity score of the investment universe.

11) Average percentage of board members of the issuers of securities held who meet independence criteria ESG SCORE.

What are the objectives of the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make and how does the sustainable investment contribute to such objectives?

Not applicable.

How do the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make, not cause significant harm to any environmental or social sustainable investment objective?

Not applicable.

— How have the indicators for adverse impacts on sustainability factors been taken into account?

Not applicable.

 How are the sustainable investments aligned with the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights? Details:

Not applicable.

The EU Taxonomy sets out a "do not significant harm" principle by which Taxonomy-aligned investments should not significantly harm EU Taxonomy objectives and is accompanied by specific EU criteria.

The "do no significant harm" principle applies only to those investments underlying the financial product that take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. The investments underlying the remaining portion of this financial product do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

Any other sustainable investments must also not significantly harm any environmental or social objectives.

Principal adverse impacts are the most significant negative impacts of investment decisions on sustainability factors relating to environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anticorruption and antibribery matters.



#### Does this financial product consider principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors?

Yes Χ

The Sub-Fund considers these impacts through the following means:

Exposure to controversial weapons (antipersonnel mines, cluster munitions, chemical weapons and biological weapons)

It excludes issuers that have exposure to controversial weapons (antipersonnel mines, cluster munitions, chemical weapons and biological weapons)

Violations of UN Global Compact principles and Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD) Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises

It excludes issuers that severely violate the UN Global Compact principles on human rights, labour standards, environmental protection and anti corruption

GHG emissions, Carbon footprint, GHG intensity of investee companies, Exposure to companies active in the fossil fuel sector and Activities negatively affecting biodiversity sensitive areas

It excludes issuers that derive a significant portion of their revenue from activities detrimental to society or the environment, such as, thermal coal, unconventional oil and gas, tobacco or palm oil.

More information on principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors is available in the periodic reporting pursuant to Article 11(2) of the SFDR.

No



The investment strategy guides investment decisions based on factors such as investment objectives and risk tolerance.



### What investment strategy does this financial product follow?

The investment objective of the Fund will systematically include Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") considerations such as, but not limited to:

Environmental issues including carbon emissions, waste treatment and water stress.

- Social issues including employee safety, human capital management, and compliance with international labour standards.
- Corporate governance issues including the composition of supervisory and governance bodies, and accounting practices.

The investment strategy will include a process for selecting issuers that meet ESG requirements.

- Exclusions.1) The Sub-Fund excludes issuers that are in breach of international norms or that are related to 'severe' controversies, based on the UN Global Compact principles on human rights, labour standards, environmental protection and anti-corruption.2) The Sub-Fund also defines an exclusion policy on controversial sectors, which excludes companies that have more than 25% revenue from thermal coal, 10% revenue from non-conventional fossil fuels or 25% revenue from palm oil and more than 0% revenue from tobacco or controversial weapons.
- 2. Positive screening.1) The Sub-Fund favours companies that effectively address ESG consideration or actively seek ESG opportunities, by maintaining an ESG rating that is better than that of its 'investment universe'. For this product, "investment universe" is defined as all issuers from the MSCI Europe Index and the Stoxx 600 Index. The ESG score is provided by an external provider. Concretely, this methodology increases the portfolio's exposure to securities with top-quality ESG score and reduces exposure to those with lower-quality ESG score.2) The Sub-Fund favours companies with lower carbon footprint. It maintains a carbon footprint, both in total greenhouse gas emissions (GHG scope 1,2 3) and average carbon intensity, lower than that of its investment universe.
- 3. Active ownership.1) The Sub-Fund seeks to engage with portfolio companies on ESG issues, through voting rights realized by a proxy voting approach. It is also done through a collaborative engagement service realizes by a dedicated external provider.2) The Sub-Fund favours companies with more independent board members. It aims to have an average percentage of board members at the Sub-Fund's level who meet independence criteria (such as but not limited to : Board majority independent of management, Board majority independent of Other interest, Executives on Board, No Independent Directors, Related-Party Transactions, ...) higher than that of its investment universe.

The ESG analysis of the portfolio will permanently cover at least 90% of the stocks within the portfolio.

#### What are the binding elements of the investment strategy used to select the investments to attain each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

- 1. The Sub-Fund excludes issuers that violate the UN Global Compact principles on human rights, labour standards, environmental protection and anti-corruption.
- 2. The Sub-Fund excludes issuers that generate :a. more than 25% revenue from thermal coal,b. more than 10% revenue from non-conventional fossil fuelsc. more than 25% revenue from palm oild. more than 0% revenue from tobaccoe. more than 0% revenue from controversial weapons.
- 3. The Sub-Fund maintains a carbon footprint, both in total greenhouse g as emissions (GHG scope 1,2 3) and average carbon intensity, lower than that of its investment universe.
- 4. The Sub-Fund keeps an average percentage of board members of issuers of securities held who meet independence criteria higher than that of its investment universe.

#### What is the committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered prior to the application of that investment strategy?

The Sub-Fund commit to exclude 20% of its initial investment universe through the implementation of its ESG-strategy.

#### Good governance

practices include sound management structures, employee relations, remuneration of staff ad tax compliance.

## What is the policy to assess good governance practices of the investee companies?

The governance quality is assessed in particular by measuring the board independance.

Goverance quality is also followed through the Investment Manager active ownership policiy notably the proxy voting implementatation that deals with these topics such as voting principles for : shareholders right, goverance structure (director Nominees, gender diversity, independance, accountability, climate responsability), executives remuneration.

#### What is the asset allocation planned for this financial product?

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest at least 80% of its NAV in companies that qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#Aligned with E/S characteristics).

The Sub-Fund is allowed to invest up to 20% of its NAV in cash, cash equivalents and/or hedging instruments (# Other).



**#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics** includes the investments of the financial product used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product.

**#2** Other includes the remainings investments of the financial product which are neither aligned with the environmental or social characteristics, nor are qualified as sustainable investments.



How does the use of derivatives attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Not applicable.



To what minimum extent are sustainable investments with an environmental objective aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

The Sub-Fund does not currently commit to invest in any "sustainable investment" within the meaning of the EU Taxonomy. However, the position will be kept under review as the underlying rules are finalised and the availability of reliable data increases over time.

Does the financial product invest in fossil gas and/or nuclear energy related activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy ?<sup>1</sup>

	Yes :		
		In fossil gas	In nuclear energy
X	No		

Taxonomyaligned activities are expressed as a share of:

turnover
 reflecting the share of
 revenue from green activities of investee
 companies
 capital

expenditure (CapEx) showing the green investments made by investee companies, e.g. for a transition to a green economy.

operational expenditure (OpEx) reflecting green operational activities of investee companies.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Fossil gas and/or nuclear related activities will only comply with the EU Taxonomy where they contribute to limiting climate change ("climate change mitigation") and do not significantly harm any EU Taxonomy objectives - see explanatory note in the left hand margin. The full criteria for fossil gas and nuclear energy economic activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy are laid down in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1214.

EU Taxonomy, the criteria for fossil gas include limitations on emissions and switching to fully renewable power or low-carbon fuels by the end of 2035. For nuclear energy, the criteria include comprehensive safety and waste management rules. **Enabling activities** directly enable other activities to make a substantial contribution to an environmental objective. Transitional activities are economic activities for which lowcarbon alternatives are not yet available and that have greenhouse gas emission levels corresponding to the best performance.

To comply with the



are sustainable investements with an environmental objective that **do not take into account the criteria** for environmentaly sustainable economic activities under the EU Taxonomy. The two graphs below show in green the minimum percentage of investments that are aligned with the EU Taxonomy. As there is no appropriate methodology to determine the Taxonomy-alignment of sovereign bonds\*, the first graph shows the Taxonomy alignment in relation to all the investments of the financial product including sovereign bonds, while the second graph shows the Taxonomy alignment only in relation to the investments of the financial product other than sovereign bonds.



\*For the purpose of these graphs, 'sovereign bonds' consist of all sovereign exposures \*\*As the Sub-Fund does not commit to making sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy, the proportion of sovereign bonds in the Sub-Fund's portfolio will not impact the proportion of sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy included in the graph.

## What is the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities?

As the Sub-Fund does not commit to invest any "sustainable investment" within the meaning of the EU Taxonomy, the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities within the meaning of the EU Taxonomy is therefore also set at 0%.

## What is the minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

The Sub-Fund promotes environmental and social characteristics but does not commit to making any sustainable investments. As a consequence, the Sub-Fund does not commit to a minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy.



What is the minimum share of socially sustainable investments?

Not applicable.



What investments are included under "#2 Other", what is their purpose and are there any minimum environmental or social safeguards?

Few issuers may not be covered by the ESG Analysis while cash management is used for liquidity and passive management purposes. Then the Sub-Fund may include derivatives and cash positions (which are not aligned with the E/S characteristics) as well as securities of issuers that are neither aligned with the Sub-Fund's E/S characteristics nor qualify as sustainable (but do meet the E/S safeguards defined in the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights).



Is a specific index designated as a reference benchmark to determine whether this financial product is aligned with the environmental and/or social characteristics that it promotes?

Not applicable.

How is the reference benchmark continuously aligned with each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Not applicable.

How is the alignment of the investment strategy with the methodology of the index ensured on a continuous basis?

Not applicable.

How does the designated index differ from a relevant broad market index?

Not applicable.

**benchmarks** are indexes to measure

Reference

whether the financial product attains the environmental or social characteristics that they promote. Where can the methodology used for the calculation of the designated index be found?

Not applicable.



Where can I find more product specific information online?

More product-specific information can be found on the website:

https://www.im.natixis.com/intl/intl-fund-documents

## Pre-contractual disclosure for the financial products referred to in Article 8, paragraphs 1, 2 and 2a, of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 and Article 6, first paragraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852

Sustainable investment means an	Product name : OSTRUM SRI GLOBAL MINVOL EQUITY <sup>1</sup> Legal entity identifier : 5493 004HYBGN29P4IT 24					
investment in an economic activity that contributes to an environmental or social objective,	Environmental and/or social characteristics					
not significantly harm any environmental or social objective and that the investee companies follow good governance practices. The <b>EU Taxonomy</b> is a classification system laid down in Regulation (EU) 2020/852, establishing a list of <b>environmentally</b> <b>sustainable</b> <b>economic</b> <b>activities</b> . That Regulation does not	🔹 🔤 Yes 🔹 🔹 No					
	It will make a minimum of       It promotes Environmental/Social (E/S)         sustainable investments with an       characteristics and while it does not have as         environmental objective:%       in economic activities that qualify         in economic activities that qualify       as environmentally sustainable         under the EU Taxonomy       with an environmental objective in economic         in economic activities that do not       with an environmental objective in economic         activities that do not       sustainable under the EU Taxonomy					
	qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy       with an environmental objective in economic activities that do not qualify as environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy         It will make a minimum of sustainable investments with a       X    It promotes E/S characteristics, but will not make any sustainable investments					
include a list of socially sustainable	social objective:%					
economic activities. Sustainable investments with an environmental						

Sustainability

objective might be aligned with the Taxonomy or not.

**indicators** measure how the sustainable objectives of this financial product are attained.



What environmental and/or social characteristics are promoted by this financial product?

The Sub-Fund seeks to promote the environmental and social characteristics of maintaining a value weighted ESG score better than its "investment universe" (as

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This Sub-Fund does not have the French "Label ISR".

defined below), maintaining a carbon footprint lower than that of its "investment universe", and excluding companies that are considered as controversial and actively engaging with portfolio companies on ESG issues.

No reference benchmark has been designated for the purpose of attaining the E/S characteristics promoted by the Sub-Fund.

What sustainability indicators are used to measure the attainment of each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

1) Percentage of issuers that violate the UN Global Compact principles on human rights, labour standards, environmental protection and anti-corruption.

2) Percentage of issuers that generate more than 25% revenue from thermal coal.

3) Percentage of issuers that generate more than 10 % revenue from non-conventional fossil fuels.

4) Percentage of issuers that generate more than 25% revenue from palm oil.

5) Percentage of issuers that generat more than 0% revenue from tobacco or controversial weapons.

6) Portfolio ESG Score on value-weighted average basis versus the ESG score of the investment universe.

7) Total greenhouse gas emissions (GHG scope 1,2 3)

8) GHG score of the investment universe.

9) Average carbon intensity of the Sub-Fund

10) Carbon intensity score of the investment universe.

11) Average percentage of board members of the issuers of securities held who meet independence criteria ESG SCORE.

What are the objectives of the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make and how does the sustainable investment contribute to such objectives?

Not applicable.

How do the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make, not cause significant harm to any environmental or social sustainable investment objective?

Not applicable.

#### **Principal adverse**

impacts are the most significant negative impacts of investment decisions on sustainability factors relating to environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anticorruption and anti— How have the indicators for adverse impacts on sustainability factors been taken into account?

Not applicable.

— How are the sustainable investments aligned with the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights? Details:

Not applicable.

The EU Taxonomy sets out a "do not significant harm" principle by which Taxonomy-aligned investments should not significantly harm EU Taxonomy objectives and is accompanied by specific EU criteria.

The "do no significant harm" principle applies only to those investments underlying the financial product that take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. The investments underlying the remaining portion of this financial product do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

Any other sustainable investments must also not significantly harm any environmental or social objectives.



## Does this financial product consider principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors?

X Yes

The Sub-Fund considers these impacts through the following means:

- Exposure to controversial weapons (antipersonnel mines, cluster munitions, chemical weapons and biological weapons)
  - It excludes issuers that have exposure to controversial weapons (antipersonnel mines, cluster munitions, chemical weapons and biological weapons)
- Violations of UN Global Compact principles and Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD) Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises
  - It excludes issuers that severely violate the UN Global Compact principles on human rights, labour standards, environmental protection and anti corruption
- GHG emissions, Carbon footprint, GHG intensity of investee companies, Exposure to companies active in the fossil fuel sector and Activities negatively affecting biodiversity sensitive areas
  - It excludes issuers that derive a significant portion of their revenue from activities detrimental to society or the environment, such as, thermal coal, unconventional oil and gas, tobacco or palm oil.

More information on principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors is available in the periodic reporting pursuant to Article 11(2) of the SFDR.

No

The investment strategy guides investment decisions based on factors such as investment objectives and risk tolerance.

The investment objective of the Fund will systematically include Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") considerations such as, but not limited to:

• Environmental issues including carbon emissions, waste treatment and water stress.

What investment strategy does this financial product follow?

- Social issues including employee safety, human capital management, and compliance with international labour standards.
- Corporate governance issues including the composition of supervisory and governance bodies, and accounting practices.

The investment strategy will include a process for selecting issuers that meet ESG requirements.

#### 1. Exclusions.

1) The Sub-Fund excludes issuers that are in breach of international norms or that are related to 'severe' controversies, based on the UN Global Compact principles on human rights, labour standards, environmental protection and anti-corruption.

2) The Sub-Fund also defines an exclusion policy on controversial sectors, which excludes companies that have more than 25% revenue from thermal coal, 10% revenue from non-conventional fossil fuels or 25% revenue from palm oil and more than 0% revenue from tobacco or controversial weapons.

#### 2. Positive screening.

1) The Sub-Fund favours companies that effectively address ESG consideration or actively seek ESG opportunities , by maintaining an ESG rating that is better than that of its

'investment universe'. For this product, "investment universe" is defined as all issuers from the MSCI World All Countries Index. The ESG score is provided by an external provider. Concretely, this methodology increases the portfolio's exposure to securities with top-quality ESG score and reduces exposure to those with lower-quality ESG score.

2) The Sub-Fund favours companies with lower carbon footprint. It maintains a carbon footprint, both in total greenhouse gas emissions (GHG scope 1,2 3) and average carbon intensity, lower than that of its investment universe.

3. Active ownership.

3) The Sub-Fund seeks to engage with portfolio companies on ESG issues, through voting rights realized by a proxy voting approach. It is also done through a collaborative engagement service realizes by a dedicated external provider.

4) The Sub-Fund favours companies with more independent board members. It aims to have an average percentage of board members at the Sub-Fund's level who meet independence criteria (such as but not limited to : Board majority independent of management, Board majority independent of Other interest, Executives on Board, No Independent Directors, Related-Party Transactions, ...) higher than that of its investment universe.

The ESG analysis of the portfolio will permanently cover at least 90% of the stocks within the portfolio.

#### What are the binding elements of the investment strategy used to select the investments to attain each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

- 1. The Sub-Fund excludes issuers that violate the UN Global Compact principles on human rights, labour standards, environmental protection and anti-corruption.
- 2. The Sub-Fund excludes issuers that generate :
  - a. more than 25% revenue from thermal coal,
  - b. more than 10 % revenue from non-conventional fossil fuels
  - c. more than 25% revenue from palm oil
  - d. more than 0% revenue from tobacco
  - e. more than 0% revenue from controversial weapons.
- 3. The Sub-Fund maintains a carbon footprint, both in total greenhouse gas emissions (GHG scope 1,2 3) and average carbon intensity, lower than that of its investment universe.
- 4. The Sub-Fund keeps an average percentage of board members of issuers of securities held who meet independence criteria higher than that of its investment universe.

#### What is the committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered prior to the application of that investment strategy?

The Sub-Fund commit to exclude 20% of its initial investment universe through the implementation of its ESG-strategy.

## What is the policy to assess good governance practices of the investee companies?

The governance quality is assessed in particular by measuring the board independance.

Goverance quality is also followed through the Investment Manager active ownership policiy notably the proxy voting implementatation that deals with these topics such as voting principles for : shareholders right, goverance structure (director Nominees, gender diversity, independance, accountability, climate responsability), executives remuneration.

#### What is the asset allocation planned for this financial product?

The Sub-Fund is expected to invest at least 80% of its NAV in companies that qualify as aligned with E/S characteristics (#Aligned with E/S characteristics).

The Sub-Fund is allowed to invest up to 20% of its NAV in cash, cash equivalents and/or hedging instruments (# Other).



**#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics** includes the investments of the financial product used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product.

**#2** Other includes the remainings investments of the financial product which are neither aligned with the environmental or social characteristics, nor are qualified as sustainable investments.

#### **Good governance** practices include sound management structures,

employee relations, remuneration of staff ad tax compliance.

Asset allocation describes the share of investments in specific assets.



How does the use of derivatives attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Not applicable.



## To what minimum extent are sustainable investments with an environmental objective aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

The Sub-Fund does not currently commit to invest in any "sustainable investment" within the meaning of the EU Taxonomy. However, the position will be kept under review as the underlying rules are finalised and the availability of reliable data increases over time.

Does the financial product invest in fossil gas and/or nuclear energy related activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy ?<sup>1</sup>

Yes :			
	In fossil gas	In nuclear energy	
X No			

Taxonomyaligned activities are expressed as a share of:

- **turnover** reflecting the share of revenue from green activities of investee companies

 capital expenditure (CapEx) showing the green investments made by investee companies, e.g. for a transition to a green economy.
 operational

expenditure (OpEx) reflecting green operational activities of investee companies.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Fossil gas and/or nuclear related activities will only comply with the EU Taxonomy where they contribute to limiting climate change ("climate change mitigation") and do not significantly harm any EU Taxonomy objectives - see explanatory note in the left hand margin. The full criteria for fossil gas and nuclear energy economic activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy are laid down in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1214.

EU Taxonomy, the criteria for fossil gas include limitations on emissions and switching to fully renewable power or low-carbon fuels by the end of 2035. For nuclear energy, the criteria include comprehensive safety and waste management rules. **Enabling activities** directly enable other activities to make a substantial contribution to an environmental objective. Transitional activities are economic activities for which lowcarbon alternatives are not yet available and that have greenhouse gas emission levels corresponding to the best performance.

To comply with the

are sustainable investements with an environmental objective that **do not take into account the criteria** for environmentaly sustainable economic activities under the EU Taxonomy. The two graphs below show in green the minimum percentage of investments that are aligned with the EU Taxonomy. As there is no appropriate methodology to determine the Taxonomy-alignment of sovereign bonds<sup>\*</sup>, the first graph shows the Taxonomy alignment in relation to all the investments of the financial product including sovereign bonds, while the second graph shows the Taxonomy alignment only in relation to the investments of the financial product other than sovereign bonds.



\*For the purpose of these graphs, 'sovereign bonds' consist of all sovereign exposures \*\*As the Sub-Fund does not commit to making sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy, the proportion of sovereign bonds in the Sub-Fund's portfolio will not impact the proportion of sustainable investments aligned with the EU Taxonomy included in the graph.

## What is the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities?

As the Sub-Fund does not commit to invest any "sustainable investment" within the meaning of the EU Taxonomy, the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities within the meaning of the EU Taxonomy is therefore also set at 0%.

## What is the minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy?

The Sub-Fund promotes environmental and social characteristics but does not commit to making any sustainable investments. As a consequence, the Sub-Fund does not commit to a minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy.



What is the minimum share of socially sustainable investments?

Not applicable.



What investments are included under "#2 Other", what is their purpose and are there any minimum environmental or social safeguards?

Few issuers may not be covered by the ESG Analysis while cash management is used for liquidity and passive management purposes. Then the Sub-Fund may include derivatives and cash positions (which are not aligned with the E/S characteristics) as well as securities of issuers that are neither aligned with the Sub-Fund's E/S characteristics nor qualify as sustainable (but do meet the E/S safeguards defined in the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights).



Is a specific index designated as a reference benchmark to determine whether this financial product is aligned with the environmental and/or social characteristics that it promotes?

Not applicable.

How is the reference benchmark continuously aligned with each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

Not applicable.

How is the alignment of the investment strategy with the methodology of the index ensured on a continuous basis?

Not applicable.

How does the designated index differ from a relevant broad market index?

Not applicable.

**benchmarks** are indexes to measure

Reference

whether the financial product attains the environmental or social characteristics that they promote. Where can the methodology used for the calculation of the designated index be found?

Not applicable.



Where can I find more product specific information online?

More product-specific information can be found on the website:

https://www.im.natixis.com/intl/intl-fund-documents